Devon

County Council

Phil Norrey
Chief Executive

To: The Chairman and Members of County Hall
the Devon Pension Board Topsham Road
Exeter
Devon
EX2 4QD
(See below)
Your ref : Date : 12 October 2016 Email: rob.hooper@devon.gov.uk

Our ref :

Please ask for : Rob Hooper 01392 382300

DEVON PENSION BOARD

Thursday, 20th October, 2016

A meeting of the Devon Pension Board is to be held on the above date, at 10.30 am in the Committee
Suite, County Hall, Exeter, EX2 4QD to consider the following matters.

P NORREY
Chief Executive

AGENDA

[THE MEETING WILL BE PRECEDED - AT 10.00AM - BY AN INFORMAL BRIEFING TO
UPDATE MEMBERS ON INFORMATION PREVIOUSLY REQUESTED WHICH MAY NOT HAVE
BEEN SENT OUT IN ADVANCE , BY EMAIL OR OTHER MEANS OR FEATURE IN ANY
REPORT SUBMITTED TO THIS MEETING]

PART 1 - OPEN COMMITTEE

Apologies

Chairman

Election of Chairman for remainder of the 2016/17 Municipal Year.

Minutes (Pages 1 - 6)
Minutes of the meeting held on 14 April 2016, attached.

Iltems Requiring Urgent Attention

Items which in the opinion of the Chairman should be considered at the meeting as matters of
urgency.
Membership

County Treasurer to report resignation of Ms C Lewis (Fund Member Representative) and
arrangements for filling of resulting vacancy.



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION OR REVIEW

Statutory Statements (Pages 7 - 34)

(a) Communications Policy
Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/81), attached.

(b) Funding Strategy Statement
Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/82), attached.

External Audit Findings Report (Pages 35 - 60)
Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/83) on the findings of the External Audit Report, attached.

Devon Pension Fund Risk Register (Pages 61 - 76)
Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/84), attached.

MATTERS FOR INFORMATION

Pension Fund Annual Report & Accounts 2015/16 (Pages 77 - 230)
Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/85), attached.

Devon Pension Board: Budget Monitoring 2016/17 (Pages 231 - 232)
Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/86) on the position at Month 6, attached.

Actuarial Valuation 2016 and s13 Report (Pages 233 - 238)
Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/87), attached.

Admitted Bodies Process (Pages 239 - 244)
Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/88), attached.

Peninsula Pensions Administration Performance Statistics (Pages 245 - 248)
Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/89), attached.

Brunel Pooling Partnership: Progress Report (Pages 249 - 262)
Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/90), attached.

Investment and Pension Fund Committee (Pages 263 - 266)

Minutes of Investment & Pension Fund Committee held on 16 September 2016, for information.
[NB: The Investment & Pension Fund Committee’s response to any requests/suggestions
previously made by the Board were incorporated in the briefing/action log circulated prior to this
meeting].

Future Work Programme (Pages 267 - 268)

Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/91), attached.

Future Meetings/Diary Dates

The next meeting of the Board is scheduled for 10 April 2017 instead of 24 April 2016 due to the
latter’s proximity to the next County Council Quadrennial Elections



PART Il - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF PRESS AND PUBLIC ON THE
GROUNDS THAT EXEMPT INFORMATION MAY BE DISCLOSED

Members are reminded that Part Il Reports contain confidential information and should therefore be
treated accordingly. They should not be disclosed or passed on to any other person(s).

Members are also reminded of the need to dispose of such reports carefully and are therefore invited to
return them to the Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.

MEMBERS ARE REQUESTED TO SIGN THE ATTENDANCE REGISTER



Membership

Devon County Council

Councillors B Greenslade and S Randall-Johnson

Fund Employer Representatives

Graham Smith (Devon & Cornwall Police) and Carl Hearn (Tavistock Town Council
Fund Member Representatives

Andy Bowman, Heather Keightley, Colin Shipp and Vacancy

Independent Member (non-voting)

William Nicolls

Declaration of Interests

Members are reminded that they must declare any interest they may have in any item to be considered
at this meeting, prior to any discussion taking place on that item.

Access to Information

Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or lists of background papers relating to any item
on this agenda should contact Rob Hooper 01392 382300
Agenda and minutes of the Committee are published on the Council’s Website.

Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings

The proceedings of this meeting may be recorded for broadcasting live on the internet via the
‘Democracy Centre’ on the County Council’s website. The whole of the meeting may be broadcast
apart from any confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the press and
public. For more information go to: http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/

In addition, anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and public
are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, as directed by the
Chairman. Any filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without
the use of any additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and
having regard also to the wishes of any member of the public present who may not wish to be filmed.
As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chairman or the
Democratic Services Officer in attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is
happening.

Members of the public may also use Facebook and Twitter or other forms of social media to report on
proceedings at this meeting. An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available
for meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall. For information on Wi-Fi availability at other
locations, please contact the Officer identified above.

Emergencies

In the event of the fire alarm sounding leave the building immediately by the nearest available exit,
following the fire exit signs. If doors fail to unlock press the Green break glass next to the door. Do not
stop to collect personal belongings, do not use the lifts, do not re-enter the building until told to do so.

Mobile Phones

Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council Chamber

If you need a copy of this Agenda and/or a Report in
another format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or
other languages), please contact the Information Centre
on 01392 380101 or email to: centre@devon.gov.uk or
write to the Democratic and Scrutiny Secretariat at County
Hall, Exeter, EX2 4QD.

f')

Induction loop system available



http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/
mailto:centre@devon.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 3

DEVON PENSION BOARD
14/04/16

DEVON PENSION BOARD
14 April 2016

Present:-
Councillors Greenslade (In the Chair) and Brook

Fund Employer Representatives
Mr Hearn and Mr Smith

Fund Member Representatives
Mr Bowman, Ms Keightley and Mr Shipp

Independent Member
Mr Nicholls

Apologies:-
Ms Lewis (Fund Member)
1 Chairman

RESOLVED that the Vice-Chairman take the Chair for this meeting and an appointment be
made at the next meeting for the ensuing year.

2 Minutes
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Board held on 22 October 2015 be signed as a correct
record.

3 Items Requiring Urgent Attention

There was no item raised as a matter of urgency.

4 Membership

The County Treasurer reported that following the resignation of Mr Henshaw, nominations for
a replacement Fund Member representative on the Board had been sought in the usual way.
Following an open competition, and 4 eligible candidates having been interviewed, a Mr Colin
Shipp (HR Director at Plymouth University) had been appointed to the Board with immediate
effect.

Members welcomed Mr Shipp to his first meeting.

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION AND REVIEW

5 Devon Pension Board - One Year On

The Board considered the Joint Report of the County Solicitor and County Treasurer
(CS/16/17) reviewing the operation of the Board in its first year and providing an opportunity
for Members to discuss and raise any issues about the role and responsibilities of the Board
or any operational or procedural matters including frequency of meetings, budgetary issues,
conflicts of interest, access to information, training and development and public liability
insurance (as set out more fully in the Report).

Page 1



Agenda Item 3

DEVON PENSION BOARD

14/04/16

The matter having been debated and the options and/or alternatives and other relevant
factors (e.g. financial, sustainability, carbon impact, risk management, equality and legal
considerations and Public Health impact) set out in the Report and/or referred to above
having been considered:

It was MOVED by Councillor Greenslade, SECONDED by Mr Bowman, and
RESOLVED
(a) that the Report be noted;

(b) that, recognising the need for Members of the Board to maintain and demonstrate their
impartiality at all times and notwithstanding the existing guidance on conflicts of interest the
Board endorse the following principles which are already well established in a number of local
authority quasi-judicial, regulatory committees namely that:

‘The deliberations of the Board should leave no grounds for suggesting with
any justification that a decision has been partial, biased, or not in any way
well founded. Whilst Members of the Board may be influenced by the
opinions of others, their decisions must not discriminate in favour of any
individual, group or area, nor appear to do so, but must be in the best
interests of the Fund and Scheme Members. Members of the Board should
preserve their role as impartial advisers and it would be unacceptable for any
instruction to be given by or on behalf of a political party or of any other body
whose principle purpose is to influence public opinion or policy as to how any
Member of the Board shall speak or vote on any matter before the Board or
for there to be any application or threat to apply any sanction against any
Member of the Board should he/she speak or vote in any particular manner.’

(c) that the Investment & Pension Fund Committee be invited to adopt a similar stance to its
proceedings to preserve its status as an impartial decision maker and to ensure the
impartiality and integrity of its Members is not called into question through any third party
seeking to influence any decision of that Committee.

Statutory Statements: Governance Policy & Compliance Statement

The Board considered the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/40) together with the
Governance Policy & Compliance Statement approved by the Investment & Pension Fund
Committee on 27 February 2016 which set out the governance arrangements of the Pension
Fund including the composition of the County Council’s Investment & Pension Fund
Committee and this Board and the scheme of delegation for the aforementioned Committee,
the Scheme Manager and the County Council’s Officers.

Members acknowledged that the Compliance Statement did not currently contain any direct
reference to the Pension Board which it was anticipated would be rectified within the
forthcoming revised guidance from the Department for Communities and Local Government.

Members noted that this was one of four statutory statements the Fund was required to have
in place which the Board was required to scrutinise and comment upon to the Council’s
Investment & Pension Fund Committee.

Members recognised the need for the Board to be satisfied that the anticipated outcomes of
the Policy & Compliance Statement reflected the manner in which the Fund was managed
and that consequently the Board might wish or need to examine specific elements of the
Policy in more detail.

It was MOVED by Councillor Greenslade, SECONDED by Councillor Brook, and

RESOLVED

Page 2



Agenda Iltem 3

DEVON PENSION BOARD
14/04/16

(a) that subject to the Statement being amended to acknowledge the Board meets ‘at least
twice yearly’, the Governance Policy & Compliance Statement be endorsed;

(b) that, in submitting future statements, the County Treasurer be asked to include a simple
comparison with previous statements so that the Board may be satisfied that progression has

been made where necessary, enabling it to deliver upon one of its key roles.

Statutory Statements: Investment Principles

The Board considered the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/41) together with the
current Statement of Investment Principles most recently updated and approved by the
Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 12 June 2015 which explained how the Fund’s
assets were managed, the existing investment strategy, how risk and return issues were
managed and identifying all other relevant factors taken into account in so doing.

Members noted that this was one of four statutory statements the Fund was required to have
in place which the Board was required to scrutinise and comment upon to the Council’s
Investment & Pension Fund Committee.

In commenting upon the timing of the Board's consideration of this and future Statements (i.e,
either before or after the Investment & Pension Fund Committee) the Board acknowledged
that this particular Statutory Statement was due to be replaced with a new Investment
Strategy Statement upon which guidance was awaited from the Department for Communities
& Local Government.

It was MOVED by Councillor Greenslade, SECONDED by Councillor Brook, and
RESOLVED that notwithstanding the Board’s view that the Investment Principles Statement

might be enhanced by including reference to the new proposed pooling arrangements, the
Statement as now submitted be endorsed.

Annual Internal Audit Report for 2015/16 and proposed Plan for 2016/17

The Board considered the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/42) together with the
Internal Audit Report for 2015/16 and the proposed Plan for 2016/17 which had been
prepared by the Head of the Devon Audit Partnership for the County Council’s Investment &
Pension Fund Committee as a means of providing assurance to the Council that there were
no significant weaknesses or areas of concern in existing systems of control.

The Head of the Devon Audit Partnership acknowledged the need for greater clarity in future
Reports in indicating more clearly which organisation had commissioned individual pieces of
work and Officers also undertook to brief Members on the process followed previously in
appointing an Independent Advisor (Minute 6/2 July 2015 refers) and performance monitoring
thereof.

It was MOVED by Councillor Greenslade, SECONDED by Councillor Brook, and

RESOLVED that subject to the foregoing the Internal Audit Report for 2015/16 and Plan for
2016/17 be endorsed.

Devon Pension Fund Risk Register

The Board considered the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/43) together with the
current Pension Fund Risk Register delineating any required actions identified to mitigate risk.

It was MOVED by Councillor Greenslade, SECONDED by Councillor Brook, and

Page 3



Agenda Item 3

DEVON PENSION BOARD

14/04/16

10

11

12

RESOLVED that while the Pension Board is content to endorse the Pension Fund Risk
Register as submitted, the Investment & Pension Fund Committee nonetheless be invited to
consider a number of minor variations for the future, namely:

Risk F2, G1 (and elsewhere, as appropriate): to include references to the Devon Brunel
Pooling Arrangements

Risk I1: to include more general reference to staffing issues (sickness), where relevant.

Devon Pension Board Budget 2016/17

The Board considered the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/38) on the Board’s
proposed budget for 2016/17 for administrative support, accommodation, training and legal,
technical and other professional support predicated on the knowledge and experience gained
over the first months of operation. The budget was, in the view of the County
Treasurer/Scheme Manager, a sound and achievable financial plan based on a reasonable
assessment of current workloads which would necessarily be monitored during the year.

It was MOVED by Councillor Brook, SECONDED by Mr Hearn and

RESOLVED that the Devon Pension Board’s budget for 2016/17 be approved, subject to
regular monitoring.

Training Review 2015/16 and Training Plan for 2016/17

The Board considered the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/39) reviewing the training
and development opportunities provided for Members of the County Council’s Investment &
Pension Fund Committee and the Board in 2015/16 and outlining a proposed plan for
2016/17, to satisfy the requirements of the Pensions Act 2004, the CIPFA Code of Practice
on Public Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge and Skills and to comply with best practice.

The importance of Members of the Board and of the Investment & Pension Fund Committee
attending such events in order to make a full contribution to the work of both those bodies
was acknowledged.

It was MOVED by Councillor Greenslade, SECONDED by Councillor Brook, and
RESOLVED

(a) that subject to the amendment of the programme of the November event outlined at the
meeting and the inclusion in a future session of a briefing on the content and methodology for
construction of those Statutory Statements required to be submitted to the Board (Minutes 6
and 7 above refer, for example) the Training and Development Plan for 2016/17 be endorsed;

(b) that, additionally, the Investment & Pension Fund Committee be asked - as a means of
ensuring an appropriate level of knowledge by all Members of that Committee - to accept that,
as a matter of principle, full and named substitute Members of that Committee should similarly
be expected to undertake appropriate, regular, training before exercising the responsibilities
of that Committee.

MATTERS FOR INFORMATION

LGPS Pooling of Investments

The Board received, for information, a Report by the County Treasurer (CT/16/36) on
progress with the establishment of the proposed ’pooling’ arrangement for South West LGPS
schemes, under the aegis of Project Brunel, and on the Government's initial response to the
proposals upon which further work was being carried out.

Page 4



13

14

15

Agenda Iltem 3

DEVON PENSION BOARD
14/04/16

Members noted that since the initial proposals had been approved by the County Council,
Buckinghamshire and Oxfordshire had also agreed to enter the Brunel Pool increasing the
total assets of Member Funds to approximately £23billion, which enhanced the viability of the
pooling arrangements notwithstanding the governance arrangements that might finally be
determined.

The County Treasurer undertook to provide Members with copies of the
PriceWaterhouseCooper Reports referred to in Report CT/16/40 now submitted and to also
clarify the application of the investment strategy/principle referred to at Minute 7 under any
proposed pooling arrangements (when that was clearer), notwithstanding the overarching
objective of any Fund under any arrangements to maximise the return on investment.

Moreover and while recognising the need to satisfy themselves that any proposed pooling
arrangements were right for the Fund, Board Members recognised that the ability and
flexibility of the County Council and others not to pursue pooling arrangements was extremely
limited.

Actuarial Valuation 2016

The Board received the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/37) outlining the planned
approach to the 2016 triennial valuation of the Pension Fund.

LGPS Regulations required administering authorities to complete an actuarial valuation of
their Pension Fund on a three yearly cycle. The next valuation was due at 31 March 2016, the
results of which had to be published by 31 March 2017. The 2016 valuation would set
employer contribution levels for the 2017/18 - 2019/20.

The Report summarised the plan for the forthcoming valuation which had been discussed with
the scheme actuary, Barnett Waddingham and which had been previously outlined to the
Board by the Actuary at a training session in November of 2015.

Peninsula Pensions Administration Performance Statistics

The Board considered the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/44), requested previously
(Minute 19/22 October 2015 refers), on the performance of Peninsula Pensions administration
across the Peninsula and the action being taken to ensure compliance with accepted norms
and best practice.

Members acknowledged and welcomed the work being done to reduce previous backlogs.

The Board also recognised the difficulties and practicability of Peninsula Pensions being
asked to provide discreet or disaggregated data for the Devon Fund or area alone but the
County Treasurer and Head of Peninsula Pensions undertook to provide Board Members with
relevant budget data (including if possible the cost per head of the various schemes
administered) to allow Members to make a judgement as to the adequacy or otherwise of
administrative costs for the Devon Fund as highlighted previously.

The Head of Peninsula Pensions also confirmed that when specific performance targets had
not been met these were kept under review and monitored to ensure action was taken within
an acceptable period. She also outlined arrangements for obtaining customer feedback
including the use of specific, targeted surveys and confirmed that a summary of such
feedback and of any disputes logged or complaints received would be provided to Members
in due course and that future performance management reports would, as requested, provide
more qualitative information as far as was practicable.

Investment and Pension Fund Committee

The Board received and noted the minutes of the Investment & Pension Fund held on 20
November 2015 and 2 and 26 February 2016.

Page 5



Agenda Item 3

DEVON PENSION BOARD

14/04/16

16

17

Future Work Programme

The Board considered the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/45) outlining the proposed
future work programme and reviewed the suggestions therein and discussed at the meeting
for inclusion in the Programme.

It was MOVED by Councillor Greenslade, SECONDED by Councillor Brook, and

RESOLVED

(a) that the proposed work programme be approved, subject to the addition of a report or
briefing comparing internal and external Fund management costs etc. with other Authorities;

(b) that, in future, meetings be preceded by an informal briefing session to commence at
1000am to update Members with any information previously requested which had not been
sent out in advance, by email or other means.

Future Meetings/Diary Dates

Dates of meetings of the Board and of the Investment & Pension Fund Committee are
published on the County Council's Calendar of Meetings, which is available on the Council’s
website at: http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?GL=18&bcr=1

The Meeting started at 10.30 am and finished at 12.37 pm

Page 6


http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?GL=1&bcr=1

Agenda Iltem 6

CT/16/81
Devon Pension Board
20" October 2016

STATUTORY STATEMENTS - COMMUNICATIONS POLICY

Report of the County Treasurer

Please note that the following recommendation is subject to consideration and determination by
the Board before taking effect.

Recommendation: that the Board notes the Communications Policy.

1. Introduction

1.1. The Communications Policy is one of the four statutory statements that the Fund is
required to have in place. It sets out the Fund’s policies on the provision of information and
publicity about the Scheme to members, representatives of members and employing
authorities. It sets out the format, frequency and method of distributing such information or
publicity, other key organisations that we communicate with, our values in relation to
communications and the professional expertise available to the Fund.

1.2. A copy of the Communications Policy is attached at Appendix 1.

2. Recent amendments to the Communications Policy

2.1. Following a review by the Board in October 2015, the Communications Policy was
amended to include the following:

e Section 3.2 of the policy was amended to read ‘The Board is due to meet at least twice
ayear...

3. Future developments of the Policy

3.1. During 2015/16, Devon Audit Partnership conducted an audit which reviewed
communications with stakeholders, and included a review of the Communications Policy.
The report is currently in draft format, but a good level of assurance has been awarded.

3.2. The draft conclusion from the audit report is shown below:

“We found good communication with pension scheme members through the Portal,
Member Self Service, and the website. There is an established framework for managing
good communication which includes an up to date communication strategy and policy,
customer charter and administration strategy, and these are all published on the website.
Some improvements could be made to the website to ensure important information is
located in more obvious places, and a link to the Investments and Pensions Committee
information may be helpful.

As noted above communications with elected Members is considered good in that
information is timely and complete. A new Communications Group has been set up and
will be taking forward future developments to address areas of improvement and this
includes working on stakeholder mapping and increasing the frequency of newsletters to
scheme members. Peninsula Pensions management are actively working to meet the

Page 7



Agenda Item 6

target for issuing 100% of the Annual Benefit Statements by 31st August. This will be
followed up in next year’s audit work. A stakeholder mapping exercise is currently being
undertaken, in conjunction with the Devon County Council in-house communications team,
in order identify additional stakeholders connected to the Devon Pension Fund and to
assess their information requirements.”

3.3. If any additional recommendations for improvements to the policy are identified in the final
version of the audit report, these will be considered for inclusion at the next meeting of the
Board.

4. Conclusion

4.1. The Board is asked to note the Communications Policy.

Mary Davis

Electoral Divisions: All

Local Government Act 1972

List of Background Papers - Nil
Contact for Enquiries: Dan Harris
Tel No: (01392) 382520 Room G99

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 6
Appendix 1

Devon

County Council

Devon Pension Fund
Communications Policy

This policy outlines in a single document the Fund’s internal and external
communications framework. It sets out our principles for managing
communications, including a summary of key strands of communications,
and the responsibilities of our staff in relation to communications.

1. Why we communicate

We have a large and broad range of member organisations for whom we
need to offer specialist advice so that they fully understand their
obligations as employers in the Devon Pension Fund.

Our scheme members, whether current employees and actively
contributing toward pension benefits, former employees with deferred
pension rights, or retired and in receipt of a pension number in their tens
of thousands. All are entitled to expert support and information.

2. Our methods of communication

We have a range of communication channels and when deciding which to
use we take into consideration the message, our customer and the cost to
the Fund. Each time, the aim is to use the most appropriate and efficient
means for reaching the member or audience.

2.1 Internet

Peninsula Pensions is a shared admin service run by Devon County Council
on behalf of the Devon and Somerset Pension Funds.

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 9



Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1

P — E— == The service web site is an extensive
information resource with dedicated

pensions

J " - sections for anyone who may be thinking

| =) ¢ « o @ .

_ of joining, is already a member, or ma

Pl TPREE= orjonin saveaoy v
[ B @

—_— be a previous member or a pensioner

st ety member
7 oevorss https://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/
I s Using the navigable menu the reader can

access electronic copies of scheme literature and advice such as on
methods of increasing future retirement benefits through options like
Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) and Additional Pension
Contributions (APCs) - although members should note that we are unable
to counsel on whether any scheme suits an individual’s personal
circumstances and strongly advise that anyone considering an AVC
arrangement or any such product takes independent advice before
making a final decision.

There is also a section for employers where they can obtain the latest
news and advice, or search the Employers Guide and source forms.

2.2 Telephone, email and fax

We publish a full list of team contact details via our website, organised
into areas of expertise so that employers and members can speak with or
email direct to the most appropriate person for their enquiry. Telephone
lines are operable during normal office hours.

All official correspondence displays telephone, email and fax details. The
Fund Administrators make full use of email for correspondence where
suitable.

2.3 Newsletters

Employer organisations of the Devon Pension Fund receive a quarterly
newsletter via the Peninsula Pensions shared service in the form of an
electronic magazine informing them of the latest news and developments
affecting the LGPS. This is intended to be helpful and informative.

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 6
Appendix 1

pensions

LR

We encourage employers to circulate the newsletter within their
organisation and make available direct emailing to those members of staff
who would like it. Special bulletins of this newsletter are also sent from
time to time when the occasion or need arises.

Similarly, Peninsula Pensions publishes the newsletter Pensions Post,
through which we keep our Fund members up to date with pensions
legislation and changes, and is available through member self service for
those who have registered.

2.4 Member Self-Service

Members can now access their own pension records online, via the Altair
Member Self Service portal incorporated into our website. Using simple
and easy to navigate screens accessed through a fully auditable security
system a member or pensioner is able to:

« update personal details

« view payslips, P60s and annual benefits statements

« model their own benefit calculations

« view newsletters

« request benefit statements

« notify the pensions department of any amendments required
« print nomination and other forms for completion

2.5 Scheme Literature

A range of scheme literature is produced by the Fund and made available
to employer organisations and employees through our website.

The Fund has produced an Employer Guide. This is a key product for
employers as it is a comprehensive reference source which helps them to
understand and fulfill their responsibilities. An electronic version is
maintained on Devon Pension Fund’s website within the dedicated

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 11



Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1

employer section. Copies of leaflets and forms are also available to
employers from the website or on request.

2.6 Training & Liaison

We offer specialist training and advice to all Fund employers and this
covers the full range of administrative activities and tasks. We will also
deliver training that is tailored to the specific needs of an employer in-situ.

The Fund also holds an annual meeting at a technical level for all
employers. This meeting, known as the Pension Liaison Officers Group
(PLOG) provides an outstanding opportunity for all parties to exchange
views and news as well as addressing technical issues. Additional PLOGs
will be organised periodically if needs arise.

Dedicated liaison officers provide communications and support to
employers on various aspects of pension management and administration.

2.7 Annual Employers Meeting

Employer organisations have the opportunity to meet senior Investment
and Pension Fund managers once a year at the Annual Employers
Meeting. Pitched at a high level target audience of decision makers, the
meeting provides formal and informal opportunities to exchange
information and ask questions about fund performance, actuarial issues,
changes to workplace pension’s law, and developments in the reform of
public pensions and LGPS specifically.

2.8 Annual Consultative Meeting

An Annual Consultative Meeting (ACM) with members is held early in the
calendar year. This is organised with the trade unions (Unison and GMB).
The Chair of the Committee, the County Treasurer, the Assistant County
Treasurer — Investments and Treasury Management, and the Head of
Peninsula Pensions attend the ACM to make presentations and answer
any guestions.

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 12



Agenda Iltem 6
Appendix 1

2.9 Benefit Statements, Pay Advices, and P60s

Every year, we issue an annual benefit statement to all current
contributing members. This shows the current and prospective value of
the member’s benefits.

Deferred members will also receive a statement where a current address
is held for them or through Member Self Service.

We send pay advices to pensioners in April and May each year. These
show the effect of the annual pension increase and will include a P60 tax
document summarising pay and the tax deducted from it for the previous
year.

A payslip is also issued to pensioners if there has been a change of more
than £1 to their net monthly income.

2.10 Annual Report

The Pension Fund’s current Annual Report and Accounts is made available
at the Peninsula Pensions website
https://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/pension-fund-investments/devon-

county-council-investments/devon-fund-key-documents/ Hardcopy of the

full report can be provided upon request. Employee members are
informed of the web link via pay slips and all retired members receive a
leaflet by post or through Member Self Service.

Archived annual reports and accounts can also be accessed via the
website, as can a range of Fund publications including among others our
Statement of Investment Principles, Funding Strategy Statement, and the
most recent Actuarial Valuation Report.

3. Fund governance

3.1 The Investment and Pension Fund Committee

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee fulfils the duties of the
Devon County Council as the Administering Authority of the Pension Fund.

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 13



Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1

The committee is made up of representatives from Devon County Council,
Unitary and District Councils, Police, Fire Services and Probation, Academic
Bodies, Trade Union, and retired Members.

Its main powers and duties are based on the provisions of the Local
Government Pension Fund (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2009, as amended, and are designed to ensure that the Fund
is properly and effectively managed. Its purpose is to make sure the
Council performs its duties as Administering Authority of the Devon
Pension Fund, reviewing and approving the Fund’s annual statement of
accounts, and making sure that appropriate accounting policies are
followed. It also brings to the attention of the Council any concerns
arising from financial statements or any audit.

Investment and Pension Fund Committee Meetings are held at least
quarterly and are open to the public as observers, other than where
information is exempt from public disclosure under the Local Government
Act 1972. Committee agendas, reports and minutes are made available via
the Devon County Council web site at
http://www.devon.gov.uk/index/councildemocracy/decision _making/cma
/index/councildemocracy/decision making/cma/index inv.htm

3.2 The Devon Pension Board

The Public Services Pension Act 2013 has required all Funds to establish a
local Pension Board to assist with governance and compliance from 1st
April 2015. Devon Pension board meetings are formal recorded occasions,
where the status of the scheme and associated issues are reviewed and
recommendations made concerning the standards of scheme governance
and administration.

The Board is due to meet at least twice a year, with one meeting in the
Spring and one in the Autumn. More information on the Pension Board
along with terms of reference and meeting minutes can be found on the
Peninsula Pensions website at
https://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/pension-fund-investments/devon-
county-council-investments/pension-board/

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 14



Agenda Iltem 6
Appendix 1

4. Our communication standards

We aspire to supply a high quality pension administration service
providing value for money and to meet the highest possible standards in
our dealings with all our customers.

These aims are set out in our Customer Charter which has been drawn up
specifically with employee members in mind, whether active, deferred or
of pensioner status. It describes how individuals who contact us will be
treated by our Pensions Services staff. It sets out core standards of service
which are measurable and encourages members to provide us with
feedback on how we are doing as well as what to do if unhappy with the
service they have received. https://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/lgps-
member/documents-and-forms/915-2/

5. Professional know how

The Devon Pension Fund employs the service of a range of actuarial and
investment specialists in order for it to achieve its purpose and fulfil its
pensions promise.

5.1 Actuarial Services

Actuaries perform a three-yearly Actuarial Valuation of the Devon Pension
Fund as required by LGPS Regulations. Assets and liabilities are measured
and valued and employer contribution rates are calculated that will
achieve the long term Fund Strategy.

The Fund maintains communications with the Actuary and Employers
throughout this exercise. All employers get the opportunity to meet the
Actuary when preliminary results are known.

The Actuary also provides us with information and advice on range of
issues affecting the Fund, especially when an employer organisation is
seeking to join or, more rarely, exit the Fund.

Actuarial Services to the Fund are currently provided by
https://www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk/

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 15



Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1

5.2 Investment Fund Managers / Independent Advisers

Investment performance is consistently monitored and evaluated against
portfolio objectives and benchmarks. This is undertaken by the County
Treasurer’s Investment Team which has regular performance review
meetings with the professional external Fund Managers who are
appointed to invest the monies belonging to the Fund.

The County Treasurer reports to the Investment and Pension Fund
Committee on investment performance and each active external Fund
Manager will attend a briefing meeting with the Committee on an annual
basis.

Investment constraints are set by the Committee whose professional
knowledge is supplemented by the advice of the County Treasurer’s
Investment Team and an experienced independent investment adviser.

5.3 Legal Advice

Legal advice is normally provided by the County Solicitor but may involve
the appointment of specialist legal advisers for particular aspects of fund
management.

6. Other organisations we connect with

6.1 Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG)

DCLG (https://www.gov.uk/) is responsible for government policy on some
public sector pensions including the LGPS. The Devon Pension Fund
responds to consultation proposals for scheme changes

6.2 LGPS Scheme Advisory Board

The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board
(http://www.lgpsboard.org/) is a body set up under Section 7 of the Public
Service Pensions Act 2013. The purpose of the Board is to encourage best
practice, increase transparency and coordinate technical and standards
issues.

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 16



Agenda Iltem 6
Appendix 1

It will consider items passed to it from the Department of Communities
and Local Government ("DCLG"), the Board's sub-committees and other
stakeholders as well as items formulated within the Board.
Recommendations may be passed to the DCLG or other bodies. It is also
likely that it will have a liaison role with the Pensions Regulator. Guidance
and standards may be formulated for local scheme managers and pension
boards.

The Devon Fund will need to respond to initiatives undertaken by the
Scheme Advisory Board, providing information where required, and
feeding into the Board’s working groups.

6.3 Local Government Association (LGA)

The LGA (http://www.local.gov.uk/workforce) represents the interests
of 375 local authorities in England and Wales to central government and
other bodies; specifically in this instance with regard to local government
pensions’ policy. The Workforce Team provide technical advice, a suite of
guides, booklets and publications and a full programme of pensions
training. The Fund obtains clarification and advice from LGE specialists
from time to time.

6.4 The Pensions Regulator

The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 gave additional responsibility to the
Pensions Regulator (http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/) to oversee
the LGPS. The Regulator has issued a code of practice for LGPS funds to
follow. The Devon Fund is required to report any significant breaches of
the code of practice or regulatory requirements to the Pensions Regulator.

6.5 The Pension and Lifetime Savings Association (PLSA)

NAPF (http://www.plsa.co.uk/) speaks collectively for workplace pension
schemes with the aim of influencing the direction of retirement provision.
It has deep working relationships in Westminster and Whitehall. The
Devon Pension Fund is a member of this organisation and this helps us to
be part of the national pension debate both in our own right and as a
group with other local authority pension funds.

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 17



Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1

6.6 The Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF)

LAPFF ( http://www.lapfforum.org/) seeks to optimise the influence of
local authority pension funds as shareholders to advance high standards
of Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility. The Forum
has a number of business meetings and an annual conference or AGM
each year which is usually attended by the Assistant County Treasurer —
Investments and Treasury Management.

6.7 The Society of County Treasurers (SCT)

This is a forum of all Shire and Unitary Council Treasurers meeting
regularly for the sharing of information and best practice on all financial
matters including pension fund management (http://www.sctnet.org.uk/)

6.8 South West Investment Managers (SWIM)

A group of administering authority investment managers that meets on a
six-monthly basis to discuss investment issues and procurement methods.
Communication with the SWIM group is crucial to the sharing of best
practice and seeking opportunities for collaboration to reduce costs and
improve performance.

6.9 The South West Area Pension Officers Group (SWAPOG)

This liaison network is set up to promote consistent and uniform
interpretation of LGPS rules and regulations among administering
authorities in the region.

6.10 Press and Media

The Fund will actively engage with the press and other media
organisations in order to ensure clarity, facts and fair representation.
Enquiries from these bodies are handled by Devon County Council’s Press
and PR Officer.

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 18

10



Agenda Iltem 6

1T

STOC 42qWBSAON Yioc
9913WWO0D pPuUN4 UOISUR{ 18 JUBWISAAU] [1DUN0) AJUNo) uoAaq ay3i Aq panoiddy

Je9A 4ad 321m3 15e3) 1Y

duljuo 3|qe|ieAe Ajjueisuo)

JeaA Jad suoiseddo G/p 1ses| 1y

JedA snoinaud 4oj 09d “pul Aey 3 udy
|enuuy

auljuo a|qe|ieae Ajaueisuo)

jJuswAo|dws Suiaes| uodn

pue ‘4aAo|dwa elA 10 SSaJppe swoy 0} |enuuy

|[enuuy

SiaquaW padiial

JO ssauppe awoy 03 JeaA yoes pajsod 'sdijs Aed
BIA JUI| G9M JO PISIApE 2Je siaquiaw 23Aojdw3
"9IAIDS §|9S JaquIa|A 03 papeojdn 1@ uljuQ
3utuiof uodn siaqwiaw mau 03 panss| yded
uolsuad ‘s1ahojdw3 y3noayz painquiasip 194

9DIAJIDS §|3S JaqWaW YSnoayi a|ge|ieay
auljuo 3|qe|leAe Ajpueisuo)

Aduanbaui4

uollejuasasdas ajeuolniodoud

9AIYdJe Ajluoyiny Sulalsiuiwpy
SN1e1s JaAJSSqO Yum sday uojun aped]

sao1Ape Aed
J9113|SM3N J3UO0ISuUd(

uolnewJojul 19npoud Hdy pue JHAY

SJUBWIR1E]S Sijauag

(IWDV) S8uneaN aAneyNsuo) |enuuy

(39)4€9] BuisleWWNG)
S1UNO02JY 1@ 1odayY [enuuy

3oed UoIsuad pue 13}jea] owold

J2119|SM3N 150 SuoIsuad
21ISq3 /W 12UJ21U|

pJeog uoisuad ay3} uo uoijejuasaiday

sa1nuIw
pue siaded 93131WWOD puN{ UOISUI *§ JUBWISIAU| 0} SSDIIY

99111WWO0) pun{ UOISU3J '3 JUSWISAAU| 3Y] UO UOIIeIUSSaIdaY

(s41oquialp JauoISUad) palonpap
Xe] pue aseaJoul uoisuad |enuue syl JO S199)49 aY3 JO 93pajmou)|

S}$2uUaq suoisuad aininy snosdwi 03 sAepn

(s1oquia|N pa4J4349Q pue dAIIDY) SHjaUS(q JO 93pPaJMOUY

s9|dipulid Juswisanul
pue ‘sduewJo}iad JUBWISIAUI ‘S9dUBUIH pun4 JO 38pajmouy

SJaQUIBW M3U pue aA13adsoud Joj uolIeWIOJUl BWIYIS

S|IE}9P 30BIUOI ‘DWAYIS Y3 INOGE SMAU PUB UOIIBWIOU|

1npo.d uoneyadxy

:SI9QUIDIAI dWIAYIS

SPaaN UolleW.IOU| JOP|OYaX LIS SUlId3IA (puUN4 UOISU3{ |1PUN0) AJUN0) UoA3Q

| XIpuaddy

Vv Xipuaddy

Page 19



Agenda Iltem 6

ctl

STOC 19qWsAON Yi0¢

9913WWO0D pPuUN4 UOISUR{ 18 JUBWISAAU] [1DUN0) AJUNo) uoAaq ay3i Aq panoiddy

JedA Jad 221m1 3se3)| 1y

auljuo a|ge|ieae Ajpueisuo)
JeaA uad suoiseddo G/ 1sea| 1y

poddns jsijerdads paiedipag

auluo

auljuo 3|ge|ieAe Ajjueisuo)
dSlJe SpaaU Se pue [enuuy
puewap uQ

3ul08up

pung uoAsqg ay1
JO uopenjeA |elien3dy ay3 uodn AeaA-aauyy

paau 03 SuipJodde SIUdAD |e1aads snid |[enuuy

91ISqaMm 3y} eIA s1iodaJ paAlydJe pue [enuuy

sul39||ng |e1dads sn|d Ajaayenp

auljuo a|qe|ieAe Ajaueisuo)

Aduanbauiy

| XIpuaddy

uolyejuasatdas areuolniodoud

9AIYaIy Aluoyiny Sulaisiuiwpy
uollejuasasdas areuolriodoud

2oueping 323(oud

S}EYIMO|} pue
SWwJ0j ‘s19139| 21e|dwa} ‘uolrew.ou)

yoed W09 M

(901d) dnouo 42210 uos|el] uoisuadd
8ujuied] 3sijepads

1oddns pue uosier

3unasy ssaholdw ,Auenidy syl 199,

wnJo4 / 3unes|A sieAoldwy

(1oday ||n4) suno2oy 1 10day |enuuy

J9119[SM3U duiZ-3

91ISga/\\ 19UJ31U|

pJeog uoisuad ayl uo uoijejuasalday

saInulw
pue siaded 29111WIWOY) puUN4 UOISUS 79 JUBWISIAU| 0} SS3IIY

29111WWO0) puN4 UOISUd 13 JUBWISIAU| 3Y3 UO Uolleluasalday

‘uolie|si3a|
uolsuad 32e|dxJ0M JSPUN SWIOHD] JUSW|OIUD -0INe YlM
3uiA|dwod uo siaAojdws 404 dd1Ape - S9aA0|dw] 4O Jusw|oIu]

sJaquiaw
9AI1303ds0.d 104 S|elialew |euojjowosd pue uoljewlojul awayas

SH)SEe} pue s31}IAIde
dAIeJISIUIWpE JO SulpuelSIdpUN pue 3paJMmouy [eaIuydID |

'S93ed uolingriuod JaAojdws
pue s|aA3| Suipuny Suipnjoul s1913eW |elIEN]e JO SulpuelSIapuUN

*93ueyIXa UoIIeWIOLUl pUE ‘SM3aU ‘Sjuswdolanap
‘adeaspue| uoisuad ay3 ‘ssaidoud s,pund ay3 Jo I3pajMmou

S9Jueul4 pun4 Jo a3pajmou)|

's9lepdn duew.opad JUSWISIAUl PUB SMIU 1593e7 "Syusawalinbau

3WaYds 01 SUOISIARI pue uolle(si8a| ul sa8ueyd INoge UoIIeWIoU|

suo0day pue sa121j0d pun4 ‘SwJo} pue saping ‘9inielall| swayds

3onpoad uolnyeydadxy

:su9hojdwiy

Page 20



CT/16/82
Devon Pension Board
20" October 2016

STATUTORY STATEMENTS - FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT

Report of the County Treasurer

Please note that the following recommendation is subject to consideration and determination by
the Board before taking effect.

Recommendation: that the Board notes the Funding Strategy Statement.

1. Introduction

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

The Funding Strategy Statement is one of the four statutory statements that the Fund is
required to have in place. Its purpose is to explain the funding objectives of the Fund and
how the costs of the benefits provided under the Local Government Pension Scheme are
met though the Fund. It also defines the objectives in setting employer contribution rates
and the funding strategy that is adopted to meet these objectives.

The Statement has been prepared in accordance with Regulation 58 of the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 and describes Devon County Council’s
strategy, in its capacity as Administering Authority, for the funding of the Devon County
Council Pension Fund.

The current Statement was approved by the Investment and Pension Fund Committee on
12" September 2014 and reviewed by the Pension Board in October 2015. A copy is
attached at Appendix 1.

2. Future developments of the Statement

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

The current Statement was produced in conjunction with the Fund Actuary (Barnett
Waddingham) and in consultation with all Employers that participate in the Devon Pension
Fund, following the completion of the 2013 Actuarial Valuation.

Barnett Waddingham are currently in the process of undertaking the Actuarial Valuation for
2016. Provisional results will be presented at a meeting for Fund employers on the 19th
October. This will also provide employers to discuss with the actuary their specific
circumstances and the impact of the valuation on their individual contribution rates.

The provisional outcome of the valuation will be reported to the Investment and Pension
Fund Committee in November. A revised Funding Strategy Statement will be produced in
2017 which will reflect any significant changes to funding assumptions and will be
presented to the Board for review.

3. Conclusion

3.1.

The Board is asked to note the Funding Strategy Statement.

Page 21




Mary Davis

Electoral Divisions: All

Local Government Act 1972

List of Background Papers - Nil
Contact for Enquiries: Dan Harris
Tel No: (01392) 382520 Room G99

Page 22



Appendix 1

Devon Pension Fund Devon
Funding Strategy Statement ~ “"™©"

1 Introduction

1.1 This is the Funding Strategy Statement for the Devon County Council Pension
Fund. It has been prepared in accordance with Regulation 58 of the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (“the Regulations”) and
describes Devon County Council’s strategy, in its capacity as Administering
Authority, for the funding of the Devon County Council Pension Fund (“the
Fund”).

1.2 In accordance with Regulation 58(3), all employers participating within the
Devon County Council Pension Fund have been consulted on the contents of
this Statement and their views have been taken into account in formulating
the Statement. However, the Statement describes a single strategy for the

Fund as a whole.

1.3 The Fund Actuary, Barnett Waddingham LLP, has also been consulted on the

contents of this Statement.

2 Purpose of the Funding Strategy Statement

2.1 The purpose of this Funding Strategy Statement is to explain the funding

objectives of the Fund and in particular:

e How the costs of the benefits provided under the Local Government

Pension Scheme (the “Scheme”) are met though the Fund;
e The objectives in setting employer contribution rates; and

e The funding strategy that is adopted to meet these objectives.

3 Purpose of the Fund

3.1 The purpose of the Fund is to:

Devon County Council
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 12 September 2014

Page 23




e Pay pensions, lump sums and other benefits provided under the

Regulations;
e Meet the costs associated in administering the Fund; and

e Receive contributions, transfer values and investment income.

4 Funding Objectives

4.1 Contributions are paid to the Fund by Scheme members and the employing
bodies to provide for the benefits which will become payable to Scheme

members when they fall due.
4.2 The funding objectives are to:

o Set levels of employer contribution that will build up a fund of assets
that will be sufficient to meet all future benefit payments from the
Fund.

e Build up the required assets in such a way that employer contribution

rates are kept as low and stable as possible.

5 Key Parties

5.1 The key parties involved in the funding process and their responsibilities are as

follows:

The Administering Authority

5.2 The Administering Authority for the Pension Fund is Devon County Council. The

main responsibilities of the Administering Authority are to:
e Collect employee and employer contributions;
e Invest the Fund’s assets;

e Pay the benefits due to Scheme members;

Devon County Council 2
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 12 September 2014

Page 24



e Manage the actuarial valuation process in conjunction with the Fund

Actuary;

e Prepare and maintain this Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) and also the
Statement of Investment Principles (SIP) after consultation with other

interested parties; and

e Monitor all aspects of the Fund’s performance.

Scheme Employers
5.3 In addition to the Administering Authority, a number of other Scheme

Employers, including Admission Bodies, participate in the Fund.

5.4 The responsibilities of each Scheme Employer that participates in the Fund,

including the Administering Authority, are to:

o Collect employee contributions and pay these together with their own
employer contributions as certified by the Fund Actuary to the

Administering Authority within the statutory timescales;

e Notify the Administering Authority of any new Scheme members and

any other membership changes promptly;
e Exercise any discretions permitted under the Regulations; and

e Meet the costs of any augmentations or other additional costs in

accordance with agreed policies and procedures.

Fund Actuary
5.5 The Fund Actuary for the Pension Fund is Barnett Waddingham LLP. The main

responsibilities of the Fund Actuary are to:

e Advise interested parties on funding strategy and completion of

actuarial valuations in accordance with the FSS and the Regulations; and

¢ Advise on other actuarial matters affecting the financial position of the
Fund.

Devon County Council 3
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 12 September 2014

Page 25



6 Funding Strategy

6.1

6.2

The factors affecting the Fund’s finances are constantly changing, so it is
necessary for its financial position and the contributions payable to be
reviewed from time to time by means of an actuarial valuation to check that

the funding objectives are being met.

The actuarial valuation involves a projection of future cash flows to and from
the Fund. The main purpose of the valuation is to determine the level of
employers’ contributions that should be paid to ensure that the existing
assets and future contributions will be sufficient to meet all future benefit

payments from the Fund.

7 Funding Method

7.1

7.2

7.3

The key objective in determining employer’s contribution rates is to establish
a funding target and then set levels of employer contribution to meet that

target over an agreed period.

The funding target is to have sufficient assets in the Fund to meet the accrued
liabilities for each employer in the Fund. The funding target may, however,
depend on certain employer circumstances and in particular, whether an
employer is an “open” employer — one which allows new recruits access to
the Fund, or a “closed” employer which no longer permits new staff access to
the Fund. The expected period of participation by an employer in the Fund

may also affect the chosen funding target.

For open employers, the actuarial funding method that is adopted is known as
the Projected Unit Funding Method which considers separately the benefits in
respect of service completed before the valuation date (“past service”) and
benefits in respect of service expected to be completed after the valuation

date (“future service”). This approach focuses on:

Devon County Council

Investment & Pension Fund Committee 12 September 2014

Page 26




e The past service funding level of the Fund. This is the ratio of
accumulated assets to liabilities in respect of past service. It makes
allowance for future increases to members’ pay for pensions in
payment. A funding level in excess of 100 per cent indicates a surplus of
assets over liabilities; while a funding level of less than 100 per cent

indicates a deficit; and

e The future service funding rate which is: the level of contributions
required from the individual employers which, in combination with
employee contributions is expected to support the cost of benefits

accruing in future.

7.4 The key feature of this method is that, in assessing the future service cost, the

contribution rate represents the cost of one year’s benefit accrual.

7.5 For closed employers, the funding method adopted is known as the Attained
Age Method. The key difference between this method and the Projected Unit
Method is that the Attained Age Method assesses the average cost of the
benefits that will accrue over the remaining expected working lifetime of

active members.

8 Valuation Assumptions and Funding Model

8.1 In completing the actuarial valuation it is necessary to formulate assumptions
about the factors affecting the Fund's future finances such as inflation, pay
increases, investment returns, rates of mortality, early retirement and staff

turnover etc.
8.2 The assumptions adopted at the valuation can therefore be considered as:

e The statistical assumptions which are essentially estimates of the

likelihood of benefits and contributions being paid, and

e The financial assumptions which will determine the estimates of the
amount of benefits and contributions payable and their current or

present value.

Devon County Council
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 12 September 2014

Page 27




Future Price Inflation

8.3

The base assumption in any valuation is the future level of price inflation over
a period commensurate with the duration of the liabilities. This is derived by
considering the average difference in yields over the appropriate period from
conventional and index linked gilts during the six months straddling the
valuation date to provide an estimate of future price inflation as measured by
the Retail Price Index (or “RPI”).

Future Pay Inflation

8.4

As some of the benefits are linked to pay levels at retirement, it is necessary
to make an assumption as to future levels of pay inflation. Historically, there
has been a close link between price and pay inflation with pay increases

exceeding price inflation in the longer term.

Future Pension Increases

8.5

Pension increases are linked to changes in the level of the Consumer Price
Index (or “CPI”). Inflation as measured by the CPI has historically been less
then RPI due mainly to different calculation methods. An adjustment is

therefore made to the RPI assumption to derive the CPl assumption.

Future Investment Returns/Discount Rate

8.6

8.7

8.8

To determine the value of accrued liabilities and derive future contribution
requirements it is necessary to discount future payments to and from the

Fund to present day values.

The discount rate that is adopted will depend on the funding target adopted
for each employer.

For open employers, the discount rate that is applied to all projected liabilities
reflects a prudent estimate of the rate of investment return that is expected
to be earned from the underlying investment strategy by considering average
market yields in the six months straddling the valuation date. The discount

rate so determined may be referred to as the “ongoing” discount rate.

Devon County Council

Investment & Pension Fund Committee 12 September 2014

Page 28




8.9 For closed employers, an adjustment may be made to the discount rate in
relation to the remaining liabilities, once all active members are assumed to
have retired if at that time (the projected “termination date”), the employer

becomes an exiting employer under Regulation 64.

8.10 The Fund Actuary will incorporate such an adjustment after consultation with

the Administering Authority.

8.11 The adjustment to the discount rate for closed employers is to set a higher
funding target at the projected termination date, so that there are sufficient
assets to fund the remaining liabilities on a “minimum risk” rather than on an
ongoing basis. The aim is to minimise the risk of deficits arising after the

termination date.

Asset Valuation

8.12 For the purposes of the valuation, the asset value used is the market value of
the accumulated Fund at the valuation date adjusted to reflect average

market conditions during the six months straddling the valuation date.

Statistical Assumptions

8.13 The statistical assumptions incorporated into the valuation, such as future
mortality rates, are based on national statistics. These are adjusted as
appropriate to reflect the individual circumstances of the Fund and/or

individual employers.

8.14 Further details of all of the assumptions adopted are included in the latest

actuarial valuation report.

9 Deficit Recovery / Surplus Amortisation Periods

9.1 Whilst one of the funding objectives is to build up sufficient assets to meet
the cost of benefits as they accrue, it is recognised that at any particular point

in time, the value of the accumulated assets will be different to the value of

Devon County Council
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 12 September 2014

Page 29



accrued liabilities, depending on how the actual experience of the Fund differs
to the actuarial assumptions. Accordingly the Fund will normally either be in

surplus or in deficit.

9.2 Where the actuarial valuation discloses a significant surplus or deficit then the
levels of required employers’ contributions will include an adjustment to

either amortise the surplus or fund the deficit over a period of years.
9.3 The period that is adopted for any particular employer will depend on:

o The significance of the surplus or deficit relative to that employer’s
liabilities;
e The covenant of the individual employer and any limited period of

participation in the Fund; and

e The implications in terms of stability of future levels of employers’

contribution.

10 Pooling of Individual Employers

10.1 The policy of the Fund is that each individual employer should be responsible
for the costs of providing pensions for its own employees who participate in
the Fund. Accordingly, contribution rates are set for individual employers to

reflect their own particular circumstances.

10.2 However, certain groups of individual employers are pooled for the purposes
of determining contribution rates to recognise common characteristics or

where the number of Scheme members is small.

10.3 The main purpose of pooling is to produce more stable employer contribution
levels in the longer term whilst, recognising that ultimately there will be some

level of cross-subsidy of pension cost amongst pooled employers.

Devon County Council
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 12 September 2014

Page 30



11 Stepping

11.1 Additionally, the Administering Authority will consider at each valuation
whether the new contribution rate required from an employer by the funding
model should be payable immediately or can be reached by a series of steps

over a number of years.

11.2 The present policy of the Administering Authority is that no more than three
equal annual steps will be permitted in the normal course of events. An
increase to this may be permitted in extreme cases, but the total will not

exceed a maximum of six annual steps.

12 Cessation Valuations

12.1 On the cessation of an employer’s participation in the Scheme, the Fund
Actuary will be asked to make a termination assessment. Any deficit in the
Fund in respect of the employer will be due to the Fund as a termination
contribution, unless it is agreed by the Administering Authority and the other
parties involved that the assets and liabilities relating to the employer will

transfer within the Fund to another participating employer.

12.2 In assessing the financial position on termination, the Fund Actuary may
adopt a discount rate based on gilt yields and adopt different assumptions to
those used at the previous valuation in order to protect the other employers
in the Fund from having to fund any future deficits which may arise from the

liabilities that will remain in the Fund.

13 Links with the Statement of Investment Principles
(SIP)

13.1 The main link between the Funding Strategy Statement and the SIP relates to
the discount rate that underlies the funding strategy as set out in the FSS, and
the expected rates of investment return which is expected to be achieved by

the underlying investment strategy as set out in the SIP.

Devon County Council
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 12 September 2014

Page 31



14 Risks and Counter Measures

14.1 Whilst the funding strategy attempts to satisfy the funding objectives of
ensuring sufficient assets to meet pension liabilities and stable levels of
employer contributions, it is recognised that there are risks that may impact
on the funding strategy and hence the ability of the strategy to meet the

funding objectives.

14.2 The major risks to the funding strategy are financial, although there are other
external factors including demographic risks, regulatory risks and governance

risks.

15 Financial Risks

15.1 The main financial risk is that the actual investment strategy fails to produce
the expected rate of investment return (in real terms) that underlies the
funding strategy. This could be due to a number of factors, including market
returns being less than expected and/or the fund managers who are
employed to implement the chosen investment strategy failing to achieve

their performance targets.

15.2 The valuation results are most sensitive to the real discount rate. Broadly
speaking an increase/decrease of 0.5 per cent per annum in the real discount
rate will decrease/increase the valuation of the liabilities by 10 per cent, and
decrease/increase the required employer contribution by around 2.5 per cent

of payroll.

15.3 However, the Investment and Pension Fund Committee regularly monitors
the investment returns achieved by the fund managers and receives advice

from the independent advisers and officers on investment strategy.

15.4 The Committee may also seek advice from the Fund Actuary on valuation

related matters.

Devon County Council
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 12 September 2014

Page 32



15.5 In addition, the Fund Actuary provides funding updates between valuations to

check whether the funding strategy continues to meet the funding objectives.

16 Demographic Risks

16.1 Allowance is made in the funding strategy via the actuarial assumptions for a
continuing improvement in life expectancy. However, the main demographic
risk to the funding strategy is that it might underestimate the continuing
improvement in longevity. For example, an increase of one year to life
expectancy of all members in the Fund will reduce the funding level by

approximately 1%.

16.2 The actual mortality of pensioners in the Fund is monitored by the Fund

Actuary at each actuarial valuation and assumptions are kept under review.

16.3 The liabilities of the Fund can also increase by more than has been planned as

a result of early retirements.

16.4 However, the Administering Authority monitors the incidence of early
retirements; and procedures are in place, that require individual employers to
pay additional amounts into the Fund to meet any additional costs arising

from early retirements.

17 Regulatory Risks

17.1 The benefits provided by the Scheme and employee contribution levels are
set out in Regulations determined by central Government. The tax status of

the invested assets is also determined by the Government.

17.2 The funding strategy is therefore exposed to the risks of changes in the
Regulations governing the Scheme and changes to the tax regime which may

affect the cost to individual employers participating in the Scheme.

17.3 However, the Administering Authority participates in any consultation process
of any proposed changes in Regulations and seeks advice from the Fund

Actuary on the financial implications of any proposed changes.

Devon County Council 11
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 12 September 2014

Page 33



18 Governance

18.1 Many different employers participate in the Fund. Accordingly, it is
recognised that a number of employer-specific events could impact on the

funding strategy including:
e Structural changes in an individual employer’s membership;

e Anindividual employer deciding to close the Scheme to new employees;

and

e An employer ceasing to exist without having fully funded their pension
liabilities.
18.2 However, the Administering Authority monitors the position of employers

participating in the Fund, particularly those which may be susceptible to the

events outlined, and takes advice from the Fund Actuary when required.

18.3 In addition, the Administering Authority keeps in close touch with all
individual employers participating in the Fund to ensure that, as
Administering Authority, it has the most up to date information available on
individual employer situations. It also keeps individual employers briefed on

funding and related issues.

19 Monitoring and Review

19.1 This FSS is reviewed formally, in consultation with the key parties, at least

every three years to tie in with the triennial actuarial valuation process.

19.2 The Administering Authority also monitors the financial position of the Fund
between actuarial valuations and may review the FSS more frequently if

necessary.

Devon County Council 12
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 12 September 2014

Page 34



Agenda Item 7

CT/16/83
Devon Pension Board
22" October 2016

EXTERNAL AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT 2015/16

Report of the County Treasurer

Please note that the following recommendation is subject to consideration and determination by
the Board before taking effect.

Recommendation: that the Board notes the External Audit Findings Report.

1. Introduction

1.1. The Audit Findings Report outlines the findings arising from the audit of the Pension Fund
for 2015/16. It describes the work undertaken by the external auditors (Grant Thornton) to
address the risks identified in the Audit Plan presented to the Audit Committee in March
2016.

1.2. A copy of the report is attached at Appendix 1.

2. Audit Findings Report 2015/16

2.1. The report did not identify any significant issues and an unqualified opinion was issued in
respect of the Fund’s financial statements.

2.2. The report was presented to the Audit Committee on 7" September 2016 and Grant
Thornton provided feedback to the Investment and Pension Fund Committee on 16™
September 2016.

3. Conclusion

3.1. The Board is asked to note the Audit Findings Report.

Mary Davis

Electoral Divisions: All

Local Government Act 1972

List of Background Papers - Nil
Contact for Enquiries: Dan Harris
Tel No: (01392) 382520 Room G99

Page 35



Appendix 1
o Grant Thornton

The Audit Findings

for Devon Pension Fund

o Year ended 31 March 2016

«Q
@ August 2016

W
(0))

Elizabeth Cave
Director

T 0117 3057885

E liz.a.cave@uk.gt.com

Andrew Shaw

Manager

T 0117 305 7755

E andrew.j.shaw@uk.gt.com

Steph Thayer

In Charge

T +44(0)117 305 7821

E steph.e.thayer@uk.gt.com

) Wal| epuaby



o GrantThornton Private and Confidential

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Hartwell House

County Hall Topsham Road 55-61 Victoria Street
Exeter Bristol

T +44 (0) 117 305 7600
www.grant-thornton.co.uk

Devon Pension Fund

Devon
EX2 4QD

30 August 2016

Dear Members of the Audit Committee
Audit Findings for Devon Pension Fund for the year ending 31 March 2016

“UThis Audit Findings report highlights the significant findings arising from the audit for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of Devon Pension Fund,

QD he Audit Committee , as required by International Standard on Auditin K & Ireland) 260, the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the National Audit Office
q Y g y

(D Code of Audit Practice. Its contents have been discussed with management.

3As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial
statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed primarily for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However,
where, as part of our testing, we identify any control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose defalcations or
other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. We do not accept any responsibility
for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for,
any other purpose.

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Yours sincerely

Elizabeth Cave

Chartered Accountants
DireCtOl' Grant Thomnton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.
Alist of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thomton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and
its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another's acts or omissions. Please see grant-thormton.co.uk for further details.

©2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for ANOTHER] Pension Fund | 2015/16 2

/. Wa}| epuaby



8¢ abed

Contents

Section

1. Executive summary

2. Audit findings

3. Fees, non-audit services and independence
4. Communication of audit mattets
Appendices

A Action plan

© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

Page

19
21

/. Wa}| epuaby



Section 1:  Executive summary

01. Executive summary
02. Audit findings

03. Fees, non audit services and independence

6€ abed

04. Communication of audit matters

©2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

/. Wa}| epuaby



T
jab)
«Q
®
o

Executive summary

Purpose of this report

This report highlights the key issues affecting the results of Devon Pension Fund
('the Fund') and the preparation of the fund's financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2016. It is also used to report our audit findings to management
and those charged with governance in accordance with the requirements of
International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260, and the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 ('the Act).

Under the National Audit Office NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we
are required to report whether, in our opinion, the Fund's financial statements give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the fund and its income and
expenditure for the year and whether they have been properly prepared in
accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting.

We are also required consider other information published together with the
audited financial statements, whether it is consistent with the financial statements

and in line with required guidance. This includes the Pension Fund Annual Report.

© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

Introduction
In the conduct of our audit we have not had to alter or change our audit

approach, which we communicated to you in our Audit Plan dated 14 March
2016.

Our audit is substantially complete although we are finalising our procedures in
the following areas:

review of annual report

quality control procedures and review

review of the final version of the financial statements

obtaining and reviewing the management letter of representation and
updating our post balance sheet events review, to the date of signing the
opinion

We received draft financial statements and accompanying working papers at the
commencement of our work, in accordance with the agreed timetable. This was
two weeks earlier than in previous years.

We anticipate providing an unqualified audit opinion in respect of the financial
statements.

/. Wa}| epuaby



Tt obed

Executive summary

Key audit and financial reporting issues
Financial statements opinion

The draft financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 recorded net
assets available for benefits during the year of £3,336 million.

We have identified no adjustments affecting the Fund's reported financial
position. We have recommended some adjustments to improve the presentation
of the financial statements which have all been made (details are recorded in
section two of this report).

The key messages arising from our audit of the Fund's financial statements are:

* the draft financial statements and the supporting working papers were
prepared to a high standard.

* no significant issues have been identified and only some minor presentation
and disclosure amendments have been made as a result of our audit

We anticipate providing an unqualified opinion in respect of the Fund's financial
statements.

Further details are set out in section two of this report.

Controls

Roles and responsibilities

The Fund's management is responsible for the identification, assessment,
management and monitoring of risk, and for developing, operating and
monitoring the system of internal control.

Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identity all areas of
control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify any
control weaknesses, we report these to the Fund.

© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

Findings

We draw your attention in particular to control issues identified in relation

to:

* As part of our interim testing, we identified that journals above
£200,000 were not authorised by a separate individual when posted by
a member of staff listed on the authoriser list. Following this being
identified, the Council introduced a manual control and was able to
provide alternative evidence of review of year end journals.

Further details are provided within section two of this report.

The way forward
Matters arising from the financial statements audit have been discussed
with the County Treasurer.

We have made a number of recommendations, which are set out in the
action plan at Appendix A. Recommendations have been discussed and
agreed with the County Treasurer and the finance team.

Acknowledgement
We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the
assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
August 2016

/. Wa}| epuaby



Section 2:  Audit findings

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

03. Fees, non audit services and independence

2t obed

04. Communication of audit matters

©2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

This section summarises the findings of the audit, we report on
the final level of materiality used and the work undertaken
against the risks we identified in our initial audit plan. We also
conclude on the accounting policies, estimates and judgements
used and highlight any weaknesses found as part of the audit in
internal controls. As required by auditing standards we detail
both adjusted and unadjusted misstatements to the accounts
and their impact on the financial statements.

) Wal| epuaby



-
Q
Q
D
N
w

Audit findings

Materiality

In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 320: Materiality in
planning and performing an audit. The standard states that 'misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements'.

As we reported in our audit plan, we determined overall materiality to be £33,724k (being 1% of net assets). We have considered whether this level remained appropriate
during the course of the audit and (have made no changes to our overall materiality.

We also set an amount below which misstatements would be cleatly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with governance because we
would not expect that the accumulated effect of such amounts would have a material impact on the financial statements. We have defined the amount below which
misstatements would be clearly trivial to be £1,680k. This remains the same as reported in our audit plan.

As we reported in our audit plan, we identified the following items where we decided that separate materiality levels were appropriate. We have revised the materiality level
for management expenses (being 2% of management expenses). The materiality set is based on the expenditure in the draft accounts.

Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation Materiality level

Management Expenses Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for | £300,000
them to be made.

Related party transaction Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for | £5,000
them to be made.

© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16 8

/. Wa}| epuaby



vt abed

Audit findings

Audit findings against significant risks

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to size

or nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement
uncertainty” (ISA (UK&I) 315).

In this section we detail our response to the significant risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan. As we noted in our plan, there are two
presumed significant risks which are applicable to all audits under auditing standards.

Risks identified in our audit plan Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising
1. The revenue cycle includes fraudulent Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the Our audit work has not identified any material
transactions nature of the revenue streams at Devon Pension Fund, we have | issues in respect of revenue recognition.

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a presumed risk determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition
can be rebutted, because:

that revenue may be misstated due to the e - . »
improper recognition of revenue. * thereis I|_tt_le mcentlvg to manipulate revenuz_a_recognltlon

) i ) ) * opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very
This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor limited: and
concludes that there is no risk of material + the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities,
misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue including Devon County Council as the administering authority,
recognition. mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

2, Management over-ride of controls » testing of journal entries Our audit work has not identified any evidence of
Under ISA (UK&I) 240 it is presumed that the + review of accounting estimates, judgements and decisions management over-ride of controls. In particular the
risk of management over-ride of controls is made by management findings of our review of journal controls and testing
present in all entities. of journal entries has not identified any significant

* review of unusual significant transactions issues.

We set out later in this section of the report our
work and findings on key accounting estimates and
judgements.

©2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

) Wal| epuaby



Gy obed

Audit findings

Audit findings against significant risks continued

We have also identified the following significant risks of material misstatement from our understanding of the entity. We set out below the work we have completed to

address these risks.

Risks identified in our audit plan Work completed

Assurance gained and issues arising

3. Level 3 Investments — Valuation is incorrect | *

Under ISA 315 significant risks often relate to
significant non-routine transactions and
judgemental matters. Level 3 investments by
their very nature require a significant degree of
judgement to reach an appropriate valuation at
year end.

We gained an understanding of the transaction including a
review of supporting documentation.

We carried out walkthrough tests of the controls identified in the
cycle.

Tested a sample of investments by obtaining and reviewing the
audited accounts at latest date for individual investments and
agreeing these to the fund manager reports at that date.
Reconciliation of those values to the values at 31s March with
reference to known movements in the intervening period.

Reviewed the qualifications of fund managers as experts to
value the level 3 investments at year end and gain an
understanding of how the valuation of these investments has
been reached.

Reviewed the nature and basis of estimated values and
considered what assurance management has over the year end
valuations provided for these types of investments.

Reviewed the competence, expertise and objectivity of any
management experts used.

Our audit work has not identified any significant
issues in relation to the risks identified.

©2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

10

/. Wa}| epuaby



ot abed

Audit findings

Audit findings against other risks

In this section we detail our response to the other risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan. Recommendations, together with management
responses are attached at appendix A.

Transaction cycle

Description of risk

Work completed

Assurance gained & issues arising

Investment Income

Investment activity not
valid. (Occurrence)

Investment income not
accurate. (Accuracy)

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:

e We have performed a walkthrough to gain assurance that the
in-year controls were operating in accordance with our
documented understanding.

* We have reviewed the reconciliation of information provided by
the fund managers, the custodian and the Pension Fund's own
records and sought explanations for variances, OR

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risk identified.

Investment
purchases and
sales

Investment activity not
valid. (Occurrence)

Investment valuation not
correct. (Valuation gross or
net)

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:

e We have performed a walkthrough to gain assurance that the
in-year controls were operating in accordance with our
documented understanding.

e We have reviewed the reconciliation of information provided by
the fund managers, the custodian and the Pension Fund's own
records and sought explanations for variances.

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risk identified.

©2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

11

) Wal| epuaby



/v abed

Audit findings

Audit findings against other risks (continued)

Transaction cycle

Description of risk

Work completed

Assurance gained & issues arising

Investment values —
Level 2 investments

Valuation is incorrect.
(Valuation net)

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:

We have performed a walkthrough to gain assurance that the in-
year controls were operating in accordance with our documented
understanding.

We have reviewed the reconciliation of information provided by
the fund managers, the custodian and the Pension Fund's own
records and sought explanations for variances

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risk identified

Contributions

Recorded contributions
not correct (Occurrence)

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:

We have performed a walkthrough to gain assurance that the in-
year controls were operating in accordance with our documented
understanding.

Controls testing over occurrence, completeness and accuracy of
contributions

Rationalised contributions received with reference to changes in
member body payrolls and numbers of contributing pensioners
and ensured that any unexpected trends were satisfactorily
explained.

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risk identified

©2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

12

/. Wa}| epuaby



8 abed

Audit findings

Audit findings against other risks (continued)

Transaction cycle

Description of risk

Work completed

Assurance gained & issues arising

Benefits payable

Benefits improperly
computed/claims liability
understated
(Completeness,
accuracy and
occurrence)

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:

We have performed a walkthrough to gain assurance that the in-
year controls were operating in accordance with our documented
understanding.

Controls testing over, completeness, accuracy and occurrence
of benefit payments,

Rationalised pensions paid with reference to changes in
pensioner numbers and increases applied in the year and
ensured that any unusual trends were satisfactorily explained.

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risk identified

Member Data

Member data not
correct. (Rights and
Obligations)

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:

We have performed a walkthrough to gain assurance that the in-
year controls were operating in accordance with our documented
understanding.

Controls testing over annual/monthly reconciliations and
verifications with individual members.

Sample tested changes to member data made during the year to
source documentation.

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risk identified

©2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

13

) Wal| epuaby



Audit findings

Accounting policies, estimates and judgements

In this section we report on our consideration of accounting policies, in particular revenue recognition policies, and key estimates and judgements made and included

with the Fund's financial statements.

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment
Revenue recognition Contributions are accounted for on an We have no issues to report over the: '
accruals basis, not simply when cash  Appropriateness of the policy relating to contributions
payments are made or received ) ) )
e Adequacy of disclosure of accounting policy. (Green)

Judgements and estimates Key estimates and judgements include:

— Valuation of level 3 investments

We have no issues to report over the:

e Appropriateness of policies under relevant accounting framework

©2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

— Accruals e Extent of judgements involved (Green)
;)U — Pension fund liability e Adequacy of disclosure of accounting policies
«Q
D
B
(o
Going concern Officers have a reasonable expectation We have reviewed officer's assessment and are satisfied with management's .
that the services provided by the Fund assessment that the going concern basis is appropriate for the 2015/16 financial
will continue for the foreseeable future. statements. G
For this reason, they continue to adopt (Green)
the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.
Assessment
® Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators (Red) Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure (Amber) @ Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient (Green)

14

/. Wa}| epuaby



Audit findings

Accounting policies, estimates and judgements continued

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment
Other accounting policies We have reviewed the Fund's policies against the requirements of ‘
the CIPFA Code of Practice. The Fund's accounting policies are
appropriate and consistent with previous years.
pprop p y (Green)
LY
Q
«Q
@
a1
o
Assessment
® Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure @ Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient

©2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

15

) Wal| epuaby



Audit findings

Other communication requirements

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.

TG abed

Issue

Commentary

Matters in relation to fraud

We have not been made aware of any other incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our
audit procedures

Matters in relation to related
parties

From the work we carried out, we have not identified any related party transactions which have not been disclosed

Matters in relation to laws and
regulations

You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not
identified any incidences from our audit work.

Written representations

A standard letter of representation has been requested from the Fund.

Confirmation requests from
third parties

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to fund managers and banks . This permission was
granted and the requests were sent. Nearly all of these requests were returned with positive confirmation and we are awaiting the
remaining confirmations.

Disclosures

Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements

Matters on which we report by
exception

We are required to report by exception where the Pension Fund Annual Report is inconsistent with the financial statements. We are
still to review the annual report.

©2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

16

/. Wa}| epuaby



Audit findings

Internal controls

The purpose of an audit is to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Our audit included consideration of internal controls relevant to the preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. We considered and walked through the internal controls
for Investment Income and purchases, Investment values, Contributions, Benefits Payable, and Member Data as set out on pages 10 to 13 above.

The controls were found to be operating effectively and we have no matters to report to the Audit Committee.

Assessment Issue and risk Recommendations

Controls over review of journals e Journals above a threshold determined by the Council should be authorised by a

As part of our interim testing, we identified that journals above separate individual regardless of who has posted the journal.

£200,000 were not authorised by a separate individual when
posted by a member of staff listed on the authoriser list.
Following this being identified, for our review of year end
journals , the Council introduced a manual control and was
able to provide alternative evidence of review of year end
journals.

ZS obed

Assessment
@® Significant deficiency — risk of significant misstatement (Red)
Deficiency — risk of inconsequential misstatement (Amber)

The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient
importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing standards.

©2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16 17

) Wal| epuaby



Audit findings

Adjusted misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure changes

There were no adjusted misstatements to the draft accounts that have been identified during the audit process.

There were no material misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

€g abed

©2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16 18

/. Wa}| epuaby



Section 3: Fees, non-audit services and independence

U 01. Executive summary

QO
«Q
(D 02. Audit findings

o1
INN03. Fees, non audit services and independence

04. Communication of audit matters

© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

) Wal| epuaby



Fees, non audit services and independence

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non audit services.

Fees
Proposed fee
per Audit Plan Actual fees
£ £
Pension fund scale fee 28,603 28,603
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 28,603 28,603

—UThe proposed fees for the year were in line with the scale fee set by Public
Q Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA)
«Q

GG o

© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

Independence and ethics

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our
independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We
have complied with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards and therefore
we confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on
the financial statements.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the
requirements of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards.

20

/. Wa}| epuaby



9G abed

Section 4: Communication of audit matters

o
-

Executive summary

o
N

Audit findings

03. Fees, non audit services and independence

04. Communication of audit matters

©2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

) Wal| epuaby



)G abed

International Standards on Auditing ISA (UK&I) 260, as well as other ISAs, prescribe
matters which we are required to communicate with those charged with governance,
and which we set out in the table opposite.

The Audit Plan outlined our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, while this
Audit Findings report presents the key issues and other matters arising from the
audit, together with an explanation as to how these have been resolved.

Respective responsibilities

The Audit Findings Report has been prepared in the context of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit
Appointments Limited (

)

We have been appointed as the Fund's independent external auditors by the Audit
Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public
bodies in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, we have a
broad remit covering finance and governance matters.

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice
('the Code') issued by the NAO (

). Our work considers the Fund's key risks when reaching our conclusions
under the Code.

It is the responsibility of the Fund to ensure that proper arrangements are in place
for the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly
accounted for. We have considered how the Fund is fulfilling these responsibilities.

Communication to those Charged with governance

Audit
Our communication plan Plan
Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged v
with governance
Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing v

and expected general content of communications

Views about the qualitative aspects of the entity's accounting and
financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising
during the audit and written representations that have been sought

Confirmation of independence and objectivity

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, relationships and other matters which might
be thought to bear on independence.

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and
network firms, together with fees charged

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence
Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or others
which results in material misstatement of the financial statements

Non compliance with laws and regulations

Expected modifications to auditor's report

Uncorrected misstatements

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties

Significant matters in relation to going concern

Audit

Findings

<

AN N NN

22

/. Wa}| epuaby



Agenda Item 7

Appendices

T
jab)
«Q
®
o1
co

23



Appendices

Appendix A: Action plan

Priority

High - Significant effect on control system
Medium - Effect on control system

Low - Best practice

Rec
No. Recommendation Management response
1 Journals above a threshold determined by | As previously agreed.

the Council should be authorised by a
separate individual regardless of who has
posted the journal.

6G abed

© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund | 2015/16

Implementation date &
responsibility

1st April 2016

Responsible officer - Mark
Fairchild

2

/. Wa}| epuaby



09 abed

o GrantThornton

©2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights served.

'Grant Thornton' refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton
member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their
clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context
requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton
International LTD (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a
worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate
legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does
not provide services to clients. GTIL, and its member firms are not
agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for
one another's acts or omissions.

grant-thornton.co.uk

/. Wa}| epuaby



Agenda Iltem 8

CT/16/84
Devon Pension Board
20" October 2016

PENSION FUND RISK REGISTER

Report of the County Treasurer

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and determination by
the Board before taking effect.

Recommendation: That the Board notes the Pension Fund Risk Register and the
additional actions proposed to mitigate risk.

1. Introduction

1.1. The Pension Board monitors the Risk Register as part of its scrutiny role in relation to risk
and compliance, and will raise any specific concerns to the Investment and Pension Fund
Committee, as necessary. The Board previously considered the Risk Register at its
meeting on 14™ April 2016.

1.2. The Risk Register is attached at Appendix 1 to this report. It highlights the key risks in
relation to the Devon Fund, the current processes in place to mitigate the risk, and the
planned improvements in place to provide further assurance. This incorporates the risk
register of both the Investments Team and Peninsula Pensions.

1.3. The Investment and Pension Fund Committee is the ultimate risk owner for the Pension
Fund and therefore an updated Risk Register will be presented to the Committee on an
annual basis.

2. Revisions to the Risk Register

2.1. The Risk Register is reviewed and updated on an ongoing basis during the year. The
following changes have been made to the Register since it was last presented to the
Board:

e At its meeting on 14™ April 2016, the Board suggested amendments to the risk register,
including references to the Brunel pooling arrangements. A new section has been
added to the Risk Register in respect of the investment pooling proposals and the
setting up of the Brunel Pension Partnership. Pooling represents a significant change
for the fund and the transition costs are likely to be considerable, before any ongoing
savings are achieved. Risks B1 to B3 have been added under this heading. Each risk
has been assessed as having a high inherent risk, but the level of each risk is reduced
by the mitigating actions.

o The Board also requested that Risk 11 is expanded to include more general reference
to staffing issues, such as sickness. Risk |1 has been updated in line with this
recommendation.

¢ Risk F11 has been added to highlight the possibility of members transferring their
pension rights out of the fund, in light of changes to pension legislation.

Page 61



Agenda Item 8

e Risk F12 has been added following the European Union referendum result and the
potential impact of economic uncertainty.

¢ A number of additional plans have been completed and moved across to the ongoing
mitigating actions column. These include:

e (G2 - Training Plan agreed for the year;
o (Cm2 - arevised Communications strategy was agreed in November 2015;

o P1 —The payroll manual has been updated following the introduction of new
systems;

o P5 — Mortality screening has been undertaken.

2.2. Taking account of the revisions above there are now 32 risks recorded in the Risk
Register. The following table summarises the number of risks assigned to low, medium
and high risk scores, before and after mitigation.

Number of Inherent Number of Risks
Risk Category Risks |dentified following mitigating
action
High 10 1
Medium 16 7
Low 6 24

2.3. Action taken to mitigate risks has reduced the number of high risks from 10 to 1. The
remaining high risk is in respect of a market crash leading to a failure to reduce the deficit.

2.4. Atthe April meeting, the Board requested details of the contingency arrangements in the
event of a market crash. The Fund has a diversified portfolio of global assets in order to
mitigate the risks and volatilities associated with individual markets. However, the events
of 2008/09, when the Fund value reduced by £370 million demonstrates that if the markets
as a whole crash then there is little that mitigating actions can do. It should be noted that
the losses incurred in 2008/09 were recouped in full during the following financial year,
demonstrating that the effect of such an event is likely to be short term.

3. Conclusion

3.1. The Board are asked to note the Pension Fund Risk Register, and the additional actions
proposed to mitigate risk.

Mary Davis

Electoral Divisions: All

Local Government Act 1972

List of Background Papers - Nil
Contact for Enquiries: Dan Harris
Tel No: (01392) 382520 Room G99

Page 62



Appendix 1

Devon County Council Pension Fund Risk Register September 2016
Key to overall assessment of risk Assessment of impact and likelihood
Combination of impact and likelihood,
categorisation of overall risk and level of action Assessment of Impact
required. Financial Reputation Stakeholders/Customers
" " .. Minimal and transient loss of public Minimal impact on stakeholders or
Risk Assessment Matrix 1 Negligible < £100k P P
trust. customers.
8 5 10
4 8 -
(@) . . . Minor impact on stakeholders or customers
z 3 6 2 Minor £100k - £1m ,Shght Ios% of trust with no !a.stlng and customer dissatisfaction. Limited
o impact. Little adverse publicity. service disruption
X 2 4 6 8 10 ption.
- 1 2 3 4 5 Moderate loss of trust that receives Moderate disruption to stakeholders,
L . . moderate impact on customers and
IMPACT 3 Moderate £1m - £10m Is;.i:i:lgc?nrltpztil/erse publicity locally with no customer dissatisfaction. Moderate service
' disruption.

Significant loss of trust and receives local
Impact x Likelihood 4 Major £10m - £100m |media attention with potential for lasting

20 - 25 VERY HIGH impact.

abed

Significant service disruption and opposition
from stakeholders and/or customers. Threat]
of legal action.

e Immediate Action
12 - 16 HIGH 5 Catastrophic >£100m media attention with potential for persisting

Significant loss of trust and receives national

Major service disruption and significant
opposition from stakeholders and/or
customers. Legal action. Long term public

e Regular review to seek better control impact. memory.

8 - 10 MEDIUM
e Review current controls Assessment of Likelihood

1-6LOW Probability Descriptors Numerical Probability
® Limited action - long term plans 1 Rare This will probably never happen/recur. Under 1%

Do not expect it to happen/recur, but it is possible it may

2 Unlikely do so

1% - under 5%

3 Possible Might happen or recur occasionally.

5% - under 20%

Will probably happen/recur, but it is not a persistent
issue or circumstances

Likely

20% - under 50%

Will undoubtedly happen/recur, possibly frequently. A project
more likely to fail than succeed.

Almost Certain

Over 50%

g wal| epuaby



Appendix 1 - Devon Pension Fund Risk Register

Inherent Risk

Current Risk

79 abed

appropriate governance arrangements,
including the requirement for a Pension
Board, resulting in:

¢ Non-compliance with legislation and/or best
practice.

¢ Inability to determine policy, make effective
decisions and/or deliver service.

e Risk to reputation.

2008.

® The Governance Policy and Compliance Statement is reviewed
and updated regularly and scheme employers are consulted to
ensure that the policy remains appropriate.

e The Statement is published on the Devon Pensions website:
http://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2013/09/Devon-Pension-Fund-Governance-
Policy.pdf

¢ Pension fund stakeholders are made aware of the Statement.
e DCC has appointed an Investment and Pension Fund
Committee to discharge the duties of the Council as
Administering Authority of the Pension Fund.

e The Committee review and approve the annual statement of
accounts of the Devon Pension Fund, consider whether
appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether
there are concerns arising from the financial statements or from
any audit that need to be brought to the attention of the
Council.

* A Pension Board has been established as required by the Public
Service Pension Act 2013.

e Support and training are being provided to ensure that the
Board is equipped to undertake its role.

= o [ o
= 9 _ = S
Risk no.| Description of Risk and Potential Impact _g E g g_ Mitigating Controls _g E ,-o",’ g_ Risk Owner Additional Plans Timescale
2|3 |s 5 2|3 |s 5
- o o -~ o ']
% o I-% o
Governance Arrangements
Gl [The Administering Authority fails to have 4 2 8 |* DCC has produced a Governance Policy and Compliance 4 1 4 |Mark Gayler /
Statement, as required by regulation 31 of the LGPS Regulations Dan Harris

g Wwi9)| epuaby




Appendix 1 - Devon Pension Fund Risk Register

Inherent Risk Current Risk
= [« [l 0
Risk no. | Description of Risk and Potential Impact _g_ £ g §_ Mitigating Controls _§ E g §_ Risk Owner Additional Plans Timescale
AEALE AERLE
% o I-% o
G2 [The Investment and Pension Fund Committee | 3 3 9 |e The Committee has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on 3 2 6 [Mark Gayler/
and Pension Board are unable to fulfil their Knowledge and Skills, and regular training is provided to ensure Dan Harris
responsibilities effectively, resulting in: that members have the level of understanding required.
* Non-compliance with legislation and/or best ¢ An Annual Training Plan has been agreed for 2016/17.
practice. e A training and induction programme is available for new
¢ Inability to determine policy, make effective Committee and Pension Board Members.
decisions and/or deliver service. e The Fund subscribes to relevant bodies (e.g. CIPFA, LAPFF,
* Risk to reputation. NAPF) and sends representatives to major conferences.
e DCC organises at least two training days per year for
Investment and Pension Fund Committee and Pension Board
members, including an annual shared training day with Cornwall
Council.
e Committee and Pension Board members are made aware of
and adhere to the Governance Compliance Statement, and are
encouraged to identify training requirements.
T
Q
«Q
D
Q Funding and Investments
F1 |The Committee Members and Investment 4 3 ¢ The Investment Strategy is set in accordance with LGPS 4 2 8 |Mark Gayler
Officers make inappropriate decisions as a investment regulations.
result of insufficient knowledge of financial * The Investment Strategy is reviewed, approved and
markets and inadequate investment and documented by the Investment and Pension Fund Committee.
actuarial advice received, resulting in: * The Investment Strategy takes into account the Fund’s
® Poor Fund performance/financial loss. liabilities.
e Increased employer contribution costs. e DCC employ an external investment advisor who provides
specialist guidance to the Investment and Pension Fund
Committee regarding the investment strategy.
¢ An Annual Training Plan has been agreed for 2016/17.Training
programmes are available for Committee Members and
Investment Staff.
* Members and Officers are encouraged to challenge advice and
guidance received when necessary.

g Wwi9)| epuaby




Appendix 1 - Devon Pension Fund Risk Register

Inherent Risk

Current Risk

99 abed

The Pension Fund's investment strategy and
/or Fund Managers fail to produce the
required returns, or organisational changes /
manager departures at a Fund Manager
damage performance, resulting in:

e Financial loss.

¢ Insufficient funds available to meet future
obligations.

e The 2013 actuarial valuation includes provision for the fund to
achieve full funding over 25 years.

® The investment strategy is reviewed annually by the Pension
Fund Committee with advice from the External Investment
Advisor to determine whether any action needs to be taken to
amend the fund’s asset allocation strategy.

e The Fund's investments are diversified across a range of
different types of assets to minimise the impact of losses in
individual markets.

¢ Fund-specific benchmarks and targets are set.

e Fund assets are kept under regular review as part of the Fund’s
performance management framework.

e Fund managers are thoroughly vetted prior to appointment
and performance is reviewed regularly against the benchmark
and performance objectives, and this is reported to Committee.
Appropriate action may be taken if it is considered that an
Investment Manager is underperforming.

* The depth of expertise in the fund managers team will be
assessed as part of the appointment process.

e Performance targets are agreed by the Investment and
Pension Fund Committee and are based upon recommendations
provided by the DCC in-house Investment Team and our external
investment advisor.

® The Investment and Pension Fund Committee have the power
to terminate a fund manager's contract if it is deemed that the
manager has not performed as expected, or there are concerns
about future performance due to organisational change /
manager departures.

= o [ o
= 9 _ = S

Risk no.| Description of Risk and Potential Impact _g ) g 3 Mitigating Controls -§ 3 g 3 Risk Owner Additional Plans Timescale
= = = o
2|3 |s 5 2|3 |s 5
- o o -~ o ']
% o I-% o

F2 The Pension Fund has insufficient assets to 5 3 ¢ Triennial actuarial valuations provide periodic indications of 5 2 10 [Mark Gayler An investment strategy review [Subject to
meet its long term liabilities. the growth in assets against liabilities. Employer contribution is proposed in conjunction with |agreement of
rates are set in response to this. the 2016 Actuarial Valuation proposal to

Committee - Sept
2016.

Report by
February 2017

g wi9)| epuaby




Appendix 1 - Devon Pension Fund Risk Register

Inherent Risk Current Risk

Risk no. | Description of Risk and Potential Impact Mitigating Controls Risk Owner Additional Plans Timescale

pedw)
100§
pauiqwo)
1edw)
= [ Pooylan
102§
pauiquo)

~ | Pooyyai
o

H

F3 The fund is exposed to unnecessary risks and The Fund attempts to ensure the achievement of best value and Mark Gayler

avoidable costs due to poorly structured minimise exposure to risk via the following:

investment arrangements, resulting in: ® The Fund's investments are diversified across a range of

¢ Financial loss. different types of assets to minimise the impact of losses in
individual markets.

¢ IMA disclosure tables are reviewed to ensure best execution

(52)
=
o

by managers.

* Investment managers are asked to provide invoices for fees,
wherever possible.

e Specialist services (e.g. transitions, currency transfers) are
considered where appropriate in order to reduce costs.

¢ Banking and custodian arrangements are reviewed and re-
tendered when appropriate.

Collapse of a fund manager or negligence, 4 2 8 |* The Fund considers the financial stability of managers during 3 2 6 |Mark Gayler
fraud or wilful default committed by a fund the appointment process and the situation is kept under review.
manager, resulting in: e DCC use a global custodian service to ensure that there exists a
e Financial loss. separation of investment management arrangements from
custody of assets.

¢ Legal requirements are in place for fund managers and are set
out in the investment management agreements.

e Fund managers are required to be fully compliant with FCA,
PRA and other regulatory requirements.

e The risk that a fund manager cannot provide a service during
windup is mitigated by the availability of a transition
management service by the Fund's Custodian Bank, Northern
Trust.

/9 abed

g Wa)| epuaby



Appendix 1 - Devon Pension Fund Risk Register

Inherent Risk

Current Risk

g wi9)| epuaby

= [« [l 0
Risk no. | Description of Risk and Potential Impact _g_ E' g §_ Mitigating Controls _g £ g §_ Risk Owner Additional Plans Timescale
Blgl°g BlE|°3
% o I-% o
F5 Market crash leading to a failure to reduce 5 3 ¢ The fund is well diversified and consists of a wide range of 4 3 Mark Gayler
the deficit. asset classes which aims to mitigate the impact of poor
¢ Financial loss. performance from an individual market segment.
¢ Increased employer contribution costs. ¢ Investment performance reporting and monitoring
arrangements exist which provide the committee and
investment officers with the flexibility to rebalance the portfolio
in a timely manner.
® The long term nature of the liabilities provides some
mitigation, in that markets tend to bounce back after crashes,
such that the impact is significantly reduced.

F6 Pay and price inflation are higher than 4 3 ¢ The triennial actuarial valuation review focuses on the real 3 3 9 [Mark Gayler
anticipated. returns on assets, net price and pay increases.
¢ An increase in liabilities which exceeds the ® Employers pay for their own salary awards and are reminded
previous valuation estimate. of the geared effect on pension liabilities of any bias in

U pensionable pay rises towards longer serving employees.

g ¢ The Fund has recently made new investments in infrastructure

D funds with inflation linked returns, to act as a hedge against

fo)) inflation increases.

(@) e The Committee has received training on understanding
liabilities and potential approaches to Liability Driven
Investment.
e Hymans Robertson were commissioned to produce a report
which reviewed the strategy for the fixed interest and its role in
managing inflation risk. The report was presented to the I&PFC
in September 2015, and recommendations partly implemented.

F7 Increase in number of early retirements due 3 3 9 | Employers are charged the extra capital cost of non ill health 2 2 4 [Charlotte
to public service cuts and/or ill health leading retirements following each individual decision. Thompson
to pension liabilities increasing. e Employer ill health retirement experience is monitored.
¢ An increase in liabilities which exceeds the
previous valuation estimate.




Appendix 1 - Devon Pension Fund Risk Register

Inherent Risk

Current Risk

= [« [l 0

Risk no. | Description of Risk and Potential Impact _g_ E' g §_ Mitigating Controls _§ E ,-o",’ §_ Risk Owner Additional Plans Timescale
Blgl°g BlE|°3
% o I-% o

F8 The average life expectancy of pensioners is 4 3 o Life expectancy assumptions are reviewed at each valuation. 3 2 6 [Mark Gayler
greater than assumed in actuarial * Mortality assumptions include some allowance for future
assumptions. increases in life expectancy.
¢ An increase in liabilities which exceeds the
previous valuation estimate.

F9  [Scheme employers' contributions to the Fund | 3 3 9 |e The team has procedures in place to monitor the receipt of 3 1 3 [Mark Gayler/
are not received, processed and recorded contributions to the fund. Martyn
completely and accurately * The team communicates regularly with scheme employers to Williams
e Increased costs across all the remaining ensure that contributions are made in a timely manner and are
scheme employers recorded accurately.

e Details of any outstanding and overdue contributions are
recorded and appropriate action is taken in order to recover
payments.

F10 |An employer ceases to exist with insufficient 3 3 9 |The risk is mitigated by: 2 2 4 |Mark Gayler/
funding available to settle any outstanding e \etting prospective employers before admission and ensuring Charlotte

Y debts, or refuses to pay the cessation value. that they fully understand their obligations. Applications for Thompson
8 ¢ Departing employer not fully meeting its admission to the Fund are considered carefully and a bond or
D liabilities which leads to increased costs guarantee is put into place if required.
fo)) across the remaining scheme employers. e Outstanding liabilities will be assessed and recovered from any
o) successor bodies or spread amongst remaining employers.
¢ The actuarial valuation attempts to balance recovery period
with risk of withdrawal.
o |If necessary, appropriate legal action will be taken.
¢ An Employer Covenant Risk Assessment has been undertaken
by the Fund Actuary, Barnett Waddingham

F11 |Assignificant number of LGPS members 3 2 6 [The risk is mitigated by: 2 2 4 |Mark Gayler/
transfer their pension pots to other pensions o Effective communication of the benefits of remaining in the Charlotte
providers in order to obtain a capital sum LGPS. Thompson
under the Government's "Freedom and e Actuarial calculation of transfer value should ensure transfer
Choice" legislation, resulting in: value does not exceed reduction in liability.

o Significant cashflow out of the Fund.
¢ Reduction in assets greater than reduction
in the Fund's liabilities.

g Wa)| epuaby



Appendix 1 - Devon Pension Fund Risk Register

Inherent Risk

Current Risk

slowdown, and as a consequence lower
investment returns, resulting in:

e Financial loss, and/or failure to meet return
expectations.

e Increased employer contribution costs.

smaller.
® The long term nature of the Fund's liabilities provides some
mitigation, as the impact of "Brexit" will reduce over time.

= o [ o
= 9 _ = S
Risk no.| Description of Risk and Potential Impact _g £ g g_ Mitigating Controls -§ E g g_ Risk Owner Additional Plans Timescale
2|3 |s 5 2|3 |s 5
- o o -~ o ']
% o I-% o
F12 |The result of the EU Referendum and the 4 3 The risk is mitigated by: 3 3 9 |Mark Gayler/
decision to leave the European Union results ¢ Diversification of the Fund's investments across the world, Charlotte
in significant economic instability and including economies where the impact of "Brexit" is likely to be Thompson

g wi9)| epuaby

Brunel Pension Partnership

The risks highlighted in this section are those most relevant to the operation of the Devon Fund, the Brunel Pension Partnership has its own comprehensive risk register to monitor the total risk of the Brunel project.

B1

0/ abed

The Devon Pension Fund has insufficient
resources available to deliver the pooling
proposal within the required timescale,
without impacting the day-to-day
management of the fund.

¢ The management of the Pension Fund is
adversely affected due to existing resources
concentrating on the pooling proposal,
resulting in underperformance and failure to
meet statutory obligations.

e The pool structure is not established within
the required timescale and the Devon Pension
Fund faces the risk of alternative measures
being imposed by Government.

4

¢ A project manager has been appointed to oversee the creation
of the Brunel Pension Partnership and will monitor progress
against timescales to ensure that deadlines are achieved.

o Officers from each fund involved with the pooling project are
maintaining timesheets in order to monitor the amount of time
spent on the project.

* Regular update meetings are held between the County
Treasurer and Assistant County Treasurer, as well as update
meetings within the Devon Investment Services team, to review
progress, workloads in order to identify and address any areas of
concern.

4 1 2 8

Mark Gayler

¢ Additional staffing resources
may be required if it becomes
apparent that insufficient
resources exist to take forward
the proposal without impacting
the day-to-day management of
the fund.




Appendix 1 - Devon Pension Fund Risk Register

Inherent Risk Current Risk
= [« [l 0
Risk no. | Description of Risk and Potential Impact _g_ E' g §_ Mitigating Controls _g £ g §_ Risk Owner Additional Plans Timescale
AEALE AERLE
% o I-% o
B2  |Asset transition costs are greater than 4 3 e Two asset transition management companies have analysed 4 2 8 |Mark Gayler
forecast. the costs of transitioning our current assets into the pool, under
e Failure to control operational risks and a variety of scenarios. The results of these analyses have been
transaction costs during the transition used as a basis for calculating the initial set-up costs of the
process may lead to an increase in the initial Brunel Pension Partnership.
set-up costs forecast by the pooling proposal. e The transition process includes selling securities from one
portfolio and buying securities in another while systematically
controlling operational risks and transaction costs. There may
also be the opportunity to transfer securities in ‘specie’, that is
to transfer a security directly from an existing portfolio into the
new portfolio. The timing of sales and purchases is also critical. A
transition manager will be appointed, via a formal procurement
exercise, with the objective of preserving asset values, managing
risk and project managing the transition process to ensure that
costs are monitored and controlled.
T
o
B% Failure of BPP to gain FCA accreditation. 4 3 ¢ A specialist company with expertise in FCA accreditation has 4 1 4 |Mark Gayler
~ e In order for the Brunel Pension Partnership been appointed to advise on what needs to be done to ensure
= |to succeed, it will need to attain FCA that the Partnership has the necessary structure, resources and
accreditation. This is potentially a time qualified staff in order to obtain FCA accreditation.
consuming, complicated process with many
criteria that need to be satisfied before FCA
accreditation is granted. If FCA accreditation
is not granted, the Brunel Pension Partnership
will not be able to continue in its current
preferred form and the project will need to be
reviewed accordingly. This could lead to
significant delays in meeting the
Government’s target of the pool being
operational by April 2018.

g Wa)| epuaby



Appendix 1 - Devon Pension Fund Risk Register

Inherent Risk

Current Risk

g Wwi9)| epuaby

¢ Benefit illustrations are sent annually to contributing and
deferred Fund members.

® The contact list for employers is updated regularly.

¢ Annual forums are held for employers and Trade Unions.

e The annual report and accounts are published on the Peninsula
Pensions website.

= [« [l 0
Risk no. | Description of Risk and Potential Impact _g_ E g §_ Mitigating Controls _g E ,-o",’ §_ Risk Owner Additional Plans Timescale
ALY SENLE]
% o I-% o
Custody
Cul |Failure of custodian leading to losses which 4 2 8 |* The custodian contract is subject to regular review and 3 2 6 |Mark Gayler/
results in a failure to reduce the deficit and periodic re-tendering. A new contract was awarded to Northern Dan Harris
potential adverse media interest. Trust with a start date of 1 September 2014. The procurement
¢ Financial loss. process included an assessment of their financial standing.
¢ The custodian must adhere to FCA and PRA financial
regulations.
¢ Fund assets are protected in the event of insolvency of the
custodian
Communication
Cm1l [Insufficient communication and engagement 3 3 9 | A communications strategy is in place and was last reviewed 3 2 6 |Mark Gayler/
with the Pension Fund Stakeholders. and updated in November 2015. Charlotte
¢ Non-compliance with legislation and/or best ® The Devon Investment Services and Peninsula Pensions Thompson
U practice. websites are kept up to date.
g ¢ Inability to determine policy, make effective ¢ Fund Performance is reported to the Investment & Pension
(D |decisions and/or deliver service. Fund Committee on a regular basis.
~le Reputation risk. * Meetings are held regularly with the Fund’s Employing
N Authorities.




Appendix 1 - Devon Pension Fund Risk Register

Inherent Risk

Current Risk

e Financial loss arising from legal action.

= [« [l 0
Risk no. | Description of Risk and Potential Impact _g_ E g §_ Mitigating Controls _g E ,-o",’ §_ Risk Owner Additional Plans Timescale
Blgl°g BlE|°3
% o I-% o
Accounting
Al Failure to comply with pension fund 3 3 9 | Staff are kept up to date with changes to legislative 3 2 6 |Mark Gayler/
accounting regulations. requirements via network meetings, professional press, training Karlien Bond
o Risk of the accounts being qualified by the and internal communication procedures.
auditors. ¢ Pension Fund financial management and administration
processes are maintained in accordance with the CIPFA Code of
Practice, International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and
the DCC Financial Regulations.
¢ Regular reconciliations are carried out between in-house
records and those maintained by the custodian and investment
managers.
e Internal Audits are carried out on an annual basis.
o External Audit review the Pension Fund’s accounts annually.
:U Data Protection
Dﬁ The Pension Fund systems and data may not 3 2 6 [e Itis a mandatory requirement for all DCC employees to 3 1 3 |Mark Gayler/
(D |be secure and appropriately maintained. undertake Data Protection training and to adhere to DCC's data Charlotte
~° Loss of sensitive data. protection policy. Thompson
(| * Reputation risk.

g wal| epuaby



Appendix 1 - Devon Pension Fund Risk Register

Inherent Risk

Current Risk

g Wwi9)| epuaby

practices leading to fraud, corruption or error.
e Risk of financial loss & damage to
reputation.

outside of the investment team.

o All staff are covered by fidelity insurance up to £15 million

e Sufficient members in the team to cover absence and leave - a
weekly planner is produced in order to review cover
requirements.

* Appropriate separation of duties exists.

* Treasury Management Practices are reviewed and updated
regularly.

* Up to date financial regulations and practices.

= o = o
Risk no. | Description of Risk and Potential Impact _g_ £ g §_ Mitigating Controls _g E g §_ Risk Owner Additional Plans Timescale
Blgl°g BlE|°3
% o I-% o
Internal
11 Concentration of knowledge in a small 4 3 e The Deputy Investment Manager is able to cover in the 4 2 8 |Dan Harris ¢ The Devon Investment Officers have
number of officers and risk of departure of absence of the Assistant County Treasurer. Services procedure manual will [undertaken the
key staff, or non-availability due to sickness or ¢ Knowledge of all tasks shared by at least two team members continue to be refined and original CIPFA
other issues. and can in addition be covered by senior staff. updated on an ongoing basis. |Knowledge and
e The risk of losing key staff could lead to a e Training requirements are set out in job descriptions and e Ensure the review of CIPFA’s [Skills Framework
breakdown in internal processes and service reviewed annually with team members through the appraisal knowledge and skills Self-Assessment
delivery, causing financial loss and potential process. framework relating to officers [previously, and
risk to reputation. ¢ A formal training record for officers is maintained centrally. results in key outcomes being |will complete the
e A procedure manual is in place which sets out work delivered. updated
instructions for the majority of crucial tasks undertaken. outstanding
modules before
the end of
December 2016.
T
Q
«Q
@
~
D
12 Failure of in-house treasury management 3 3 9 |e Counterparty transactions are authorised by senior staff 3 2 6 |Mark Gayler




Appendix 1 - Devon Pension Fund Risk Register

Inherent Risk

Current Risk

s, 8 _lsl.8
Risk no.| Description of Risk and Potential Impact _g % g g_ Mitigating Controls _g % ,-o",’ g_ Risk Owner Additional Plans Timescale
AR AL
% o =% o
Peninsula Pensions

P1 Pension benefits are not paid. 4 2 8 |* The payroll system is set up to pay pensioners monthly. 4 1 4 |Charlotte
o Risk of financial loss arising from e Disaster recovery plan in place with Heywoods which will Thompson
compensation claims restore data within 7 days in the event of system failure.

e Damage to reputation. ¢ The payroll manual has been revised and updated following
the introduction of RTI (Real Time Information) and new
administration systems.

P2 Failure of scheme membership data and 3 2 6 [ Information and instructions are only accepted from 3 1 3 [Charlotte
pension benefit calculation processes leading authorised sources. Thompson
to fraud, corruption or error. e Employers and scheme members are required to review and
e Unauthorised payments under the Finance confirm membership records annually.

Act 2004. ¢ Benefit calculations are checked by senior colleagues and are
o Risk of financial loss and damage to subject to independent authorisation.
U reputation. ¢ All transactions comply with DCC financial regulations and are
8 subject to independent authorisation.
D o All staff are covered by fidelity insurance up to £15 million.
~ * Members approaching 75 are separately identified monthly.
6]

P3 Failure of employing authority to provide 3 3 9 | Administration Strategy in place since April 2015, employer 3 2 6 |Charlotte
timely and accurate member data resulting in duties clearly identified. Ability to fine employers is provided for Thompson
delays or errors with benefit payments. in strategy and LGPS regulations.

e Risk of financial loss and damage to * Employing authorities are contacted for outstanding
reputation. information when it is identified that information is missing or
contains errors.

P4 Non-compliance with legislation and failure to| 3 3 9 |e LGA/External training. 2 2 4 [Charlotte
correctly implement new legislation and e Project work approach to implementation of legislative Thompson
regulations, resulting in: changes.
¢ Incorrect payments being made. ¢ In house training for all staff.

o Risk of financial loss and damage to
reputation.

g Wi9)| epuaby



Appendix 1 - Devon Pension Fund Risk Register

Inherent Risk

Current Risk

g wi9)| epuaby

= o = o
Risk no. | Description of Risk and Potential Impact _g_ E_ g §_ Mitigating Controls _g_ E ,-o",’ §_ Risk Owner Additional Plans Timescale
ElE5z E1E5z
<% % =% o
P5 Pension benefits continue to be paid to 2 3 6 |[* All pensioners are contacted annually. 2 2 4 |Charlotte eTell us once service is being  |Autumn 2016
deceased pensioners. ¢ Pension suspended if post is returned Thompson rolled out to LGPS. Project
o Risk of financial loss and damage to ¢ Pensioners are incorporated into National Fraud Initiative. dates to be confirmed
reputation. o Further targeted checks are conducted with credit reference
agencies as appropriate.
e Monthly mortality screening is undertaken and any positive
matches are ceased immediately ® Western Union
overseas existence service undertaken bi annually
P6 System failure. 5 2 10 |e The system is backed-up daily. System is hosted by Heywoods 5 1 5 |Charlotte
e Loss of sensitive data. o A full disaster recovery plan is in place and tested annually. Thompson
Ul Reputation risk.
Q. Financial loss arising from legal action.
«Q
@
P7a Employing authorities not fulfilling their 3 2 6 [* Admin strategy details employer responsibilities and 3 1 3 [Charlotte
responsibilities e.g. not supplying us with timescales Thompson
correct employee data or not supplying it in a ¢ Advice and consultancy provided.
timely manner ¢ Yearly checks on data to highlight gaps
e Incorrect benefit calculations * Employer administration meetings held twice a year
¢ Delays while we request missing e Quarterly e-zine with administration updates, plus special
information editions when required
¢ Guidance available on website
e Individual employer meetings include review of employer
performance
P8 Failure to comply with disclosure regulations 3 2 6 |* Robust workflow management system in place. 3 1 3 [Charlotte
e.g. the requirement to issue information Thompson
within a certain timescale after a
request/event
e Complaints
* Fines
P9 Failure to issue Annual Benefit statements to |2 4 8 |* Project management approach 2 3 6 [Charlotte Increase employer take up of |31.08.17 to have
active and deferred members by 31st August: ¢ Regular contact with employers to get data. Thompson monthly interfaces. Many all pre April 2017
e Reputational risk and complaints * Monthly interfacing to reduce workload at year end leavers are not being notified |leavers processed
* Fines until year end




Agenda Item 9

CT/16/85
Devon Pension Board
20" October 2016

PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015/16

Report of the County Treasurer

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and determination by
the Board before taking effect.

Recommendation: that the Board note the Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts for
2015/16

1. Introduction

1.1. The Pension Fund Accounts were considered and approved along with the County Council
accounts by the Devon County Council Audit Committee on the 7" September 2016.

1.2. The Investment and Pension Fund Committee approved the full Annual Report, which
contains the statement of accounts together with other information about the Fund'’s
performance during the year.

2. Annual Report and Statement of Accounts

2.1. As in previous years the Annual Report includes:

¢ An introduction from the County Treasurer outlining the major issues during the year.

o Details of the training that members have received as required by the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Knowledge and Skills.

¢ A market update from the Fund’s Independent Advisor.
e The Fund’s key risks from the Risk Register and the mitigating controls.

¢ A summary of the performance of the Fund’s external managers, followed by reports
from each manager outlining their performance, stewardship activity and their market
outlook going forward.

e The Statement of Accounts.
¢ More detailed information about the operation of the Fund.

e The Fund’s statutory statements.

2.2. In addition the Annual Report now includes an annual report detailing the work of the
Pension Board. This highlights the areas examined by the Pension Board, and key
recommendations that have been reported to and acted upon by the Investment and
Pension Fund Committee.

Page 77



Agenda Item 9

2.3. The general principles in compiling the Pension Fund accounts are those recommended
by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). The accounts have
been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2015/16 which is based upon International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), as amended for the UK public sector.

3. Conclusion

3.1. The Board is asked to note the Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts for 2015/16.

Mary Davis

Electoral Divisions: All

Local Government Act 1972

List of Background Papers - Nil
Contact for Enquiries: Dan Harris
Tel No: (01392) 382520 Room G99

Page 78



Agenda Ite
Devon

County Council

Pension Fund
Annual Report & Accounts

2015/16




Agenda Item 9

Front cover photo: Salcombe, South DevonFDaSgék.g@/olliemtdog



Contents

Report of the County Treasurer

Market Commentary from
the Independent Investment Advisor

Pension Board Annual Report
Knowledge and Skills

Risk Management
Management of Fund
Managers Reports

Financial Statements:

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
Approval of the Statement of Accounts

Summary of Scheme and its Management

Financial Statements

Employing Bodies
Statement of the Fund Actuary
Audit Report

Additional Information:

Investment Powers

Statutory Statements

The Fund’s Largest Equity Shareholdings
Scheme and Benefit Information
Peninsula Pensions

Glossary

Appendix A: Statutory Statements

Page 81

Agenda Iltem

10
12
14
17
19

31
33
33
34
37

73
76
78

79
80
81
82
83
84
87

89




Report of the County Treasurer

2015/16 was a difficult year for investment markets. The Devon Pension Fund’s investment return for the
year, net of fees, was -0.5%, which was below the Fund’s bespoke benchmark target of +1.2%. The return
was just below the average local authority pension fund return of +0.2%. In addition the Fund's maturing
cashflow profile saw a deficit between the contributions received during the year and the benefit payments
and management costs paid out of £29.5 million. All of these factors have reduced the value of the Fund
from £3.374 billion (as at 31 March 2015) to £3.336 billion as at 31 March 2016, a reduction of just over
1%.

The Government announced in July 2015 that it intended to work with Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) funds to ensure they pool their investment assets, with the intention of achieving cost savings,
maintaining or improving investment performance, and providing the capacity for funds to invest in
infrastructure. The Devon Fund has been working with nine other LGPS funds to form the Brunel Pension
Partnership. Considerable further work is required to establish the partnership and the Government’s
target date for implementation of the pooling arrangements is April 2018. Once the partnership becomes
operational, the Devon Fund will continue to decide on the allocation between different asset classes to
meet local investment objectives, but the Brunel Pension Partnership will be responsible for selection and
monitoring of the external investment managers who will manage the investments.

As a result of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, the Devon Fund put in place a Pension Board, which
met twice during the year. The Board comprises fund member and employer representatives and an
independent member, and its role is to assist the Administering Authority and ensure compliance with
regulation. The Investment and Pension Fund Committee continues to be the Fund’s decision making body.
A report on the work of the Pension Board during the year is included in this year's Annual Report.

2015/16 was another challenging year for pension administration. Amendment to the LGPS regulations
and implications of Fair Deal were expected but have been delayed. The team worked hard over the year
to reduce backlogs of work and whilst this has an adverse knock on effect to the performance statistics, we
expect overall performance to improve as we build upon the foundations of the shared service that have
been put in place over the last two years.

Investment Performance

As indicated above the asset value of the fund at the end of the 2015/16 financial year was £3.336
billion. This represents a negative investment return of -0.5% net of fees, below the Fund's internally

set benchmark target of +1.2%. The largest contributing factor to the underperformance was the
investment in diversified growth funds, which aim to achieve a positive return of cash plus 3.5% to 4%
under all market conditions. This was not an achievable benchmark in the market conditions prevailing
during the year and is best judged over the longer term. The fund’s active equity and bond managers also
underperformed.

Pension fund investment management has to consider the long term, and the Investment and Pension Fund
Committee’s principal aim for the Fund is therefore to maintain high performance over the longer term.
The chart that follows presents the investment returns achieved by the Devon Fund compared to the Fund’s
benchmark over each of the last five years, plus the total annualised return over the last three years and

the last ten years. Performance Figures for 2014/15 and 2015/16 are shown net of fees, the previous years’
figures are gross.

Page 82



Agenda Iltem

Investment Performance

15 4
12.3
11.0
105 10.0
- 10 4
<
o
2 6.4 6.1
c 4.7 46 48 51
e 5 4
2
] 26 26
-
0 T T T T T T T T 1
-0.5
_5 J
2011712 2012/13 2013/14  2014/15 2015/16 3yearsto 10 yearsto
2016 2016
M Devon Fund Benchmark

Fund Solvency

The Fund is required to have an actuarial valuation conducted every three years. The last triennial valuation,
as at 31 March 2013, was carried out by the Fund Actuary, Barnett Waddingham, and determined that the
Devon Pension Fund had a funding level of 83%.

Work on the next scheduled valuation, as at 31 March 2016, is now underway. There will be a report on
the final results in next year's annual report. The outcome of the valuation will depend on the assumptions
that are made by the Actuary and also the experience of the last three years. The negative return for
2015/16 means that investment returns over the three year period have been below the Actuary’s
expectation. However, low levels of inflation will have kept pension increases down, which will have helped
the position. While it would be unwise to prejudge the outcome of the actuarial valuation, it might be
prudent to anticipate a small increase in employer contribution rates over the three years from 2017/18.

The 2016 valuation is likely to be scrutinised to a greater degree than previous valuations as a result of
increased focus on the affordability of the LGPS by the Government and media. Following the valuation
conducted by the fund actuary a further exercise will be completed by the Government Actuaries
Department (GAD). This will look to compare LGPS funds on a “like for like” basis in order to highlight
funds that are poorly funded, and also feed into the cost control mechanisms set up to determine whether
changes are required to either pension benefits or employee contribution rates to ensure the affordability of
the scheme to the taxpayer.

Summary of Financial Statements
The financial statements and their purpose are summarised as follows:

e Fund Account — The Fund Account sets out the Pension Fund’s income and expenditure for the year to
31 March 2016. The first section sets out the income received from contributions from employers and
employees, and the expenditure on pension benefit payments. In the past income from contributions
has exceeded the annual expenditure on benefit payments, resulting in a significant surplus to invest.
This has not been the case over the last three years, and the shortfall is continuing to grow. The second
section of the Fund Account shows the income received from the Fund’s investments and the cost of
managing those investments. The majority of investment income is retained by the external investment
managers for re-investment, but income from property and infrastructure is returned as cash, and can
be used to offset any shortfall between contributions and benefit payments. The growing gap between
contributions and pension benefit payments m gdw t ger proportion of investment income will
now need to be used to meet the shortfall, ratE éba reinvested.




e Net Asset Statement — The Net Asset Statement sets out the net assets of the Fund, in line with the
IFRS Based Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) and the
latest Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP). Pooled and Managed Funds represent investments
into pooled Equity, Property and Infrastructure Funds and they are incorporated into those categories
in reviewing the Asset Allocation of the Fund in the following section of my report. As reported above,
the capital value of the Fund’s assets is now £3.336 billion.

Asset Allocation
The Investment and Pension Fund Committee is charged with the responsibility for governance and
stewardship of the Fund and making decisions about strategic asset allocation policy.

The Committee’s strategic asset allocation to the major asset classes remained the same throughout the
year. In April a fifth of the target allocation to passive equities was invested in a mandate allocated to
alternative indices, rather than the traditional market capitalisation weighted indices.

The Fund’s actual asset allocation as at 31 March 2016 is shown in the following chart:

Infrastructure
4%

Global Bonds

Property 12%

. i 11%
Diversified ’ Cash 1%
Growth Funds
15%
Active Equities Passive Equities

14% 43%

A comparison of the actual allocation with the Fund’s target allocation is shown in the following table:

Target allocation  Fund asset  Variation
allocation from Target

% % %
Global Bonds 14.0 12.0
Cash 2.0 1.4
Passive Equities 40.0 42.7
Active Equities 15.0 14.1

Property 10.0 11.0
Infrastructure 4.0 4.2

The Committee decided to maintain the actual allocation to fixed interest below target for the duration of
the financial year, rather than rebalancing.

Page 84




Agenda Iltem

Conclusion

Market conditions have meant that the value of the fund has fallen slightly over the year and as a result the
three year investment return is below the Actuary’s expectations at the last Actuarial Review. This will make
the 2016 Valuation more challenging. However, the Fund will continue to focus on meeting its liabilities
over the longer term, and the Committee will keep the investment strategy under review and consider
changes to the approach where appropriate.

The Devon Pension Fund will continue to work with neighbouring funds to create the Brunel Pension
Partnership. This will result in short term costs, but should ensure greater efficiency and reduced costs in
future years. The Fund remains committed to ensuring that it provides an excellent service to pension fund
members and value for money for both pension fund members and local taxpayers.

Mary Davis
County Treasurer

Page 85 7



Market Commentary from
the Independent Investment Advisor

Economic background

During the year under review, concerns have mounted about the strength of the Chinese and US
economies which have been the engines of global growth over the last few years. Slowdown in developed
market growth has generally led to rising fears of deflation, and the US Federal Reserve has backed away
from raising interest rates.

The Japanese economy faltered as the government’s stimulus programmes failed to generate growth, and
the Eurozone has had meagre growth also.

In the UK, economic progress is also slow, although consumer confidence is rising and the housing market
is firm. However, after the period this report covers, and at the time of writing, the country has voted to
leave the EU in the referendum and this will push the UK economy into a new period of uncertainty.

Global inflation is subdued. The oil price fell sharply to less than $30 a barrel, and although this is ultimately
a positive for the global economy, it puts strains on oil-producing nations and reveals fault lines. As oil
rebounds from the lows, inflation could become a concern once more.

Much of the year has been spent guessing when the Federal Reserve was going to raise US interest rates,
and the move has been repeatedly deferred to much later in 2016. The US authorities are concerned the
world economy is not sufficiently robust to withstand higher rates, given high levels of debt and faltering
emerging economies. Now with the uncertainty created by the Brexit vote, rate rises may be even further
away.

Market returns

Last year we reported a very strong year for asset returns and | commented that such strong returns should
not be expected to continue. Therefore | am unsurprised this year to report that market returns were poor
in 2015/16.

UK Gilts were up modestly by 3.2%, whereas Global Government Bonds (ex-UK) rose 9.8% in sterling
terms. Sterling Corporate bonds were flat.

In equities, the FTSE All Share index in the UK was down 3.9%, and globally the FTSE World Index of
developed markets was unchanged. Emerging markets fell over the period by 8.9%, an area that has been
the worst sector for equity investors over the last few years.

Overall, after several years where returns have been positive, the investing environment has become much
more selective, and it has been hard to find good returns. Property is one obvious exception, rising by
11.7%, sustained by what strength there has been in the UK economy, and constrained supply of property.
Another area of positive returns has been technology-related shares, notably in the US where a small list of
highly successful internet-based businesses have created a great deal of growth. Returns on private equity
investing have been positive.

Page 86



Agenda Iltem

Economic and market outlook

As another year passes, it is now seven years since we emerged from the great financial crisis of
2008/2009. The path to recovery has been slow, and has been built on low interest rates and quantitative
easing. Such have been the powers of deflation, that over $10 trillion of global government bonds now
have negative yields. This is a hard concept to rationalise: investors paying governments to hold their
money, and is hardly a sustainable state of affairs in the long term. Fundamentally there is still too much
debt, and some inflation would be welcome. At some point, global macroeconomic policy may move on
from the era of quantitative easing to another regime designed to move away from deflation.

It is too early to say at this point what the impact of the EU Referendum vote will be on economic activity,
but it is likely to push the UK, and the world economy also, to a position of greater risk. Sterling currency

depreciation will improve the UK's export performance, but Britain is not the exporting nation it once was,
so this may not offset the decline, even temporarily, of inward investment until the political future clarifies.

This is likely to be a challenging period for future investment returns. Investors based in the UK, such as this
pension fund, will see the Sterling value of their overseas equity assets rise as the Pound depreciates, and
the UK market which is heavily weighted in multinational companies with overseas profits, is somewhat
shielded. Fixed income assets on the other hand, perform well in such an environment. UK Property has
already performed well, and so it is difficult to see the opportunities there, having now entered a period of
uncertainty.

However, we have a very well diversified portfolio strategy, and seek to ride out periods of volatility. In the
very long term, we seek to capture the excess returns that arise from investing in equities and real assets.

If shorter-term returns are low and volatility increases, then we will require our investment managers to be
skilled in navigating such waters, with good tactical asset allocation and stock selection. We appoint them
to manage for the long term but also seek opportunities that result from volatility.

Strategic asset allocation

The Pension Fund has a long term horizon and the investment priority remains long term returns rather
than short term risk mitigation.

While the focus is on return generation, the Fund does seek to dampen volatility by having a more
diversified strategy than other Local Authority pension funds. This does mean that it may lag the average
LGPS fund in strong financial markets, but this should be made up when markets are weak. Most
importantly, returns have over the last 3 and 5 years exceeded the actuary’s required rate of investment
return.

The current investment strategy has a core allocation to equities within a strategically diversified overall
portfolio. The target allocation to equities at 55% is well below the average Local Authority pension fund,
which has close to 65% in equities. The remaining 45% is split roughly equally between diversified growth
funds, real assets (property and infrastructure) and bonds/cash.

At the beginning of the 2015/16 year, the fund started a new allocation to alternative equity indices,
managed by UBS and the results of this new allocation are encouraging.

Steve Tyson

Page 87 9



10

Devon Pension Board Annual Report

The Public Sector Pensions Act 2013 introduced new governance arrangements for the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS), including the requirement for Administering Authorities such as Devon County
Council, to establish a Pension Board. The constitution for the Board was agreed by the Council in February
2015, members of the Board were formally appointed in May, and the first meeting was held in July.

The role of the Devon Pension Board is to provide scrutiny of the governance and administration of the
pension fund, assisting the Administering Authority in securing:

e compliance with LGPS and any other relevant legislation;
e compliance with requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the LGPS;
e the effective and efficient governance and administration of the LGPS.

The Board will make recommendations to the Investment and Pension Fund Committee and to officers to
improve governance standards.

The Board is composed of nine members, representing members of the fund and employers, as follows:
e Four employer representatives

e Four fund member representatives

e One non-voting independent member.

Some of the key areas of work undertaken by the Board during 2015/16 are detailed below:

e Review of the internal audit reports for 2014/15 and the Internal Audit Plan for 2015/16. Additional
information was requested regarding the process used to appoint the Independent Advisor and plans
to implement performance monitoring in this area.

e Consideration of the External Audit report on the Pension Fund Annual Report and Statement of
Accounts 2014/15. The External Audit Findings Report had not identified any control weaknesses and
an unqualified opinion had been provided.

e Following a review of the Pension Fund Risk Register, the Board recommended that risk owners need
to be clearly identified for each risk recorded on the register. This was implemented in a revised Risk
Register approved by the Investment and Pension Fund Committee in September.

o A full review of the Statutory Statements, with the aim of making suggestions for improvements where
necessary. A revised version of the Fund’s Communications Strategy was agreed by the Investment and
Pension Fund Committee in November following prior consideration by the Pension Board.

e A review of compliance with the Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice 14 for the Governance and
Administration of Public Sector Pension Schemes. The Board supported the efforts being made to
ensure the timely distribution of Annual Benefit Statements to all active and deferred members each
year and initiatives to reach those members whose email address had changed or was not known.

e A review of each set of minutes from the Investment & Pension Fund Committee meetings held during
2015/16 to ensure that decisions have been made in accordance with the terms of reference.

e Areview of the performance statistics of Peninsula Pensions;

e Consideration of the Annual Training Plan and a review of the attendance of Committee and Board
members at meetings and training events.

Page 88



Agenda Iltem

It is a legislative requirement that Pension Board members have the capacity to take on the role, and it is
expected that members should receive relevant training. Training sessions are provided throughout the year.
Details of the events held and attendance can be found on pages 12-13.

Members are also in the process of undertaking self-assessments covering the 6 areas of the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Public Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge and Skills. The results of this exercise will influence
future training sessions and ensure that Board members have sufficient knowledge and skills to carry out
their role effectively.

More information on the work of the Devon Pension Board can be found on the Peninsula Pensions
website, including links to minutes, agendas and reports from meetings of the Board and the contact
details of Board members:

www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/pension-fund-investments/devon-county-council-investments/
pension-board/

Page 89 1



12

Knowledge and Skills

The Devon Pension Fund has had a longstanding commitment to training for Committee members to
ensure that they have the skills and understanding required to carry out their stewardship role. This has
included regular events to cover the latest developments in the LGPS, investment strategy and performance
monitoring.

In February 2014 the Investment and Pension Fund Committee adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on
Public Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge and Skills, which requires the Annual Report to describe how the
training needs of the Committee have been assessed, and what training has been provided in response.

In addition Section 248A of the Pensions Act 2004 imposes requirements on members of the Local Pension
Board. Under the Act, every individual who is a member of a Local Pension Board must:

e Be conversant with the rules of the LGPS;

e Be conversant with any document recording policy about the administration of the Fund which is for
the time being adopted in relation to the Fund;

e Have knowledge and understanding of the law relating to pensions;
e Have knowledge and understanding of such other matters as may be prescribed.

There are six areas of knowledge and skills that have been identified as the core requirements for those
with decision making responsibility for LGPS funds. They are:

e Pensions legislative and governance context.

e Pensions accounting and auditing standards.

e Financial services procurement and relationship management.
e Investment performance and risk management.

e Financial markets and products knowledge.

e Actuarial methods, standards and practices.

The Fund has taken two approaches to assess the needs of committee members for further training.

Work has been undertaken with the Devon County Council Member Development Officer to conduct
development interviews with members of the Committee which have addressed the six areas outlined. In
addition members of the Investment and Pension Fund Committee and the Devon Pension Board have been
provided with a self-assessment training tool for section one of the CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Framework.
This has been adapted from the previous model provided to the Investment and Pension Fund Committee,
which became out-of-date due to changes in regulation. Self-assessment tools covering the outstanding
modules will be provided throughout the remainder of 2016-17. The results of these assessments will be
used to identify areas of knowledge that require additional training and future training sessions will be
designed to incorporate these requirements.

Three training sessions were arranged during the 2015/16 financial year, including a training event held
jointly with Cornwall Council in the autumn. The subjects covered at each of the training sessions are
shown below:

Pension Board Induction Session, 15 June 2015
e Public Service Pensions Act 2013

e Governance Arrangements

e Investment Fundamentals

e Role of the Scheme Advisory Board

e Role and responsibilities of the Administering Authority
e The role of the actuary’s role in the LGPS

Page 90



Joint Training Day with Cornwall Council, 16 October 2015
e Government Expectations re: Asset Pooling

e Practical Steps to Setting Up a Pooled Investment Vehicle

e Private Credit/ llliquid Debt Investment

e Pension Fund Jargon

e L GPS Legislation and Regulation Update

e Outlook for the global economy and LGPS investment returns

Performance and Liability Training Session, 21 November 2014
e Understanding long term performance
e Devon Fund performance

e 2016 Actuarial Valuation
Attendance of the training events is shown in the table below:

Investment and Pension Fund Committee

Cllr Ray Radford (Vice-Chairman) _ v
Cllr Des Hannon _
ClIr Richard Hosking _
Clr Lorraine Parker Delaz Ajete _
Donna Healy v v
Clir Michael Hicks (substitute) v
Roberto Franceschini (Observer) v

Pension Board

Cllr Brian Greenslade

Clir Jerry Brook

Heather Keightley

William Nicholls




14

Risk Management

Effective risk management is an essential part of any governance framework as it identifies risks and the
actions required to mitigate their potential impact. For the Devon Pension Fund, those risks will come from
a range of sources including the funding position, investment performance, membership changes, benefits
administration, costs, communications and financial systems. Good information is important to help ensure
the complete and effective identification of significant risks and the ability to monitor those risks.

Risk disclosures are included in the Pension Fund Statement of Accounts. In addition the Fund maintains a
risk register, which is monitored and reviewed on a regular basis. Risks are assessed in terms of the potential
impact of the risk event should it occur, and in terms of the likelihood of it occurring. Each risk is initially
scored assuming that no mitigating controls exist, and is then scored again on the basis of the mitigation

in place. A summary of the Fund’s most significant risks during the 2015/16 financial year is shown in the
table below.

Description of Risk and Potential Impact Mitigating Controls

Market crash leading to a failure to reduce e The fund is well diversified and consists of a wide
the deficit, resulting in: range of asset classes which aims to mitigate the
, _ impact of poor performance from an individual

e Financial loss. market segment.

* Increased employer contribution costs. | 4 |nyestment performance reporting and monitoring

arrangements exist which provide the committee and
investment officers with the flexibility to rebalance
the portfolio in a timely manner.

e The long term nature of the liabilities provides some

mitigation, in that markets tend to bounce back after
crashes, such that the impact is significantly reduced.

The Pension Fund has insufficient assets to e Triennial actuarial valuations provide periodic

meet its long term liabilities. indications of the growth in assets against liabilities.
. . Employer contribution rates are set in response to
The Pension Fund’s investment strategy thite.

and /or Fund Managers fail to produce the
required returns, or organisational changes
/ manager departures at a Fund Manager

e The 2013 actuarial valuation includes provision for
the fund to achieve full funding over 25 years.

damage performance, resulting in: e The investment strategy is reviewed annually by
the Pension Fund Committee with advice from the
* Financial loss. External Investment Advisor to determine whether
e Insufficient funds available to meet any action needs to be taken to amend the fund’s
future obligations. asset allocation strategy.

e The Fund’s investments are diversified across a range
of different types of assets to minimise the impact of
losses in individual markets.

e Fund assets are kept under regular review as part of
the Fund's performance management framework.

e Fund managers are thoroughly vetted prior to
appointment and performance is reviewed regularly
against the benchmark and performance objectives.
Appropriate action may be taken if it is considered
that an Investment Manager is underperforming.

Page 92



Agenda Iltem

Description of Risk and Potential Impact

Pay and price inflation are higher than
anticipated.

e Anincrease in liabilities which exceeds
the previous valuation estimate.

Mitigating Controls

The triennial actuarial valuation review focuses on the
real returns on assets, net price and pay increases.

Employers pay for their own salary awards and are
reminded of the geared effect on pension liabilities
of any bias in pensionable pay rises towards longer
serving employees.

The Fund has recently made new investments in
infrastructure funds with inflation linked returns, to
act as a hedge against inflation increases.

The Committee has received training on
understanding liabilities and potential approaches to
Liability Driven Investment.

The Committee Members and Investment
Officers make inappropriate decisions as a
result of insufficient knowledge of financial
markets and inadequate investment and
actuarial advice received, resulting in:

e Poor Fund performance/financial loss.
e Increased employer contribution costs.

The Investment Strategy is set in accordance with
LGPS investment regulations.

The Investment Strategy is reviewed, approved and
documented by the Investment and Pension Fund
Committee.

The Investment Strategy takes into account the
Fund’s liabilities.

DCC employ an external investment advisor who
provides specialist guidance to the Investment and
Pension Fund Committee regarding the investment
strategy.

An Annual Training Plan was agreed for 2015/16.
Training programmes are available for Committee
Members and Investment Staff.

Members and Officers are encouraged to challenge
advice and guidance received when necessary.

The average life expectancy of pensioners
is greater than assumed in actuarial
assumptions.

® Anincrease in liabilities which exceeds
the previous valuation estimate.

Life expectancy assumptions are reviewed at each
valuation.

Mortality assumptions include some allowance for
future increases in life expectancy.

An employer ceases to exist with insufficient
funding available to settle any outstanding
debts, or refuses to pay the cessation value.

e Departing employer not fully meeting
its liabilities which leads to increased
costs across the remaining scheme
employers.

Vetting of prospective employers before admission
and ensuring that they fully understand their
obligations. Applications for admission to the Fund
are considered carefully and a bond or guarantee is
put into place if required.

Outstanding liabilities will be assessed and recovered
from any successor bodies or spread amongst
remaining employers.

The actuarial valuation attempts to balance recovery
period with risk of withdrawal.
If necessary, appropriate legal action will be taken.

An Employer Covenant Risk Assessment has
been undertaken by the Fund Actuary, Barnett
Waddingham.

Page 93

15



Description of Risk and Potential Impact

Concentration of knowledge in a small
number of officers and risk of departure of
key staff.

e The risk of losing key staff could lead to
a breakdown in internal processes and
service delivery, causing financial loss
and potential risk to reputation.

Mitigating Controls

The Deputy Investment Manager is able to cover in
the absence of the Assistant County Treasurer.

Knowledge of all tasks shared by at least two team
members and can in addition be covered by senior
staff.

Training requirements are set out in job descriptions
and reviewed annually with team members through
the appraisal process.

A procedure manual is in place which sets out
work instructions for the majority of crucial tasks
undertaken.

Non-compliance with legislation and failure
to correctly implement new legislation and
regulations, resulting in:

e Incorrect benefit payments being made.

e Risk of financial loss and damage to
reputation.

LGA/External training.

Project work approach to implementation of
legislative changes.

In house training for all staff.

Peninsula Pensions suffers a system failure.

e Loss of sensitive data.
e Reputation risk.
e Financial loss arising from legal action.

The system is backed-up daily. System is hosted by
Heywoods.

A full disaster recovery plan is in place and tested
annually.

Failure to issue Annual Benefit Statements
to active and deferred members by 31st
August.

e Reputation risk and complaints.
e Fines.

Project management approach.
Regular contact with employers to get data.
Monthly interfacing to reduce workload at year end.

The current version of the full risk register can be found on the Peninsula Pensions website at:
ttps://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/pension-fund-investments/devon-county-council-
investments/devon-fund-key-documents/

16 Page 94



Management of Fund

There was one change to the Fund’s main external managers during 2015-16. UBS were appointed to
manage an alternative indexation mandate, tracking indices based on value, quality and low volatility
factors, rather than market capitalisation. This was funded from a FTSE World tracker fund managed by
State Street Global Advisors, where funds had been placed on a temporary basis following the termination
of the mandate managed by Sarasin and Partners in September 2014. The following table lists the
managers in place as at 31st March 2016 together with their mandates and the targets they have been set
in relation to the benchmarks shown:

Manager Mandate Target Benchmark

UBS Global Asset Passive Equities Performance in line with benchmark FTSE All Share
Management (UK) Ltd

Aberdeen Asset Global Equity Outperform benchmark by 3% per FTSE World Index
Managers Ltd annum over rolling 3 and 5 year periods

Lazard Asset Global Fixed Interest Outperform benchmark by 1% per Barclays Capital Global
Management LLC annum Aggregate Bond Index

Baillie Gifford and Co Diversified Growth ~ Outperform benchmark Bank of England Base Rate plus 3.5%

Aviva Investors Property Outperform benchmark IPD UK PPF All Balanced Funds

DCC Investment Team Infrastructure Outperform benchmark 7 Day LIBID
(Cash benchmark used as proxy)

Page 95



18

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee regularly reviews the performance of each of the investment
managers during the year. The following graph highlights the performance of each manager during
2015/16, and for the three year period to 31st March 2016:

Manager Performance to 31 March 2016

% Return - Year to % Return - 3 Years to March
31 March 2016 2016 (annualised)
-10.0 -5.0 0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 -5.0 0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0

SsgA 27 [l — =

Passive -2.6 10.3
Equities . 1
UBS 32 [l .
-3.9 3.7
Alternative  UBS l 1.1 NA
Indexation  (from 21 April) 05
Active ] 1
Global Aberdeen -+ [N M 20
Equities | 0.0 | 8.5
Emerging  Aperdeen 5.3 [N 27 [l
Markets 88 24
p ]
M 2 o7
Global Lazard 3.4 13 W Actual Return
Fixed S A ] Benchmark
Interest Wellington Jos -0.6 ||
. 1.9 -0.1
- ] ]
e i 14l -
Diversified Baillie Gifford 0 o
Growth < 1 ]
Funds Barings .6 [N il 2
L | 4.6 45
Property  Aviva I 11;’-69 I 22
Equities 19 [l 0o i o os
b — '
Specialist Infrastructure : - 4.1
Funds ] 03 | 0.4
Cash g-i ro 1.4

Aberdeen’s global equity mandate again performed well below benchmark during the year, with the
Specialist Equity Funds also below benchmark. The two fixed interest managers also performed below
benchmark. In a difficult year for markets both Diversified Growth Fund managers produced negative
returns, bringing their three year returns below the cash plus benchmarks. Property was the best
performing asset class, and Aviva's property portfolio performed above benchmark, although they remain
below benchmark over the three year period. The In-House managed Specialist Funds have been separated
out into equities, infrastructure and cash to give a more accurate representation of their performance.

Further detail on the performance of the individual managers can be found in their individual reports on
pages 19-29. All of the managers have provided an investment commentary, which provides further detail
on their performance over the past year, their engagement with the companies in which they invest, and
their outlook going forward.

Page 96



Agenda Iltem

Managers’ Reports

State Street Global Advisors Ltd
Mandate — Passive Global Equity & Emerging Markets

Performance Review - 12 months to 31st March 2016

The regional equity funds all tracked their respective benchmarks closely during the twelve months to 31st
March 2016. The non-UK performance figures shown below represent the impact of the dynamic and static
currency hedging overlays:

UK Equity -3.76%
North America (Dynamic Currency Hedged) 2.42%
North America (50% Currency Hedged) 1.77%
Europe ex-UK (Dynamic Currency Hedged) -9.20%
Europe ex-UK (50% Currency Hedged) -8.21%
Japan (Dynamic Currency Hedged) -2.74%
Japan (50% Currency Hedged) -8.40%

During the 12 month period, the main drivers of currency outperformance were Sterling’s weakness against
the US Dollar and the Japanese Yen, whereas the main detractor from performance came from Sterling’s
weakness against the Euro.

The Dynamic Currency hedge sees Sterling as moving towards being undervalued from being around
fair value against the majority of currencies within the portfolio. The strategy is largely positioned to take
advantage of Sterling strength during a reversion to fair value. The one notable exception is versus the
Japanese yen, where we see Sterling as overvalued and as such is positioned for Sterling to depreciate.

The equally weighted MSCI Emerging Markets portfolio returned a relative -0.20% versus its benchmark for
the year ended 31st March 2016.

Stewardship

During 2015 we voted at 15,471 meetings across 81 countries. SSGA's asset stewardship program
continues to be a strategic priority for us, as we seek to protect and promote the long-term economic
value of client investments. Two years ago, we significantly overhauled our program and adopted a
systematic, risk-based approach to overseeing environmental, social and governance (ESG) risks within

our investment portfolios. Today our programme is integral to our investment process, aligned with our
long-term investment time horizon and designed to provide active oversight of ESG risks. In 2015, through
focused selection, we engaged with over 45% of our AUM in equities. In addition, over 60% of our
company engagements were targeted based on screens, sector reviews, and ESG thematic risks identified
in our stewardship priorities. We have also been successful in changing ESG practices at several companies
through our engagement practices and voting principles. After a successful campaign regarding board
refreshment and director tenure, in 2016, SSGA is taking up the issue of effective board leadership with its
global portfolio companies.

Outlook

Looking to the rest of 2016, we continue to view equity markets through a cautious lens. In our tactical
portfolios we remain underweight across most major segments of equity markets — domestic, international
developed and emerging. The underweight reflects, in part, a perceived decline in the efficacy of monetary
policy support in the eurozone and Japan, as well as the threat of potential spill over effects from political
and macroeconomic risks across regions. Within growth-oriented assets, REITs continue to look attractive
and we maintain an overweight allocation.

In fixed income, given the mostly favourable policy backdrop and near record-low default rates in high-yield
bonds, we maintain a cautiously optimistic outlook with a small overweight to credit assets. Additional
allocations include overweight positions in cash anq:gdge o7

19



20

UBS Asset Management (UK) Ltd
Mandates — Passive UK Equity and Global Equities Alternative Indexation

Performance Review

Fund % Benchmark %
UK Equities
1 Year -3.8% -3.9%
3 Years (p.a.) +3.7% +3.7%
5 Years (p.a.) +5.7% +5.7%

Since Inception (01 Mar 2004)  +7.2% +7.2%

Global Equities - Alternative Indexation
3 Months +5.0% +4.8%
Since Inception (21 April 2015)  +1.1% +0.5%

2015 proved to be a challenging year with several economic and financial market developments taking
centre stage. This included concerns around Chinese economic growth, Greece-related political uncertainty
and a sharp fall in oil and commaodity prices. The year was also characterised by monetary policy divergence
between some of the world’s major central banks. Both the Bank of Japan (BoJ) and the European Central
Bank (ECB) pursued further quantitative easing, while the major talking point throughout the period was
whether or not the Federal Reserve (Fed) would raise interest rates for the first time in nearly a decade.
They finally did in December 2015. This helped drive the US dollar higher against other major currencies.

Equity markets in aggregate managed to eke out positive returns in 2015. The US equity market lagged,
however, experiencing the worst year since the financial crisis. The UK equity market also disappointed, due
in large part to its high energy sector exposure, particularly in the latter half of the year. Meanwhile, Europe
and Japan, serial laggards over the past few years, outperformed among developed markets. Emerging
market equities continued their run of underperformance, suffering outright negative returns.

The referendum on the EU membership continued to dominate the political debate in the UK and market
attention. With the polls still showing a neck and neck race, the risk of a potential exit from the EU has
started to materialise in market data and business sentiment.

Stewardship

In the year to 31 March 2016, UBS Asset Management voted on a total of 90,098 separate resolutions
at 9,078 company meetings. We declined to support management on 8,292 proposals, or approximately
9.2%. For the funds invested in by Devon County Council we voted on a total of 24,887 separate
resolutions at 2,010 company meetings. We declined to support management on 1,404 proposals, or
5.5%.

Outlook

While overall sentiment has improved since the start of the year, markets continue to be sensitive to new
economic data as global growth concerns remain in the forefront of investors’ minds. We believe volatility
is likely to remain high in 2016. While political risks have moderated following the debt negotiation
agreements reached in Greece, it is likely to remain one of the biggest drivers of volatility as we approach
the UK referendum in June and US presidential elections later this year. Fears about a slowing Chinese
economy have faded on account of improving economic data. However, we believe that long-term
challenges still remain a concern and need to be monitored closely.

Page 98




Agenda Iltem

Aberdeen Asset Management Ltd
Mandate — Global Equities

Performance Review

The uncertain global economic story and resulting actions from policymakers was a familiar theme driving
equity markets over the year. The US was the only major market to record a positive return, in sterling
terms, as the UK, Europe and Japan all fell by between 3% and 5%. The Asia Pacific region was weaker
still, as all markets retreated; and in other areas, Latin America, led by Brazil, fell even further, as did South
Africa. Investor concerns over the persistent lack of economic growth were compounded by worries over
the impact for non-US economies, in particular developing markets, of US interest rates being raised, which
did eventually happen. One other significant factor affecting confidence and forecasts was the level and
direction of commodity prices, in particular oil. From mid-year it tracked steadily downwards, hitting a low
of around $25 in early 2016, which coincided with a very negative mindset across equity markets.

This economic backdrop meant that certain sectors and industries remained under intense operational
pressures and this was reflected in a range of returns. The best performance came from more defensive
sectors such as Tobacco, Utilities and Telecoms. Energy, Materials and more cyclical sectors, as well as
Financials, led by Banks, were the other side of the coin. In the fund, the best and worst performing stocks
reflected these themes, as leading positive stories included Japan Tobacco, Philip Morris and BATs. Several
US holdings were also prominent, including Pepsico, Visa and retailer TIX (owner of TJ Maxx). However,
underperformance versus the index was a result of holdings in Industrials (Rolls Royce and Japanese
robotics firm Fanuc); Standard Chartered, the UK-listed Asian bank; and Canadian fertilizer specialist
Potash. South African mobile phone company MTN fell heavily, its significant business in Nigeria indirectly
affected by lower oil revenues in that country. The deliberate absence of US tech names, from Google to
Microsoft, Amazon and Facebook, also cost the fund relative performance.

Stewardship

As Aberdeen’s Corporate Governance and Responsible Investing teams are now united under Stewardship,
we continue to engage our holdings on their potential risks that cover financial as well as governance and
ESG issues. In the period, we discussed risk platforms with Hong Kong insurance group, AlA, and how
the group is strengthening its cyber security efforts and client engagements. We also spoke with Japanese
real estate manager, Daito Trust, on its rising labour costs and aging workforce. With South African mobile
telecoms group, MTN, we discussed at length the fines the group has received relating to its business
practices in Nigeria and its efforts to mitigate reputational risks going forward. We also engaged Swedish
industrial group, Atlas Copco, on how it identifies and prioritises material risks and uses stakeholder
engagement to help determine its key concerns.

Outlook

We remain mindful of slowing global growth and uncertainty over policy-makers’ next steps, particularly
in the US where dollar strength weighs on corporate profitability. The risk of an acceleration in China’s
slowdown, or of a poor policy response to prevent it, also seems critical. In such an unstable environment,
we advocate caution in setting expectations for corporate earnings, but are also ready poised to take
advantage of opportunities that volatility creates. Our portfolio activity continues to reflect the strategy

of diversification as we look for businesses that bring unigue attributes to the portfolio. We have been
working over the past year to reduce some of the cyclicality in the portfolio, for example by consolidating
our energy and materials exposure. We continue to monitor the overall structure of the portfolio and our
main focus in these periods of uncertainty remains quality.

Page 99 21



22

Aberdeen Asset Management Ltd
Mandate — Global Emerging Markets

Performance Review

Equities across developing markets found it a very testing environment over the year, with the economic
headwinds resulting from uncertainty from a host of macroeconomic themes, some global factors such as
the impact from investors' expectations for US interest rates as well as regional challenges, such as lower
economic growth forecasts for China as well as domestic issues. The highest profile of these impacted
Brazil specifically, as fears over the deteriorating economy were compounded by scandal and growing risk
of impeachment for President Dilma Rousseff. Russia and Turkey managed positive returns; other markets
fell by 8% to 10%; China was down -16%, South Africa by -15%.

Performance for the Devon portfolio was ahead of the benchmark, but still down in absolute terms.

The relative success came mainly from stock selection, but country allocation was also beneficial, being
underweight to China and having higher allocations to Turkey and Mexico, two of the best performing
markets. The allocation to India, via the Aberdeen fund, was also a positive contributor. At a stock level,
selection in a variety of sectors helped returns. Gedeon Richter, a Hungarian generic drugs firm rose 50%
while SABMiller, the South African brewer, merged with Anheuser Busch. Retailers Jeronimo Martins
(Poland), FEMSA (Mexico) and Bim Birlesik (Turkey) all produced positive returns, while Asian businesses
Samsung and Taiwan Semi also boosted performance. The story through Asia was not all favourable,
with the main detractor being Standard Chartered, which halved amid weaker trading and management
changes. Other weak shares reflecting poor sentiment included Hong Kong property business Hang Lung;
Petrochina, the Chinese energy business; and Siam Commercial Bank from Thailand.

Stewardship

Aberdeen’s Corporate Governance and Responsible Investing teams were united under a Stewardship
banner over the past year. We continue to engage potential and current holdings on governance and ESG
issues, stressing the need for companies to take a holistic approach to risk management and target setting.
Over the period, we discussed supply chain oversight and risk identification with Brazil's Banco Bradesco.
With oil and gas giant Petrochina, we spoke about potential regulatory changes and growth opportunities.
Our discussions focused on combining ESG and financial risk assessment with Korea’s Samsung. And

with Turkish financial group, Turkiye Garanti Bank, we spoke about the group’s adoption of international
standards and successfully increasing its ESG transparency.

Outlook

Despite a rally in early 2016, there are persistent headwinds for developing markets, such as China’s
slowdown and the possibilities of renewed commodity weakness, while the trajectory of global growth
remains ambiguous. Divergent monetary policy will also continue to be a source of uncertainty as more
central bankers venture into the unfamiliar territory of negative interest rates. Political events, such the
ongoing turmoil in Brazil, are also likely to dictate sentiment. However, as bottom-up investors, we
believe fundamentals are still sound. Emerging countries are better positioned in terms of current account
balances and have healthy levels of foreign reserves, while most are also less indebted than their developed
counterparts. Governments are able to embark on reforms and spend more on infrastructure, helped

by lower energy bills. On a corporate level, companies continue to focus on improving profitability and
controlling costs. We remain confident in our holdings, which have been resilient despite the challenging
operating environment.

Page 100




Agenda Iltem

Lazard Asset Management Ltd
Mandate — Global Fixed Interest

Performance Review

The 10-year US Treasury note ended 2015 at 2014-like levels, masking market volatility during the year.
Notably, volatility rose in August, partly driven by Chinese GDP fears and a surprise renminbi revaluation.
In December the US Federal Reserve raised rates and the US yield curve flattened as shorter-maturity yields
rose slightly more than those with longer maturities. UK bonds consequently underperformed and core
European bonds sold off as the European Central Bank’s policy easing fell short of expectations.

The portfolio finished 2.1% higher (net of fees), however lagged the custom benchmark, which changed
from an unhedged to a 50% GBP hedged version of the Barclays Global Aggregate TR Index (GBP) on 1
November 2015. The custom benchmark returned 3.42% for the period under review. Relative returns
were helped by country allocations, including overweight exposures to Canada, Australia, New Zealand,
Hungary, Norway, and Singapore. There were a mix of contributors and detractors within the portfolio’s
currency exposure as tactical underweight euro exposure added value earlier in 2015, while modest
exposures to a variety of other currencies detracted from returns in spite of the portfolio’s defensive hedges
on a majority of higher-beta currency exposure for most of the year. A lack of exposure to Japanese bonds
and an underweight in duration and yield curve positioning in the euro zone also detracted from relative
returns.

Stewardship

We are committed to maintaining an investment approach that is consistent with high standards of
environmental, social and corporate governance (ESG). For fixed income, ESG factors are evaluated at both
the corporate and sovereign level.

For corporate debt, ESG criteria are analysed by Lazard’s fixed income professionals as part of their
corporate credit research process. Social performance was integral in the analysis of The Home Depot
(Currency of risk: USD/credit rating A), which scored poorly as a result of a 2014 data breach. Despite

the poor social score, strong environmental, governance, and other indicators supported a position in the
company. For sovereign debt, Lazard conducts a macro evaluation of ESG-related factors such as a country’s
level of corruption, the effectiveness of government and political stability, and environmental performance,
amongst other things, which factor into the determination of the repayment potential for sovereign debt
issuers. Internal and external tools are utilized to help support our research and analysis. Lazard purchased
two new regional quasi-government Green bonds issued from the Province of Ontario (Canadian issuer -
Currency risk: CAD/credit rating A+) and Kommuninvest (Swedish issuer - Currency risk: USD/credit rating
AAA). Green bonds fall under the parent category of ESG and are standard fixed income instruments that
are used to fund eligible “green projects” including clean transportation, renewable energy, and other
environmentally beneficial projects.

Outlook

Despite strong sentiment and market performance in March, the global outlook is still at a critical point.
We expect more volatility within recent ranges for interest rates, currencies, and commaodities. The uneasy
equilibrium of recent years, between repeated disappointments in global growth, structural reforms, and
substantial monetary policy stimulus, is still at risk. Global growth prospects are fragile, especially outside
the United States, and central bank policy stimulus will probably be less plentiful and, where applied,
perhaps less effective than in recent years. Investors are starting to realize that unconventional central
bank policy responses may produce unconventional market consequences; and negative rates appear to
be having little impact on inflation, growth, or investment. This environment has favoured higher quality
“defensive” bond markets, especially for global investors who can take advantage of currency movements
and rotate between countries and sectors. The yen, euro, and US dollar continue to function as “safe

haven” currencies. Page 101 23



24

Wellington Management International Ltd
Mandate — Global Fixed Interest

Performance Review

The Global Aggregate (unhedged to GBP) portfolio posted a return of 8.02 %, outperforming its
benchmark by 0.02% over the year to 31 March 2016. The newly funded Global Aggregate (hedged

to GBP) portfolio posted a return of 2.93% (in GBP terms; net of operating expenses and gross of
management fee), underperforming its benchmark by 0.16%. The multi-sector credit portfolio posted a
return of -0.65% (in GBP terms; net of operating expenses and net of the investment management fee),
underperforming the benchmark by 1.59%.

Global Aggregate Portfolio

Positive performance came from macro and quantitative strategies, with macro providing the largest
positive contribution. Credit strategies were the biggest source of underperformance over the 12 month
period.

Macro performance detracted at the beginning of the period, driven by our overweight duration positions
in Australia and UK, as most global government bond yields increased in an apparent technical sell-off.

Into the end of 2015, macro-driven duration and country strategies detracted while currency contributed.
Through the start of 2016 our aggregate overweight positions in UK & US contributed as global yields fell
sharply in response to dovish central bank policy and growth concerns. Yield curve strategies contributed as
a dovish Fed caused the US curve to steepen.

Credit strategies detracted marginally over the year. At the beginning the year credit detracted, as an
overweight to investment grade corporates & CMBS negatively contributed due to widening spreads.
These were later offset as our underweight exposure to select industrial sectors (metals, mining & energy)
and EM sectors contributed as weakness in oil & commodity prices continued. Towards the end of

2015, our overweight to investment grade corporates, primarily financials and consumer non-cyclicals,
contributed as spreads tightened. However, this overweight detracted in the opening of 2016, as financials
underperformed due to Brexit concerns and negative interest rates.

Multi Sector Credit Portfolio
Primary detractors

e Emerging markets sovereign external debt exposure detracted from relative performance, as sovereign
spreads tightened. Local-currency debt underperformed as emerging market currencies depreciated
against the US dollar and interest rates rose.

e Short duration positioning detracted from benchmark-relative results.
e Allocation to CMBS hurt relative performance.

Primary sources of outperformance

e Security selection within global high yield strongly benefitted relative performance, particularly an
underweight to energy issuers.

e Exposure to CDX and total return swaps on ETFs strongly benefitted relative performance.
e Allocation to agency MBS held to diversify returns.

e Bank loan positioning had a favourable impact on relative results, in particular from positive security
selection.

Page 102



Stewardship

Agenda Iltem

Within your portfolios, our portfolio managers, analysts and ESG analysts engaged with various corporate
issuers on environmental, social, and governance topics. More specifically, we engaged with companies
on the following topics: environmental management systems, carbon emissions, water scarcity, project
financing and environmental assessments, sustainable palm oil, health and safety management,
environmental expertise at the board level, employee compensation, board composition, executive
compensation, combined Chair/CEO, cybersecurity, anti-corruption.

Global outlook

e The global cycle remains sluggish; commodity-
linked economies are experiencing a mild bounce
from low levels.

e Markets are questioning the efficacy of further
central bank policy easing.

e Multiple sources of downward pressure on
interest rates — sluggish growth and inflation,
overly cautious central banks and rising political
risk.

e A change in Fed expectations, stabilisation
in commodity prices and reversal in extreme
negative sentiment will support China and other
EM-linked assets.

e [f Chinese growth really does improve cyclically,
it will give the Fed more cover to continue its
gradual tightening baseline.

e US and European economic momentum positive;
moderately pro-cyclical risk posture.

e Capacity constraints will pressure inflation higher;
neutral to short US duration posture.

e Diverging global economic cycles and monetary
policy paths will continue to be a source of
market volatility.

Global aggregate portfolio strategy
e Underweight US duration, overweight USD.

e  Favour overweight to Australian dollar,
Norwegian krone and Mexican peso.

Multi Sector Credit Portfolio Strategy

e High yield is priced for a significant probability
of recession and onerous defaults relative to
our expectations; favour BB-rated issuers, which
we believe have the most attractive valuations.

e Bank loans have strong risk-adjusted return
potential; largest portfolio allocation is to loans.

e Relative appeal of loans is enhanced by their
diversification benefits and floating-rate
structure, particularly given low absolute yields
prevailing across most fixed income sectors.

e Emerging markets face weaker commodity
prices and slower domestic growth; moderate
allocation to EM hard currency sovereign debt.

e Structured Finance - favourable commercial real
estate fundamentals are balanced by weaker
underwriting standards; own Commercial
Mortgage Backed Securities.

Page 103 25



26

Baillie Gifford and Co.
Mandate — Diversified Growth Fund

Performance Review

After a benign start to the year the environment became more challenging. Initially, accommodative
monetary policy and a general improvement in the economic backdrop had a favourable impact on
markets. As the period progressed concerns over the sustainability of growth in China, falling commodity
prices and uncertainty around future US rate rises resulted in falls in equity and credit markets. Sentiment
did improve but the end result was that the portfolio returned -1.4% net of fees for the year to March
2016. Its objective is to exceed the base rate (currently 0.5%) by at least 3.5% p.a. over rolling five year
periods, at volatility levels half that of equity markets. Since inception in June 2012 it has returned 5.3%
p.a. against a target of 4.0% p.a. and is within its volatility guidelines.

Over the year infrastructure, active currency positions and insurance linked securities all helped
performance. These were more than offset however by weaker returns from more economically sensitive
asset classes such as emerging markets bonds, high yield bonds and listed equities. Having relatively high
weightings in cash and “near cash” assets helped, but we had limited exposure to “safe havens” such as
gold and government bonds, both of which performed very well in nervous times.

Stewardship

We engaged with and voted shares in the underlying holdings in your fund during the year. These involved
opposing the re-election of directors if we were concerned about their independence or ability; voting
against remuneration where we felt that it was not in alignment with shareholders’ interests and opposing
amendments or increases to fees. Examples of companies held directly or indirectly in your portfolio where
we engaged or voted include Elektra Private Equity (governance), Aggreko (environment, governance),
Alphabet (tax) and Fondua Proprietatea (fees). We also continued engagement with Ryanair and Amazon
on various issues covered in last year’s report.

Outlook

Despite the uncertainty we remain cautiously optimistic. Optimistic because economic growth is
continuing to improve, albeit slowly, in many parts of the world; cautious because many asset classes

look to be fully priced even before uncertainty in the UK, US, Middle East, China and elsewhere is taken
into account. Market volatility has enabled us to add to some assets at attractive valuations including in
Japanese equities, some property and infrastructure funds and in inflation protected securities. We expect
uncertainty to continue to provide opportunities but, given the starting point for valuations in many asset
classes, returns may be lower in the future than they have been in the past.

Page 104




Agenda Iltem

Baring Asset Management Ltd
Mandate — Diversified Growth Fund

Performance Review

The Fund returned -3.6% during the twelve month period ending 31 March 2016. This was behind its
performance comparator which returned 4.6% for the same period. Equity market weakness led to a
decline in the Fund’s value during the reporting period.

Over the twelve months under review, the main contributors to performance were property, government
bonds and precious metals. Property is an asset class we have liked for some time.

We find the yields attractive and, also, like the diversification that property brings. Government bonds
rallied during the reporting period and our holding of both long dated US treasuries and Australian bonds
performed well. Precious metals were a new position where timely purchases in early 2016 led to gains for
the portfolio, helping to offset volatility in other asset classes.

Overall, all equity markets impacted negatively on performance. The biggest detractor to performance was
Japanese equities. The asset class has suffered from both poor economic data and the Bank of Japan’s
struggle to help the Yen depreciate. European equities also lost ground. We take comfort from the fact that
the hard data of orders and output has held up, and in many places is expanding briskly. European equities
are still a preferred allocation as the fundamentals remain very much supported by the data releases and
the negative rates policy that was expanded by the European Central Bank in Q1.

Stewardship

We take our responsibility to engage with companies seriously, meeting with company management
regularly. Our policy is to vote at all general meetings where practicable and we use ISS, a proxy voting
service, to help advise on meeting resolutions. In the last year we voted on a total of 36 meetings,
comprising of 221 separate resolutions for companies held in your portfolio. We voted against
management 8 times and did not vote on 6 resolutions. Issues of particular concern to us included the
appointment of directors, and executive remuneration. From time to time, especially when it comes to
remuneration policies, we will follow ISS and vote against the company. However, in June 2015, ISS advised
us to vote against the Tesco report and accounts. Barings did not agree with this decision as we believed
that new management had done much to improve the company structure and strategy. In this case, we
ignored the ISS advice and voted in favour of the AGM resolutions.

Outlook

Although markets have been volatile, we still believe that an economic recession is unlikely. In the absence
of a major shock, the probabilities of sliding into negative growth are extremely low. In our opinion, a
mild positive economic surprise is likely, particularly in the US. The US is seeing something of an economic
up-turn in recent months. The drag from oil is behind us, and the economy continues to grow around the
familiar themes of housing, the consumer and an expanding workforce.

In addition, global policy settings remain very pro-growth and pro-markets. The US are taking a dovish
approach to rate increases and the European Central Bank extended its quantitative easing programme.
There has been a huge credit stimulus underway in China and this is already driving activity levels higher

in the region and emerging market equities will be a beneficiary as long as the credit expansion lasts.
Additionally, the shopping list for any contrarian and value-based investor must include high yield credit. As
the price of oil declined, high yield bonds were hit by the deteriorating creditworthiness of energy issuers
and the asset class suffered substantial outflows. However, the most negative projections are now factored
in and with currently attractive valuations, there is clear evidence that the asset class is set to rebound
further.

Page 105 57



28

Aviva Investors
Mandate — Property

Performance Review

Over the past twelve months the commercial property market in the UK has remained an attractive
investment market for investors; due to the relatively high yield on offer, compared to other asset classes
and an improving occupational market; which is being seen through increasing rental value growth and
falling void rates in most markets.

The index returned 10.6% over the period, a marked reduction over the previous year, but still a high
nominal return. The real estate mandate performed well over the year returning 10.9%, net of fees,
benefitting from being fully invested and with a lower cash drag than in previous years.

During the year we re-positioned the portfolio in light of our views on the market and the economic
backdrop. The key transactions were the total exits from the Hansteen Industrial Fund Il and the Aviva
Investors UK Recovery Fund Il. These funds generated annualised returns of 16.3%pa and 12.6%pa over
their respective hold periods. These proceeds were re-invested into areas of the market where we believe
that there are good investment opportunities; specifically in the recovering South East office market, the UK
Residential Private Rented Sector (‘PRS’) and some high quality high street shops in affluent towns and cities
in the UK.

Investments that contributed positively to performance over the year included the UK student
accommodation fund; that has benefitted from positive yield shift in the sector, as it has become a more
mainstream investment market, whilst management have seen minimal void on the units. Returns of

over 24% were generated at local level by the core Irish fund, which has seen strong rental value growth
emerge in both the prime Dublin office and Dublin retail markets. The weakest performers included a
core pan Asian fund, that is US$ denominated, with underlying investments in local currencies, which have
moved against the US$; this should reverse out in the future and should then be beneficial to performance.
A UK specialist retail warehouse fund has been impacted by some recent tenant distress and some asset
sales that have not been achieving prevailing valuation. There are also some funds that are in the ')’ curve
phase, i.e. funds that are currently being built out; these should be accretive over the next 12 months, as
the asset purchases stabilise and purchase costs are ameliorated.

Stewardship

Aviva fully supports the UK Stewardship Code and complies with all its principles. Aviva has supported the
development of good governance in the UK and beyond for many years and hope that the Stewardship
Code achieves its purpose of enhancing the quality of engagement between institutional investors and
companies to help improve long term returns to shareholders and the effective exercise of governance
responsibilities. We also support and are a signatory to the UN Principles for Responsible Investment (UN
PRI).

We believe that environmental, social, and corporate governance (ESG) issues can affect the performance
of investment portfolios and so recognise that applying these principles may better align investors with
broader objectives of society.

Outlook

The outlook for real estate returns appears relatively positive over the short and medium term, even though
returns from UK commercial real estate are easing. Yield compression is fading, however current yield levels
of UK property appear well supported on a relative basis, given near record-low sovereign bond yields.
Underlying occupier market fundamentals have strengthened and further rental growth is expected in
most parts of the market giving a better balance to overall total returns. Normalisation in bond yields and
interest rates looks set to be a gradual multi-year process, coinciding with ongoing economic and financial

sector recovery. Page 106



Agenda Iltem

Devon County Council In-House Team
Mandate — Specialist Funds

The Specialist Funds mandate comprises investments into a number of more concentrated pooled funds,
which as a consequence may carry higher risk. It also includes management of the Fund’s unallocated cash
balances.

Performance Review

e Activism Funds — The RWC UK Focus Fund and the European Focus Fund both delivered positive
returns over the year of +1.6% and +8.7% respectively. The European Fund was well above
benchmark, although the UK was below benchmark. The Relational US Activism Fund was liquidated
during the year.

e European Smaller Companies — The Montanaro European Smaller Companies Fund delivered
a return of +7.3% against a benchmark of +6.0% during a year in which small cap companies
performed better than large cap.

e Emerging Markets — It was another difficult year with emerging markets, with the MSCI benchmark
down 8.8%. The SSgA Passive Index Tracker did slightly better than this, with a return of -7.3%, but
the FPP Emerging Markets Fund had a poor year with a return of -18.7%. The negative returns on
emerging markets impacted significantly on the total return across the specialist equity funds, resulting
in a total return of -1.9% against the FTSE World benchmark return of 0.0%.

¢ Infrastructure - The Fund’s infrastructure investments yielded a return of +8.8% during the year. The
First State European Diversified Infrastructure Fund delivered a total return of +20.8% helped by an
increase in the value of the Euro against Sterling. The Hermes Infrastructure Fund also performed well
with a return of +12.7%, while the UBS Infrastructure Fund returned -1.6% as a result of a couple of
assets performing below expectation, and the write-down in value of the Njord Gas investment due
to regulatory changes imposed by the Norwegian Government. Commitments to Aviva’s Infrastructure
and Ground Rents funds were drawn during the year.

Stewardship

It is expected that all the individual funds that specialist funds have been allocated to will engage with the
companies that they are invested in. The Activism Funds in particular look to drive performance by active
involvement in the companies in which they invest. In addition the Devon Pension Fund is a member of the
Local Authority Pension Funds Forum (LAPFF) who conduct engagement on behalf of their membership
comprising 70 pension funds. LAPFF has a strong record of engagement.

LAPFF's activity over the last year includes: co-filing strategic resilience resolutions for the AGMs of Anglo
American, Rio Tinto and Glencore; calling on Nestlé to review human rights reporting in light of Modern
Slavery Act requirements; writing to a number of companies — Johnson Matthey, EDF, and Proctor and
Gamble — requesting information regarding their membership in industry organisations that have denied or
failed to promote action on climate change.

Outlook

e The referendum on the UK’s membership of the European Union has produced significant uncertainty
about future UK economic growth, with a potential impact on future UK and European investment
returns.

e The Fund has further expanded its infrastructure commitments, which should provide good returns,
diversification of risk, and an effective inflation hedge going forward.

Page 107 29



Page 108



Agenda Iltem .

Financial Statements 2015/16

Page 109 31



Page 110



Agenda Iltem

Statement of Responsibilities
for the Statement of Accounts

The Authority’s Responsibilities

The Authority is required to:

¢ make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its
Officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Authority, that Officer is the
County Treasurer,

* manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets;

e approve the Statement of Accounts.

Responsibilities of the County Treasurer

The County Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of Accounts in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA / LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom ('the Code of Practice’).

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the County Treasurer has:

e selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
e made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

e complied with the Code of Practice;

The County Treasurer has also:

e kept proper accounting records which were up to date;

e taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Certificate of the County Treasurer
| hereby certify that this Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2016 has been prepared in
accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and that it presents a true and fair view of the

financial position of the Pension Fund as at 31 March 2016 and its income and expenditure for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

Mary Davis
County Treasurer
24th August 2016

Approval of the Statement of Accounts

| confirm that these accounts were approved by the Audit Committee at its meeting on 7th September
2016.

R C Edgell
Chairman of the Audit Committee
7th September 2016

Page 111 33



Summary of Scheme and its Management

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is one of the oldest public sector schemes in operation,
having been established as a national scheme in 1922. The LGPS is managed by administering authorities in
accordance with regulations approved by Parliament. In the county area of Devon, Devon County Council

is the administering authority of the Fund. Each administering authority is responsible for its own Fund,
into which all contributions are paid. Rules by which the administering authorities must operate - the

LGPS Regulations - are determined by the Government after consultation with representatives for both
employees (trade unions) and employers (Local Government Association, Local Government Pensions
Committee).

The scheme is governed by the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. The fund is administered in accordance
with the following secondary legislation:

e The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended)

e The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations
2014 (as amended)

e The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009.

Each LGPS administering authority pays its benefits from a dedicated pension fund. Both the scheme
member and their employer pay into this fund in order to provide retirement benefits for the member

once they reach retirement age (or earlier if the situation demands). Before this time arrives however,

the contributions paid into the scheme are invested in a variety of suitable investments. By investing the
contributions in this way the fund can build up enough assets to cover any payments it may be expected to
make regarding its scheme members retirement benefits. Please visit the website
www.peninsulapensions.org.uk for further information.

As at 31st March 2016, the net assets of the Devon Pension Fund were valued at £3,336 million. The fund
currently has 37,679 actively contributing members, employed by 202 employers of various descriptions
(Unitary, District, Town & Parish Councils, Education Establishments and Admitted Bodies).

Scheduled Body - An employer explicitly Admitted Body - As listed on page 75.
defined in the Regulations.
As listed on page 74.

No employing body discretion on membership. | Employing body discretion on membership.

No employer discretion on who can join. Employer discretion on who can join.

Restricted to geographical area of fund. May operate outside geographical area of fund, and
potentially participate in more than one fund (separate
admission agreement required).

No parent guarantee or bond. May require an indemnity or bond.

Pensions are paid to 29,135 pensioners (and/or dependants) every month. There are currently 39,252
members with rights to deferred benefits, frozen memberships pending refunds and those undecided
pending resolution.

34 Page 112



Agenda Iltem

Further contributions are made by Fund employers, which are set based on triennial actuarial funding

valuations. The last such valuation was at 31 March 2013. Employer contributions comprise a future service

rate, which represents the employers’ share of the cost of future benefits, and a deficit contribution, to
meet any shortfall on past service liabilities. Currently, employer future service rates range from 7.8% to
29.1% of pensionable pay. The deficit contribution is expressed as a cash sum, and ranges from £0 to

£12.1 million.

From 1 April 2014, the scheme became a career average scheme, whereby members accrue benefits based
on their pensionable pay in that year at an accrual rate of 1/49th. Accrued pension is uprated annually
in line with the Consumer Prices Index. There are a range of other benefits provided under the scheme
including early retirement, disability pensions and death benefits.

Service before 1 April 2008

Service 1 April 2008 to
31 March 2014

Service from 1 April 2014

3/80 x final pensionable
salary.

In addition, part of the
annual pension can be
exchanged for an additional
oneoff tax-free cash
payment. A lump sum of £12
is paid for each £1 of pension
given up.

Part of the annual pension

can be exchanged for a one-
off tax-free cash payment. A
lump sum of £12 is paid for

each £1 of pension given up.

Pension Each year worked is worth Each year worked is worth Each year worked is worth
1/80 x final pensionable 1/60 x final pensionable 1/49 x pensionable salary
salary. salary. in that year which will

then be uprated for future
inflation.

Lump sum | Each year worked is worth No automatic lump sum. No automatic lump sum.

Part of the annual pension
can be exchanged for

a one-off tax-free cash
payment. A lump sum of
£12 is paid for each £1 of
pension given up.

Page 113

35



36

Management Structure

Administering
Authority

Devon County Council
County Hall

Exeter

EX2 4QD

Your Pension Fund Representatives
Investment and Pension Fund Committee (at 31 March 2016)

Representing Devon
County Council

Representing Devon
Unitary & District
Councils
Representing Other
Employers
Observers
Representing the
Contributors
Representing the
Beneficiaries
Adviser

Councillor Rufus Gilbert (Chairman)
Councillor Ray Radford (Vice Chairman)
Councillor Richard Edgell

Councillor Des Hannon

Councillor Roy Hill

Councillor Richard Hosking

Councillor Peter Edwards (Devon Districts Councils)
Councillor Lorraine Parker Delaz Ajete (Plymouth)
Councillor James O'Dwyer (Torbay)

Donna Healy (Dartmoor National Park Authority)

Roberto Franceschini
Jo Rimron

Colin Lomax

Steve Tyson (AllenbridgeEpic)

Devon Pension Board (at 31 March 2016)

Representing Fund
Employers

Representing Fund
Members

Independent Member

Investment
Managers

County Council
Officers

Fund Actuary

Councillor Jerry Brook (Devon County Council)
Councillor Brian Greenslade (Devon County Council)
Carl Hearn (Tavistock Town Council)

Graham Smith (Devon and Cornwall Police)
Andrew Bowman

Heather Keightley

Cheryl Lewis

One Vacancy

William Nicholls

Devon County Council Investment Team
Aberdeen Asset Managers Ltd

Aviva Investors Global Services Ltd

Baillie Gifford and Co

Baring Asset Management Ltd

Lazard Asset Management LLC

State Street Global Advisors Ltd

UBS Global Asset Management (UK) Ltd
Wellington Management International Ltd

Phil Norrey Chief Executive

Mary Davis County Treasurer

Chris Phillips Deputy County Treasurer
Mark Gayler Assistant County Treasurer

Charlotte Thompson  Head of Peninsula Pensions
Barnett Waddingham LLP

For More Information

Copies of the full Annual Report, Statutory Published Statements and abridged Members Leaflet can be
found on-line at: www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/lIgps/pension-fund-investments/devon-county-

council-investments/devon-fund-key-documents

Requests for information about the accounts or investments should be made in writing to Mark Gayler,
Assistant County Treasurer - Investments paggsg_rﬂM_anagement, Devon County Council, Room G99,

County Hall, Exeter, EX2 4QD




Agenda Iltem

Financial Statements

Background

Employees of the Council are entitled to become members of three separate pension schemes:
e The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by Devon County Council.

e The Teachers’ Pension Scheme, administered by Capita Teachers’ Pensions on behalf of the Department
for Education (DFE).

e The NHS Pension Scheme, administered by the NHS Business Service Authority.

All three schemes provide defined benefits to members earned as employees. The arrangements for the
teachers’ and NHS schemes mean that liabilities for these benefits fall on the NHS and DFE respectively
and do not form part of the Devon Pension Fund. The fund also extends to cover employees of unitary and
district councils, civilian employees of the Devon and Cornwall Police Authority and Devon and Somerset
Fire & Rescue Authority and employees of a number of other admitted member bodies.

The accounts of the Fund are set out in line with the IFRS Based Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).

The accounts reflect the assets that are available to the Fund, and the current liabilities. Future contributions
are matched to future liabilities through an actuarial valuation.

All employers’ contribution rates are decided by the Fund’s Actuary every three years after an actuarial
valuation of the fund. The statutory triennial actuarial valuation of the fund was undertaken in 2013 and
was signed by the Actuary on 27 March 2014.

The Accounts are set out in the following order:

¢ Fund Account - discloses the income to and expenditure from the Fund relating to scheme members
and to the investment and administration of the Fund. The account also reconciles the Fund’s net assets
at the start of the year to the net assets at the year end.

¢ Net Asset Statement - discloses the type and value of all net assets at the year end.

¢ Notes to the Accounts - provides supporting details and analysis of the figures in the Fund Account
and Net Asset Statement.

Page 115 37



Fund Account

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 Notes £'000
Dealings with members, employers and others directly
involved in the fund
Contributions
(115,057) Employers 5 (117,079)
(35,845) Members 5&7 (36,201)
Transfers in from other pension funds:
(1,994)  Group Transfers 0
(3,692) Individual Transfers (4,766)
(156,588) (158,046)
Benefits
126,148 Pensions 6 132,435
28,757  Commutation and lump sum retirement benefits 6 30,035
3,431 Lump sum death benefits 6 3,777
Payments to and on account of leavers 6
191 Refunds to members leaving service 443
Payments for members joining state scheme
63,144  Group Transfers 960
5,407 Individual Transfers 6,026
227,078 173,676
70,490 Net (Additions)/Withdrawals from Dealings with Fund members 15,630
12,481 Management expenses 9 13,945
Returns on investments
Investment Income:
Fixed Interest
(321) U.K. Public Sector Bonds (282)
(5,967) Overseas Government Bonds (5,195)
0 Overseas Government Index Linked Bonds (24)
(827) UK Corporate Bonds (568)
(4,328) Overseas Corporate Bonds (3,569)
Equities (Quoted)
(1,727) U.K. (1,055)
(8,442) Overseas (6,707)
(4,074) Pooled Investments (3,728)
(11,004) Pooled Property Investments (14,542)
(763) Interest on Cash and Short Term Deposits (1,072)
Taxes on income:
154 Withholding Tax - Fixed Interest securities 355
670 Withholding Tax - Equities 644
Profit and losses on disposal of investments and changes in
market value of investments:

(66,845) Realised (profit)/loss (121,546)
(214,030) Unrealised (profit)/loss 166,225
(317,504) Net Returns on Investments 8,936

Net increase/(decrease) in the net assets available for benefits
(234,533) during the year 38,511
(3,139,893) Opening Net Assets of the Fund at 1 April (3,374,426)
(3,374,426) Net Assets of the Fund at 31 March (3,335,915)

38 Page 116




Agenda Iltem

Net Asset Statement

31 March 31 March

2015 2016

£'000 Notes £'000
INVESTMENTS AT MARKET VALUE 13 & 14

Investment Assets
Fixed Interest

15,362 U.K. Public Sector Bonds 1,981
177,602 Overseas Government Bonds 129,023
0 Overseas Index Linked Bonds 2,029
16,644 UK Corporate Bonds 7,067
122,222 Overseas Corporate Bonds 66,531
Equities ( Quoted )
33,346 U.K. 28,085
264,294 Overseas 253,669
2,340,286 Pooled Investments 16 2,438,204
334,997 Pooled Property Investments 16 358,863
Derivative Assets 18
69 Futures - Overseas Fixed Interest 0
1,265 UK Bond Forwards 0
1,000 Overseas Bond Forwards 0
4,244 Forward Currency Contracts 1,418
Cash deposits
5,257 Foreign Currency 2,156
30,258 Cash Equivalents 21,296
22,686 Cash & Bank Deposits 12,168
4,862 Investment income due 4,518
38,446 Amounts receivable for sales 880
Investment Liabilities
Derivatives 19
(56) Futures - Overseas Fixed Interest 0
(632) UK Bond Forwards 0
(1,162) Overseas Bond Forwards 0
(2,844) Forward Currency Contracts (4,961)
(45,794) Amounts payable for purchases (475)
3,362,352 Net investment assets 3,322,452
Non current Assets and Liabilities 21
8,190 Non current Assets 7,288
(9,024) Non current Liabilities (7,520)
Current Assets and Liabilities 20
19,678 Current Assets 19,418
(6,770) Current Liabilities (5,723)
Net assets of the fund available to fund
3,374,426 benefits at 31 March 3,335,915

Notes to the Net Asset Statement

The financial statements summarise the transactions and net assets of the Fund but they do not take
account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits which fall due after the end of the Fund’s
accounting year. These obligations are summarised in Note 22 on page 58.

Page 117 39



40

Notes to the Accounts

1. Accounting Policies

The Statement of Accounts summarises the fund’s transactions for the 2015/16 financial year and its
position at year-end as at 31 March 2016. The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 which is based upon
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as amended for the UK public sector.

The accounts summarise the transactions of the fund and report on the net assets available to pay pension
benefits. The accounts do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after
the end of the financial year.

The Devon Pension Scheme is a defined benefit scheme which provides pensions for County, Unitary and
District Council staff not in other schemes, together with staff at certain other admitted bodies.

Devon County Council is the designated Administering Authority. The Investment and Pension Fund
Committee comprising of County Councillors together with representatives of the Unitary and District
Councils and other employers (with observers representing the staff and retired members) control the
investments with advice from specialists. Employing body details are shown on pages 74 and 75.

Fund account - revenue recognition
Contribution income

Normal contributions, both from the members and from the employer, are accounted for on an accruals
basis at the percentage rate recommended by the fund actuary in the payroll period to which they relate.

Employer deficit funding contributions are accounted for on the due dates on which they are payable under
the schedule of contributions set by the scheme actuary or on receipt if earlier than the due date.

Employers’ augmentation contributions and pensions strain contributions are accounted for in the period
in which the liability arises. Any amount due in year but unpaid will be classed as a current financial asset.
Amounts not due until future years are classed as long-term financial assets.

Transfers to and from other schemes

Transfer values represent the amounts received and paid during the year for members who have
either joined or left the fund during the financial year and are calculated in accordance with The Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations.

Individual transfers in/out are accounted for when received/paid, which is normally when the member
liability is accepted or discharged.

Transfers in from members wishing to use the proceeds of their additional voluntary contributions to
purchase scheme benefits are accounted for on a receipts basis and are included in Transfers In.

Bulk (group) transfers are accounted for on an accruals basis in accordance with the terms of the transfer
agreement.

Investment income

e Interest income is recognised in the fund account as it accrues

e Dividend income is recognised on the date the shares are quoted ex-dividend.
e Distributions from pooled funds are recognised at the date of issue.

Any amount not received by the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the net assets statement as a
current financial asset.

Changes in the net market value of investments (including investment properties) are recognised as income
and comprise all realised and unrealised profits/losses during the year.

Page 118



Agenda Iltem

Fund account - expense items
Benefits payable

Pensions and lump-sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be due as at the end of the
financial year. Any amounts due but unpaid are disclosed in the net assets statement as current liabilities.

Taxation

The fund is a registered public service scheme under section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of the Finance Act 2004
and as such is exempt from UK income tax on interest received and from capital gains tax on the proceeds
of investments sold. Income from overseas investments suffers withholding tax in the country of origin,
unless exemption is permitted. Irrecoverable tax is accounted for as a fund expense as it arises.

Management expenses

The Code does not require any breakdown of pension fund administrative expenses. However, in the
interests of greater transparency, the Authority discloses its pension fund management expenses in
accordance with the CIPFA guidance on Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme Management
Costs (Note 9).

Management Expenses recharged from Devon County Council to the Pension Fund are accounted for in
accordance with Devon County Council’s accounting policies. In particular the full cost of employees is
charged to the accounts for the period within which the employees worked.

Administrative expenses; oversight and governance costs; and investment management expenses are
accounted for an accruals basis.

Net assets statement
Financial assets

Financial assets are included in the net assets statement on a fair value basis as at the reporting date.

A financial asset is recognised in the net assets statement on the date the Fund becomes party to the
contractual acquisition of the asset. From this date any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of asset are recognised in the fund account.

The values of investments as shown in the net assets statement have been determined as follows:

e Market-quoted investments. The value of an investment for which there is a readily available market
price is determined by the bid market price ruling on the final day of the accounting period.

e Fixed interest securities are recorded at net market value based on their current yields.

¢ Unquoted investments. The fair value of investments for which market quotations are not readily
available is determined as follows:

o Investments in unquoted property and infrastructure pooled funds are valued at the net asset
value or a single price advised by the fund manager.

o Investments in private equity funds and unquoted limited partnerships are valued based on the
fund’s share of the net assets in the private equity fund or limited partnership using the latest
financial statements published by the respective fund managers in accordance with the guidelines
set out by the British Venture Capital Association.

o Limited partnerships. Fair value is based on the net asset value ascertained from periodic
valuations provided by those controlling the partnership.

o Pooled investment vehicles are valued at closing bid price if both bid and offer prices are
published; or if single priced, at the closing single price. In the case of pooled investment vehicles
that are accumulation funds, change in market value also includes income which is reinvested in
the fund, net of applicable withholding tax.

Page 119 a1



42

Foreign currency transactions

Dividends, interest and purchases and sales of investments in foreign currencies have been accounted for at
the spot market rates at the date of transaction. End-of-year spot market exchange rates are used to value
cash balances held in foreign currency bank accounts, market values of overseas investments and purchases
and sales outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

Derivatives

The fund uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to specific risks arising from its
investment activities. The fund does not hold derivatives for speculative purposes.

Derivative contract assets are fair valued at bid prices and liabilities are fair valued at offer prices. Changes
in the fair value of derivative contracts are included in change in market value.

The value of futures contracts is determined using exchange prices at the reporting date. Amounts due
from or owed to the broker are the amounts outstanding in respect of the initial margin and variation
margin.

The future value of forward currency contracts is based on market forward exchange rates at the year-end
date and determined as the gain or loss that would arise if the outstanding contract were matched at the
year-end with an equal and opposite contract.

A bond forward is an agreement to trade a bill or bond at an agreed time and place in the future. The value
of a bond forward is derived from the spot market of the underlying bond adjusted for the cost of carry
and accrued interest.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits and includes amounts held by the fund’s external
managers.

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and that are subject to minimal risk of changes in value.

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on
notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 90 days or less from
date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in value.

Financial liabilities

The fund recognises financial liabilities at fair value as at the reporting date. A financial liability is recognised
in the net assets statement on the date the fund becomes party to the liability. From this date any gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised by the fund.

Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a triennial basis by the scheme
actuary in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 and relevant actuarial standards.

As permitted under the Code, the fund has opted to disclose the actuarial present value of promised
retirement benefits by way of a note to the net assets statement (Note 22).

Additional voluntary contributions

The Additional Voluntary Contributions Investments are not included in the Pension Fund Accounts

in accordance with regulation 5(2)(c) of the Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2009, but are instead disclosed within the notes to the accounts (Note 8). The fund has two
appointed AVC providers; Equitable Life and Prudential.

Page 120



Agenda Iltem

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed by way of note where inflow of a receipt or economic benefit is probable
and whose existence or valuation will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events not wholly within the control of the Pension Fund.

Events after the Reporting Date

Events after the reporting date have been considered up to the time the Pension Fund Accounts were
authorised for issue on 24 August 2016.

Where an event after the reporting date occurs which provides evidence of conditions that existed at the
reporting date the Statement of Accounts is adjusted. Where an event occurs after the reporting date
which is indicative of conditions that have arisen after the reporting date, adjustments are not made.

Financial Instruments
The Financial Instruments of the Pension Fund are classified into the following categories:

e Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
o The Pension Fund classifies financial instruments that are ‘held for trading’ as at fair value through
profit or loss when the financial instrument is:
e Acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term, or

e Part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking, or

e A derivative.

o Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value
excluding transaction costs and carried at fair value without any deduction for transaction costs
that would be incurred on sale or disposal.

e Loans and receivables:

o Financial Instruments have been classified as loans and receivables when they have fixed or

determinable payments and are not quoted in an active market.

o Loans and receivables are initially recognised at Fair Value and carried at historic cost as they are
all short term with the exception of capital payment due from the Devon & Cornwall Magistrates
Courts Service (see note 21 - Non-Current Assets and Liabilities).

e Financial liabilities:

o The liabilities of the Pension Fund consist of creditors and derivative liabilities. Derivative liabilities
are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and carried at fair value.

Value Added Tax (VAT)
Income and expenditure excludes any amounts relating to VAT except to the extent that it is irrecoverable.

Page 121 43



2. Critical judgements in applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1 the Authority has had to make certain judgements
about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.

The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

e These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. The concept of a going concern assumes
that the Pension Fund will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

Note 25 Additional Financial Risk Management Disclosures details the Fund's investment strategy and
approach to managing risk. None of the Authority’s investments are impaired.

e The Fund’s significant contracts have been reviewed and no embedded finance leases or service

concessions found.

3. Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation

uncertainty

The Pension Fund Accounts contain estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Fund
about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical
experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined
with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

Item

Market Value of
investments

Pensions Liability

44

Uncertainties

The Fund’s investments are revalued on
a monthly basis. Investments are valued
using quoted prices in active markets or
by reference to markets which are not
considered to be active but are valued
based on quoted market prices, dealer
guotations or alternative pricing sources
supported by observable inputs with
the exception of the UBS International
Infrastructure Fund LLP (£27.913m as
at 31 March 2016), the Hermes GPE
Infrastructure Fund LLP (£28.920m as at
31 March 2016) and the Aviva Investors
REaLM Infrastructure Fund (£19.656m
as at 31 March 2016). While market
values are not estimates, the method of
valuation does mean that future values
may fluctuate (see note 4).

Estimation of the net liability to pay
pensions depends on a number of
complex judgements relating to the
discount rate used, the rate at which
salaries are projected to increase,
changes in retirement ages, mortality
rates and expected returns on pension
fund assets. Barnett Waddingham, a
firm of consulting actuaries, is engaged
to provide the authority with expert
advice about the assumptions to be

applied.
Page 122

Effect if actual results differ from
assumptions

For every 1% increase in Market Value
the value of the Fund will increase by
£33.225m with a decrease having the
opposite effect.

The effects on the actuarial present
value of promised retirement benefits
(the Funded Obligation) of changes in
individual assumptions can be measured.
For instance, a 0.1% increase in the
discount rate assumption would result
in a decrease in the Funded Obligation
of £105.784m, a 0.1% increase in
assumed earnings inflation would
increase the value of liabilities by
approximately £13.667m, and a one-
year increase in assumed life
expectancy would increase the liability
by approximately £174.545m.




Agenda Iltem

4. Estimates

The Devon Pension Fund is a limited partner in the UBS International Infrastructure Fund LLP, the Hermes
GPE Infrastructure Fund LLP and the Aviva Investors REaLM Infrastructure Fund. UBS, Hermes and Aviva (the
fund managers to the partnerships) provide the Pension Fund with quarterly financial statements indicating
the value of these investments. These statements are audited annually. For all other investments market
values are available from an active market and as such no assumptions have been made in their valuation.

Where actual costs were not known or could not be calculated, year-end debtors and creditors are based

on the last received payment or invoice.

5. Contributions receivable

By authority

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000
(141,493) Scheduled bodies (142,682)
(341) Admitted bodies (160)
(3,613) Community admission body (3,625)
(4,773)  Transferee admission body (6,017)
(682) Resolution body (796)
(150,902) (153,280)
By type

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000
(35,845) Employees’ normal contributions (36,201)
(84,651) Employers’ normal contributions (85,500)
(30,406) Employers’ deficit recovery contributions (31,579)
(150,902) (153,280)

6. Benefits Payable

By authority
2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000
151,432 Scheduled bodies 158,210
762  Admitted bodies 280
3,528 Community admission body 4,476
2,174  Transferee admission body 2,812
440 Resolution body 469
158,336 166,247

Page 123

45



46

7. Contribution Rates

Scheme members (employees) paid variable percentages of their total pensionable pay into the fund as set
out below.

Whole Time Pay Rate  Member contribution Whole Time Pay Rate Member contribution
2014/15 rate 2015/16 rate
£0to £13,500 5.5% £0to £13,600 5.5%
£13,501 to £21,000 5.8% £13,601 to £21,200 5.8%
£21,001 to £34,000 6.5% £21,201 to £34,400 6.5%
£34,001 to £43,000 6.8% £34,401 to £43,500 6.8%
£43,001 to £60,000 8.5% £43,501 to £60,700 8.5%
£60,001 to £85,000 9.9% £60,701 to £86,000 9.9%
£85,001 to £100,000 10.5% £86,001 to £101,200 10.5%
£100,001 to £150,000 11.4% £101,201 to £151,800 11.4%
£150,001 or more 12.5% £151,801 or more 12.5%

8. Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC) Investments

The Fund has two AVC providers; Equitable Life and Prudential. The value of employees’ AVC investments is
shown below.

Value at Contributions Investment Return Paid Out Vlaue at

31 March 2015 31 March 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
6,530 633 97 (1,016) 6,244
Value at Contributions Investment Return Paid Out Vlaue at

31 March 2014 31 March 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
5,898 703 467 (538) 6,530

These amounts are not included in the Pension Fund Accounts in accordance with regulation 5(2)(c) of the
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009.

9. Management Expenses

2014/15 2015/16
£000 £000
1,366 Administrative costs 1,523
1,366 1,523

Investment management expenses
10,162 Management fees (a) 7,685
0 Performance fees (a) 551
209 Custody fees 140
263 Transaction costs 3,508
(97) Stock Lending Income & Commission Recapture (94)
25 Other Investment management expenses 50
10,562 11,840

Oversight and governance costs
26 Audit Fees (¢) 29
527 Other Oversight and governance costs 553
553 582
12,481 13,945
Page 124




Agenda Iltem

The majority of current managers’ fees are on a fixed fee basis, calculated using the market value

of the portfolio. The cost of external fund management varies with the value of investments under
management. A small proportion of the current managers’ fees is based on performance and will be
paid where the manager outperforms an agreed target level of return.

The fund’s investment in pooled property funds is via a fund of funds arrangement managed by Aviva.
In addition the diversified growth funds managed by Baillie Gifford and Barings will also invest in
underlying funds. The Devon Pension Fund does not have day to day involvement over the investment
decisions made by Aviva, Baillie Gifford or Barings, and therefore the investment costs incurred by the
underlying funds are not included in the management costs disclosed.

In addition to these costs, indirect costs are incurred through the bid-offer spread on investments sales
and purchases. These are reflected in the cost of investment acquisitions and in the proceeds from the
sales of investments (see Note 15).

Audit fees include an amount of £28,603 (£28,603 as well as an audit fee rebate of £2,940 in
2014/15) in relation to Grant Thornton UK LLP, the auditors appointed by the Audit Commission for
external audit services under the Code of Audit Practice.

10. Agency Services

The Pension Fund pays discretionary awards to the former employees of other bodies The amounts paid are
not included within the Fund Account but are provided as a service and fully reclaimed from the employer
bodies. The sums are disclosed in the following table.

31 March 2015 31 March 2016
£'000 Body £'000
8,686 Payments on behalf of Devon County Council 8,516
1,090 Payments on behalf of Plymouth City Council 1,083

622 Payments on behalf of Torbay Council 617
383 Payments on behalf of Teignbridge District Council 382
341 Payments on behalf of University Of Plymouth 343
279 Payments on behalf of Exeter City Council 279
245 Payments on behalf of North Devon District Council 242
205 Payments on behalf of South Hams District Council 203
268 Payments on behalf of Dorset, Devon and Cornwall Rehabilitation Service 211
103 Payments on behalf of Torridge District Council 104
572 Payments of less than £100,000 on behalf of other bodies 568
12,794 12,548

Page 125

47



48

11. Related Party Transactions

The Devon Pension Fund is administered by Devon County Council. During the reporting period, the
council incurred costs of £1.971m (2014/15: £1.838m) in relation to the administration of the fund and
was subsequently reimbursed by the fund for these expenses. Devon County Council and its employees
contributed £44.979m to the fund in 2015/16 (2014/15: £45.835m). In 2015/16 £3.836m was owed to
the fund (2014/15: £5.190m) and £2.073m was due from the fund (2014/15: £1.917m).

The Investment and Pensions Fund Committee is the decision making body for the fund and Devon County
Council nominates 6 of the 10 voting committee members.

Each member of the pension fund committee is required to declare their interests at each meeting.

In accordance with IAS 24 'Related Party Disclosures’ material transactions with related parties not disclosed
elsewhere are detailed below:

No members of the Investment & Pension Fund Committee receive pension benefits from the Fund.

No senior officers responsible for the administration of the Fund have entered into any contract, other than
their contract of employment with the Council, for the supply of goods or services to the Fund.

12. Key Management personnel

Paragraph 3.9.4.3 of the Code exempts local authorities from the key management personnel disclosure
requirements of IAS 24, on the basis that the disclosure requirements for officer remuneration and
members’ allowances detailed in section 3.4 of the Code (which are derived from the requirements of
Regulation 7(3) of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 and Regulation 7A of the Accounts
and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2005) satisfy the key management personnel disclosure requirements of
paragraph 16 of IAS 24. This applies in equal measure to the accounts of the Devon Pension Fund.

The disclosures required by Regulation 7(3) of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations can be found
on page 74 of the main accounts of Devon County Council and are as follows:

Senior Officers Remuneration
The County Council is required to:

e Name all officers that earn over £150,000 per annum for all or part of a year.

e List all post holders who earn between £50,000 and £150,000 for all or part of a year and who also fit
the following criteria:

o They report directly to the Chief Executive, or;
o They are part of the Councils Senior Management Team, or;

o They hold posts required by statute (the Chief Finance Officer and the Monitoring Officer)

Page 126




Agenda Iltem

The remuneration paid to the Authority’s senior employees is as follows:

Salary, Compensation

Fees and Expenses for loss of Pension
Note Allowances Allowances office contributions Total
£ £ £ £ £
Chief Executive 2015/16 149,995 28,199 178,194
2014/15 149,995 28,199 178,194
Strategic Director - Place 2015/16 129,995 24,439 154,434
2014/15 129,995 24,439 154,434
Strategic Director - People 2015/16 129,995 24,439 154,434
2014/15 129,995 24,439 154,434
County Solicitor 2015/16 105,000 19,740 124,740
2014/15 105,000 19,740 124,740
County Treasurer 2015/16 105,000 19,740 124,740
2014/15 105,000 19,740 124,740
Head of Business Strategy 1 2015/16 98,025 18,429 116,454
& Support 2014/15 75,375 14,171 89,546
Director of Public Health 2015/16 155,630 81 22,255 177,966
2014/15 154,624 198 21,647 176,469

Notes:
1) Salary paid in 2015/16 includes arrears of pay of £11,325 for Salary due in 2014/15

13. Stock Lending

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management & Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 allow the
Fund to lend stock provided that the total value of the securities to be transferred does not exceed 25%

of the total fund value. JP Morgan Worldwide Securities Services acted as custodian for the Fund up to 31
August 2014, and the Northern Trust Company has acted as custodian for the Fund since 1 September
2014. Both were authorised to lend both UK and Overseas stocks. A summary of the stock on loan as at 31
March 2016 is shown below.

31 March 31 March
2015 9% of Fund 2016 % of Fund
£'000 % £'000 %
33,531 1.0 Stock on Loan 25,399 0.8

Collateral

1,367 Cash 10,621

33,946 Securities 16,094

35,313 26,715

Northern Trust is authorised to invest and reinvest all or substantially all cash collateral. The cash collateral
shown in the above table reflects its fair value as at the 31st March. It is not the policy of Northern Trust

or the Devon Pension Fund to sell or repledge collateral held in the form of securities. Such securities are
shown in the above table at fair value as at 31st March. In the event of default by the borrower Northern
Trust will liquidate the non-cash collateral and will repurchase the original lent securities. If this is not
possible (due to liquidity issues), Northern Trust will arrange an acceptable solution with the Devon Pension
Fund.

Page 127

49



14. Investment Management Arrangements

The Pension Fund is currently managed by 8 external managers (8 in 2014/15) and the in-house Investment
Team in the following proportions:

31 March 2015

£'000 % Manager
183,017 5.4 Aberdeen Asset Managers Ltd
146,004 4.3 Aberdeen Asset Managers Ltd
841,488 25.1 State Street Global Advisors Ltd
635,852 18.9 UBS Global Asset Management (UK) Ltd
203,446 6.0 Lazard Asset Management LLC
192,308 5.7 Wellington Management International Ltd
250,031 7.4 Baillie Gifford & Co
246,004 7.3 Baring Asset Management Ltd
345,548 10.3 Aviva Investors Global Services Ltd
318,654 9.6 DCC Investment Team
3,362,352 100

15. Investment Movements and Transactions

The change in market value of investments during the year comprises all increases and decreases in the
market value of investments held at any time during the year, including profits and losses realised on sales

of investments during the year.

Mandate

Global Equity

Global Emerging
Passive Equities
Passive Equities

Global Fixed Interest
Global Fixed Interest
Diversified Growth Fund
Diversified Growth Fund
Property

Specialist Funds

31 March
£'000
174,215
136,970
549,209
876,318
208,203
194,035
247,811
238,268
366,555
330,868

2016
%

N =
OHNNURGO AW

=

3,322,452

OlcoNUIOWRARUIRLRN

[
o

Value at 31 Reclassification Purchases at Sale proceeds Change in Value at 31
March 2015 cost & & Derivative Market March 2016
Derivative Receipts Value
Payments
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Investment Assets
Fixed Interest
U.K. Public Sector Bonds 15,362 0 10,094 (23,348) (127) 1,981
Overseas Government Bonds 177,602 1,020 247,202 (297,361) 560 129,023
Overseas Government Index Linked Bonds 0 0 2,064 (110) 74 2,028
UK Corporate Bonds 16,644 0 421 (9,479) (519) 7,067
Overseas Corporate Bonds 122,222 (1,020) 30,386 (83,706) (1,351) 66,531
Eauities (Listed)
U.K. 33,346 0 4,309 (3,547) (6,023) 28,085
Overseas 264,294 0 41,763 (35,198) (17,190) 253,669
Pooled investments 2,340,286 0 477,746 (345,690) (34,138) 2,438,204
Pooled propertv investments 334,997 0 30,983 (29,937) 22,820 358,863
Derivative contracts
Futures 13 0 0 62 (75) 0
Forward currency contracts 1,400 0 45,746 (41,553) (9,135) (3,542)
Bond Forwards 471 0 14,376 (14,872) 25 0
Foreian Currencv 5,257 0 4,984 (8,461) 376 2,156
Amount receivable for sales of investments 38,446 0 0 (37,215) (351) 880
Amounts pavable for burchases of investments (45,794) 0 44,944 0 375 (475)
3,304,546 0 955,018 (930,415) (44,679) 3,284,470
Other Investment Balances
Short Term Deposits 0 0
Cash Eauivalents 30,258 21,296
Cash & Bank Deposits 22,686 12,168
Investment income due 4,862 4,518
Net investment assets 3,362,352 3,322,452

50

Page 128




Agenda Iltem

Investment Assets Value at 31 Reclassification Purchases at Sale proceeds Changein Value at 31
March 2014 - cost & & Derivative Market March 2015
Restated Derivative Receipts Value
Fixed Interest Payments
U.K. Public Sector Bonds 10,959 0 23,924 (20,996) 1,475 15,362
Overseas Government Bonds 205,791 0 618,049 (652,825) 6,587 177,602
Overseas Government Index Linked Bonds 0 0 25,652 (25,619) (33) 0
UK Corporate Bonds 20,184 0 3,535 (7,230) 155 16,644
Overseas Corporate Bonds 142,478 0 55,222 (80,386) 4,908 122,222
Eauities (Listed)
U.K. 45,924 0 7,655 (16,357) (3,876) 33,346
Overseas 379,345 0 53,902 (198,938) 29,985 264,294
Pooled investments 1,963,965 0 303,194 (130,053) 203,180 2,340,286
Pooled property investments 297,414 0 25,050 (25,384) 37,917 334,997
Derivative contracts
Futures (18) 0 2,254 (1,487) (736) 13
Purchased/written options 0 0 7 (5) (2) 0
Forward currency contracts (701) 0 34,740 (34,680) 2,041 1,400
Bond Forwards 19 0 68,966 (68,216) (298) 471
Foreign Currency 6,363 0 14,745 (15,469) (382) 5,257
Amount receivable for sales of investments 3,771 0 0 34,307 368 38,446
Amounts payable for purchases of investments (22,257) 0 (23,123) 0 (414) (45,794)
3,053,237 0 1,213,772 (1,243,338) 280,875 3,304,546
Other Investment Balances
Short Term Deposits 5,750 0
Cash Equivalents 29,221 30,258
Cash & Bank Deposits 30,907 22,686
Investment income due 8,615 4,862
Net investment assets 3,127,730 3,362,352

16. Analysis of Pooled Funds

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000
UK

541,307  Unit Trusts 583,657

294,271  Property Funds 308,845

635,852 Unitised Insurance Policies 611,454

148,896  Other Managed Funds (Equities) 149,143
Overseas

143,199  Unit Trusts 105,695

40,726  Property Funds 50,018

0  Unitised Insurance Policies 264,864

811,212  Other Managed Funds (Equities) 530,141

59,820  Other Managed Funds (Fixed Interest) 193,250

2,675,283 Total Pooled Funds 2,797,067

Page 129 51



52

17. Analysis of Fund Assets

The following analysis is provided to comply with CIPFA guidance on preparing the annual report, to
provide a consistent analysis across LGPS funds to assist in the production of the scheme annual report
compiled by the LGPS scheme advisory board.

2015/16

Equities

Bonds

Alternatives

Cash and cash equivalents
Other

Total

2014/15

Equities

Bonds

Alternatives

Cash and cash equivalents
Other

Total

UK Non UK Global Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
811,748 818,028 266,447 1,896,223
9,048 197,583 193,250 399,881
381,775 50,018 67,934 499,727
38,387 2,156 0 40,543

0 0 486,078 486,078
1,240,958 1,067,785 1,013,709 3,322,452
UK Non UK Global Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
835,816 963,907 188,957 1,988,680
32,006 299,824 59,820 391,650
320,022 40,726 69,524 430,272
50,458 5,257 0 55,715

0 0 496,035 496,035
1,238,302 1,309,714 814,336 3,362,352

18. Analysis of Investment Income

The following analysis is provided to comply with CIPFA guidance on preparing the annual report, to
provide a consistent analysis across LGPS funds to assist in the production of the scheme annual report
compiled by the LGPS scheme advisory board.

2015/16

Equities

Bonds

Alternatives

Cash and cash equivalents
Other

Total

2014/15

Equities

Bonds

Alternatives

Cash and cash equivalents
Other

Total

UK Non UK Global Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
1,055 6,384 0 7,439

850 8,433 0 9,283

12,573 2,529 2,847 17,949
1,072 0 0 1,072
0 0 0 0
15,550 17,346 2,847 35,743

UK Non UK Global Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
1,727 8,370 36 10,133
1,148 10,141 0 11,289

10,761 661 3,022 14,444

763 0 0 763

0 0 0 0
14,399 19,172 3,058 36,629
Page 130




19. Derivative Contracts

Derivative receipts and payments represent the realised gains and losses on futures contracts. The scheme’s
objective is to decrease the risk in the portfolio by entering into future positions to match current assets

that are already held in the portfolio without disturbing the underlying assets.

Agenda Iltem

There are no future contracts or bond forwards held as at 31 March 2016. This is a result of the decision to
transfer the assets managed by Wellington Management from a segregated mandate to a pooled fund.

Futures
Position at 31 March Position at 31 March
2015 2016
Economic Market Expiration Economic Market
exposure value Period exposure value
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
INVESTMENT ASSETS
Futures
0 0 UK Fixed Interest < 1 Year 0 0
14,507 69 Overseas Fixed Interest < 1 Year 0 0
14,507 69 Total Assets 0 0
INVESTMENT LIABILITIES
Futures
(604) 0 UK Fixed Interest < 1 Year 0 0
(17,461) (56) Overseas Fixed Interest < 1 Year 0 0
(18,065) (56) Total Liabilities 0 0
(3,558) 13 Futures Total 0 0

Notes:

Futures. A futures contract is a standardised contract between two parties to buy or sell a specified asset
of standardised quantity and quality at a specified future date at a price agreed on a given day (the futures
price). The contracts are traded on a futures exchange. The economic exposure values futures on a ‘gross
basis’ showing the total exposure to the underlying asset class that the future affects as if the change in

asset allocation in the underlying asset class has taken place.

Page 131

53



54

Bond Forwards

Position at Position at
31 March 31 March
2015 2016
Market Expiration Market
value Period value
£'000 £'000
INVESTMENT ASSETS
Bond Forwards
1,265 UK Bond Forwards < 1 Year 0
1,000 Overseas Bond Forwards < 1 Year 0
2,265 Total Assets 0
INVESTMENT LIABILITIES
Bond Forwards
(632) UK Bond Forwards < 1 Year 0
(1,162) Overseas Bond Forwards < 1 Year 0
(1,794) Total Liabilities 0
471 Total Bond Forwards 0

Notes:

Bond Forwards. A bond forward is an agreement whereby a counterparty agrees to trade a specified

amount of a bond at a specified price on a future date.

Page 132




Agenda Iltem

Forward Currency Contracts

Settlements Currency bought Local value Currency sold Local value Asset value Liability value
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Up to one month IDR 210,164 GBP 11 0 0
Up to one month GBP 3 PHP (231) 0 0
Up to one month usD 1,713 CLP (1,239,977) 0 (98)
One to six months MYR 5,345 usD (1,293) 61 0
One to six months AUD 1,204 GBP (587) 56 0
One to six months GBP 9,956 AUD (20,418) 0 (950)
One to six months GBP 8,281 NZD (18,182) 0 (481)
One to six months NzZD 352 GBP (160) 10 0
One to six months EUR 9,626 GBP (7,501) 140 0
One to six months GBP 4,262 HUF (1,704,985) 0 (37)
One to six months CZK 5,854 GBP (169) 3 0
One to six months GBP 10,951 NOK  (135,317) 0 (427)
One to six months SEK 17,074 GBP (1,409) 58 0
One to six months GBP 5,719 PLN (32,293) 0 (313)
One to six months GBP 8,449 CAD (16,546) 0 (450)
One to six months CAD 1,161 GBP (586) 39 0
One to six months GBP 8,738 MXN  (236,843) 0 (837)
One to six months GBP 4,875 SGD (9,822) 0 (198)
One to six months GBP 58,812 usD (83,989) 388 4)
One to six months JPY 2,506,749 GBP (15,428) 108 0
One to six months usD 3,200 JPY (364,710) 0 (34)
One to six months MXN 79,457 usD (4,348) 188 0
One to six months SEK 13,813 usD (1,630) 53 0
One to six months usb 4,280 EUR (3,876) 0 (99)
One to six months usD 6,801 GBP (4,759) 0 (28)
One to six months usD 3,090 CLP (2,107,484) 0 (26)
One to six months HUF 178,792 GBP (447) 4 0
Up to one month GBP 415 HUF  (165,927) 0 (4)
Up to one month CLP 1,239,977 ush (1,815) 26 0
One to six months KRW 2,802,294 ushD (2,315) 101 0
One to six months JPY 727,580 usD (6,463) 13 0
One to six months usD 8,385 PHP  (396,028) 0 (153)
One to six months GBP 1,634 EUR (2,106) 0 (37)
One to six months usbD 2,993 CAD (3,998) 0 68)
One to six months usD 4,343 MXN (78,224) 0 (141)
One to six months usD 1,467 NOK (12,569) 0 (36)
One to six months EUR 4,180 ushD (4,740) 21 0
Up to one month GBP 13,820 EUR (18,105) 0 (540)
Up to one month GBP 34,508 ushD (49,385) 150 0
Open forward currency contracts at 31 March 2016 1,419 (4,961)
Net forward currency contracts at 31 March 2016 (3,542)
Prior year comparative:
Open forward currency contracts at 31 March 2015 4,244 (2,844)
Net forward currency contracts at 31 March 2015 1,400
Notes:

Forward Currency Contract. A forward contract (o e%ogé uie?{% is a non-standardized contract
between two parties to buy or sell an asset at a sp t e at a price agreed today. 55



20. Current Assets and Liabilities

The Analysis of Current Assets and Liabilities does not include purchases and sales of investments not yet
due for settlement or investment income due. They are included within net investment assets and liabilities.
Current assets and liabilities are valued at the fair value approximation of historical cost. Current assets and

liabilities are all short term and there is no active market in which they are traded.

a) Analysis by nature of asset or liability

31 March

2015
£000

Current Assets
Debtors and Prepayments
Contributions Receivable

10,234 Employers
Current portion of non current assets
3,008 (Employers contributions)
2,828 Employees

0 Interest on Cash & Bank Deposits
3,608 Other debtors
19,678

Current Liabilities

Creditors and Receipts in Advance
(1,917) Devon County Council
(4,853) Other creditors
(6,770)

b) Analysis by type of debtor or creditor

31 March

2015
£000

Current Debtors
4,599 Central Government Bodies
12,912 Other Local Authorities
25 NHS Bodies
1 Public Corporations and Trading Funds

2,141 Bodies external to general Government
19,678

Current Creditors
(1,492) Central Government Bodies
(2,029) Other Local Authorities
0 NHS Bodies

(3,249) Bodies external to general Government
(6,770)

56 Page 134

31 March

2016
£000

10,136

3,008
2,857

55
3,362

19,418

(2,073)
(3,650)

(5,723)

31 March

2016
£000

4,915
12,473
73

0
1,957

19,418

(1,561)
(2,114)

(1)
(2,047)

(5,723)




21. Non-Current Assets and Liabilities

Agenda Item

At 31 March 2005 all staff employed by the Devon & Cornwall Magistrates Courts Service who were
members of the Devon (LGPS) Fund transferred to the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS). No
further contributions were received from that employer. All affected staff subsequently had 12 months

to elect whether to leave their accrued pension entitlement with the Devon Fund (as a deferred benefit)

or transfer their ‘pension pot’ to the PCSPS. Under the transfer protocol issued by the Department for
Constitutional Affairs the total capital payment of £15.04 millions due to the Devon Pension Fund would
be repaid in ten annual instalments of £1.504 millions. The first instalment was received during 2011/12.
The 2015/16 instalment was received in April 2016 and is included within current assets (Other debtors).
The next instalment is disclosed as part of current assets with the remaining 4 instalments disclosed as part
of long term assets. The deferred income is disclosed as part of long term creditors.

a) Analysis by nature of asset or liability

31 March

2015
£000

Non Current Assets

Debtors and Prepayments
8,190 Contributions Receivable - Employers
8,190

Non Current Liabilities
Creditors and Receipts in Advance
(9,024) Deferred Income
(9,024)

b) Analysis by type of debtor or creditor

31 March

2015
£000

Non current Debtors
7,520 Central Government Bodies
515 Other Local Authorities
___ 155 Bodies external to general Government
8,190

Non current Creditors

(9,024) central Government Bodies
(9,024)

Page 135

31 March

2016
£000

7,288

7,288

(7,520)

(7,520)

31 March

2016
£000

6,161
1,032
95

7,288

(7,520)

(7,520)

57



58

22. Funded Obligation

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits (the Funded Obligation) amounts to £5,744

millions as at 31 March 2016 (£5,965 millions as at 31 March 2015). The Funded Obligation consists of

£5,513 millions (£5,220 millions as at 31 March 2015) in respect of Vested Obligation and £231 millions
(£745 millions as at 31 March 2015), of Non-Vested Obligation.

These figures have been prepared by the Fund Actuary (Barnett Waddingham LLP) in accordance with
their understanding of IAS 26. In calculating the disclosed numbers the Actuary has adopted methods and
assumptions that are consistent with IAS 19.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Valuation Approach

To assess the value of the Fund’s liabilities at 31 March 2016, the actuary has rolled forward the value of
Fund’s liabilities calculated for the funding valuation as at 31 March 2013, using financial assumptions that
comply with 1AS19.

The full actuarial valuation involved projecting future cashflows to be paid from the Fund and placing a
value on them. These cashflows include pensions currently being paid to members of the Fund as well as
pensions (and lump sums) that may be payable in future to members of the Fund or their dependants.
These pensions are linked to inflation and will normally be payable on retirement for the life of the member
or a dependant following a member’s death.

It is not possible to assess the accuracy of the estimated liability as at 31 March 2016 without completing
a full valuation. However, we are satisfied that the approach of rolling forward the previous valuation data
to 31 March 2016 should not introduce any material distortions in the results provided that the actual
experience of the Fund has been broadly in line with the underlying assumptions, and that the structure
of the liabilities is substantially the same as at the latest formal valuation. From the information we have
received there appears to be no evidence that this approach is inappropriate.

Demographic/Statistical Assumptions

The Actuary has adopted a set of demographic assumptions that are consistent with those used for the
funding valuation as at 31 March 2013. The post retirement mortality tables adopted are the S1PA tables
with a multiplier of 100% for males and 90% for females. These base tables are then projected using the
CMI 2012 Model, allowing for a long term rate of improvement of 1.5% per annum.

The assumed life expectations from age 65 are:

Life Expectancy from 65 (years) 31 March 2015 31 March 2016
Retiring Today
Males 22.8 22.9
Females 26.1 26.2
Retiring in 20 years
Males 25.1 25.2
Females 28.4 28.6

The Actuary has also made the following assumptions:
e Members will exchange half of their commutable pension for cash at retirement;

e Members will retire at one retirement age for all tranches of benefit, which will be the pension
weighted average tranche retirement age

e 10% of active members will take up the option under the new LGPS to pay 50% of contributions for
50% of benefits.

Page 136



Agenda Iltem

Financial Assumptions
The financial assumptions used for the purposes of the calculations are as follows:

Assumptions as at 31 March 2016 31 March 2015 31 March 2014

% p.a Real* % p.a Real* % p.a Real*
RPI Increases 3.3% - 3.2% 0.0% 3.6% 0.0%
CPI Increases 24%  -09% 2.4% -0.8% 2.8% -0.8%
Salary Increases 4.2% 0.9% 4.2% 1.0% 4.6% 1.0%
Pension Increases 24%  -0.9% 2.4% -0.8% 2.8% -0.8%
Discount rate 3.7% 0.4% 3.3% 0.1% 4.5% 0.9%

*Relative to RPI
These assumptions are set with reference to market conditions at 31 March 2016.

The Actuary’s estimate of the duration of the Fund’s liabilities is 19 years. The duration is the average time
to payment of the benefits, weighted by the value of each payment.

The discount rate is the annualised yield at the 19 year point on the Merrill Lynch AA rated corporate bond
curve which has been chosen to meet the requirements of IAS19 and with consideration of the duration of
the Fund’s liabilities. This is consistent with the approach used at the last accounting date.

The Retail Prices Index (RPI) increase assumption is set based on the difference between conventional gilt
yields and index-linked gilt yields at the accounting date using data published by the Bank of England (BoE),
specifically the 19 year point on the BoE market implied inflation curve. The RPI assumption is therefore
3.3% p.a. This is consistent with the approach used at the last accounting date.

As future pension increases are expected to be based on the Consumer Prices Index (CPI) rather than RPI,
the Actuary has made a further assumption about CPI which is that it will be 0.9% p.a. below RPIi.e. 2.4%
p.a. This is a slightly higher differential than last year. The Actuary believes that this is a reasonable estimate
for the future differences in the indices, based on the different calculation methods and recent independent
forecasts.

Salaries are assumed to increase at 1.8% p.a. above CPI in addition to a promotional scale.

Settlements

As a result of members transferring to another Fund over the year, liabilities have been settled at a cost
different to the accounting reserve. The capitalised gain of this settlement is £879,000.

23. Taxation

Value Added Tax The Fund is reimbursed by H.M.Revenue & Customs, and the accounts are shown
exclusive of this tax.

Income Tax The Pension Fund is an exempt fund, and where permitted U.K tax on interest and
dividends is recovered from H.M.Revenue & Customs. The Pension Fund cannot reclaim
the 10% tax credit attached to U.K. company dividends which are included net of the
tax credit.

Withholding Tax This is payable on income from overseas investments. This tax is recovered wherever
local tax law permits.

Page 137 59



24. Financial Instrument Disclosures

The Net Assets of the Fund disclosed in the Net Asset Statement are made up of the following categories of
financial instruments:

Fair value Loans Financial Fair value Loans Financial
through and liabilities through and liabilities
profit and receivables at profit and receivables at
loss amortised loss amortised
cost cost
2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial assets
331,830 0 0 Fixed Interest 206,631 0 0
297,640 0 0 Equities ( Listed ) 281,754 0 0
2,340,286 0 0 Pooled investments 2,438,204 0 0
334,997 0 0 Pooled property investments 358,863 0 0
6,578 0 0 Derivative contracts 1,418 0 0
0 58,201 0 Cash 0 35,620 0
43,308 0 0 Other investment balances 5,398 0 0
0 27,868 0 Debtors 0 26,706 0
3,354,639 86,069 V] 3,292,268 62,326 V]
Financial Liabilities
(4,694) 0 0 Derivative contracts (4,961) 0 0
0 0 (45,794) Other investment balances 0 0 (475)
0 0 (15,794) Creditors 0 0 (13,243)
(4,694) V] (61,588) (4,961) V] (13,718)
3,349,945 86,069 (61,588) 3,287,307 62,326 (13,718)

As all investments are disclosed at fair value, carrying value and fair value are therefore the same.

The gains and losses recognised in the Fund Account in relation to financial instruments are made up as
follows:

31 March 2015 31 March 2016

£000 £000
Financial assets

324,830 Fair value throuah profit and loss (10,142)

749 Loans and receivables 1,096

325,579 (9,046)
Financial liabilities

(7,660) Fair value through profit and loss (265)

(415) Loans and receivables 375

(8,075) 110

The total changes in fair value represent unrealised profit or loss. The difference in unrealised profit / (loss)
figures between 2014/15 and 2015/16 reflects the prevailing economic conditions during each of the two
years and the impact on the specific assets held by the Fund.

60 Page 138



Agenda Iltem

25. Additional Financial Risk Management Disclosures

The activities of the Pension Fund are exposed to a variety of financial risks; market risk (price risk, currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Fund’s investments are managed on behalf of scheme members by the Investment Managers. Each
investment manager is required to invest the assets managed by them in accordance with the terms of a
written investment mandate or duly authorised prospectus.

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee has determined that appointment of these managers is
appropriate for the Fund and is in accordance with its investment strategy.

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee obtains regular reports from each investment manager on
the nature of the investments made and associated risks.

The Fund is exposed to interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk due to its underlying assets and
liabilities. The analysis below is provided to meet the disclosure requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments
disclosures and should not be used for any other purpose. The analysis is not intended to constitute advice
and is not guaranteed.

Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. The Fund is exposed, particularly through its equity portfolio, to
market risk influencing investment valuations. In addition to the effects of movements in interest rates,

the Fund is exposed to currency risk and other price risk. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on
risk.

In general, excessive volatility in market risk is managed through the diversification of the portfolio in
terms of exposure to different markets through different Investment Managers. Risk of exposure to specific
markets is limited by applying strategic targets to asset allocation, which are monitored by the Investment
and Pension Fund Committee.

Other Price Risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign exchange risk), whether
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all
instruments in the market.

The Fund is exposed to price risk which arises from investments for which the prices in the future are
uncertain. All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital, the maximum risk resulting from
financial instruments is determined by the fair value of the financial instruments. The investment managers
mitigate this risk through diversification in line with their own investment strategies.

Other Price Risk - Sensitivity Analysis

Following analysis of data from WM Performance Services, it has been determined that the following
movements in market price risk were reasonably possible for the 2015/16 reporting period:

Percentage Percentage

Change Change
Asset Class 2014/15 2015/16
Equities 9.14% 9.50%
Bonds 6.93% 6.00%
Cash 0.01% 0.01%
Pooled Property Investments 3.00% 2.59%
Infrastructure 12.61% 8.85%
Pooled Multi Asset 3.95% 4.97%

Page 139 61



62

A price change disclosed above is broadly consistent with a one-standard deviation movement in the value
of the assets based on movements over the previous 3 years. This analysis assumes that all other variables,

in particular foreign currency exchange rates, and interest rates remain constant.

An increase or decrease in the market price of the investments of the Fund by the percentages given at 31

March would have increased or decreased the net assets available to pay benefits by the amount shown

below:

As at 31 March 2016

Value
Asset Class £'000
Equities 1,896,223
Bonds 399,881
Cash 37,000
Pooled Property Investments 358,863
Infrastructure 144,407
Pooled Multi Asset 486,078
Total 3,322,452

As at 31 March 2015

Value
Asset Class £'000
Equities 1,988,680
Bonds 391,650
Cash 57,599
Pooled Property Investments 334,997
Infrastructure 93,391
Pooled Multi Asset 496,035
Total 3,362,352

Interest Rate Risk

The Fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaining a return on investments on behalf
of scheme members. These investments are subject to interest rate risks, which represent the risk that the
fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest

rates.

Percentage
Change
9.50%
6.00%
0.01%
2.59%
8.85%
4.97%

Percentage
Change
9.14%
6.93%
0.01%
3.00%
12.61%
3.95%

Increase Decrease
£'000 £'000
180,141 (180,141)
23,993 (23,993)

4 (4)

9,295 (9,295)
12,780 (12,780)
24,158 (24,158)
250,371 (250,371)
Increase Decrease
£'000 £'000
181,765 181,765
27,141 27,141

6 6

10,050 10,050
11,777 11,777
19,593 19,593
250,332 250,332

Interest rates are monitored during the year, both by the Fund’s Investment Managers and by the Devon
County Council Investments team. Short term deposits are made at fixed rates and monitored against a
target rate for the year, with the aim of maximising interest within risk parameters set by the Investment

and Pension Fund Committee.

The Fund’s exposure to interest rate movements on those investments at 31 March 2015 and 2016 are
provided below. These disclosures present interest rate risk based on underlying financial assets (at fair

value).

As at 31 As at 31
March 2015 March 2016
£'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 52,944 33,464
Fixed Interest 391,650 399,881
Total 444,594 433,345

Page 140




Agenda Iltem

Interest Rate Risk - Sensitivity Analysis

Interest rates vary and can impact on the value of the net assets available to pay benefits to scheme
members. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain
constant.

The sensitivity of bond prices to interest rate changes depends upon both the maturity of the fixed interest
security and the size and frequency of its coupon payments. Duration is used to measure interest rate risk
and is the weighted average maturity of a bond, where the weights are the relative discounted cash flows
in each period. Duration can then be adapted with reference to the yield of a bond to calculate modified
duration, which is the percentage change in a bond’s price for a 1% change in yields. Modified duration
can be calculated for a portfolio of bonds, and modified duration figures have been provided by the
Devon Pension Fund's two bond managers (Lazard and Wellington) for the portfolios that they manage. A
weighted average has been used in the tables below.

An increase or decrease of 1% in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased or decreased the
change for the year in net assets available to pay benefits by the amount shown below:

Carrying Modified
value at 31 Duration of
As at 31 March 2016 March 2016 Portfolio Effect on Asset Values
+1% -1%
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 33,464 - - -
Fixed Interest 399,881 3.86% (15,435) 15,435
Total 433,345 3.86% (15,435) 15,435
Carrying Modified
value at 31 Duration of
As at 31 March 2015 March 2015 Portfolio Effect on Asset Values
+1% -1%
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 52,944 - - -
Fixed Interest 331,830 4.69% (15,563) 15,563
Total 384,774 4.69% (15,563) 15,563
Amount

receivable in
year ending

31 March
As at 31 March 2016 2016 Effect on Income Values
+1% -1%
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 1,072 11 (11)
Fixed Interest 9,638 - -
Total 10,710 11 (11)
Amount

receivable in
year ending

31 March

As at 31 March 2015 2015 Effect on Income Values
+1% -1%
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 726 7 (7)
Short term Deposits 37 0 (0)
Fixed Interest 11,443 - -
Total 12,206 7 (7)

Page 141



64

This analysis demonstrates that a 1% increase in interest rates will not affect the interest received on fixed
interest assets but will reduce their fair value, and vice versa. Changes in interest rates do not impact on
the value of cash/cash equivalent or short term deposit balances but they will affect the interest income
received on those balances. Changes to both the fair value of assets and the income received from
investments impact on the net assets available to pay benefits.

Currency Risk and Sensitivity Analysis

Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund is exposed to currency risk on financial
instruments that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency (Pound Sterling) of
the Fund. The Fund holds both monetary and non-monetary assets denominated in currencies other than
Pounds Sterling.

The following table summarises:

a. The Fund's exposure at 31 March 2016 to currency exchange rate movements on its investments based
on movements over the previous 3 years.

b. A sensitivity analysis based on historical data (provided by WM Performance Services) of the likely
volatility associated with foreign currency rate movements (as measured by one standard deviation).
A strengthening or weakening of the pound against the various currencies by one standard deviation
(measured in percentages) at 31 March 2016 would have increased or decreased the change for the
year in net assets available to pay benefits by the amount shown. These changes in the currencies
are considered to be reasonable based on historical movements in exchange rates over the past three
years.

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Page 142



Assets

held at fair FX Percentage

As at 31 March 2016 value Contracts Total Change
£'000 £'000 £'000
Australian Dollar 13,794 (892) 12,902 9.26%
Brazilian Real 8,115 0 8,115 13.89%
Canadian Dollar 21,204 (412) 20,792 7.89%
Swiss Franc 16,984 0 16,984 9.95%
Chilean Peso 2,183 26 2,209 9.22%
Czech Republic Koruna 162 3 165 7.96%
Danish Krona 463 0 463 6.83%
Euro 169,080 (417) 168,663 6.77%
Hong Kong Dollar 24,976 0 24,976 7.67%
Hungarian Forint 5,761 (37) 5,724 8.75%
Indonesian Rupiah 6,539 0 6,539 12.46%
Indian Rupee 2,036 0 2,036 10.28%
Israeli Shekel 157 0 157 6.58%
Japanese Yen 26,930 121 27,051 11.68%
South Korean Won 10,376 101 10,477 7.22%
Mexican Peso 15,242 (649) 14,593 8.25%
Malaysian Ringit 2,725 61 2,786 10.24%
Norwegian Krone 12,738 (427) 12,311 9.40%
New Zealand Dollar 9,308 (471) 8,837 11.02%
Philipines Peso 12,657 0 12,657 7.84%
Polish Zloty New 9,296 (313) 8,983 8.39%
Swedish Krone 2,939 111 3,050 7.65%
Singapore Dollars 7,502 (198) 7,304 6.17%
Thailand Baht 8,076 0 8,076 8.39%
New Turkish Lira 6,682 0 6,682 10.78%
New Taiwan Dollar 7,917 0 7,917 6.59%
US Dollars 381,416 (150) 381,266 7.78%
South African Rand 10,301 0 10,301 10.31%
795,559 3,543 792,016
Page 143

Agenda Item

Change for the year

in net assets available
to pay benefits
+ 1 -1 Standard
Standard Deviation
Deviation

£'000 £'000
1,195 (1,195)
1,127 (1,127)
1,640 (1,640)
1,689 (1,689)
204 (204)
13 (13)
32 (32)
11,422 (11,422)
1,916 (1,916)
501 (501)
814 (814)
209 (209)
10 (10)
3,159 (3,159)
756 (756)
1,204 (1,204)
285 (285)
1,158 (1,158)
974 (974)
992 (992)
754 (754)
233 (233)
451 (451)
678 (678)
720 (720)
522 (522)
29,674 (29,674)
1,062 (1,062)
63,394 (63,394)

65



66

As at 31 March 2015

Australian Dollar
Brazilian Real
Canadian Dollar
Swiss Franc
Chinese Yuan
Colombian Peso
Czech Republic Koruna
Danish Krona

Euro

Hong Kong Dollar
Hungarian Forint
Indonesian Rupiah
Israeli Shekel
Japanese Yen
South Korean Won
Mexican Peso
Malaysian Ringit
Norwegian Krone
New Zealand Dollar
Peruvian Sol
Philipines Peso
Polish Zloty New
Swedish Krone
Singapore Dollars
Thailand Baht

New Turkish Lira
New Taiwan Dollar
US Dollars

South African Rand

Assets
held at fair FX
value Contracts Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
14,270 (151) 14,119
8,007 (4) 8,003
25,135 (90) 25,045
22,130 638 22,768
6,091 0 6,091
1,877 (1) 1,876
2,150 34 2,184
1,750 7 1,757
142,598 80 142,678
26,965 0 26,965
1,677 0 1,677
4,465 0 4,465
157 (2) 155
26,572 736 27,308
11,359 2 11,361
12,727 (189) 12,538
6,558 0 6,558
12,915 268 13,183
12,016 (365) 11,651
4,171 (1) 4,170
13,532 0 13,532
6,825 (47) 6,778
11,801 (29) 11,772
5,964 (26) 5,938
8,385 0 8,385
6,437 (115) 6,322
8,083 0 8,083
369,525 655 370,180
12,199 (1) 12,198
786,341 1,399 787,740
Page 144

Percentage
Change

8.87%
11.70%
6.65%
9.34%
7.73%
8.69%
7.51%
6.20%
6.15%
7.74%
10.02%
11.65%
7.10%
11.03%
6.62%
9.42%
7.32%
8.64%
9.20%
6.98%
7.85%
8.39%
7.31%
5.89%
8.09%
9.85%
6.62%
7.78%
10.72%

Change for the year
in net assets available

to pay benefits
+ 1 -1 Standard
Standard Deviation

Deviation

£'000 £'000
1,253 (1,253)
936 (936)
1,666 (1,666)
2,127 (2,127)
471 (471)
163 (163)
164 (164)
109 (109)
8,774 (8,774)
2,087 (2,087)
168 (168)
520 (520)
11 (11)
3,011 (3,011)
752 (752)
1,181 (1,181)
480 (480)
1,139 (1,139)
1,072 (1,072)
291 (291)
1,062 (1,062)
569 (569)
860 (860)
350 (350)
678 (678)
623 (623)
535 (535)
28,800 (28,800)
1,308 (1,308)
61,160 (61,160)




Credit Risk

Agenda Iltem

Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to the financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the Pension Fund to incur a financial loss. Market prices generally incorporate credit
assessments into valuations and risk of loss is implicitly provided for in the carrying value of the financial

assets and liabilities as they are marked to market.

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2015 2016

£'000 £'000

Fixed Interest 331,830 206,631
UK Equities - Quoted 33,346 28,085
Overseas Equities - Quoted 264,294 253,669
Pooled investments 2,340,286 2,438,204
Pooled property investments 334,997 358,863
Derivatives (net) 1,884 (3,543)
Foreign currency 5,257 2,156
Short term deposits 0 0
Cash and cash equivalents 52,944 33,464
Settlements and dividends receivable 43,308 5,398
Total of investments held 3,408,146 3,322,927

The net market value of financial assets represents the Fund’s exposure to credit risk in relation to those
assets. For derivative positions the credit risk is equal to the net market value of positive (asset) derivative
positions.

The selection of high quality counterparties, brokers and financial institutions minimises credit risk that may
occur through the failure to settle transactions in a timely manner. The Fund’s exposure to concentrations
of credit risk to individual counterparties comprises of assets that are invested by individual investment
managers and in specific investment trusts. The contractual credit risk is represented by the net payment

or receipt that remains outstanding, and the cost of replacing the derivative position in the event of a
counterparty default.

Credit risk on exchange traded derivative contracts is minimal due to the various insurance policies held by
the exchanges to cover defaulting counterparties.

Interest rate agreements and foreign exchange contracts are subject to credit risk in relation to the relevant
counterparties, which are principally large banks. The maximum credit risk exposure on foreign currency
contracts is the full amount of the foreign currency the Fund pays when settlement occurs, should the
counterparty fail to pay the amount which it is committed to pay the Fund.

The Fund's exposure to credit risk at 31 March 2016 is the carrying amount of the financial assets.

The Pension Fund believes it has managed its exposure to credit risk, and has had no experience of default
or uncollectable deposits over the past five financial years. The Fund’s cash holding (short term deposits and
cash equivalents) under its treasury management arrangements at 31 March 2016 was £21.296 millions
(31 March 2015: £30.258 millions). This was held with the following institutions:

Credit Rating at 31 March 2016 Balances as Balances as
Standard at 31 March at 31 March

Fitch Moody's & Poor's 2015 2016
£'000 £'000
Banks and Building Societies
Barclays Bank A A2 A- 30,000 0
Handelsbanken AA- Aa2 AA- 258 21,296
30,258 21,296
Page 145

67



68

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall

due. In assessing each individual investment, a key consideration is to ensure that the liability of the Fund is
limited to the amount of the investment in the asset.

The liquidity risks associated with the need to pay members’ benefits are mitigated by maintaining a pool
of cash. As this pool reduces other strategies will be developed to eliminate this risk. In the first instance,
income from investments, now held and reinvested by fund managers, will be used to meet liquidity
shortfall.

All the Fund’s financial liabilities fall due within 12 months with the exception of the payments due from
the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS) (see note 21). Under the transfer protocol issued by the
Department for Constitutional Affairs the capital payments due to the Pension Fund will be repaid in ten
annual instalments of £1.504m. The first instalment was received during 2011/12. The 2015/16 instalment
was received in April 2016 and is included within current assets. The next instalment is disclosed as part of
current assets with the remaining 4 instalments disclosed as part of long term assets.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The valuation of financial instruments has been classified into three levels, according to the quality and
reliability of information used to determine fair values.

Level 1

Financial instruments at Level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as level 1 comprise quoted equities,
quoted fixed securities, quoted index linked securities and unit trusts.

Listed investments are shown at bid prices. The bid value of the investment is based on the bid market
guotation of the relevant stock exchange.

Level 2

Financial instruments at Level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available; for example, where
an instrument is traded in a market that is not considered to be active, or where valuation techniques

are used to determine fair value and where these techniques use inputs that are based significantly on
observable market data.

Level 3
Financial instruments at Level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a significant effect on
the instrument’s valuation is not based on observable market data.

The UBS International Infrastructure Fund LLP, the Hermes GPE Infrastructure Fund LLP and the Aviva
Investors REaLM Infrastructure Fund in 2015/16 and the UBS International Infrastructure Fund LLP and the
Hermes GPE Infrastructure Fund LLP in 2014/15, have been classified as level 3 financial instruments.

The values of the investments in infrastructure funds are based on valuations provided by the fund
managers. These valuations are prepared in accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture
Capital Valuation Guidelines, which follow the valuation principles of IFRS and US GAAP. Valuations are
usually undertaken annually at the end of December. Cash flow adjustments are used to roll forward the
valuations to 31 March as appropriate.

The total amount of the change in fair value calculated based on these valuations that was recognised in
the Fund Account is detailed below:

2014/15 2015/16

£'000 £'000

UBS International Infrastructure Fund LLP 1,296 (1,644)
Hermes GPE Infrastructure Fund LLP 579 2,932
Aviva Investors REalLM Infrastructure Fund - (320)
1,875 968

Page 146




Agenda Iltem

The following table provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the pension fund grouped
into Levels 1 to 3, based on the level at which the fair value is observable.

At 31 March 2016

Quoted Using With
market price observable Significant
inputs unobservable
inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Investment Assets
Fixed Interest
U.K. Public Sector Bonds 1,981 - - 1,981
Overseas Government Bonds 129,023 - - 129,023
Overseas Government Index Linked Bonds 2,029 - - 2,029
UK Corporate Bonds 7,067 - - 7,067
Overseas Corporate Bonds 66,531 - - 66,531
Equities ( Listed )
U.K. 28,085 - - 28,085
Overseas 253,669 - - 253,669
Pooled investments 689,352 1,672,363 76,489 2,438,204
Pooled property investments - 358,863 - 358,863
Derivative Assets
Futures - UK Fixed Interest - - - -
Futures - Overseas Fixed Interest - - - -
UK Bond Forwards - - - -
Overseas Bond Forwards - 0 - -
Options - - - -
Forward Currency Contracts - 1,418 - 1,418
Cash Deposits
Foreign Currency - 2,156 - 2,156
Short Term Deposits - - - -
Cash Equivalents - 21,296 21,296
Cash & Bank Deposits 12,168 - - 12,168
Investment income due 4,518 - - 4,518
Amounts receivable for sales 880 - - 880
Investment Liabilities - - -
Derivatives - - - -
Futures - UK Fixed Interest - - - -
Futures - Overseas Fixed Interest - 0 - -
UK Bond Forwards - 0 - -
Overseas Bond Forwards - 0 - -
Forward Currency Contracts - (4,961) - (4,961)
Amounts payable for purchases (475) - - (475)
Assets and Liabilities - - -
Non current Assets 7,288 - - 7,288
Non current Liabilities (7,520) - - (7,520)
Current Assets 19,418 - - 19,418
Current Liabilities (5,723) - - (5,723)
Net Assets of the Fund at 31 March 2016 1,208,291 2,051,135 76,489 3,335,915

Page 147 69



70

At 31 March 2015

With
Using Significant
Quoted observable unobservable
market price inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Investment Assets
Fixed Interest
U.K. Public Sector Bonds 15,362 - - 15,362
Overseas Government Index Linked Bonds - - - -
Overseas Government Bonds 177,602 - - 177,602
UK Corporate Bonds 16,644 - - 16,644
Overseas Corporate Bonds 122,222 - - 122,222
Equities ( Listed ) -
U.K. 33,346 - - 33,346
Overseas 264,294 - - 264,294
Pooled investments 684,506 1,655,780 - 2,340,286
Pooled property investments - 279,220 55,777 334,997
Derivative Assets
Futures - UK Fixed Interest - - - -
Futures - Overseas Fixed Interest - 69 - 69
UK Bond Forwards - 1,265 - 1,265
Overseas Bond Forwards - 1,000 - 1,000
Options - - -
Forward Currency Contracts - 4,244 - 4,244
Cash Deposits
Foreign Currency - 5,257 - 5,257
Short Term Deposits - - - -
Cash Equivalents - 30,258 - 30,258
Cash & Bank Deposits 22,686 - - 22,686
Investment income due 4,862 - - 4,862
Amounts receivable for sales 38,446 - - 38,446
Investment Liabilities -
Derivatives
Futures - UK Fixed Interest - - - -
Futures - Overseas Fixed Interest - (56) - (56)
UK Bond Forwards - (632) - (632)
Overseas Bond Forwards - (1,162) - (1,162)
Forward Currency Contracts - (2,844) - (2,844)
Amounts payable for purchases (45,794) - - (45,794)
Assets and Liabilities - - -
Non current Assets 8,190 - - 8,190
Non current Liabilities (9,024) - - (9,024)
Current Assets 19,678 - - 19,678
Current Liabilities (6,770) - - (6,770)
Net Assets of the Fund at 31 March 2015 1,346,250 1,972,399 55,777 3,374,426

During the year ended 31 March 2016 there were no transfers between levels 1, 2 or 3 of the fair

value hierarchy.

Page 148




Agenda Iltem

26. Funding Arrangements

In line with the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2013, the fund’s actuary
undertakes a funding valuation every three years for the purpose of setting employer contribution rates
for the forthcoming triennial period. The last such valuation took place as at 31 March 2013. The next
valuation will take place as at 31 March 2016.

The key elements of the funding policy are:

e to ensure the long-term solvency of the fund, ie that sufficient funds are available to meet all pension
liabilities as they fall due for payment

e to ensure that employer contribution rates are as stable as possible

e to minimise the long-term cost of the scheme by recognising the link between assets and liabilities and
adopting an investment strategy that balances risk and return

o to reflect the different characteristics of employing bodies in determining contribution rates where the
administering authority considers it reasonable to do so

e 10 use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and ultimately to the council tax
payer from an employer defaulting on its pension obligations.

The aim is to achieve 100% solvency over a period of 25 years and to provide stability in employer
contribution rates by spreading any increases in rates over a short period of time, normally three years.

Solvency is achieved when the funds held, plus future expected investment returns and future
contributions, are sufficient to meet expected future pension benefits payable.

At the 2013 actuarial valuation, the fund was assessed as 83% funded (81% at the March 2010 valuation).
This corresponded to a deficit of £603 millions (2010 valuation: £530 millions) at that time.

The common contribution rate (ie the rate which all employers in the fund pay) over the three year period
ending 31 March 2015 is 18.8% of payroll.

Individual employers’ rates will vary from the common contribution rate depending on the demographic
and actuarial factors particular to each employer. Full details of the contribution rates payable can be found
in the 2013 actuarial valuation report (http://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/10/
Devon-Valuation-Report-31-March-2013.pdf) and the funding strategy statement (http://Awww.
peninsulapensions.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/08/devon-funding-strategy-statement.pdf).

Page 149 71



72

The valuation of the fund has been undertaken using the projected unit method under which the salary
increase for each member is assumed to increase until they leave active service by death, retirement or
withdrawal from service. The principal assumptions were:

Financial assumptions

Assumptions Rate
Investment return (discount rate) 6.1%
Price Inflation 3.5%
Salary increases 4.5%
Pension increases in line with CPI - Assumed to be 0.5% less than RPI 2.7%

Mortality assumptions

Mortality assumption at age 65 Male Female
Current pensioners 22.7 years 26.0 years
Future pensioners (assumed current age 45) 24.9 years 28.3 years

Historic mortality assumptions

Life expectancy for the year ended 31 March 2013 are based on S1PA tables with a multiplier of 100% for
males and 90% for females. The allowances for future life expectancy are based on the 2012 CMI Model
with a long term rate of improvement of 1.5% per annum.

Commutation assumption

It is assumed that at retirement 50% of members will opt to increase their lump sum to the maximum
allowed.

Page 150




Agenda Iltem

Statistical Summary

Financial Summary

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Contributions and Benefits
Contributions (152,657) (146,603) (149,016) (150,902) (153,280)
Transfers in from other pension funds (9,868) (8,647) (7,446) (5,686) (4,766)
(162,525) (155,250) (156,462) (156,588) (158,046)
Benefits Paid 143,382 145,497 150,435 158,336 166,247
Payments to and on account of leavers 5,933 5,636 6,251 68,742 7,429
149,315 151,133 156,686 227,078 173,676
Net (Additions) Withdrawals from
Dealings with Fund members (13,210) (4,117) 224 70,490 15,630
Management Expenses 4,878 8,579 10,074 12,481 13,945
Returns on Investments
Investment Income (47,438) (41,840) (39,625) (36,629) (35,743)
Increase / (decrease) in Market Value of
Investments during the Year (21,062) (285,575) (103,882) (280,875) 44,679
Net Returns on Investments (68,500) (327,415) (143,507) (317,504) 8,936

Net Assets of the Fund at 31 March
2,683,731 3,006,684 3,139,893 3,374,426 3,335,915

Members Summary

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
No. No. No. No. No.
Devon County Council
Contributors 12,527 11,747 13,033 13,849 13,154
Pensioners and Dependants 11,408 11,824 12,175 12,649 12,720
Deferred Pensioners 10,480 11,113 11,576 15,648 16,171
Other Employers
Contributors 22,760 23,653 24,196 25,620 24,525
Pensioners and Dependants 14,446 15,225 15,951 16,315 16,415
Deferred Pensioners 15,780 16,927 18,234 21,994 23,081

* Deferred pensioners include frozen memberships pending refunds and those undecided pending
resolution.

Employing Bodies

Active Ceased Total

Scheduled body 143 14 157
Admitted body 59 32 91
Total 202 46 248

There are currently 202 employers who have active members in the Fund.

Page 151 73



74

Administering Authority
Devon County Council

Scheduled Bodies

Acorn Multi Academy Trust
Ashburton Town Council

Barnstaple Town Council

Barton Hill Academy

Bay Education Trust

Bicton College

Bideford College

Bideford Town Council
Bishopsteignton Parish Council

Bovey Tracey Town Council

Bradninch Town Council

Bradworthy Primary Academy
Braunton School And Community College
Brixnam College

Brixham Town Council

Broadclyst Community Primary School
Buckland Monachorum Parish Council
Catered Limited

Chudleigh Town Council

Chulmleigh Community College

Churston Ferrers Grammar School
Academy

City College Plymouth

Clyst Vale Community College
Coast Academies

Colyton Grammar School Academy
Combe Martin Parish Council
Coombe Dean School
Coombe Pafford School
Cranbrook Town Council
Crediton Town Council
Cullompton Town Council
Dartmoor National Park
Dartmouth Academy
Dartmouth Town Council
Dawlish Town Council

Devon & Cornwall Police & Crime
Commissioner

Devon & Severn IFCA

Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue
Devonport High School For Boys
Devonport High School For Girls
Drake Primary

East Devon District Council
Eggbuckland Community College
Elburton Primary Academy Trust
Exeter City Council

Exeter College

Exeter Mathematics School

Exmouth Community College
Exmouth Town Council
Fremington Parish Council
Gatehouse ACE Academy
Great Torrington Academy
Great Torrington Town Council
Hayes Road Academy

Hele's Trust

Holsworthy Academy

Honiton Community College
Honiton Town Council

Hooe Primary Academy Trust
Ifracombe Arts College
Ilfracombe Town Council
Inspire Mat

lvybridge Community College
Ivybridge Town Council

Kings Academy

Kingsbridge Academy
Kingsbridge Town Council
Kingsteignton Town Council
Kingswear Primary School
Learning Academy Partnership
Lipson Academy

Littletown Primary Academy And Nursery
Lynton & Lynmouth Town Council
Marine Academy Plymouth
Mayflower Academy

Mid Devon District Council

Newport Community School Primary
Academy

Newton Abbot College

Newton Abbot Town Council
North Devon District Council
North Devon Joint Crematorium
Okehampton Town Council
Oreston Community Academy
Our School Federation

Petroc

Pilton Community College
Plymouth Cast

Plymouth City Bus

Plymouth City Council

Plymouth College Of Art & Design
Plymouth School Of Creative Arts
Plymouth Studio School
Plymouth University

Plymstock Academy

Primaries Academy Trust

Page 152

Queen Elizabeth's Academy Trust
Ridgeway School

Riviera Primary Trust

Route 39 Academy

Seaton Town Council

Schools Company

Shiphay Learning Academy
Sidmouth Town Council

South Dartmoor Academy
South Devon College

South Devon UTC

South Hams District Council
South Molton Town Council
Sparkwell Primary Academy

St Boniface Rc Boys School

St Christophers Primary Mat
St Margaret’S Academy
Steiner Academy

Stockland Cofe Primary School
Stoke Damerel Academy
Stoke Fleming

Stokenham Parish Council
Stowford Primary School
Studio School - South Devon
Team Multi Academy Trust
Tedburn St Mary Parish Council
Tedd Wragg MAT

Teignbridge District Council
Teignmouth Community School
Teignmouth Town Council
Templer Academy

The All Saints Church Of England
Academy

Tone Leisure

Tor Bridge High

Torbay Council

Torbay Economic Development Academy
Torquay Boys" Grammar School
Torquay Girls Grammar School
Torquay Museum Trust

Torre Primary School

Torridge District Council

Totnes Town Council

Uffculme Academy
Ugborough Parish Council
Virgin Care

West Devon Borough Council
Widewell Academy
Witheridge Parish Council




Admitted Bodies
4Children

Access Plymouth
Action For Children
Amey Lg Ltd

Aspens Services Ltd
Babcock

Barnardo’s

Bournemouth Churches Housing
Association

Churchill Services

Compass

Cormac Solutions Ltd

Dame Hannah Rogers School
DCC South West Heritage Trust
Delt Shared Services Ltd

Devon & Cornwall Housing
Devon Norse Catering

Devon Norse Cleaning

Devon Norse Facilities Management

English Riviera Tourism Company
Exeter Community Initiatives

Exeter CVS

Exeter Royal Academy For Deaf Education
Glen Cleaning (Cockington)
Healthwatch

Human Support Group Ltd

Initial Plymouth Catering Services
Innovate

Interserve Projects Ltd

ISS

Leisure East Devon

Livewell South West

Mama Bears Day Nursery

Millfields Community Economic
Development Trust

Mitie Plc (Devon)

North Devon Homes

On Course South West (Was Pacls)
Peninsula Dental Social Enterprise
Plymouth Citizen'S Advice Bureau
Plymouth Community Healthcare
Plymouth Community Homes

Page 153

Agenda Iltem

Plymouth Learning Partnership
Quadron

Sanctuary Housing

Schools Company Holborn

SLM Community Leisure

Sodexo

Strata

South Brent Parish Council

Tarka Housing

Tavistock Town Council

Teign Housing

The Childrens Society

Tor2Ltd

Torbay Coast & Countryside Trust
Torbay Community Development Trust

University Commercial Services Plymouth
Ltd

UTC Limited

Viridor

Wolseley Community Economic
Development Trust

75



76

Statement of the Actuary for the year ended 31 March 2016

Introduction

The last full triennial valuation of the Devon County Council Pension Fund was carried out as at 31 March
2013 in accordance with the Funding Strategy Statement of the Fund. The results were published in the
triennial valuation report dated March 2014.

2013 Valuation Results
The results for the Fund at 31 March 2013 were as follows:

e o the Fund had a funding level of 83% i.e. the assets were 83% of the value that they would have
needed to be to pay for the benefits accrued to that date, based on the assumptions used. This
corresponded to a deficit of £580m;

e e the common contribution rate was 18.8% of pensionable pay;

Contribution Rates

The employer contributions rates, in addition to those paid by the members of the Fund, are set to be
sufficient to meet:

e The annual accrual of benefits allowing for future pay increases and increases to pensions in payment
when these fall due;

e plus an amount to reflect each participating employer’s notional share of the Fund’s assets compared
with 100% of their liabilities in the Fund, in respect of service to the valuation date

Details of each employer’s contribution rate are contained in the Rates and Adjustment Certificate in the
triennial valuation report.

Assumptions
The key assumptions used to value the benefits at 31 March 2013 are summarised below:

Assumption 31 March 2013

Discount rate 6.1% p.a.

Pension increases 2.7% p.a.

Salary increases 2.7% p.a. until 31 March 2015 and 4.5% p.a. thereafter

Mortality S1PA tables with a multiplier of 100% for males and 90% for females, with

projected improvements in line with the 2012 CMI model allowing for a long term
rate of improvement of 1.5% p.a.

Retirement Each member retires at a single age, weighted based on when each part of their
pension is payable unreduced

Commutation Members will convert 50% of the maximum possible amount of pension into cash

The 2016 triennial valuation is currently underway and the assumptions to be adopted as at 31 March 2016
will be decided upon as part of the valuation process.

Asset Value

The assumptions used to value the liabilities are smoothed based on market conditions around the
valuation date, therefore the smoothed asset values are also measured in a consistent manner.

The smoothed market value of the Fund’s assets as at 31 March 2013 for valuation purposes was £2,985m.
At 31 March 2016, the smoothed assets had increased to an estimated £3,300m.

Page 154



Updated position since the 2013 Valuation

Since March 2013, investment returns have been lower than assumed at the 2013 triennial valuation. The
value placed on the liabilities will have increased slightly due to the accrual of new benefits and will have
also changed due to changes in the underlying discount rate and other assumptions.

Overall, we expect that the funding level should be slightly improved when compared on a consistent
basis to 31 March 2013 but the final position will depend on the assumptions adopted as part of the 2016
valuation process.

The next actuarial valuation is due as at 31 March 2016 and the resulting contribution rates required by the
employers will take effect from 1 April 2017.

Graeme Muir FFA
Partner, Barnett Waddingham LLP
10 May 2016

Page 155



Page 156



Agenda Item

Additional Information

Page 157 79



80

Investment Powers

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 require
that any pension fund monies not for the time being needed to meet payments shall be invested. The
Regulations define what is meant by investment, and place certain restrictions on Local Administering
Authorities.

The limits on different types of investment are detailed below. These prescribed limits may be exceeded
where the Administering Authority states explicitly in its Statement of Investment Principles that it has
adopted the higher limit as set out in the regulations. Where higher limits may be adopted, they are shown
in brackets.

e Not more than 10% (15%) of the fund may be invested in unlisted company securities. These are
securities which are not listed on either a recognised U.K. stock exchange, or a foreign stock exchange
of international standing.

e Not more than 25% (35%) of the fund can be invested in unit trusts, open ended investment
companies or any single insurance contract managed by a single body.

e Not more than 2% (5%) of the fund can be invested in any single partnership.
e Not more than 5% (30%) of the fund can be invested in all partnerships.

e With the exception of Government fixed interest stocks, bank deposits and managed insurance funds,
no more than 10% of the fund may be invested in a single holding.

e No more than 10% of the fund may be deposited with any one bank (other than the National Savings
Bank).

e Loans from the fund to any one body including the Administering Authority, but not including the
Government, may not in total exceed 10% of the value of the fund.

e The Fund can enter into stock lending arrangements provided that the total value of the securities to
be transferred does not exceed 25% of the total fund value.

Where an external investment manager is appointed the County Council (through the Investment and
Pension Fund Committee) must be satisfied that any monies under his management are not excessive
having regard to proper advice, diversification of management and to the value of the Fund’s assets.

The manager’s appointment must be terminable by not more than 1 month’s notice. They must comply
with any instructions given to them by the Council and must report their actions at least once every

three months. In making investments they must have regard to the need for diversification and to the
suitability of these investments, and they must be prohibited from making investments that contravene the
Regulations.

At least once every three months the Council must review the investments made by the manager, and from
time to time consider the desirability of continuing or terminating the appointment.

Page 158




Agenda Iltem

Statutory Statements

As required by the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations a number of Statutory Statements
have been prepared and published by Devon County Council (as the Administering Authority). They are as
follows:

Statement of Investment Principles

The Statement of Investment Principles sets out the basis on which the Devon Fund plans to invest the
scheme assets. This includes the asset allocation policy, attitudes to risk, policies on engagement, social and
ethical issues and states how the fund complies with the Myners Principles.

Funding Strategy Statement

The Funding Strategy Statement explains the funding objectives of the Fund. This includes how the costs

of the benefits provided under the Local Government Pension Scheme (“LGPS") are met though the Fund,
the objectives in setting employer contribution rates and the funding strategy that is adopted to meet those
objectives.

Communications Strategy Statement

The Communications Strategy Statement sets out the Fund’s policies on the provision of information and
publicity about the Scheme to members, representatives of members and employing authorities. It sets out
the format, frequency and method of distributing such information or publicity; other key organisations
that we communicate with; our values in relation to communications; and the professional expertise
available to the Fund.

Governance Policy and Compliance Statement

The Governance Policy sets out the governance arrangements for the Fund, including the make-up of the
Investment and Pension Fund Committee, and an outline of the tasks delegated to the Committee and to
the Fund’s officers. The Compliance Statement sets out an analysis of the Fund’s compliance with the latest
guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.

Administration Strategy

Pension fund administering authorities have discretion as to whether or not they prepare a pensions
administration strategy. The Devon Fund adopted an administration strategy in February 2015. The
objective of the strategy is to define the roles and responsibilities of the Administering Authority and the
employing authorities under the LGPS regulations. The strategy describes the service standards set for the
administration of pensions in the Fund’s dealings with members and employer bodies.

Copies of these statements as at 31 March 2016 are included in full in Appendix A at the back of
the Annual Report.

The current versions of these statements, including any subsequent revisions are published on the Peninsula
Pensions website at:
http://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/Igps/pension-fund-investments/devon-county-council-
investments/devon-fund-key-documents/

Page 159 81



82

The Fund’s Largest Equity Shareholdings

The top five UK and overseas equity holdings are from the Fund’s segregated mandates which are now
a small proportion of the total fund. The majority of the Fund’s equity investments are via pooled funds

where the Devon Fund does not directly own the shares in the individual companies.

United Kingdom Equities

Company Sector

British American Tobacco Personal & Household
Vodafone Telecommunications
Standard Chartered Banks

Royal Dutch Shell Oil & Gas

SAB Miller Personal & Household

Balance of Segregated Funds invested in UK Equities
Plus investments in UK Pooled Equity Funds

Overseas Equities

Company Sector Country
Taiwan Semiconductor Technology Taiwan
Fomento Economico Food & Beverages Mexico

AIA Group Financial Services China
Samsung Electronics Technology South Korea
EOG Resources Oil & Gas United States

Balance of Segregated Funds invested in Overseas Equities
Plus investments in Overseas Pooled Equity Funds

The Fund's Largest Property Fund Holdings

Property Fund

Blackrock UK Property Fund

Hermes Property Unit Trust

Industrial Property Investment Fund
Threadneedle Property Unit Trust

Unite UK Student Accommodation Fund

Plus Other Pooled Property Fund Investments

Specialist Mandate - Pooled Funds

Equity Funds

RWC European Focus Fund

Montanaro European Smaller Companies Fund
RWC Specialist UK Focus Fund

State Street Emerging Markets Fund

F&C Stewardship Growth Fund

Fabian Pictet Global Emerging Markets Fund
Aberdeen Ethical World Unit Trust

Infrastructure Funds

First State European Diversified Infrastructure Fund
Hermes Infrastructure Fund

UBS International Infrastructure Fund

Aviva Investors ReALM Infrastructure Fund

Aviva Investors ReALM Ground Rents Fund

Page 160

31-Mar-2016 % of Total
£000 Investments
5,873 0.18
4,239 0.13
3,698 0.11
3,239 0.10
2,754 0.08
19,803 0.60
8,282 0.25
783,663 23.49
811,748 24.34
11,764 0.35
8,403 0.25
8,159 0.24
6,325 0.19
6,302 0.19
40,953 1.22
212,716 6.38
830,806 24.90
1,084,475 32.50
37,792 1.13
27,125 0.81
25,012 0.75
23,050 0.69
22,305 0.67
135,284 4.06
223,579 6.70
358,863 10.76
37,457 1.12
35,308 1.06
29,681 0.89
26,700 0.80
23,499 0.70
13,542 0.41
1,584 0.05
167,771 5.03
43,562 1.31
28,920 0.87
27,913 0.84
19,656 0.59
19,323 0.58
139,374 4.19




Agenda Iltem

Scheme and Benefit Information

Devon County Council administers the Pension Fund for its own employees and some 200 other
organisations including Unitary, District, Town and Parish Councils, Education establishments and other
admitted bodies. These also include a number of employers who have ceased actively participating in the
fund though still have a number of pensioners.

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is a statutory, funded, salary-related pension scheme with
its benefits defined and set in law. The LGPS is contracted out of the State Second Pension Scheme (S2P)
and must, in general, provide benefits at least as good as most members would have received had they
remained in S2P.

Contributions

Employer contributions rates are variable and are determined by the fund Actuary. A full valuation

is carried out every 3 years in order to establish the value of the assets and liabilities of the fund and
determine individual employer contribution rates. The most recent valuation was as at 31 March 2013 with
revised employer contributions payable from April 2014.

Employee contributions range from 5.5% to 12.5% depending on the level of their pensionable pay.

Benefits
The LGPS provides significant retirement and death benefits to its members which include the following:

e A guaranteed pension calculated as 1/49 x actual pensionable pay for each financial year after 1st April
2014

e A guaranteed pension calculated as 1/60 x final salary x service between 1st April 2008 — 31st March
2014

e A guaranteed pension calculated as 1/80 x final salary x pre April 2008 service

e A tax free lump sum upon retirement calculated using the formula 3/80 x final salary x pre April 2008
service. Options are available to increase the lump sum

e Ability to increase benefits by paying additional voluntary contributions

e Anill health pension payable from any age

¢ Immediate unreduced pension on redundancy after the age of 55

e Death in Service lump sum of 3 x salary

e Widow's/widower's/civil partner's/co habiting partner pension payable for life
e Children’s pensions

e Benefits rise in line with inflation

Changes made affecting the LGPS during 2015/16

There were no changes to the scheme rules affecting member benefits during the year. Whilst the LGPS
changed to the Career Average structure in 2014, all the other public sector schemes did not follow suit
until April 2015. In addition, The Public Sector Pensions Act came into effect from April 2015 which
tightens the goverance arrangements across all public sector pension schemes and has given powers of
oversight to the Pensions Regulator.

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations come into force
implementing the new governance requirements.

Page 161 83



84

Automatic Enrolment

From October 2012, the government introduced ‘Automatic Enrolment” which requires employers to auto-
enrol eligible employees into a pension scheme, although they have the right to opt out afterwards. HMRC
provides each employer with their ‘staging date’ from when the changes will have to be in place. The
largest employers received their staging dates first. In 2012/13 Devon County Council became the first of
our employers to reach their staging date. These new duties on employers are to encourage more people to
save for a longer retirement.

For more details of the benefits available from the scheme, an online version of the current ‘Employee
guide to the LGPS’ can be found on our website at www.peninsulapensions.org.uk

All employers, member and interested parties are asked to look at the Pensions website, which will be kept
up to date with current news on this and other aspects of the pension scheme. Member self-service is also
offered through our website, where members can update their personal details and produce their own
benefit estimates.

Peninsula Pensions

Peninsula Pensions was formed in September 2013 following the merger of pension administration services
with Somerset County Council. It deals with all aspects of maintaining member records and calculating and
paying benefits, including running the pensioner payroll for those who have already retired.

Administrative Performance Standards
Our aims
e To supply a high quality pensions administration service.

e To provide value for money.
e To meet the highest professional standards in our dealings with all our customers.

Our commitment to you

We are dedicated to placing customers at the heart of our organisation and welcome all contact and
enquiries. We will always endeavour to be as good as our word. For instance if we agree to get back to
you or reply by a certain date, we will do that. If this turns out not to be possible for any reason, we will
contact you and explain why. We will at all times be fair and open, and always explain the reasons behind
any decision.

Our staff will:
e Treat you as an individual and with dignity and respect

e Listen to what you say

e Be helpful and considerate

e Keep what you say to us as confidential

e Where appropriate, tell you exactly what you need to do and what information we need

These "Performance Statistics’ are part of our ongoing commitment to make our work and performance
more open to public scrutiny. Our work has been "tasked’ for a number of years now (every piece of paper/
process we receive is registered on the members computer record), but it's only in recent years that we have
begun to really co-ordinate a method of monitoring and analysing the data that the tasking system can
provide.

Page 162



Agenda Iltem

The graph below shows two groups of tasks; priority tasks (retirements, death benefits, complaints etc.)
and non-priority tasks (tasks which can maybe be delayed for a day or two; a new starter form or an
address change for example). The results shown are the average successful completion percentage of all
tasks within that category. Percentage in target was lower this year due to the reduction of backlogs.

Performance History

100

90

80

e Priority
70 N

Non Priority

Percentage in Target

60

50

11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16

The following bullet-points should offer some explanation as to the nature of the kind of work which make
up our Priority and Non-Priority categories.

Priority
e Includes all tasks relating to a death in service, death of a pensioner and/or the death of a deferred
member.

e Any task relating to the retirement of a police officer or fire fighter (ill-health, normal retirements etc).

e Actual retirements for LGPS staff (including police/fire civilian workers). Covers all available forms of
retirement; ill-health, redundancy/efficiency, early retirement, age retirement etc.

e Any query not covered by the other categories that requires a response from ourselves. For example; a
guery on an Admitted Body Status, re-employed pensioner calculations, general telephone queries etc.

Non-Priority
e All tasks relating to the purchase and administration of Additional Pension or Additional Voluntary
Contributions (AVC’s).

e The process of making a scheme member a leaver before they reach retirement age (but only to include
those members who opt-out of the scheme or leave the Devon Pension Fund employer for employment
elsewhere; not other reasons for leaving covered in the other categories).

e The production of cash equivalent transfer values (CETV's) for divorce proceedings, pension sharing and
earmarking orders.

e ‘Passive’ notifications such as address changes, hour changes, marital status changes etc. Basically
anything which doesn't require a direct response.

e The process of refunding a scheme members pension contributions (only available to members with
less than 2 years total service).

e |GPS Retirement Estimates.

Page 163 85



e The processing of all new starter forms for new employees (or ‘opting-in’ forms for existing staff)
wishing to join the pension scheme.

e The transfer-in of a scheme members pension rights, accrued with a previous employer/pension
provider.

e The transfer-out of pension benefits held in the Devon Pension Fund to an external employer or
pension provider (be it a new LGPS administering authority, personal pension plan or a private
employer with its own pension arrangements).

Financial/Staffing Indicators

The most recent figures available are from the CIPFA benchmarking exercise for 2014/15 (the 2015/16
report results unavailable at time of writing). The cost per member was £13.40 and the cost per pensioner
was £4.14. These member costs compare favourable to the national average of £19.17 per member and
£8.16 per pensioner.

Audit

Peninsula Pensions is audited by Devon Audit Partnership and Grant Thornton to ensure the effective and
efficient operation of the scheme.

Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure

The LGPS has a 2-stage dispute resolution procedure. For stage 1 appeals relating to a decision or action

by the member’s employer, the dispute is dealt with by the nominated person for that employer. All other
disputes are dealt with by the Head of Pensions Administration. If the member is not happy with the
decision made at Stage 1 then they can move to Stage 2 where the issue will be looked at afresh by a panel
consisting of the County Treasurer and County Solicitor. If the member is not happy with the decision made
by the Stage 2 panel they can take their case to the Pensions Ombudsman for a final decision.

During 2015/16 there were 11 Stage 1 appeals and 5 Stage 2 appeals, the vast majority relating to ill health
retirements.

However as many Stage 1 appeals are dealt with by the member’s employer we may not have been
informed of all appeals.

Peninsula Pensions
Great Moor House
Bittern Road

Sowton Industrial Estate
Exeter EX2 7NL

Email: pensions@devon.gov.uk
www.peninsulapensions.org.uk

Page 164



Glossary

Actuarial Terms
Actuary

An independent consultant who advises on the
financial position of the fund. Every three years
the actuary reviews the assets and liabilities of
the fund and reports to the County Council on
the financial position and the recommended
employers’ contribution rates. This is known as
the Actuarial Valuation.

BoE spot inflation curve

A fixed-interest gilt and an otherwise identical
index-linked gilt of the same time to maturity will
have a different price or yield. This difference in
yields indicates the market’s expectation of future
inflation, or spot inflation, for that particular term.
The Bank of England produces an inflation curve
which is essentially a best fit of the difference in
fixed interest gilts and index linked gilts for terms
to maturity of up to 25 years

Deferred Pension

The pension benefit payable from normal
retirement age to a member of the fund who

has ceased to contribute as a result of leaving
employment or opting out of the pension scheme
before state retirement age.

Merrill Lynch AA rated corporate bond curve

Corporate bonds are given a credit rating by

a credit rating agency which indicates the
creditworthiness of the company that has issued
the bond. Merrill Lynch produces a yield curve
which shows the relationship between the yields
on bonds with AA credit ratings against the time
to maturity of these bonds.

Non-Vested obligations

If active members remain active rather than
become deferred then their liabilities will be
higher due to assumed salary increases until
retirement. These additional liabilities make up the
non-vested obligation.

Promotional scale

This takes into consideration the possibility of
promotion during the course of an employees
working life.

Retirement age assumption

Active members will retire one year later than they
are first able to do so without reduction — One
year after minimum retirement age

Agenda Iltem

Solvency Test

An actuarial calculation to determine whether
the assets of an occupational pension scheme are
sufficient to meet its benefit obligations.

S1PA tables

The S1PA tables are published by the Actuarial
Profession’s Continuous Mortality Investigation
("CMI"). These tables are based on studies of
mortality for members of large self-administered
pension schemes over the period 2000 to 2006.

Vested obligations

Vested obligations are liabilities in respect of
deferred and pensioner members. It also includes
part of the liability for active members. This part
is calculated by assuming that active members
become deferred immediately and as such does
not take into account future salary increases..

Derivatives

Financial contracts whose value is tied to an
underlying asset. Derivatives include futures, options
and swaps.

Emerging Markets

Stock Markets in developing countries (as defined
by the World Bank).

Equities

Ordinary shares in UK and overseas companies
traded on a recognised stock exchange.
Shareholders have an interest in the profits of
the company and are normally entitled to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

Fixed Interest Securities

Investments, mainly in government stocks, which
guarantee a fixed rate of interest. The securities
represent loans which are repayable at a stated
future date but which can be traded on a
recognised Stock Exchange in the meantime.

Index Future

An obligation to make or take delivery of a specified
guantity of an underlying Stock/Index at a particular
time in the future, at a price agreed when the
contract is taken out.

Index (Stock Market)

The movements in a Stock Market are monitored
continuously by means of an Index made up of the
current prices of a representative sample of stocks.

Page 165 87



88

Glossary (cont)
Indexation

Also known as Index Matching or Index Tracking.
Indexation is a statistical technique used to
construct a portfolio of shares that will consistently
move in line with a particular Index.

Managed Fund

A multi-asset pooled fund under which an insurance
company offers participation in one or more pooled
funds.

Market Value

The price at which an investment can be sold at a
given date.

Performance Services

WM Performance services are an independent
company used to measure the investment
performance of the Fund. They also measure 84
Local Authority sector funds calculating, every
quarter, the average returns for the median of all
the funds and constituent funds (the weighted
average).

Pooled Funds

A fund managed by an external Fund Manager in
which a number of investors buy units. The total
fund is then invested in a particular market or
region.

Portfolio

A collective term for all the investments held in a
fund, market or sector.

Property Unit Trust

A pooled investment vehicle that enables investors
to hold a stake in a diversified portfolio of
properties.

Return

The total gain from holding an investment over
a given period, including income and increase
(decrease) in market value.

Transfers to/from Other Schemes

These are sums paid to or received from other
pension schemes and relate to the current value of
past contributions which transfer with a member
when changing employment.

Unrealised Increase/(Decrease) in Market
Value

The increase/ (decrease) in market value, since the
previous year, of those investments still held at the
year end.

Unit Trust

A Pooled Fund in which investors hold units, and
where the fund offers new units and is prepared
to redeem existing units from holders on a regular
basis.

Page 166



Agenda Iltem .

Appendix A: Statutory Statements

Page 167 39



Agenda Iltem 9

Devon

County Council




Agenda Item 9

inciples

Statement of Investment Pr

1. Introduction

Since July 2000, all pension funds have had to prepare and publish a
Statement of Investment Principles (SIP). This document is designed
to explain to fund members, employers and any other interested
parties how the assets are managed and the factors that are taken
into account in so doing. The Statement has been prepared in
accordance with Regulation 12 of The Local Government Pension
Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations
2009 (SI 2009 No. 3093).

The Devon County Council Pension Fund has had an approved
Statement of Investment Principles since February 2000. The latest
version is made available on the Council’s website.

The SIP has been prepared, in line with guidance received from the
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government, with
reference to the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy
(CIPFA) Pensions Panel publication, ‘Principles for Investment
Decision Making and Disclosure in the LGPS in the United
Kingdom 2009 - A Guide to the Application of the 2008 Myners
Principles to the Management of LGPS Funds’. 1t is accepted that
these six principles form the code of best practice for LGPS Funds; this
SIP reports the extent of compliance with each of the six principles.

In July 2010 the Financial Reporting Council issued the UK Stewardship
Code, which sets out seven principles around corporate governance,
and the engagement of pension funds and their fund managers with
the companies that they have invested in. The Devon Pension Fund
supports the code, and policies in relation to the seven principles are
set out within the SIP.

The SIP also has to indicate the extent to which social, environmental
and ethical issues are taken into account in the management process.
These requirements do not oblige the Fund to adopt particular
management policies. They are simply intended to allow the reader to
understand the extent to which they influence the Investment
Principles and, where they are not taken into account, why they are
considered inappropriate.

Pension funds are not all the same. There are perfectly valid reasons
why their Investment Principles may be different. They have to reflect
how well funded the pension fund is and its maturity (the balance
between contributors and pensioners). They will, inevitably, also
reflect the views of those responsible for its management, particularly
their attitude to risk. The objective at the end of the day is to ensure
that the fund can meet all its future pension liabilities, but there are
different ways of achieving this.

This Statement must be revised from time to time by the
Administering Authority in accordance with any material change in

policy.

Page 169




Agenda Item 9

inciples

Statement of Investment Pr

2. Decision Takers

Devon County Council - is the Administering Authority and is
responsible for managing the Fund in accordance with the Regulations.

Investment & Pension Fund Committee - this County Council
Committee, which includes Unitary and District Council representatives
and those of the contributors and the pensioners (non-voting) carries
out the role of the Administering Authority. It has full delegated
authority to make decisions on Pension Fund matters. In particular it:

- decides the Investment Principles;

- determines the fund management structure;
- reviews investment performance;

- appoints and removes investment managers.

Pension Board - while not a decision making body, the Pension
Board has been set up to assist the Administering Authority in securing
compliance with legislation and regulation and the effective and
efficient governance of the Fund. The Board can make
recommendations to the Investment and Pension Fund Committee or
report serious concerns directly to the Pensions Regulator.

Independent Investment Advisor - this person is an experienced
investment professional who provides independent advice to the
Committee on all aspects of its business.

Devon County Council County Treasurer - advises the Committee
and ensures that it is informed of regulatory changes and new
developments in the investment field and implements the Committee’s
decisions.

Investment Managers - carry out the management brief approved
by the Committee, within the agreed risk parameters, to achieve the
agreed performance targets.

The Fund’s Actuary - calculates the solvency of the Fund and fixes
the employers’ contribution rates at a level that will aim to achieve
100% funding in the long-term. As part of this exercise assumptions
will be made about future investment returns.

Page 170




Agenda Item 9

inciples

Statement of Investment Pr

3. Risk and Reward

Successful investment involves taking considered risks, acknowledging
that the returns achieved will to a large extent reflect the risks taken.
There are short-term risks of loss arising from default by brokers,
banks or custodians but the Fund is careful only to deal with reputable
counter-parties to minimise any such risk.

Longer-term investment risk includes the absolute risk of reduction in
the value of assets through negative returns (which cannot be totally
avoided if all major markets fall). It also includes the risk of under-
performing the Fund’s performance benchmark (relative risk).

Different types of investment have different risk characteristics and
have historically yielded different rewards (returns). Equities (company
shares) have produced better long-term returns than fixed interest
stocks but they are more volatile and have at times produced negative
returns for long periods.

At Fund level, investment risk is managed through:

e Diversification of types of investment and investment managers.
e Explicit mandates governing the activity of investment managers.
e The appointment of an Independent Investment Advisor.

The external investment managers can control relative risk to a large
extent by using statistical techniques to forecast how volatile their
performance is likely to be compared to the benchmark. The Fund can
monitor this risk and impose limits.

The ultimate risk is that the Fund’s assets produce worse returns than
assumed by the Actuary, who values the assets and liabilities every
three years, and that as a result, the solvency of the Fund deteriorates.
To guard against this the Investment Principles seek to control risk but
not to eliminate it. It is quite possible to take too little risk and thereby
to fail to achieve the required performance.

The investment managers need to be given appropriate levels of
discretion to switch between investments to reduce the risk of under-
performance.

Operational risk to the Fund is managed through:

e A strong employer covenant.

e The use of a Global Custodian for custody of assets.

e Having formal contractual arrangements with investment managers.

e Comprehensive risk disclosures within the Annual Statement of
Accounts.

e Internal and external audit arrangements.

Page 171




Agenda Item 9

inciples

Statement of Investment Pr

4. Investment Principles

1. Risk

Whilst some monies may be invested in high risk investments
from time to time, these will only represent a small part of the
Fund. Total fund risk will be monitored and controlled (as far as
possible) at a level that is considered appropriate for a pension
fund.

2. Types of Investment

The majority of the Fund’s investments will be made in stocks
that are quoted on recognised Stock Exchanges and are easily
realisable. Where investments are made in other vehicles (e.g.
unit trusts or other pooled funds) there must be an effective way
of redeeming them. It is recognised, however, that certain stocks
may sometimes become illiquid or unrealisable.

Investments should normally be income producing although this
income may be automatically reinvested. Non income producing
assets, such as gold or works of art will not normally be
purchased. The decision whether or not to hold an asset that is
considered to be suitable will only be made on investment
grounds.

3. The balance between different types of Investment

The Fund will at all times hold a widely diversified portfolio of
investments to reduce risk.

Following a review in November 2011, and a further update in
June 2013, the Fund has adopted the following strategic asset
allocation as an overall benchmark:

e Fixed Interest 16%
e Equities 55%
e Diversified Growth Funds 15%
e Alternatives (Property and Infrastructure) 14%

A core portion of the allocation to equities, 40% of the total
Fund, will be managed externally on a passive basis. This
portfolio will contain a large number of stocks spread over a wide
cross section of markets. Within markets, the Fund’s holdings will
closely track the relevant market indices. 20% of the passive
allocation (8% of the total Fund) will track alternative indices
based on quality, value and low volatility criteria, rather than the
market capitalisation of the shares, with the intention of
generating outperformance in comparison with the market
capitalisation indices.

The remainder of the assets will be managed (both internally and
externally) on a more active basis. The external managers will
include both specialist managers, who concentrate on specific
sectors of the market and diversified growth fund managers, who
have considerable discretion over the choice of types of
investment. (A list of current managers and the benchmarks to

Page 172




Agenda Item 9

inciples

Statement of Investment Pr

4.

5.

which they operate is set out in Appendix B).

The use of diversified growth funds, which will include both

equities and fixed interest assets, within a wider range of assets,
will provide a greater level of flexibility for the Fund in enabling a
more active asset allocation to take advantage of market trends.

The target allocation for Property is 10% of the Fund.

Asset allocation varies over time through the impact of market
movements and cash flows. The overall balance is monitored
regularly, and if the allocations move more than 2.5% away from
the target consideration is given to rebalancing the assets taking
into account market conditions and other relevant factors.

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 impose limits on certain
types of investments. The regulations prescribe lower limits
which should not be exceeded, unless the Committee decides to
adopt a higher limit as provided for by regulation 14 (3). With
regard to the limit on investments in any single insurance
contract, the Fund has adopted the higher limit of 35% on an
open ended basis. This relates to the Life Funds managed by UBS
within the passive portfolio, which exceed the lower limit of 25%
following the award of a mandate to manage an alternative
indexation portfolio within the Life Funds. The decision to invest
in the alternative indexation mandate was taken on the basis
that it is a separate investment from the longstanding passive
mandate with different risk characteristics. Should the fund wish
to take further advantage of the higher limits, the Administering
Authority has to get specific approval from the Investment &
Pension Fund Committee on each occasion, having met certain
requirements.

The expected return on investments

It is not possible to control the absolute return on investments
but over the long-term the Fund seeks to achieve a real return at
least as good as that assumed by the Actuary from time to time
in his Valuations. In the short term, returns are measured
against a bespoke benchmark based on the Fund’s strategic
asset allocation. As the Fund is not prepared to accept a higher
level of overall risk than the average pension fund, it cannot
expect to achieve much higher returns. The strategy described
above is expected to outperform the benchmark by 0.5% per
annum on a consistent basis.

The realisation of investments

Only investments that can be realised are considered to be
suitable for the Fund. Pension funds are long-term investors and
it is not intended that the fund will be very active in the way it
manages most of its investments, particularly in the passive
portfolio. Historically employer and employee contributions have
exceeded pensions in payment. Rising pensions in payment
mean that this is no longer the case, but the Fund also receives
significant investment income which can also be used to pay
pensions as required. Consequently it is unlikely that the Fund

Page 173




Agenda Iltem 9

will need to sell assets to pay pensions in the foreseeable future.

Any asset sales will therefore be based on investment
considerations, such as perceived over-valuation or a desire to
adjust investment risks.

6. Stock Lending

The Fund participates in stock lending of its segregated assets,
as permitted under Regulation 3 (8) and 3 (9) of the LGPS
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009, and
within the limits specified in these regulations.

Stock lending is carried out via the Fund Custodian, who provides
security and protection to mitigate risk through an indemnity and
the holding of collateral against the stocks lent.

7. Changes to Investment Principles

Although the Investment Principles are intended to remain in
place over the long-term, there will be occasions when they need
to be revised. The Investment and Pension Fund Committee will
review them at regular intervals.

Page 174



Agenda Item 9

inciples

Statement of Investment Pr

5. Corporate Governance - Effective Engagement

The Devon Pension Fund is fully supportive of the UK Stewardship
Code, published in July 2010, and the Committee accepts the rights
and responsibilities that attach to being a shareholder and will play an
active role in overseeing the management of the companies in which it
invests.

The following section sets out the Fund’s policy in relation to the seven
principles of the UK Stewardship Code:

1. Institutional investors should publicly disclose their policy on how
they will discharge their stewardship responsibilities.

The Devon Pension Fund aims to be a supportive, long term
shareholder. The Committee will support the latest widely
accepted standards of Best Practice in Corporate Governance and
will expect the companies in which it invests to comply therewith.
It will use its influence as a shareholder to persuade the
Directors of any companies that do not already comply to adopt
Best Practice.

The Fund will expect its external investment managers to:

(a) Seek to develop a long-term relationship and an
understanding of mutual objectives and concerns with the
companies in which we invest.

(b)  Meet regularly with those companies to discuss corporate
strategy and objectives, and to make an assessment of
management performance.

(o) Have in place processes in place to ensure access to
accurate information regarding companies in which we
invest, including the approach to corporate governance
adopted by the company.

(d) Intervene when a company fails to meet expectations in
terms of traditional governance inputs (such as board
structures) but also the outputs of governance such as
acquisitions and operational performance.

The Fund’s external investment managers will judge whether to
support a company by subscribing to a rights issue, accepting a
take-over bid or other similar events purely on investment
grounds.

2. Institutional investors should have a robust policy on managing
conflicts of interest in relation to stewardship and this policy
should be publicly disclosed.

External investment managers will be expected to act in the
Fund’s interests when considering matters such as engagement
and voting. The Fund will expect its fund managers to:

(a) Putin place and maintain a policy for managing
conflicts of interest.

(b)  Ensure that any significant conflicts of interest are
disclosed.

Page 175



Agenda Item 9

inciples

Statement of Investment Pr

3. Institutional investors should monitor their investee companies.

The Fund will expect its external investment managers to

(a) Satisfy themselves, to the extent possible, that the
investee company’s board and committee structures are
effective, and that independent directors provide adequate
oversight, including by meeting the chairman and, where
appropriate, other board members.

(b)  Maintain comprehensive records of governance
engagements, votes cast and the reasons for voting
against management or abstaining.

(c) Attend General Meetings selectively when they consider it
is of value to our investment to do so.

. Institutional investors should establish clear guidelines on when

and how they will escalate their activities as a method of
protecting and enhancing shareholder value.

The Fund will expect its external investment managers to
escalate activities if a company fails to meet expectations. The
most important issues for us are:

. Strategy - including acquisitions and the deployment of
capital

. Operational performance

. Quality of the Board

. Succession planning

. Health & Safety

. Risk management

o Remuneration

. Corporate social responsibility

The Fund will expect its external investment managers to engage
with the board in order to better understand what is behind such
concerns. Engagement should be regularly reviewed and its
success assessed.

. Institutional investors should be willing to act collectively with

other investors where appropriate.

As a general rule we believe the effectiveness of engagement is
considerably increased when we find common ground with other
shareholders. The Fund will therefore encourage its fund
managers to work with collective bodies or collaborate with other
shareholders if they believe this will increase the chance of
success.

The Fund is a member of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum
(LAPFF), an association of local authority pension funds who act
collectively with a view to achieving the highest standard of
corporate governance and corporate social responsibility
amongst the companies in which they invest.

Page 176




Agenda Item 9

inciples

Statement of Investment Pr

6. Institutional investors should have a clear policy on voting and

disclosure of voting activity.

The Council will instruct its external investment managers to vote
at all meetings of UK companies where they have sufficient
information to form a view on the issues involved. Voting will be
extended to overseas companies when practicable.

The Council will instruct its external investment managers to vote
in favour of all resolutions put forward by the Directors of a
company unless they are not in the shareholder’s interests (e.g.
Long Term Incentive Plans with targets that are not demanding
enough or where excessive remuneration is proposed) or expose
the company to undue risk or they condone bad practice (e.g.
Director’s service contracts in excess of one year) in which cases
it will instruct them to vote against.

. Institutional investors should report periodically on their

stewardship and voting activities.

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee will monitor the
fund managers’ engagement with the companies they have
invested in, through the regular reporting arrangements in place.
In addition the external investment managers will be requested
to produce an annual summary of their engagement activity for
inclusion within the Devon Pension Fund Annual Report.

Page 177




Agenda Item 9

inciples

Statement of Investment Pr

6. Corporate Governance - Social, Environmental and Ethical
Issues

The Committee has considered the extent to which it wishes to take into
account social, environmental or ethical issues in the selection,
retention and realisation of investments and has adopted the following
principles:-

1. Future investments will not be banned nor existing investments
sold solely on social, environmental or ethical grounds.

2. Other than the monies set aside for investment in Ethical Unit
Trusts (up to 1% of the Fund), investment will not be made in
companies solely because of their good record in social,
environmental or ethical issues. Many of the Fund's investments
would qualify as ethical, however, even though not chosen for
that reason.

3. It is recognised, however, that the interests of investors on social
etc. grounds may coincide with those solely on investment
grounds in which case there will be no conflict of interest. Indeed,
the Committee believes that in the long run, socially responsible
and fiduciary investment will tend to come together since adverse
performance on social, environmental or ethical issues will
ultimately be reflected in share prices.

4. The Fund will encourage its Investment Managers to adopt a
policy of engagement with companies to make its view known to
their management and to seek to change their behaviour where
necessary. This is more likely to be successful if the Fund
continues to be a shareholder.

5. Although social, environmental and ethical issues rarely arise on
the agendas of company Annual General Meetings, where an
issue does arise the Council’s external investment managers will
only vote if it is in the Fund’s interest on investment grounds.
Some issues may be incorporated into generally accepted
Corporate Governance Best Practice (e.g. the inclusion of an
Environmental Statement in the Annual Report and Accounts). In
this case the Council will instruct its external investment
managers to vote against the adoption of the Annual Report, if no
such statement is included.

Page 178




Agenda Item 9

inciples

Statement of Investment Pr

7. Compliance with the Myners Principles

Regulations made by the Department for Communities and Local
Government (DCLG) require the SIP to comment on the compliance
with the Myners principles.

In 2007, the Government asked the National Association of Pension
Funds (NAPF) to review the extent to which pension fund trustees are
applying the Myners principles. The NAPF made a series of
recommendations which included replacing the previous ten Principles
with six high level Principles.

The Committee has considered the 6 Myners Principles (set out in
Appendix A) and is of the view that the Fund currently complies with
the spirit of these recommendations. Further details are given below on
each of the 6 principles.

1. Effective Decision Making

The County Council has a designated Committee whose terms of
reference are to discharge the duties of the Council as the
Administering Authority. There is a training programme for
Committee members. They also have external and internal
advisers and are supported by an experienced in-house team to
oversee the day to day running of the Fund. Representatives of
the Fund's contributors and pensioners, although not voting
members, advise the Committee on the views of their members.
The Administering Authority is supported by a Pension Board,
whose role is to assist them in securing compliance with
legislation and regulation and the effective and efficient
governance of the Fund.

2. Clear Objectives

This document sets out clear objectives in relation to the split of
assets between Equities and Bonds, investment in Diversified
Growth Funds, and other assets such as Property.

The Committee is aware of the Fund’s current deficit and its
investment policy is designed to gradually improve solvency
whilst keeping employers’ contribution rates as constant as
possible. A key objective of the Fund’s strategy is to manage the
fund to ensure a healthy cash-flow for the foreseeable future.

3. Risk and Liabilities

The Committee has considered the mix of assets that it should
adopt and the level of risk (volatility of returns) it is prepared to
accept. This document sets out current policy, which is designed
to improve the Fund’s solvency while only accepting moderate
risk.

The Committee will regularly review the benefits of using the full
range of asset classes.

4. Performance Assessment

In the award of mandates to individual investment managers the
Investment and Pension Fund Committee has set benchmarks for

Page 179




Agenda Item 9

inciples

Statement of Investment Pr

each asset class, as set out in Appendix B. The total fund is
measured against a bespoke benchmark based on the Fund’s
strategic asset allocation.

The Fund engages an investment analytics company to provide
an independent measurement of investment returns. These are
used for comparison purposes against specific and peer group
benchmarks.

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee receive quarterly
performance reports and are therefore able to consider the
performance of all asset classes and managers on a regular basis.
These considerations form the basis of decision making.

. Responsible Ownership

Section 6 of this document, on Corporate Governance - Effective
Engagement, sets out the Fund’s commitment to responsible
ownership. The management agreements with the Fund’s
investment managers include provision for them to engage with
companies in compliance with the terms of the Combined Code
and the Council’s voting policy as set out in this document. As
already noted above the Fund is also a member of the Local
Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF).The Fund also has
investments in specialist pooled funds that are specifically
designed to be activist. This document sets out the Council’s
policy on voting.

. Transparency and Reporting

This Statement of Investment Principles is available to any
interested party on request. The latest version is available on the
Council’s website.

In accordance with LGPS (Administration) Regulations 2008, the
Devon Pension Fund has published a Communications Policy
Statement, which can be viewed at:
https://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/
2013/08/Devon-Pension-Fund-Communications-Policy.pdf,
which describes the Fund’s policy on:

e Providing information to members, employers and
representatives,

e The format, frequency and method of distributing such
information,

e The promotion of the Fund to prospective members and their
employing bodies.

The Fund will continue to develop its website, which it considers
to be its primary communications channel.

Page 180




Agenda Item 9

inciples

Statement of Investment Pr

Appendix A: The 2008 Myners Principles

Principle 1: Effective decision-making

e Administering authorities should ensure that decisions are taken by
persons or organisations with the skills, knowledge, advice and
resources necessary to take them effectively and monitor their
implementation.

e Those persons or organisations should have sufficient expertise to be
able to evaluate and challenge the advice they receive, and manage
conflicts of interest.

Principle 2: Clear objectives

e Overall investment objectives should be set for the fund that take
account of the scheme’s liabilities, the potential impact on local council
tax payers, the strength of the covenant of the participating employers,
and the attitude to risk of both the administering authority and the
scheme employers, and these should be clearly communicated to
advisers and investment managers.

Principle 3: Risk and liabilities

¢ In setting and reviewing their investment strategy, administering
authorities should take account of the form and structure of liabilities.

e These include the implications for council tax payers, the strength of
the covenant of participating employers, the risk of their default and
longevity risk.

Principle 4: Performance assessment

e Administering authorities should arrange for the formal measurement
of the performance of the investments, investment managers and
advisers.

e Administering authorities should also periodically make a formal policy
assessment of their own effectiveness as a decision-making body and
report on this to scheme members.

Principle 5: Responsible ownership

e Administering authorities should adopt, or ensure their investment
managers adopt, the Institutional Shareholders’ Committee (ISC)
Statement of Principles on the responsibilities of shareholders and
agents.

e A statement of the authority’s policy on responsible ownership should
be included in the Statement of Investment Principles.

e Administering authorities should report periodically to members on the
discharge of such responsibilities.

Principle 6: Transparency and reporting

e Administering authorities should act in a transparent manner,
communicating with stakeholders on issues relating to their
management of investment, its governance and risks, including
performance against stated objectives.

e Administering authorities should provide regular communication to
members in the form they consider most appropriate.

Page 181




Agenda Iltem 9

Manager

Mandate

Target

Aberdeen Asset
Managers Ltd

Global Equity

Outperform FTSE World Index by 3% per
annum over rolling 3 and 5 year periods

Aberdeen Asset
Managers Ltd

Global Emerging

Outperform MSCI Emerging Markets
Index by 2-4% per annum over rolling 3
year periods

State Street Global
Advisors Ltd

Passive Equities

Performance in line with FTSE World
market specific indices

UBS Global Asset
Management (UK) Ltd

Passive Equities

Performance in line with FTSE All Share
Index

UBS Global Asset

Passive Equities

Performance in line with FTSE RAFI /

Services Ltd

(Alternative MSCI World Quality / MSCI World
Management (UK) Ltd Indexation) Minimum Volatility Indices
Lazard Asset Global Fixed Outperform Barclays Capital Global
Management LLC Interest Aggregate Bond Index by 1% per annum
Wellington Management | Global Fixed Outperform Barclays Capital Global
International Ltd Interest Aggregate Bond Index by 1% per annum
G Diversified Outperform Bank of England Base Rate
Baillie Gifford and Co. Growth Fund by 3.5% per annum net of fees
Barings Asset Diversified o
Management Ltd Growth Fund Outperform LIBOR by 4% per annum
Aviva Investors Global Outperform the IPD UK PPF All Balanced
Property

Funds Index

DCC Investment Team

Specialist Funds

Outperform the median return of the local
authority peer group

Page 182




Agenda Item 9

Devon Pension Fund Devon

County Council /%

Funding Strategy Statement

1 Introduction

1.1 This is the Funding Strategy Statement for the Devon County Council Pension
Fund. It has been prepared in accordance with Regulation 58 of the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (“the Regulations”) and
describes Devon County Council’s strategy, in its capacity as Administering
Authority, for the funding of the Devon County Council Pension Fund (“the
Fund”).

1.2 In accordance with Regulation 58(3), all employers participating within the
Devon County Council Pension Fund have been consulted on the contents of
this Statement and their views have been taken into account in formulating
the Statement. However, the Statement describes a single strategy for the

Fund as a whole.

1.3 The Fund Actuary, Barnett Waddingham LLP, has also been consulted on the

contents of this Statement.

2 Purpose of the Funding Strategy Statement

2.1 The purpose of this Funding Strategy Statement is to explain the funding

objectives of the Fund and in particular:

e How the costs of the benefits provided under the Local Government

Pension Scheme (the “Scheme”) are met though the Fund
o The objectives in setting employer contribution rates; and

o The funding strategy that is adopted to meet these objectives.

3 Purpose of the Fund

3.1 The purpose of the Fund is to:

Devon County Council — Updated September 2014
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 12 September 2014

Page 183



Agenda Iltem 9

-

e Pay pensions, lump sums and other benefits provided under the

Regulations;
e Meet the costs associated in administering the Fund; and

e Receive contributions, transfer values and investment income.

4 Funding Objectives

4.1 Contributions are paid to the Fund by Scheme members and the employing
bodies to provide for the benefits which will become payable to Scheme

members when they fall due.
4.2 The funding objectives are to:

o Set levels of employer contribution that will build up a fund of assets
that will be sufficient to meet all future benefit payments from the
Fund.

e Build up the required assets in such a way that employer contribution

rates are kept as low and stable as possible.

5 Key Parties

5.1 The key parties involved in the funding process and their responsibilities are as

follows:

The Administering Authority

5.2 The Administering Authority for the Pension Fund is Devon County Council. The

main responsibilities of the Administering Authority are to:
e Collect employee and employer contributions;
¢ Invest the Fund’s assets;

e Pay the benefits due to Scheme members;

Devon County Council — Updated September 2014
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 12 September 2014

Page 184




Agenda Item 9

e Manage the actuarial valuation process in conjunction with the Fund

Actuary;

e Prepare and maintain this Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) and also the
Statement of Investment Principles (SIP) after consultation with other

interested parties; and

e  Monitor all aspects of the Fund’s performance.

Scheme Employers
5.3 In addition to the Administering Authority, a number of other Scheme

Employers, including Admission Bodies, participate in the Fund.

5.4 The responsibilities of each Scheme Employer that participates in the Fund,

including the Administering Authority, are to:

e Collect employee contributions and pay these together with their own
employer contributions as certified by the Fund Actuary to the

Administering Authority within the statutory timescales;

e Notify the Administering Authority of any new Scheme members and

any other membership changes promptly;
e Exercise any discretions permitted under the Regulations; and

e Meet the costs of any augmentations or other additional costs in

accordance with agreed policies and procedures.

Fund Actuary
5.5 The Fund Actuary for the Pension Fund is Barnett Waddingham LLP. The main

responsibilities of the Fund Actuary are to:

e Advise interested parties on funding strategy and completion of

actuarial valuations in accordance with the FSS and the Regulations; and

e Advise on other actuarial matters affecting the financial position of the
Fund.

Devon County Council — Updated September 2014
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 12 September 2014

Page 185



Agenda Iltem 9

-

6 Funding Strategy

6.1

6.2

The factors affecting the Fund’s finances are constantly changing, so it is
necessary for its financial position and the contributions payable to be
reviewed from time to time by means of an actuarial valuation to check that

the funding objectives are being met.

The actuarial valuation involves a projection of future cash flows to and from
the Fund. The main purpose of the valuation is to determine the level of
employers’ contributions that should be paid to ensure that the existing
assets and future contributions will be sufficient to meet all future benefit

payments from the Fund.

7 Funding Method

7.1

7.2

7.3

The key objective in determining employer’s contribution rates is to establish
a funding target and then set levels of employer contribution to meet that

target over an agreed period.

The funding target is to have sufficient assets in the Fund to meet the accrued
liabilities for each employer in the Fund. The funding target may, however,
depend on certain employer circumstances and in particular, whether an
employer is an “open” employer — one which allows new recruits access to
the Fund, or a “closed” employer which no longer permits new staff access to
the Fund. The expected period of participation by an employer in the Fund

may also affect the chosen funding target.

For open employers, the actuarial funding method that is adopted is known as
the Projected Unit Funding Method which considers separately the benefits in
respect of service completed before the valuation date (“past service”) and
benefits in respect of service expected to be completed after the valuation
respect of service completed before the valuation date (“past service”) and
benefits in respect of service expected to be completed after the valuation

date (“future service”). This approach focuses on:

Devon County Council — Updated September 2014
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 12 September 2014

Page 186




Agenda Item 9

e The past service funding level of the Fund. This is the ratio of
accumulated assets to liabilities in respect of past service. It makes
allowance for future increases to members’ pay for pensions in
payment. A funding level in excess of 100 per cent indicates a surplus of
assets over liabilities; while a funding level of less than 100 per cent

indicates a deficit; and

e The future service funding rate which is. The level of contributions
required from the individual employers which, in combination with
employee contributions is expected to support the cost of benefits

accruing in future.

7.4 The key feature of this method is that, in assessing the future service cost, the

contribution rate represents the cost of one year’s benefit accrual.

7.5 For closed employers, the funding method adopted is known as the Attained
Age Method. The key difference between this method and the Projected Unit
Method is that the Attained Age Method assesses the average cost of the
benefits that will accrue over the remaining expected working lifetime of

active members.

8 Valuation Assumptions and Funding Model

8.1 In completing the actuarial valuation it is necessary to formulate assumptions
about the factors affecting the Fund's future finances such as inflation, pay
increases, investment returns, rates of mortality, early retirement and staff

turnover etc.
8.2 The assumptions adopted at the valuation can therefore be considered as:

e The statistical assumptions which are essentially estimates of the

likelihood of benefits and contributions being paid, and

e The financial assumptions which will determine the estimates of the
amount of benefits and contributions payable and their current or

present value.

Devon County Council — Updated September 2014
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 12 September 2014

Page 187



Agenda Iltem 9

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

Future Price Inflation

The base assumption in any valuation is the future level of price inflation over
a period commensurate with the duration of the liabilities. This is derived by
considering the average difference in yields over the appropriate period from
conventional and index linked gilts during the six months straddling the
valuation date to provide an estimate of future price inflation as measured by
the Retail Price Index (or “RPI”).

Future Pay Inflation

As some of the benefits are linked to pay levels at retirement, it is necessary
to make an assumption as to future levels of pay inflation. Historically, there
has been a close link between price and pay inflation with pay increases

exceeding price inflation in the longer term.

Future Pension Increases

Pension increases are linked to changes in the level of the Consumer Price
Index (or “CPI”). Inflation as measured by the CPI has historically been less
then RPI due mainly to different calculation methods. An adjustment is

therefore made to the RPI assumption to derive the CPl assumption.

Future Investment Returns/Discount Rate

To determine the value of accrued liabilities and derive future contribution
requirements it is necessary to discount future payments to and from the

Fund to present day values.

The discount rate that is adopted will depend on the funding target adopted
for each employer.

For open employers, the discount rate that is applied to all projected liabilities
reflects a prudent estimate of the rate of investment return that is expected
to be earned from the underlying investment strategy by considering average
market yields in the six months straddling the valuation date. The discount

rate so determined may be referred to as the “ongoing” discount rate.

Devon County Council — Updated September 2014
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 12 September 2014

Page 188




Agenda Item 9

8.9 For closed employers, an adjustment may be made to the discount rate in
relation to the remaining liabilities, once all active members are assumed to
have retired if at that time (the projected “termination date”), the employer

becomes an exiting employer under Regulation 64.

8.10 The Fund Actuary will incorporate such an adjustment after consultation with

the Administering Authority.

8.11 The adjustment to the discount rate for closed employers is to set a higher
funding target at the projected termination date, so that there are sufficient
assets to fund the remaining liabilities on a “minimum risk” rather than on an
ongoing basis. The aim is to minimise the risk of deficits arising after the

termination date.

Asset Valuation

8.12 For the purposes of the valuation, the asset value used is the market value of
the accumulated Fund at the valuation date adjusted to reflect average

market conditions during the six months straddling the valuation date.

Statistical Assumptions

8.13 The statistical assumptions incorporated into the valuation, such as future
mortality rates, are based on national statistics. These are adjusted as
appropriate to reflect the individual circumstances of the Fund and/or

individual employers.

8.14 Further details of all of the assumptions adopted are included in the latest

actuarial valuation report.

9 Deficit Recovery / Surplus Amortisation Periods

9.1 Whilst one of the funding objectives is to build up sufficient assets to meet
the cost of benefits as they accrue, it is recognised that at any particular point

in time, the value of the accumulated assets will be different to the value of

Devon County Council — Updated September 2014
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 12 September 2014

Page 189



Agenda Iltem 9

-

9.2

9.3

accrued liabilities, depending on how the actual experience of the Fund differs
to the actuarial assumptions. Accordingly the Fund will normally either be in

surplus or in deficit.

Where the actuarial valuation discloses a significant surplus or deficit then the
levels of required employers’ contributions will include an adjustment to

either amortise the surplus or fund the deficit over a period of years.
The period that is adopted for any particular employer will depend on:
e The significance of the surplus or deficit relative to that employer’s
liabilities;
e The covenant of the individual employer and any limited period of

participation in the Fund; and

e The implications in terms of stability of future levels of employers’

contribution.

10 Pooling of Individual Employers

10.1

10.2

10.3

The policy of the Fund is that each individual employer should be responsible
for the costs of providing pensions for its own employees who participate in
the Fund. Accordingly, contribution rates are set for individual employers to

reflect their own particular circumstances.

However, certain groups of individual employers are pooled for the purposes
of determining contribution rates to recognise common characteristics or

where the number of Scheme members is small.

The main purpose of pooling is to produce more stable employer contribution
levels in the longer term whilst, recognising that ultimately there will be some

level of cross-subsidy of pension cost amongst pooled employers.

Devon County Council — Updated September 2014
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 12 September 2014

Page 190




Agenda Item 9

11 Stepping

11.1 Additionally, the Administering Authority will consider at each valuation
whether the new contribution rate required from an employer by the funding
model should be payable immediately or can be reached by a series of steps

over a number of years.

11.2 The present policy of the Administering Authority is that no more than three
equal annual steps will be permitted in the normal course of events. An
increase to this may be permitted in extreme cases, but the total will not

exceed a maximum of six annual steps

12 Cessation Valuations

12.1 On the cessation of an employer’s participation in the Scheme, the Fund
Actuary will be asked to make a termination assessment. Any deficit in the
Fund in respect of the employer will be due to the Fund as a termination
contribution, unless it is agreed by the Administering Authority and the other
parties involved that the assets and liabilities relating to the employer will

transfer within the Fund to another participating employer.

12.2 In assessing the financial position on termination, the Fund Actuary may
adopt a discount rate based on gilt yields and adopt different assumptions to
those used at the previous valuation in order to protect the other employers
in the Fund from having to fund any future deficits which may arise from the

liabilities that will remain in the Fund.

13 Links with the Statement of Investment Principles
(SIP)

13.1 The main link between the Funding Strategy Statement and the SIP relates to
the discount rate that underlies the funding strategy as set out in the FSS, and
the expected rates of investment return which is expected to be achieved by

the underlying investment strategy as set out in the SIP.

Devon County Council — Updated September 2014
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 12 September 2014

Page 191



Agenda Iltem 9

-

14 Risks and Counter Measures

14.1

14.2

Whilst the funding strategy attempts to satisfy the funding objectives of
ensuring sufficient assets to meet pension liabilities and stable levels of
employer contributions, it is recognised that there are risks that may impact
on the funding strategy and hence the ability of the strategy to meet the

funding objectives.

The major risks to the funding strategy are financial, although there are other
external factors including demographic risks, regulatory risks and governance

risks.

15 Financial Risks

15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

The main financial risk is that the actual investment strategy fails to produce
the expected rate of investment return (in real terms) that underlies the
funding strategy. This could be due to a number of factors, including market
returns being less than expected and/or the fund managers who are
employed to implement the chosen investment strategy failing to achieve

their performance targets.

The valuation results are most sensitive to the real discount rate. Broadly
speaking an increase/decrease of 0.5 per cent per annum in the real discount
rate will decrease/increase the valuation of the liabilities by 10 per cent, and
decrease/increase the required employer contribution by around 2.5 per cent

of payroll.

However, the Pension Fund Committee regularly monitors the investment
returns achieved by the fund managers and receives advice from the

independent advisers and officers on investment strategy.

The Committee may also seek advice from the Fund Actuary on valuation

related matters.

Devon County Council — Updated September 2014
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 12 September 2014

Page 192




Agenda Item 9

15.5 In addition, the Fund Actuary provides funding updates between valuations to

check whether the funding strategy continues to meet the funding objectives.

16 Demographic Risks

16.1 Allowance is made in the funding strategy via the actuarial assumptions for a
continuing improvement in life expectancy. However, the main demographic
risk to the funding strategy is that it might underestimate the continuing
improvement in longevity. For example, an increase of one year to life
expectancy of all members in the Fund will reduce the funding level by

between approximately 1%.

16.2 The actual mortality of pensioners in the Fund is monitored by the Fund

Actuary at each actuarial valuation and assumptions are kept under review.

16.3 The liabilities of the Fund can also increase by more than has been planned as

a result of early retirements.

16.4 However, the Administering Authority monitors the incidence of early
retirements; and procedures are in place, that require individual employers to
pay additional amounts into the Fund to meet any additional costs arising

from early retirements.

17 Regulatory Risks

17.1 The benefits provided by the Scheme and employee contribution levels are
set out in Regulations determined by central Government. The tax status of

the invested assets is also determined by the Government.

17.2 The funding strategy is therefore exposed to the risks of changes in the
Regulations governing the Scheme and changes to the tax regime which may

affect the cost to individual employers participating in the Scheme.

17.3 However, the Administering Authority participates in any consultation process
of any proposed changes in Regulations and seeks advice from the Fund

Actuary on the financial implications of any proposed changes.

Devon County Council — Updated September 2014
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 12 September 2014

Page 193



Agenda Iltem 9

-

18 Governance

18.1 Many different employers participate in the Fund. Accordingly, it is
recognised that a number of employer-specific events could impact on the

funding strategy including:
e  Structural changes in an individual employer’s membership;

e Anindividual employer deciding to close the Scheme to new employees;

and

e An employer ceasing to exist without having fully funded their pension
liabilities.
18.2 However, the Administering Authority monitors the position of employers

participating in the Fund, particularly those which may be susceptible to the

events outlined, and takes advice from the Fund Actuary when required.

18.3 In addition, the Administering Authority keeps in close touch with all
individual employers participating in the Fund to ensure that, as
Administering Authority, it has the most up to date information available on
individual employer situations. It also keeps individual employers briefed on

funding and related issues.

19 Monitoring and Review

19.1 This FSS is reviewed formally, in consultation with the key parties, at least

every three years to tie in with the triennial actuarial valuation process.

19.2 The Administering Authority also monitors the financial position of the Fund
between actuarial valuations and may review the FSS more frequently if

necessary.

Devon County Council — Updated September 2014
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 12 September 2014

Page 194




Agenda Item 9

Devon

County Council /' ™

Devon Pension Fund
Communications Policy

This policy outlines in a single document the Fund’s internal and external
communications framework. It sets out our principles for managing
communications, including a summary of key strands of communications,
and the responsibilities of our staff in relation to communications.

1. Why we communicate

We have a large and broad range of member organisations for whom we
need to offer specialist advice so that they fully understand their
obligations as employers in the Devon Pension Fund.

Our scheme members, whether current employees and actively
contributing toward pension benefits, former employees with deferred
pension rights, or retired and in receipt of a pension number in their tens
of thousands. All are entitled to expert support and information.

2. Our methods of communication

We have a range of communication channels and when deciding which to
use we take into consideration the message, our customer and the cost to
the Fund. Each time, the aim is to use the most appropriate and efficient
means for reaching the member or audience.

2.1 Internet

Peninsula Pensions is a shared admin service run by Devon County Council
on behalf of the Devon and Somerset Pension Funds.

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 195



Agenda Iltem 9

e —— === The service web site is an extensive
yeninsula information resource with dedicated

e sections for anyone who may be thinking

K mm & of joining, is already a member, or may

B be a previous member or a pensioner

i et o A member

ﬁ Devon https://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/

ST sz Using the navigable menu the reader can

access eIectronic copies of scheme literature and advice such as on
methods of increasing future retirement benefits through options like
Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) and Additional Pension
Contributions (APCs) - although members should note that we are unable
to counsel on whether any scheme suits an individual’s personal
circumstances and strongly advise that anyone considering an AVC
arrangement or any such product takes independent advice before
making a final decision.

There is also a section for employers where they can obtain the latest
news and advice, or search the Employers Guide and source forms.

2.2 Telephone, email and fax

We publish a full list of team contact details via our website, organised
into areas of expertise so that employers and members can speak with or
email direct to the most appropriate person for their enquiry. Telephone
lines are operable during normal office hours.

All official correspondence displays telephone, email and fax details. The
Fund Administrators make full use of email for correspondence where
suitable.

2.3 Newsletters

Employer organisations of the Devon Pension Fund receive a quarterly
newsletter via the Peninsula Pensions shared service in the form of an
electronic magazine informing them of the latest news and developments
affecting the LGPS. This is intended to be helpful and informative.

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 196



Agenda Item 9

peninsula
pensions

We encourage employers to circulate the newsletter within their
organisation and make available direct emailing to those members of staff
who would like it. Special bulletins of this newsletter are also sent from
time to time when the occasion or need arises.

Similarly, Peninsula Pensions publishes the newsletter Pensions Post,
through which we keep our Fund members up to date with pensions
legislation and changes, and is available through member self service for
those who have registered.

2.4 Member Self-Service

Members can now access their own pension records online, via the Altair
Member Self Service portal incorporated into our website. Using simple
and easy to navigate screens accessed through a fully auditable security
system a member or pensioner is able to:

« update personal details

« view payslips, P60s and annual benefits statements

« model their own benefit calculations

e Vview newsletters

« request benefit statements

« notify the pensions department of any amendments required
« print nomination and other forms for completion

2.5 Scheme Literature

A range of scheme literature is produced by the Fund and made available
to employer organisations and employees through our website.

The Fund has produced an Employer Guide. This is a key product for
employers as it is a comprehensive reference source which helps them to
understand and fulfill their responsibilities. An electronic version is
maintained on Devon Pension Fund’s website within the dedicated

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 197



Agenda Iltem 9

employer section. Copies of leaflets and forms are also available to
employers from the website or on request.

2.6 Training & Liaison

We offer specialist training and advice to all Fund employers and this
covers the full range of administrative activities and tasks. We will also
deliver training that is tailored to the specific needs of an employer in-situ.

The Fund also holds an annual meeting at a technical level for all
employers. This meeting, known as the Pension Liaison Officers Group
(PLOG) provides an outstanding opportunity for all parties to exchange
views and news as well as addressing technical issues. Additional PLOGs
will be organised periodically if needs arise.

Dedicated liaison officers provide communications and support to
employers on various aspects of pension management and administration.

2.7 Annual Employers Meeting

Employer organisations have the opportunity to meet senior Investment
and Pension Fund managers once a year at the Annual Employers
Meeting. Pitched at a high level target audience of decision makers, the
meeting provides formal and informal opportunities to exchange
information and ask questions about fund performance, actuarial issues,
changes to workplace pension’s law, and developments in the reform of
public pensions and LGPS specifically.

2.8 Annual Consultative Meeting

An Annual Consultative Meeting (ACM) with members is held early in the
calendar year. This is organised with the trade unions (Unison and GMB).
The Chair of the Committee, the County Treasurer, the Assistant County
Treasurer — Investments and Treasury Management, and the Head of
Peninsula Pensions attend the ACM to make presentations and answer
any questions.

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 198



Agenda Item 9

2.9 Benefit Statements, Pay Advices, and P60s

Every year, we issue an annual benefit statement to all current
contributing members. This shows the current and prospective value of
the member’s benefits.

Deferred members will also receive a statement where a current address
is held for them or through Member Self Service.

We send pay advices to pensioners in April and May each year. These
show the effect of the annual pension increase and will include a P60 tax
document summarising pay and the tax deducted from it for the previous
year.

A payslip is also issued to pensioners if there has been a change of more
than £1 to their net monthly income.

2.10 Annual Report

The Pension Fund’s current Annual Report and Accounts is made available
at the Peninsula Pensions website
https://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/pension-fund-investments/devon-

county-council-investments/devon-fund-key-documents/ Hardcopy of the

full report can be provided upon request. Employee members are
informed of the web link via pay slips and all retired members receive a
leaflet by post or through Member Self Service.

Archived annual reports and accounts can also be accessed via the
website, as can a range of Fund publications including among others our
Statement of Investment Principles, Funding Strategy Statement, and the
most recent Actuarial Valuation Report.

3. Fund governance

3.1 The Investment and Pension Fund Committee

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee fulfils the duties of the
Devon County Council as the Administering Authority of the Pension Fund.

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 199



Agenda Iltem 9

The committee is made up of representatives from Devon County Council,
Unitary and District Councils, Police, Fire Services and Probation, Academic
Bodies, Trade Union, and retired Members.

Its main powers and duties are based on the provisions of the Local
Government Pension Fund (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2009, as amended, and are designed to ensure that the Fund
is properly and effectively managed. Its purpose is to make sure the
Council performs its duties as Administering Authority of the Devon
Pension Fund, reviewing and approving the Fund’s annual statement of
accounts, and making sure that appropriate accounting policies are
followed. It also brings to the attention of the Council any concerns
arising from financial statements or any audit.

Investment and Pension Fund Committee Meetings are held at least
guarterly and are open to the public as observers, other than where
information is exempt from public disclosure under the Local Government
Act 1972. Committee agendas, reports and minutes are made available via
the Devon County Council web site at
http://www.devon.gov.uk/index/councildemocracy/decision _making/cma
/index/councildemocracy/decision _making/cma/index_inv.htm

3.2 The Devon Pension Board

The Public Services Pension Act 2013 has required all Funds to establish a
local Pension Board to assist with governance and compliance from 1st
April 2015. Devon Pension board meetings are formal recorded occasions,
where the status of the scheme and associated issues are reviewed and
recommendations made concerning the standards of scheme governance
and administration.

The Board is due to meet at least twice a year, with one meeting in the
Spring and one in the Autumn. More information on the Pension Board
along with terms of reference and meeting minutes can be found on the
Peninsula Pensions website at
https://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/pension-fund-investments/devon-
county-council-investments/pension-board/

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015 6
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 200



Agenda Item 9

4. Our communication standards

We aspire to supply a high quality pension administration service
providing value for money and to meet the highest possible standards in
our dealings with all our customers.

These aims are set out in our Customer Charter which has been drawn up
specifically with employee members in mind, whether active, deferred or
of pensioner status. It describes how individuals who contact us will be
treated by our Pensions Services staff. It sets out core standards of service
which are measurable and encourages members to provide us with
feedback on how we are doing as well as what to do if unhappy with the
service they have received. https://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/lgps-
member/documents-and-forms/915-2/

5. Professional know how

The Devon Pension Fund employs the service of a range of actuarial and
investment specialists in order for it to achieve its purpose and fulfil its
pensions promise.

5.1 Actuarial Services

Actuaries perform a three-yearly Actuarial Valuation of the Devon Pension
Fund as required by LGPS Regulations. Assets and liabilities are measured
and valued and employer contribution rates are calculated that will
achieve the long term Fund Strategy.

The Fund maintains communications with the Actuary and Employers
throughout this exercise. All employers get the opportunity to meet the
Actuary when preliminary results are known.

The Actuary also provides us with information and advice on range of
issues affecting the Fund, especially when an employer organisation is
seeking to join or, more rarely, exit the Fund.

Actuarial Services to the Fund are currently provided by
https://www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk/

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 201



Agenda Iltem 9

5.2 Investment Fund Managers / Independent Advisers

Investment performance is consistently monitored and evaluated against
portfolio objectives and benchmarks. This is undertaken by the County
Treasurer’s Investment Team which has regular performance review
meetings with the professional external Fund Managers who are
appointed to invest the monies belonging to the Fund.

The County Treasurer reports to the Investment and Pension Fund
Committee on investment performance and each active external Fund
Manager will attend a briefing meeting with the Committee on an annual
basis.

Investment constraints are set by the Committee whose professional
knowledge is supplemented by the advice of the County Treasurer’s
Investment Team and an experienced independent investment adviser.

5.3 Legal Advice

Legal advice is normally provided by the County Solicitor but may involve
the appointment of specialist legal advisers for particular aspects of fund
management.

6. Other organisations we connect with

6.1 Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG)

DCLG (https://www.gov.uk/) is responsible for government policy on some
public sector pensions including the LGPS. The Devon Pension Fund
responds to consultation proposals for scheme changes

6.2 LGPS Scheme Advisory Board

The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board
(http://www.lgpsboard.org/) is a body set up under Section 7 of the Public
Service Pensions Act 2013. The purpose of the Board is to encourage best
practice, increase transparency and coordinate technical and standards
issues.

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 202



Agenda Item 9

It will consider items passed to it from the Department of Communities
and Local Government ("DCLG"), the Board's sub-committees and other
stakeholders as well as items formulated within the Board.
Recommendations may be passed to the DCLG or other bodies. It is also
likely that it will have a liaison role with the Pensions Regulator. Guidance
and standards may be formulated for local scheme managers and pension
boards.

The Devon Fund will need to respond to initiatives undertaken by the
Scheme Advisory Board, providing information where required, and
feeding into the Board’s working groups.

6.3 Local Government Association (LGA)

The LGA (http://www.local.gov.uk/workforce) represents the interests
of 375 local authorities in England and Wales to central government and
other bodies; specifically in this instance with regard to local government
pensions’ policy. The Workforce Team provide technical advice, a suite of
guides, booklets and publications and a full programme of pensions
training. The Fund obtains clarification and advice from LGE specialists
from time to time.

6.4 The Pensions Regulator

The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 gave additional responsibility to the
Pensions Regulator (http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/) to oversee
the LGPS. The Regulator has issued a code of practice for LGPS funds to
follow. The Devon Fund is required to report any significant breaches of
the code of practice or regulatory requirements to the Pensions Regulator.

6.5 The Pension and Lifetime Savings Association (PLSA)

NAPF (http://www.plsa.co.uk/) speaks collectively for workplace pension
schemes with the aim of influencing the direction of retirement provision.
It has deep working relationships in Westminster and Whitehall. The
Devon Pension Fund is a member of this organisation and this helps us to
be part of the national pension debate both in our own right and as a
group with other local authority pension funds.

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 203



Agenda Iltem 9

6.6 The Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF)

LAPFF ( http://www.lapfforum.org/) seeks to optimise the influence of
local authority pension funds as shareholders to advance high standards
of Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility. The Forum
has a number of business meetings and an annual conference or AGM
each year which is usually attended by the Assistant County Treasurer —
Investments and Treasury Management.

6.7 The Society of County Treasurers (SCT)

This is a forum of all Shire and Unitary Council Treasurers meeting
regularly for the sharing of information and best practice on all financial
matters including pension fund management (http://www.sctnet.org.uk/)

6.8 South West Investment Managers (SWIM)

A group of administering authority investment managers that meets on a
six-monthly basis to discuss investment issues and procurement methods.
Communication with the SWIM group is crucial to the sharing of best
practice and seeking opportunities for collaboration to reduce costs and
improve performance.

6.9 The South West Area Pension Officers Group (SWAPOG)

This liaison network is set up to promote consistent and uniform
interpretation of LGPS rules and regulations among administering
authorities in the region.

6.10 Press and Media

The Fund will actively engage with the press and other media
organisations in order to ensure clarity, facts and fair representation.
Enquiries from these bodies are handled by Devon County Council’s Press
and PR Officer.

Devon County Council Pension Fund — Updated November 2015
Approved by the Investment & Pension Fund Committee on 20th November 2015

Page 204

10



Agenda Item 9

T

STOC 419qWSAON Yi0e
9911WWO) pun4 UoISUd 73 JUBWISIAU| [1DUN0) Aluno) uoaaq ayi Aq panoiddy

JedA Jad 201m) 1se9) 1y

dUuljuUO 3|ge|ieAe Ajjuelsuo)

JeaA uad suoiseddo g/f 1ses)| 1y

JedA snoinaad 4oy 09d ‘|pul AelA g |1udy
[enuuy

duljuO 3|ge|leAe AjpuelSuUo)

JuswAo|dws 3uines| uodn

pue ‘4aAojdwa elA 40O SSaippe awoy 03 [enuuy
|[enuuy

sJaquiaw paJiial

JO Ssauppe awoy 03 JedA yoea paisod ‘sdi|s Aed
BIA YUl| gOM JO PISIApE 2Je Siaqwiaw 23Aojdw]
*92IAJS }|9S JoqWIaIA 03 papeojdn 1 auljuQ
3ujuiof uodn siaquuiaw Mau 03 panss! yoed
uoIsudd ‘sisaAojdw3 ySnouys painquisip 19)4ea
921AJDS J[3S Jaqwiaw ySnoJyy a|ge|leny

auljuo a|ge|ieAe Ajpueisuo)

Aduanbaug

uolilejuasatdas areuoliodoud

9AIYydJe Allioyiny Suaisiuiwpy
SN31e3s JOAJIDSqO YUm sday uolun aped |

sao1npe Aed

J9119|SMaN Jauolsuad

uonew.Jojul 1onpoid Hdy pue IAY

SluaWalels syyauag

(INDV) 8uni@an aAize}NSUO) |enuuy

(39)4€3] BuIseWWING)
S1UN02JY 13 14oday [enuuy

yoed UOISURJ puUE 13]4ea7 OWOId
J2119|SM3N 1S0d SuOIsuad

91ISga M\ 12UJa1U|

1Npoid

pJeog uoisuad ay3 uo Co_uchwmwgo_wm_

sa1nuiw
pue siaded 99331LWWOD PUNH UOISUDJ 1@ JUDSWISDAU| O3 SS9y

9911/ WWO0) pun4 UoIsuad 1@ JUsWisaAU| 9yl uo uoleluasaiday

(s1oqwia|A JauoIsuad) palonpap
Xe} pue 9seaJoul uoisuad |enuue 3y} JO S}I34D 9Y3 JO 33pajmouy
SH4aUaq suoisuad auniny anoidwi 03 shepn

(SJaqIBINl paJJaja(Q pUB dAINY) SHI2UQ 40 28pajMmou

s9|dipulid JuswisaAul
pue ‘@duew.oad JUSWISIAUI ‘S9IUBUI{ pun{ JO 33pajMouy

SJaqWiaWw Mau pue aA1309dsold 40 UOIIBWIOUl SWBYIS

S|Ie19p 10LU0D ‘BWIYIS 9yl INOge SMaU pue uollew.lolu|

uoieldadx3

:SI9QWIIAI SWAYIS

SPaaN UOIIEWLIOU| JOP|OYd)e1S SUIIS3IA :pUN4 UOISU3{ |12Uno) AJuUno) UoAaQ

Vv Xipuaddy

Page 205



Agenda Iltem 9

T

STOC 42qWBAON Yi0¢

9911WWO) pun4 UoISUd 73 JUBWISIAU| [1DUN0) Aluno) uoaaq ayi Aq panoiddy

JedA Jad 201my 1se9) 1y

auljuo 3|qe|ieae Ajpueisuo)
JeaA uad suoiseddo g/f 1ses)| 1y

1oddns 3sijeidads paiedipaq

auluo

dUuI|UO 3|ge|leAe Ajjuelsuo)
9S1JE SPA3U SE puk |enuuy
puewsp uQ

Sul08up

pun{ uoAaQ 3y}
JO uonen|e |elenidy ayl uodn AjieaA-aaay

poau 03 SuipJ032e SIUSAS |e1dads snid [enuuy

91ISgaM 3y} BIA S}0daJ PaAIydJe pue [enuuy

sul39||nqg |e1aads snid Ajua1ienp

auljuo a|ge|ieAe Ajjueisuo)

Aduanbai4

uollejuasatdal areuoliodoud

9AIY2IY Ajdoyiny Suliaisiuiwpy
uoneiuasasdas ajeuonniodoud

oueping 303foud

S}EYIMO|} pue
SwJ0y ‘s49119] 21e|dwa} ‘uoirewoul

yoed awWodd M

(901d) dnoJ 122140 uosler] uoisuad
Sujuies] 3sijernads

1oddns pue uosie

Sunss|y sisAojdw3 ,Asenioy ayl 199N,

wnJo4 / 3unaaln sioholdw3

(Moday [n4) s;unoddYy % 1oday |enuuy

J9119|SMal aUul7-3

91ISga/\ 18U4a1u]

dnpoid

pJeog uoisuad 3y} Uo uoieluasaiday

sa1nuIW
pue siaded 93131WIWOY pUN4 UOISUS g JUBWISIAU| 0} SS9IIY

99111WWOY) pun4 UOISUd 1 JUSWISDAU| Y] UO uolIeIUdSAIdDY
‘uole|si39|

uoisuad 90e|d)JOoM JapUN SWJI03J JUBW|OJUS -0INE YUM
8uiAjldwod uo siaAojdws 40} d21ApE - s99A0|dwT JO JusW|0Iu]

siaquiaw
9A1309ds0ud 10y S|elsalew [euoilowold pue uollew.oul dWayds

S3SB} pue SalHAINoe
dAI3eJISIUIWPE JO SulpuelSIapuUN pue 33pPaIMOouy| |BIIUYID |

'S93eJ uollngliauod JoAojdwa
pue s[aA3| Suipuny Sulpnjdul SJ911ew |elenioe Jo Suipueisiapun

‘98ueyoxa uolleWIOLUl PUB ‘SMAU ‘SyuawdolaAap
‘adeaspue| uojsuad ay3 ‘ssa4304d s,pun{ ay3 Jo 93pa|mou

S9dUeUl{ pun4 Jo a8pajmou|

.mwum_oo_D mucmrc.hotwn_ JUIWI]SaAUI pue SMalu 1SajeT .mpcwrcm.:DUo.h

2WaYads O] SUOISINaJ pue Co_um_m_mm_ ul mwmcmr_u jnoge uoljew.Joju]

s}0day pue sa121]10d pun4 ‘SwJioj pue sapingd ‘94njetall| awayds

uoneyadxy

:s19Aojdw3

Page 206



Agenda Item 9

Devon Pension Fund

Governance Policy and
Compliance Statement

Devon (Fp

County Council

Introduction

This policy and compliance statement outlines the governance arrangements for the
Devon Pension Fund, maintained by Devon County Council, as required by regulation 31
of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008 (as
amended).

Under that provision all LGPS Funds in England and Wales are required to produce a
Governance Compliance Statement, revise it following any material change in their delegation
arrangements and publish it. The statement is required to set out:

(a) whether the administering authority delegates their function or part of their function
in relation to maintaining a pension fund to a committee, a subcommittee or an
officer of the authority;

(b) if they do so:
(iy the terms, structure and operational procedures of the delegation;
(i) the frequency of any committee or sub-committee meetings;

(iii) whether such a committee or sub-committee includes representatives of
employing authorities (including authorities which are not Scheme employers)
or members, and if so, whether those representatives have voting rights.

(c) the extent to which a delegation, or the absence of a delegation, complies with
guidance given by the Secretary of State and, to the extent that it does not so
comply, the reasons for not complying.

Each administering authority is required to:
(a) keep the statement under review;

(b) make such revisions as are appropriate following a material change in respect of
any of the matters mentioned in (a) to (c) above; and

(c) if revisions are made:
(i) publish the statement as revised, and
(i) send a copy of it to the Secretary of State.

In reviewing and making revisions to the statement, the authority must consult such persons as
it considers appropriate.

The Governance Policy has been updated to reflect the governance changes required by the
Public Sector Pensions Act 2013 and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment)
(Governance) Regulations 2015.

Devon County Council
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 27 February 2015

Page 207



Agenda Iltem 9

Governance Structure

This Devon Pension Fund governance structure is illustrated below. The structure relates to
administering authority responsibilities only. Devon County Council is also an employer within
the Devon Pension Fund. A separate governance structure and scheme of delegation is in
place in relation to Devon County Council’s employer responsibilities.

Devon County Council 2
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 27 February 2015

Page 208



Agenda Item 9

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee is composed as follows:

Representing No | Comments
Devon County Council 6 | Administering Authority representatives
: . One from each of Plymouth City Council

Sy GeUE e 2 and Torbay Council

District Councils 1 | Nominated by Devon LGA

Other Employers 1 | Nominated by Employers Forum

The Contributors 2 Nominatgd by UNISON / GMB unions
(Non-voting)

The Beneficiaries 1 Nominat_ed by UNISON / GMB unions
(Non-voting)

All members and representatives, with the exception of the representatives nominated by the
trade unions, have equal voting rights. The Committee has also agreed that the Unitary and
District authorities should be able to nominate substitute councillors to attend committee
meetings should the nominated councillors be unable to do so.

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee is supported in the execution of its
responsibilities by the following:

e The County Treasurer and staff from the Authority’s Investments and Pensions
Administration teams.

e An Independent Investment Advisor (currently Steve Tyson of AllenbridgeEpic)
e  An Actuary (Currently Graeme Muir of Barnett Waddingham)

The Committee meets quarterly, and also has regular training sessions that all representatives
and substitute members are invited to attend, in order to ensure that they are equipped as well
as possible to fulfil their obligations.

Devon County Council 3
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 27 February 2015

Page 209



Agenda Iltem 9

-

Role of the Investment and Pension Fund Committee

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee oversees the operation of the Devon Pension
Fund on behalf of Devon County Council. The County Council’'s Constitution sets out the
delegated role of the Investment and Pension Fund Committee as follows:

To discharge the duties of the Council as Administering Authority of the Pension Fund
and to review and approve the annual statement of accounts of the Devon Pension Fund,
to consider whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether
there are concerns arising from the financial statements or from any audit that need to be
brought to the attention of the Council. To review and approve the annual statement of
the Pension Fund accounts.

Devon County Council Constitution Part 3 Responsibility for Functions paragraph 9.1
In fulfilling that role the Committee undertakes the following tasks:

e  Monitoring the administration of the Pension Scheme, including the benefit regulations and
payment of pensions and their day to day administration, ensuring that it delivers best value
and complies with best practice guidance where considered appropriate.

e Exercise of Pension Fund discretions on behalf of the Administering Authority.
e Determination of Pension Fund policy in regard to employer admission arrangements.

e Determination of the Pension Fund's Funding Strategy and approval of its Funding Strategy
Statement.

e Receiving periodic actuarial valuation reports from the Actuary.

e  Coordination of Administering Authority responses to consultations by Central Government,
professional and other bodies.

e Approval and review of the content of the Statement of Investment Principles.
e Approval and review of the asset allocation benchmark for the Fund.
e Appointment and review of Investment Managers, Custodian and Advisors.

e  Monitoring the quality and performance of each Investment Manager in conjunction with
investment advisors and the Section 151 Officer.

e  Setting and reviewing the investment parameters within which the Investment Managers
can operate.

e  Monitoring compliance of the investment arrangements with the Statement of Investment
Principles.

e Assessment of the risks assumed by the Fund at a global level as well as on a manager by
manager basis.

e  Approval of the Annual Report.

Devon County Council
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 27 February 2015

Page 210




Agenda Item 9

The Pension Board

The Pension Board is composed of nine members as follows:

Representing No | Comments
Appointed by the Administering Authority
Fund Members 4 | from applicants responding to an
advertisement.

Two appointed by Devon County Council,
Fund Employers 4 | plus two elected by employers at an Annual
Employers’ Meeting.

Appointed by the Administering Authority
Independent Member 1 | from applicants responding to an
advertisement. (Non-voting)

All members and representatives, with the exception of the Independent Member will have
equal voting rights. The Board will appoint a Chairman and Vice Chairman from among its
members. Members of the Investment and Pension Fund Committee are excluded from
membership of the Pension Board.

The members of the Pension Board serve for a four year term, subject to the following:

e The representatives of the administering authority shall be appointed annually by the Devon
County Council Annual Council Meeting, but with a view to maintaining stability of
membership.

o Two member representatives and one employer representative shall serve for an initial six
year term, after which a four year term will be served, to promote continuity of experience
by reducing the risk of all members being replaced by new members at the same time.

e The independent member shall also serve for an initial six year term, after which a four year
term will be served.

e  The membership of any member who fails to attend for two consecutive meetings or two
consecutive training events shall be reviewed by the Board and shall be terminated in the
absence of mitigating factors.

e Arrangements shall be made for the replacement of members who resign or whose
membership ceases due to non-attendance in line with the procedures for their original
appointment.

The Pension Board requires the support of the Fund’s key advisors to support it in the execution
of its responsibilities. These will include the County Treasurer and staff from the Authority’s
Investments and Pensions Administration teams. It will also include staff from the Devon Audit
Partnership. The Board will also be able to seek advice from other advisors, such as the Fund
Actuary, and the Fund’s external auditors.

The Board will meet twice a year, once in the Spring and once in the Autumn. In addition
training sessions will be held, which may be joint sessions with the Investment and Pension
Fund Committee.

Devon County Council
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 27 February 2015

Page 211




Agenda Iltem 9

-

Role of the Pension Board

The role of the local Pension Board as defined by sections 5 (1) and (2) of the Public Service
Pensions Act 2013, is to —

e Assist the Administering Authority as Scheme Manager; —
- to secure compliance with the LGPS regulations and any other legislation relating to the

governance and administration of the LGPS;

- to secure compliance with requirements imposed in relation to the LGPS by the
Pensions Regulator;

- in such other matters as the LGPS regulations may specify.
e  Secure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the LGPS for the
Pension Fund.

e Provide the Scheme Manager with such information as it requires to ensure that any
member of the Pension Board or person to be appointed to the Pension Board does not
have a conflict of interest.

The Pension Board will also help ensure that the Devon Pension Fund is managed and
administered effectively and efficiently and ensure that it complies with the code of practice on
the governance and administration of public service pension schemes issued by the Pension
Regulator.

In fulfilling that role the Board undertakes the following tasks:

e  Monitor compliance of the Pension Fund with legislation, guidance issued by the Pensions
Regulator, and with the policies set out in the Fund’s statutory statements.

e Review and scrutinise the performance of the Pension Fund in relation to its governance
and administration, policy objectives and performance targets.

e Approval of the Annual Internal Audit Plan for the Devon Pension Fund and for Peninsula
Pensions.

e Consideration of the Internal Audit Annual Report and regular update reports for the Devon
Pension Fund and Peninsula Pensions.

e Consideration of the External Audit report on the Pension Fund Annual Report and
Statement of Accounts.

e Review of the Pension Fund Risk Register.

e  Monitoring of the Fund’s Internal Dispute Resolution Procedures.

Devon County Council
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 27 February 2015

Page 212




Agenda Item 9

Role of the County Treasurer

The County Treasurer is Devon County Council’s Section 151 (Local Government Act 1972)
Officer and the Proper Officer under s115 of the Local Government Act 1972 responsible for the
proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs, including the Devon Pension Fund.

The following responsibilities are delegated to the County Treasurer:

e The management, monitoring and reporting to the Investment and Pension Fund
Committee of the activities and the performance of the:

a. Investment Managers;
b. Investment Consultants and Advisors;
c¢. Fund Custodian.
e The management of the Fund’s cash assets directly held by the Administering Authority.

e The authorisation of cash or asset movements between the Administering Authority, the
Fund Custodian and the investment managers.

e Accounting for all investment transactions in compliance with standard accountancy and
audit practice.

e Taking action to rebalance the Fund by moving funds between current managers, where
actual asset allocation varies by more than 2.5% from the target allocation.

e Allocating surplus cash of up to £50m to the Fund’s investment managers, in consultation
with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman, when deemed that such an allocation could be
made to the benefit of the Fund.

e The payment of fees to the investment managers and the custodian in accordance with
their contractual agreements.

o The Committee has delegated the use of voting rights on the Fund’s shareholdings to the
investment managers. In exceptional circumstances the County Treasurer may, in
consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman, direct the investment managers to vote
in a specific way.

e The admission of organisations into the Pension Scheme - in accordance with approved
policy.

e Under exceptional circumstances, taking urgent decisions regarding management of funds
in the event that existing fund managers are unable to fulfil their responsibilities.

e In consultation with specialist advisors determining, on a risk by risk basis, whether to
pursue litigation cases to attempt to recover sums due in relation to taxation issues or class
actions.

e Exercising the discretionary powers allowed under the LGPS regulations.

Devon County Council
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 27 February 2015

Page 213



Agenda Iltem 9

-

Governance Compliance Statement

The following table sets out the Devon Pension Fund’s level of compliance with the latest

guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.

As a statutory public service scheme, the LGPS has a different legal status compared with Trust
based schemes in the private sector. Governance matters in the LGPS therefore need to be
considered on their own merits and with a proper regard to the legal status of the scheme. This
includes how and where it fits in with the local democratic process through local government law
and locally elected councillors who have the final responsibility for its stewardship and

management.

Principle

Not
Compliant

Partially
Compliant

Fully
Compliant

A. Structure

(a) The management of the administration of
benefits and strategic management of fund assets
clearly rests with the main committee established by
the appointing council.

v

(b) That representatives of participating LGPS
employers, admitted bodies and scheme members
(including pensioner and deferred members) are
members of either the main or secondary committee
established to underpin the work of the main
committee.

v

(c) That where a secondary committee or panel has
been established, the structure ensures effective
communication across both levels.

N/A

(d) That where a secondary committee or panel has
been established, at least one seat on the main
committee is allocated for a member from the
secondary committee or panel.

N/A

Explanation of level of compliance

(c) and (d) No secondary committee has been established.

B. Representation

(a) That all key stakeholders are afforded the
opportunity to be represented within the main or
secondary committee structure. These include:

(i) employing authorities (including non-scheme
employers, eg, admitted bodies)

v

Page 214

Devon County Council
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 27 February 2015




Agenda Item 9

Not Partially | Fully

ALz el Compliant | Compliant | Compliant
(ii) scheme members (including deferred and /
pensioner scheme members);

(iii) where appropriate, independent professional /
observers; and

(iv) expert advisors (on an adhoc basis). /

(b) That where lay members sit on a main or
secondary committee, they are treated equally in
terms of access to papers and meetings, training /
and are given full opportunity to contribute to the

decision making process, with or without voting
rights.

Explanation of level of compliance

(a)(i) Devon’s two unitary authorities and district councils are represented on the Investment
and Pension Fund Committee. Currently there is no place for a representative of the
admitted bodies. The Fund has a significant number of disparate admitted bodies, and it is
considered impractical for each body or group of similar bodies to be separately represented
on the Committee.

(a)(ii) Representatives of scheme members are members of the Investment and Pension
Fund Committee, but without voting rights.

(a)(iii) The Devon Pension Fund considers that the roles envisaged by CLG for an
independent professional observer are already adequately catered for within the Fund’s
current governance arrangements through the participation of the Fund’s Independent
Advisor.

C. Selection and Role of Lay Members

(a) That committee or panel members are made
fully aware of the status, role and function they are /
required to perform on either a main or secondary

committee.

(b) That at the start of any meeting, committee
members are invited to declare any financial or /
pecuniary interest related to specific matters on the

agenda.

Investment & Pension Fund Committee 27 February 2015

Devon County Council ‘

Page 215



Agenda Iltem 9

-

Principle

Not
Compliant

Partially
Compliant

Fully
Compliant

D. Voting

(a) The policy of individual administering authorities
on voting rights is clear and transparent, including
the justification for not extending voting rights to
each body or group represented on main LGPS
committees.

v

E. Training / Facility Time / Expenses

(a) That in relation to the way in which statutory and
related decisions are taken by the administering
authority, there is a clear policy on training, facility
time and reimbursement of expenses in respect of
members involved in the decision making process.

(b) That where such a policy exists, it applies
equally to all members of committees,
subcommittees, advisory panels or any other form
of secondary forum.

(c) That the administering authority considers the
adoption of annual training plans for committee
members and maintains a log of all such training
undertaken.

v

Explanation of level of compliance

(c) Regular training is provided for members. Consideration is to be given to the introduction
of annual training plans for members and the maintenance of a log of all such training

undertaken.

F. Meetings - Frequency

(a) That an administering authority’s main
committee or committees meet at least quarterly.

v

(b) That an administering authority’s secondary
committee or panel meet at least twice a year and is
synchronised with the dates when the main
committee sits.

N/A

(c) That an administering authority who does not
include lay members in their formal governance
arrangements, must provide a forum outside of
those arrangements by which the interests of key
stakeholders can be represented.

v

Page 216

Devon County Council
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 27 February 2015




Agenda Item 9

Not Partially | Fully

Principle Compliant | Compliant | Compliant

Explanation of level of compliance

(b) No secondary committee has been established.

G. Access

(a) That subject to any rules in the council’s
constitution, all members of main and secondary

committees or panels have equal access to /
committee papers, documents and advice that falls

to be considered at meetings of the main
committee.

H. Scope

(a) That administering authorities have taken steps
to bring wider scheme issues within the scope of
their governance arrangements.

I. Publicity

(a) That administering authorities have published
details of their governance arrangements in such a

way that stakeholders with an interest in the way in /
which the scheme is governed, can express an
interest in wanting to be part of those arrangements.

Devon County Council 1
Investment & Pension Fund Committee 27 February 2015

Page 217



Agenda Item 9

LOCAL GOVERNMENT
PENSION SCHEME

Devon Pension Fund
Administration Strategy

pensions

April 2015

Page 218



Contents

1.

2.

Introduction

The Regulations

The Administration Strategy

Liaison and Communication

Levels of Performance — Employers

Level of Performance — Peninsula Pensions
Financial Information

Annexe

2
Page 219

Agenda Item 9

pensions

page 3
page 3
page 5
page 5
page 7
page 8
page 10

page 12



Agenda Iltem 9

pensions

Pension Administration Strategy 2014
1. Introduction

Peninsula Pensions is a shared pension administration service, run by Devon County
Council, providing the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) administration for
both Devon and Somerset administering authorities.

The shared service started on 1 September 2013 with both teams coming together in
one office in February 2014.

The Devon and Somerset Pension Funds and their Committees remain independent
from each other with each Administering Authority retaining Investment responsibility
Both the Devon and Somerset Pension Fund Committees, have agreed to the
implementation of a Pension Administration Strategy (PAS). Although there will be one
strategy per fund, the contents will be the same for both, to ensure an equal, efficient
and quality service for all stakeholders.

The Pensions Administration Strategy supports the pension fund on behalf of its
employing authorities and the administering authority. The objective of the strategy is
to define the roles and responsibilities of the Administering Authority and the
employing authorities under the LGPS regulations.

In no circumstances does this strategy override any provision or requirement of the
regulations set out below nor is it intended to replace the more extensive commentary
provided by the Employers’ Guide and website for day-to-day operations.

The Fund will review and revise this policy statement if policies which relate to
strategy matters change. Employers will be consulted and informed of the changes
and a revised statement will be supplied to the Secretary of State.

2. The Regulations

In accordance with Regulation 59 of the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Administration) Regulations 2013:

1) An administering authority may prepare a written statement of the authority’s
policies in relation to such of the matters mentioned in paragraph (2) as it considers
appropriate ("its pension administration strategy") and, where it does so, paragraphs

(3) to (7) apply.

2) The matters are—

(@) procedures for liaison and communication with Scheme employers in relation to
which it is the administering authority ("its Scheme employers");

(b) the establishment of levels of performance which the administering authority

3
Page 220



Agenda Item 9

pensions

and its Scheme employers are expected to achieve in carrying out their
Scheme functions by—

(i) the setting of performance targets,

(i) the making of agreements about levels of performance and associated matters,
or

(iii) such other means as the administering authority considers appropriate;

c¢) procedures which aim to secure that the administering authority and its Scheme
employers comply with statutory requirements in respect of those functions and with
any agreement about levels of performance;

d) procedures for improving the communication by the administering authority and its
Scheme employers to each other of information relating to those functions;

e) the circumstances in which the administering authority may consider giving written
notice to any of its Scheme employers under regulation 70 (additional costs arising
from Scheme employer’s level of performance) on account of that employer’s
unsatisfactory performance in carrying out its Scheme functions when measured
against levels of performance established under sub-paragraph (b);

f) the publication by the administering authority of annual reports dealing with—
(i) the extent to which that authority and its Scheme employers have achieved
the levels of performance established under sub-paragraph (b), and
(ii) such other matters arising from its pension administration strategy as it
considers appropriate; and

(g) such other matters as appear to the administering authority after consulting its
Scheme employers and such other persons as it considers appropriate, to be suitable
for inclusion in that strategy.

3. An administering authority must—
(a) keep its pension administration strategy under review; and

(b) make such revisions as are appropriate following a material change in its policies
in relation to any of the matters contained in the strategy.

(4) In preparing or reviewing and making revisions to its pension administration
strategy, an administering authority must consult its Scheme employers and such
other persons as it considers appropriate.

(5) An administering authority must publish—

(a) its pension administration strategy; and

(b) where revisions are made to it, the strategy as revised.

4
Page 221



Agenda Iltem 9

pensions

(6) Where an administering authority publishes its pension administration strategy, or
that strategy as revised, it must send a copy of it to each of its Scheme employers and
to the Secretary of State as soon as is reasonably practicable.

(7) An administering authority and its Scheme employers must have regard to the
pension administration strategy when carrying out their functions under these
Regulations.

(8) In this regulation references to the functions of an administering authority include,
where applicable, its functions as a Scheme employer.

3. The Administration Strategy

This strategy formulates the administrative arrangements between the pension fund
and the participating employing authorities. It recognises that both fund employers and
Peninsula Pensions have a shared role in delivering an efficient and effective pension
fund to its scheme members and this can only be achieved by co-operation.

With the introduction of this framework, the aim is to enhance the flow of data by
having clear channels of communication in place, so that each authority is fully aware
of its role and responsibilities within this process, as outlined by the LGPS provisions.

An annual report will be issued by Peninsula Pensions to illustrate the extent to which
the standard of performance established under this strategy has been achieved and
such other matters arising from the strategy as appropriate.

4. Liaison and Communication

The delivery of a high quality, cost-effective administration service is not the
responsibility of just the administering authority, but depends on the administering
authority working with a number of individuals in different organisations to make sure
that members and other interested parties receive the appropriate level of service and
ensure that statutory requirements are met.

Peninsula Pensions will have an Employer Liaison Officer who will be the main contact
for any administration query relating to the correct interpretation of the LGPS
regulations, employer responsibilities and help when completing interfaces and forms.

Each employing authority will designate named individual(s) to act as a Pensions
Liaison Officer the primary contact with regard to any aspect of administering the
LGPS. The Pension Liaison Officer(s) will be given a user name and password to
access the employer section of the Peninsula Pensions website

Peninsula Pensions will employ a multi-channel approach in liaising and

communicating with employing authorities to ensure that all requirements are
consistently met.

5
Page 222



Agenda Item 9

pensions

The various channels of communication employed by the fund include:

1. Peninsula Pensions website — the main communication tool for both
employers and scheme members.

o Employers — Dedicated and secure employer section where employers
can access procedure guides, information on courses run by the fund,
access back copies of the Pensions Line, access Employer Self
Service and Interface information.

o Electronic communication — unless agreed separately all employers
will be required to provide data through the Employer Self Service
Portal and/or Interfaces.

o Scheme members — access to up-to-date information about all
aspects of the LGPS. Member Self service area where member’'s can
update personal details, review annual benefit statements and
newsletters and do their own pensions estimates.

o Contact Details — All Peninsula Pension Staff roles and contact
information together with both Funds Investment Team contact details

2. Scheme members who have chosen to opt out of the Member Self Service
will continue to receive postal communication. They will still be able to access
up-to-date information about all aspects of the LGPS via our website.

3. Periodic newsletters issued to scheme members and all employing
authorities and placed on Peninsula Pensions website.

4. Induction and pre-retirement workshops undertaken upon request to
develop both employer and scheme member understanding, minimum number
of attendees 10 required

5. Pension surgeries held for scheme members upon employer request to
resolve any individual or collective issues that members may have.

6. Quarterly E-zine sent directly to employer representatives to provide
notification of any scheme / administrative updates and developments.

7. Employer seminars and training groups held when required to review
scheme developments, or to resolve any training needs that employers may
have.

8. Annual Consultative Meeting held to review the investment and
administrative issues that the pension fund has experienced during the
preceding 12 months, and also to look forward at the challenges that lie ahead
for the next 12 months.

9. Employer representatives distribute information supplied by the pension fund
to scheme members within their organisation, such as scheme guides and
factsheets.

Note: Peninsula Pensions are not responsible for verifying the accuracy of any
information provided by the employer for the purpose of calculating benefits under the

6
Page 223



Agenda Iltem 9

pensions

provisions of the Local Government Pension Scheme and the Discretionary Payments

Regulations. That responsibility rests with the employer.

Payroll providers — where an employer delegates responsibility to a payroll provider,
for the provision of information direct to Peninsula Pensions, a delegation form needs
to be completed confirming which areas you are allowing them to act on your behalf
for. If the information received from the payroll provider results in wrong
information/benefit being paid the responsibilities under the Local Government

Pension Regulations rest with the Employer.

5. Standards of Performance - Employers

Expectation is to complete 90% of cases within the timescale quoted.

Employer Responsibility

Timescale to inform
Peninsula Pensions
using Employer Self
Service or other agreed
methods

To ensure that all employees subject to 1 month
automatic admission are brought into the

scheme from the date of appointment. Determine their

pensionable pay and contribution rate.

Update Peninsula Pensions with changes to scheme 1 month

members details such as change of hours or name.

Deduct scheme member contributions including APCs
and pay over to the fund.

As stipulated by your
pension fund

To deduct from a members pay and pay over any
Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) to the in-
house AVC provider

Before the 19" of the
following month after
deducted from pay

On cessation of membership determine reason for
leaving, final pay for calculating pre 2014 benefits and
CARE pay for post 2014 benefits as appropriate.

Retirees preferably at
least 1 month before
date of leaving.. All within
5 working days of final
payday.

Leavers under age 55
within 1 month from final

payday.

Where a member dies in service determine final pay for
calculating pre 2014 benefits and CARE pay for post
2014 benefits as appropriate.

Preferably within 2 weeks
of date of death. All within
5 working days of final

payday.

Provide monthly CARE data within required format

Within 2 weeks of pay run

Provide end-of-year data within required format

30 April each year

Publishing a policy relating to the key employing
authority discretions required by the LGPS regulations

Within 1 month of
publication

Under Data Protection Act 1998 an employer will protect
information relating to a member contained in any item
issued by Peninsula Pensions from improper disclosure.
They will only use information supplied or made
available by Peninsula Pensions for the LGPS.

Ongoing requirement

7
Page 224




Agenda Item 9

pensions

There will be a regular exercise to review the
membership to the employers’ website and employing
authority contacts in general; Pension Liaison Officers
will be expected to assist the Employer Liaison Officer in
this exercise by confirming details Peninsula Pensions

hold are correct .

Annually

6. Level of Performance — Peninsula Pensions
Expectation is to complete 90% of cases within timescale quoted based on all relevant
information being received from the scheme employer.

Peninsula Pensions Responsibility

Timescale

To provide guidance on Employer Self
Service and interfaces for recording any
key information, such as starters,
changes and leavers or, if agreed with the
employer, to provide a document for the
provision of information.

Ongoing support

Provide the Employer Liaison Officer
and/or representatives with information
and assistance on the LGPS, its
administration and technical
requirements.

Ongoing support

To accurately record and update member
records on pension administration
systems.

10 working days

To produce a statutory notification and
forward to member's home address,
together with information relating to the
LGPS including how to request a transfer,
inform us of previous service, and
complete an expression of wish form.

1 month of notification

To process employer year-end
contribution returns and provide
consolidated and grouped error reports
for action by employers.

3 months

To produce annual benefit statements for
all active members as at the preceding 31
March and notify electronically or by post
to member's home address.

Sent out/available on MSS by 31 August

To produce annual benefit statements for
all preserved members, as at the
preceding 31 March, and notify
electronically or by post to member's
home address.

Sent out/available on MSS by 30 June

To provide information and quotations to
scheme member with regard to additional
voluntary contribution (AVC) options.

Within 10 working days

8
Page 225



Agenda Iltem 9

pensions

To provide information and quotations to
a scheme member on the option of
making Additional Pension Contributions
(APCs).

Within 10 working days

To produce retirement estimates for
employers, once in receipt of all of the
necessary information.

Within 10 working days

To accurately record and update member
records on pension administration
systems for those members leaving the
scheme, without entitlement to immediate
payment of benefits. Provide them with
the options available and deferred benefit
entitlement.

Within 1 month

To accurately calculate and inform the
member of the options available to them
upon retirement.

10 working days from receiving all
information from employer

Upon receipt of members completed
retirement forms finalise pension records,
and authorise payment of lump sum and
set up of payroll record.

Within 5 working days

Under the Data Protection Act 1998
Peninsula Pensions will protect
information relating to a member
contained on any item issued by them or
received by them from improper
disclosure.

Ongoing requirement, online security
within databases regularly reviewed.

Each Administering Authority is
responsible for exercising the
discretionary powers given to it by the
regulations. The Administering Authority
is also responsible for publishing its policy
to its members in respect of the key
discretions as required by the regulations.

Peninsula Pensions will maintain links to
these discretions on their website.

Notification of Pension Fund Triennial
Valuation results including contributions
rates

Assuming information provided by
Actuaries provisional results December
following valuation, with final results the
following March

9
Page 226




Agenda Item 9

pensions

7. Financial Information

Contributions (but not Additional Voluntary Contributions) should be paid monthly to
the pension fund by BACS unless we have agreed payment by cheque.

The employer must submit an advice with their payment stating the month and the
amount of the payment split between pre-2014 membership, post-2014 50/50
membership, and post-2014 100/100 membership for both employee and employer
contributions.

Employer contribution rates are not fixed. Employers are required to pay whatever is
necessary to ensure that the portion of the fund relating to their organisation is
sufficient to meet its liabilities as determined and certified by the fund actuary.

Administration fees and other charges
Interest on late payments

¢ In accordance with the LGPS regulations, interest will be charged on any
amount overdue from an employing authority by more than one month.

e Interest will be calculated at 1% above base rate on a day-to-day basis
from the due date to the date of payment and compounded with three-
monthly rests.

The employer is reported to The Pensions Regulator where contributions are received
late in accordance with the regulators code of practice.

Any over-payment resulting from inaccurate information supplied by the employer
shall be recovered from the employer.

In the event of the pension fund being levied by The Pensions Regulator, the charge
will be passed on to the relevant employer where that employer's action or inaction
(such as the failure to notify a retirement within the time limits described above, for
example) cause the levy.

Where additional costs have been incurred by the pension fund because of the
employing authority's level of performance in carrying out its functions under the
LGPS, the additional costs will be recovered from that employing authority.

The pension fund will give written notice to the employing authority stating:

e the reasons for the additional cost incurred

o that the employing authority should pay the additional costs incurred by
that authority’s level of performance

e the basis on which the specified amount is calculated, and

e the relevant provisions of the Pension Administration Strategy under which
the additional costs have arisen.

Any disagreement regarding the amount of additional cost being recovered will be
decided by the Secretary of State who will have regard to:

10
Page 227



Agenda Iltem 9

pensions

e the provisions of the pension administration strategy that are relevant to
the case, and

¢ the extent to which the pension fund and the employing authority have
complied with those provisions in carrying out their functions under these
regulations.

The pension fund has an actuarial valuation undertaken every three years by the
fund’s actuary. The actuary balances the fund’s assets and liabilities in respect of
each employer, and assesses the appropriate contribution rate for each employer to
be applied for the subsequent three year period.

The costs associated with the administration of the scheme are charged directly to the
pension fund, and the actuary takes these costs into account in assessing the
employers’ contribution rates.

Note: If an employer wishes to commission the fund actuary to undertake any
additional work, the cost will be charged to the employer.

New admission agreements — the setting up of admission agreements requires input
from the scheme administrator, their legal representative and the actuary. There will
be a charge to the employer who commissions the outsourcing.

Devon Pension & Investment Committee
Devon County Council
Date 27/02/2015

11
Page 228



Agenda Item 9

If you need more information or a
different format phone 0843 155 1015,
email customer@devon.gov.uk

text 80011 (start your message with the
word Devon) or write to

Devon County Council, County Hall,
Topsham Road, Exeter EX2 4QD

(vrecydle

If you don’t want to keep it, help the environment
by giving it to a friend to read or put it in your recycle bin.

Published by Devon County Council
County Hall, Topsham Road, Exeter EX2 4Q)J

www.devon.gov.uk

One tonne of recycled paper saves — 17 trees, 32,000 litres of water, enough electricity
to heat an average house for 6 months and 27kg of air pollutants

Devonf®
August 2016 Page 229 County Council






Agenda Item 10

CT/16/86
Devon Pension Board
14™ April 2016

DEVON PENSION BOARD BUDGET MONITORING 2016-17 — Month 6

Report of the County Treasurer

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and determination by

the Board before taking effect.

Recommendation: that the Board notes the Devon Pension Board budget monitoring
statement for month 6.

1. Introduction

1.1. A budget of the direct costs for the Devon Pension Board for 2016-17 was agreed by the
Board at its meeting on 14™ April 2016.

2. Devon Pension Board Budget Monitoring Statement — Month 6

2.1. The budget monitoring statement for month 6 (as at the 30™ September 2016) is set out

below.
Devon Pension Board Budget 2016/17
Month 6 Forecast Variance

Budget Description Actual Outturn from Budget

£ £ £ £
2,000 Training 1,140 2,000 0
1,000 Travel and Member expenses 342 684 -316
4,000 Committee Support 3,667 3,667 -333
20,000 Officer Support 9,389 19,003 -997
350 Printing and Postage 175 350 0
27,350 Total Expenditure 14,713 25,703 -1,647

3. Conclusion

3.1. The Board is asked to note the monitoring report.

Mary Davis

Electoral Divisions: All

Local Government Act 1972

List of Background Papers - Nil
Contact for Enquiries: Dan Harris
Tel No: (01392) 382520 Room G99

Page 231






Agenda Item 11

CT/16/87
Devon Pension Board
20" October 2016

ACTUARIAL VALUATION 2016 AND SECTION 13 REPORT

Report of the County Treasurer

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and determination
by the Board before taking effect.

Recommendation: That the Board notes the Section 13 “dry run” report produced by
the Government Actuary’s Department, and the planned approach
to the 2016 triennial valuation of the Pension Fund.

1. Introduction

1.1 The LGPS Regulations require administering authorities to complete an
actuarial valuation of their Pension Fund on a three yearly cycle. Work is
currently underway on the valuation as at 31% March 2016, with the results due
for publication by 31% March 2017. The 2016 valuation will set employer
contribution levels for the financial years 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20.

1.2 In addition to the normal actuarial valuation carried out the by the Fund
Actuary, the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 means that the Department of
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) are required to commission a
“Section 13” valuation which will look at the 2016 valuation results for LGPS
Funds and check whether, in their opinion, that valuations have been
conducted in a way that:

¢ Is compliant with the LGPS Regulations;
¢ Is not inconsistent with other Funds;

e Will ensure solvency;

o Will ensure long-term cost efficiency.

The Section 13 valuation will be carried out by the Government Actuary’s
Department (GAD). GAD will review whether funding valuations and employer
contribution rates have been set to meet these objectives and DCLG can
require remedial steps to be taken where the Secretary of State considers
appropriate. In the extreme, DCLG can essentially impose the level of
contributions that employers are required to pay, over riding what has been
certified by the Fund actuary.

1.3 GAD have carried out a dry run of the process using the 2013 valuation results
in order to allow Funds to be aware of any areas that would have been
highlighted. The results of the dry run report can be taken into account by
Funds and fed into the process for the 2016 valuation.

Page 233



Agenda Item 11

2. Section 13 Dry Run Report

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

The GAD assessment applies six tests around solvency, and seven tests on
long-term cost efficiency. Funds can be assessed as green, amber or red on
each of them. Although there are seven tests on long-term efficiency, they are
more or less measuring the same thing which is simply whether GAD believes
that the level of employer contributions is sufficient. The dry run tests, based on
the 2013 valuations, are broadly looking at whether their assessment of
2014/15 deficit contributions, if increased in line with assumed salary
increases, are sufficient to make each Fund fully funded in 20 years’ time.

The 2013 dry run assessment has identified a number of Funds which received
red and amber flags. If this was an official Section 13 valuation, GAD would
have engaged with administering authorities that have received red flags to
investigate in more detail whether the aims of Section 13 were met. They may
also have engaged with some other administering authorities who had a
significant combination of amber flags.

The good news is that the Devon Fund received no red or amber flags in the
dry run report. However, there are a number of areas where the position of the
Devon Fund is not as good as the majority of LGPS Funds and potentially faces
the risk of gaining a red or amber flag in the 2016 report.

Part of this is a result of the different assumptions and methodologies being
used by different firms of actuaries. At the 2013 actuarial valuation, Barnett
Waddingham calculated a funding level of 84% for the Devon Fund. This gave
Devon the 21% best published funding level of the 90 different LGPS Funds
across England and Wales. However, this was in part due to Barnett
Waddingham adopting less prudent assumptions than other actuarial firms. The
Section 13 dry run report has produced revised funding levels for the 90 Funds
on a standardised set of assumptions. On this basis Devon’s funding level is
82%, which remains close to the Barnett Waddingham valuation, but falls in
rank to 73" place out of the 90 Funds. Other Funds, where arguably their own
actuaries have been over-prudent, have seen their funding level increase under
the standardised basis. The Cumbria Fund, for example, had a 78% funding
level on the basis of their own actuary’s assessment, but on the standardised
basis their funding level has increased to 96%. The different funding levels are
shown in Appendix 1.

The impact of the above inconsistency is that the GAD analysis shows that the
Devon Fund is paying off its deficit at a much slower rate than all but three
other LGPS Funds. This is shown at Appendix 2. The reason for this is that the
deficit recovery contributions payable by employers are based on the assessed
funding level. Those with a lower funding are likely to be paying higher
contribution rates. Therefore, when their funding levels are reassessed to be
higher, they are then paying off their deficit at a much faster rate.

Page 234



Agenda Item 11

2.6 As a result, while GAD assesses that Devon is paying off 7.5% of its deficit
each year (with an average actual contribution rate of 19.26% in 2014/15),
Cumbria, for example, (with an average actual total contribution rate of 30.51%
in 2014/15) is paying off over 50% of its deficit each year. At that rate, it will
take Devon 15 years to pay off the deficit (still less than Barnett Waddingham’s
assumed recovery period of 25 years), while Cumbria will pay off its deficit in
less than two years. A comparison between the contribution rates being paid by
each of the LGPS Funds is shown at Appendix 3. Two of the only three Funds
who are paying off their deficit at a slower rate than Devon have been given
amber flags on these criteria.

3. Conclusion

3.1 The actuary has to make a number of assumptions in undertaking the Fund
valuation. These include assumptions around inflation and life expectancy. The
key assumptions in calculating the Fund’s liabilities, funding level and the
resulting employer contribution rates are the discount rate applied to liabilities,
based on estimated future investment returns, and the recovery period allowed
to pay off the deficit.

3.2 In the light of the dry run report on the 2013 Valuation, there is some risk that
the Devon Fund may be given an amber or red flag when the Section 13 report
is done for the 2016 Valuation. It would therefore be sensible to take a more
prudent approach to the actuarial valuation to ensure that this does not happen.
This would mean adopting a lower discount rate, i.e. a more prudent forecast of
future investment returns, and/or a shorter recovery period, to allow the deficit
to be paid off more quickly. Discussions will be held with the actuary to
determine what assumptions would be prudent, whilst still aiming to keep
contribution levels stable as far as possible. However, the likelihood is that
adopting more prudent assumptions will result in an increase in employer
contribution rates.

3.3 Provisional results will be presented at a meeting for Fund employers on 19"
October. This will also provide employers to discuss with the actuary their
specific circumstances and the impact of the valuation on their individual
contribution rates. The provisional outcome of the valuation will then be
reported to the Investment and Pension Fund Committee in November. A
revised Funding Strategy Statement will then be produced in 2017 to reflect any
significant changes to funding assumptions. The results will also feed into
future reviews of the Fund’s investment strategy.

Mary Davis

Electoral Divisions: Al

Local Government Act 1972

List of Background Papers — Nil

Contact for Enquiries: Dan Harris
Tel No: (01392) 382520 Room G99

Page 235



Agenda Item 11

Lo

Government
Actuary’s
Department

Appendix 1

LGPS (England and Wales)
Section 13 Dry Run Report

Chart 4.6: Standardising local valuation results

2013 LOCAL BASES

SAB STANDARD BASIS

101% TEESSIDE SOUTH YORKSHIRE PTA | 114%
96% WANDSWORTH DYFED 105%
96% WEST YORKSHIRE = WANDSWORTH 104%
96%  KENSINGTON AND CHELSEA TEESSIDE 103%
91%  LONDON PENSIONS FUND ENVIRONMENT AGENCY ACTIVE _103%
91% GREATER MANCHESTER GREATER MANCHESTER | 103%
20% MERTON GWYNEDD 102%
90%  ENVIRONMENT AGENCY ACTIVE - WEST SUSSEX 102%
89% DYFED WEST MIDLANDS ITA 100%
87% BEXLEY - BEXLEY 99%
87% GREENWICH - EAST SUSSEX 8%
86% WEST SUSSEX - RICHMOND 97%
86% SOUTH YORKSHIRE PTA KENSINGTON AND CHELSEA  96%
85% CITY OF LONDON DERBYSHIRE 96%
85% NOTTINGHAMSHIRE CUMBRIA 26%
85% HOUNSLOW CHESHIRE 5%
85% GWYNEDD WEST YORKSHIRE 95%
85% ENFIELD \ HERTFORDSHIRE 94%
84% DURHAM \ SOUTH YORKSHIRE PF 24%
84% HAMMERSMITH / ISLE OF WIGHT 24%
84% DEVON SUFFOLK 3%
83% KENT BROMLEY 93%
83% DORSET LANCASHIRE 93%
83% RICHMOND EAST RIDING 93%
83% OXFORDSHIRE CORNWALL 93%
83% BUCKINGHAMSHIRE MERSEYSIDE 2%
83% SOUTHWARK WARWICKSHIRE 92%
82% HERTFORDSHIRE AVON 92%
82% DERBYSHIRE A\, LONDON PENSIONS FUND 92%
82% BROMLEY MERTON 01%
82% CHESHIRE _ CAMDEN °1%
82%  CARDIFF AND GLAMORGAN ‘ NORFOLK 91%
81% TYNE AND WEAR A / " 7 CAMBRIDGESHIRE 89%
81% EAST SUSSEX ' S l/l’ SHROPSHIRE 88%
81% NORTHUMBERLAND ‘\V/'..,~,_ :Q/A _= EALING 88%
81% ESSEX " \'/ ' " LAMBETH 87%
81% SWANSEA X ' TYNE AND WEAR 87%
80% HAMPSHIRE " / //// 2 " / / STAFFORDSHIRE 87%
80% BARNET N \, /' // " NORTH YORKSHIRE 87%
80% WEST MIDLANDS ITA XXX N N\ R N\ DA WEST MIDLANDS PF 87%
79% SUFFOLK N LEWISHAM 86%
79% POWYS HACKNEY 86%
78% LANCASHIRE DURHAM 86%
78% CUMBRIA ISLINGTON 86%
78% AVON SURREY 86%
78% EAST RIDING WILTSHIRE 85%
78% RHONDDA CYNON TAF ENFIELD 85%
78% NORFOLK NORTHAMPTONSHIRE 85%
78% ISLE OF WIGHT GREENWICH 85%
771% REDBRIDGE TOWER HAMLETS 85%
7% WARWICKSHIRE LINCOLNSHIRE 85%
76% SHROPSHIRE NS OXFORDSHIRE 85%
76% SOMERSET ' KINGSTON-UPON-THAMES ~ 85%
76% MERSEYSIDE NOTTINGHAMSHIRE 85%
76% SOUTH YORKSHIRE PF LEICESTERSHIRE 85%
76% CAMDEN SOUTHWARK 85%
75% NEWHAM HOUNSLOW 84%
75% BERKSHIRE NORTHUMBERLAND 84%
75% WESTMINSTER HARINGEY 84%
74% CORNWALL GWENT 84%
73% NORTH YORKSHIRE N REDBRIDGE 83%
73% LAMBETH cLwyp 83%
72% CAMBRIDGESHIRE HILLINGDON 83%
72% SURREY CITY OF LONDON 83%
72% HILLINGDON = = /X W N\ WORCESTERSHIRE 83%
72% LEICESTERSHIRE GLOUCESTERSHIRE 83%
72% TOWER HAMLETS HAMMERSMITH 83%
72% STAFFORDSHIRE HARROW 83%
72% EALING BARKING AND DAGENHAM
71% LINCOLNSHIRE
71% LEWISHAM
71% WILTSHIRE
71% GWENT
71%  BARKING AND DAGENHAM
71% NORTHAMPTONSHIRE HAMPSHIRE
70%  KINGSTON-UPON-THAMES SUTTON 81%
70% HARROW BUCKINGHAMSHIRE 81%
70% HACKNEY WESTMINSTER 81%
70% WEST MIDLANDS PF ) SWANSEA 80%
70% BEDFORDSHIRE — CARDIFF AND GLAMORGAN __ 79%
70% GLOUCESTERSHIRE 7 BARNET 79%
70% ISLINGTON \ BEDFORDSHIRE 78%
70% HARINGEY RHONDDA CYNON TAF 77%
69% WORCESTERSHIRE NEWHAM 75%
68% cLwyp SOMERSET 78%
67% SUTTON BERKSHIRE 73%
66% CROYDON WALTHAM FOREST 73%
HAVERING CROYDON 72%
WALTHAM FOREST HAVERING 68%
BRENT BRENT 67%

AON HEWITT

BARNETT WADDINGHAM

MERCER

HYMANS ROBERTSON

Page 236



Agenda Item 11

Appendix 2

&

Government
Actuary’s LGPS (England & Wales)
Department Section 13 Dry Run Report Appendices

Chart H1: Deficit Repaid by fund: The proportion of deficit paid off annually.

BERKSHIRE 3.7%
SOMERSET 4.8% B
CITY OF LONDON 7.3%

DEVON s 7.5%

DORSET e 7.5%
WESTMINSTER 7.6%

HAVERING 7.6% - - smemse aree— oo

CROYDON 8.1%

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE 8.3%

GREENWICH 8.4%

CARDIFF AND GLAMORGAN B.6%

HAMPSHIRE R.A%

HARROW 9.0%

BRENT 9.0%

HAMMERSMITH
NEWHAM
NOTTINGHAMSHIRE
SWANSEA

RHONDDA CYNON TAF

KENT s 11.1%

SUTTON s 11.2% - B
LEWISHAM 11.3%

WALTHAM FOREST 11.3%

BEDFORDSHIRE 11.4%

POWYS s 11.7%

HILLINGDON 11.8%

ENFIELD 12.0%

HOUNSLOW 12.1%

OXFORDSHIRE 12.3%

GWENT 12.6%

LEICESTERSHIRE 12.8%
REDBRIDGE 13.0%

LINCOLNSHIRE 13.5%

NORTHUMBERLAND 13.8%

ESSEX 13.8%

WORCESTERSHIRE 14.0%

HARINGEY 14.4%

BARNET jmees _14.8%
DURHAM

SOUTHWARK ; 16.5% -

WILTSHIRE 16.6%

CLWYD 16.7%
SHROPSHIRE 17.1%
BARKING AND DAGENHAM 17.6%

ISLINGTON = x = 17.6% - -

CAMBRIDGESHIRE 18.5%

WEST MIDLANDS 18.7%

GLOUCESTERSHIRE 18.7% l )

KINGSTON-UPON-THAMES — 19.2%
NORTHAMPTONSHIRE

EALING 20.5%

TOWER HAMLETS 22.0% B

SURREY 22.3%

TYNE AND WEAR

STAFFORDSHIRE

NORTH YORKSHIRE
LAMBETH .
NORFOLK = e ==
HACKNEY

WARWICKSHIRE e

CAMDEN

WEST YORKSHIRE

LONDON PENSIONS FUND

SUFFOLK

SOUTH YORKSHIRE

MERTON

MERSEYSIDE

LANCASHIRE

ISLE OF WIGHT = =

HERTFORDSHIRE

EAST RIDING

DERBYSHIRE

CUMBRIA

CORNWALL

CHESHIRE

BROMLEY

AVON

0.0% 10.0% 20.0% 30.0% 40.0%
DEFICIT REPAID: PROPORTION OF DEFICIT PAID OFF ANNUALLY

Note: Funds in surplus have been excluded.

Page 237




Agenda Item 11

M4

Government
Actuary’s
Department

Appendix 3

LGPS (England and Wales)
Section 13 Dry Run Report

Chart 4.1: Average actual contributions vs. common contribution rates

TEESSIDE

WEST YORKSHIRE

CITY OF LONDON
BERKSHIRE

DYFED

GREENWICH

DORSET
BUCKINGHAMSHIRE
SOMERSET
MNOTTINGHAMSHIRE
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY ACTIVE
CAMBRIDGESHIRE
GREATER MANCHESTER
DERBYSHIRE
LEICESTERSHIRE

DEVON

OXFORDSHIRE

BEXLEY

HILLING DON

HAMPSHIRE

GWENT
SHROPSHIRE
WESTMINSTER
KENSINGTOMN AND CHELSEA
WARWICKSHIRE
HOUNSLOW
LEWISHAM
EAST SUSSEX
ENFIELD
WANDSWORTH
GWYNEDD
LINCOLNSHIRE
HARROW
WILTSHIRE
DURHAM
LANCASHIRE
ISLINGTON
KENT

EALING

CORNWALL |

WEST SUSSEX
SOUTHWARK

WEST MIDLANDS PF
ESSEX

REDBRIDGE
NORFOLK
BEDFORDSHIRE
HAMMERSMITH
ISLE OF WIGHT
CARDIFF AND GLAMORGAN
WORCESTERSHIRE

EAST RIDING
SWANSEA
HERTFORDSHIRE
NORTH YORKSHIRE
CLWYD

SURREY

SUTTON
BARKING AND DAGENHAM
NORTHAMPTONSHIRE

STAFFORDSHIRE

RHONDDA CYNON TAF
KINGSTON-UPON-THAMES
CROYDON

RICHMOND

HARINGEY

CHESHIRE
NORTHUMBERLAND

TYMNE AMND WEAR
NEWHAM

HAVERING

SUFFOLK

GLOUCESTERSHIRE
SOUTH YORKSHIRE PTA
BROMLEY

BARNET

TOWER HAMLETS |

CAMDEN
SOUTH YORKSHIRE PF
AL

BRENT

WALTHAM FOREST
CUMBRIA

LAMBETH

HACKMNEY

MERTON

LONDON PENSIONS FUND

COMMON CONTRIBUTION RATE

AVERAGE ACTUAL CONTRIBUTION RATE

13.50%

N

2]
il L2 T

3 [py | Pl b

31199 m—

20.

31.40%

31.33%:"

27.67%

e
1
R

34.46%

MERSEYSIDE 24.50% |
WEST MIDLANDS ITA 21.50%

- ' 36.15% .
T T T T T T T T T T m- 23% 1

50% 40% 30% 20% 10% 0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%
ACTUAL AND COMMON CONTRIBUTION RATES IN 2014/15

W AON HEWITT ™ BARNETT WADDINGHAM = HYMANS ROBERTSON ™ MERCER

Page 238



Agenda Item 12

CT/16/88
Devon Pension Board
20" October 2016

ADMITTED BODIES

Report of the County Treasurer

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and determination
by the Board before taking effect.

Recommendation: That the Board notes the process for Admitted Bodies.
1. Introduction

1.1 Admitted body status (ABS) provisions were introduced in the LGPS in 1999 to
allow contractors, who take on local authority services or functions with any
specific groups of transferring employees, to offer transferring staff continued
eligibility for the LGPS during the contract.

1.2 ABS provisions enable members of the LGPS to remain in the scheme and
continue to accumulate benefits under their existing LGPS arrangements whilst
their employment is transferred between different contractors and as long as
they remain employed in connection with the delivery of the outsourced
service.

1.3 The administering authority will make the decision to admit a body (contractor)
to the LGPS, having established that it is possible to do so in accordance with
the LGPS regulations and in consultation with the relevant letting authority and
contractor.

2. Admitted Bodies

2.1 The Devon Pension Fund requires an Admission Body to have a binding
Admission Agreement in place that sets out the conditions of participation. A
number of key decisions will need to be made through negotiation between the
letting authority and the Admission Body in order to finalise the inclusion of the
Admission Body into the Fund.

22 The key decisions that need to be considered are:

Who is eligible to join the LGPS;

Whether new recruits, as well as transferring employees can join;

How pension costs will be funded and by whom;

If the organisation generates significant additional costs through its own

activities, are these costs eligible pay for pension purposes, and if they

are who will pay these additional costs;

e Itis important for both the Admission Body and letting authority to
specify clearly what will happen at the end of the Admission Agreement,
specifically in respect of pension liabilities upon exiting the fund;

e Any indemnity or bond requirements.

Page 239



Agenda Item 12

3.

2.3 In addition to the above, consideration will need to be given to whether the
admission agreement will be a closed or open agreement. A closed agreement
restricts membership of the LGPS specifically to those individuals employed at
the contract start date, whereas an open agreement allows access to the LGPS
for all future individuals that become employed in connection with the provision
of the service.

Understanding the Risk for the Fund

3.1 An Admission Body in the Devon Pension Fund will normally start at a funding
level of 100%. This means that where the delivery of a service is being
outsourced, the Fund Actuary will notionally transfer pension fund assets equal
to the value of the liabilities from the letting authority to the Admission Body on
the date of transfer.

3.2  Admission Body employers will pay contributions to the LGPS in respect of the
transferred employees, and the employees are able to continue to accrue
benefits in the LGPS whilst they remain employed in connection with the
delivery of the outsourced service.

3.3 At the termination of the Admission Agreement, the Devon Pension Fund will
require the Admission Body to meet any financial liability in full, that has arisen
from any adverse difference between the actual and expected experience in
relation to the value of members’ benefits.

3.4 The primary risk arising from Admission Bodies is from the cost of any

outstanding liabilities at the point of termination of the Agreement coupled with
the ability of the Admission Body to pay.

Mitigating Risk

4.1 Pre-Admission Agreement

4.1.1 The Devon Pension Fund will require a prospective Admission Body to
be clear on its eligibility to join the LGPS and to complete and submit an
Admission Body Application Form.

4.1.2 LGPS Regulations require the Admission Body to undertake an
assessment taking into account actuarial advice on the level of risk
arising from premature termination of the provision of service by reason
of insolvency, winding up, or liquidation of the Admission Body. The
Admission Body can employ an external actuary to provide this
assessment, or it can use the Fund’s actuary. If an external actuary
is used, the Devon Pension Fund may request verification of the
assessment by the Fund’s actuary at a cost to the Admission Body.

4.1.3 The Devon Pension Fund will expect the Admission Body to discuss the
results of the assessment with the letting authority in the completion of
contract detail and fulfilment of Admission Agreement arrangements
including the provision of surety or indemnity.

Page 240



Agenda Item 12

4.1.4 Any shortfall attributable to an Admission Body will ultimately fall to the
letting authority where the Fund is unable to obtain contributions from
the Admission Body, including cessation funding on termination of the
Admission Agreement. This effectively means that the letting authority,
as the awarding or sponsoring body, is the guarantor for the Admission
Body under LGPS terms. The letting authority must confirm to the
Devon Pension Fund where this is to be their entire approach for
indemnifying the Fund.

4.1.5 Where the letting authority determines that the level of risk identified in
the assessment is such as to require it, a potential Admission Body
must provide a bond in a form approved by the Administering Authority
in order to meet the level of risk identified. The bond needs to be in
place by the commencement date of the Admission Agreement and
renewed upon each expiry date.

4.1.6 The Admission Body must provide the Devon Pension Fund with details
of their proposed bondsman for approval in advance of entering into the
bond. Section 6 of the LGPS (Administration) Regulations 2008 lays out
conditions on the type of financial institution that bonds can be with.

4.1.7 As an alternative to a bond, Admission Bodies are able to set up an
escrow account for the equivalent value of the actuarially assessed
bond level. Devon County Council as Administering Authority for the
Fund will need to be a signatory party to the account, or have a legal
charge placed over it, on the basis that monies can only be withdrawn
or the account closed with mutual consent, and will require evidence of
the value of the amounts on deposit at start up and thereafter on a
periodic basis.

4.1.8 The letting authority and the Admission Body may also reach
agreement on sharing the cost risk of pension provisions under an
Admission Agreement both throughout the life of a service contract and
upon its cessation including any termination liability. This practice is
known as a Pass-Through arrangement and is purely a service contract
issue for the two parties. The Administering Authority will not typically
be involved in such an arrangement as the letting authority will remain
as guarantor for the Admission Body and the conditions of the
Admission Agreement will be unaffected by it.

4.2 During the Admission Agreement

4.2.1 Letting authorities should regularly review the level of risk relating to an
Admission Agreement throughout its life.

4.2.2 Devon County Council, as Administering Authority for the Devon
Pension Fund will, as a minimum, commission the Fund Actuary to
conduct a formal risk assessment of Admission Bodies and to re-
evaluate associated indemnity or bond levels every three years in
between Actuarial Valuations of the Fund. The Fund will bear the cost
of this risk assessment.

Page 241



Agenda Item 12

4.3

423

424

4.2.5

4.2.6

427

Devon County Council shall notify letting authorities and Admission
Bodies of the results of the risk exercise. The letting authority can
require an Admission Body to adjust an indemnity or bond or escrow
deposit accordingly.

The Admission Body must ensure that the agreed indemnity or bond
remains in force at all times during the life of the Admission Agreement.
The letting authority will need to monitor this is so.

The Fund actuary can use the results of the risk assessment exercise in
determining the outcome of the three-yearly Actuarial Valuation of the
Fund for both the Admission Body and the letting authority in relation to
deficit recovery periods and employer contribution rates.

The Admission Body is required to notify Devon County Council of any
matter which may affect or is likely to affect its participation in the
LGPS, and give immediate notice of any actual or proposed change in
its status which may give rise to a termination of the Admission
Agreement. This will include any potential take-over, reconstruction or
amalgamation, liquidation or receivership and change in the nature of
its business or constitution.

Furthermore, the Admission Body is expected to cooperate with any
measure Devon County Council may introduce in order to research
and monitor the strength of its employer covenant in respect of the risk
posed to the Fund.

Towards the end of the Admission Agreement

4.3.1

43.2

433

434

435

Actuarial gains and losses arising in the period of the Admission
Agreement are the responsibility of the Admission Body, unless a cost
sharing arrangement such as Pass-Through is agreed with the letting
authority.

Underfunding can be caused by a number of factors including low
investment returns, increased longevity, inflation, salary growth, ill-
health retirements and benefit enhancements, early retirement costs
and membership movement.

The funding position and employer contribution rate for each employer
participating in the Devon Pension Fund are reviewed during each
triennial actuarial valuation, with the objective of maintaining or
restoring its notional share of Fund assets to a level equal to the value
of its liabilities, thereby eliminating any cessation debt or surplus
funding upon exiting the Fund.

In advance of the natural end of a contract or early termination, the
Fund, where applicable, will discuss with the Admission Body involved
the possibility of paying an adjusted employer contribution rate that is
calculated to eliminate any deficit or surplus in funding by the date of
cessation.

There is currently no mechanism in place for repaying surplus funding
upon cessation.

Page 242



Agenda Item 12

5. Cessation Policy

5.1 Upon the cessation of an employer’s participation in the pension scheme, the
Devon Pension Fund will ask the Fund actuary to undertake a termination
assessment or cessation valuation to determine any deficit or surplus in
funding.

5.2 Where there is a deficit, payment of this amount in full will be sought from the
Admission Body unless it is agreed by the Administering Authority and the other
parties involved that the assets and liabilities relating to the employer will
transfer within the Fund to another participating employer. The Fund will also
pursue any indemnity or bond or guarantor for payment as appropriate.

5.3 When assessing the financial position on termination, the Fund Actuary may
adopt a discount rate based on gilt yields and incorporate different assumptions
to those used at the previous actuarial valuation in order to protect other
employers in the Fund from having to fund any future deficits which may arise
from the liabilities that will remain in the Fund.

54 Where appropriate, and at its discretion specifically in a situation where the
exiting Admission Body is continuing in business, the Devon Pension Fund will
consider permitting payment of the funding deficit to be spread over an agreed
period. Under such an agreement the Fund will accept an appropriate security
to be held against the deficit. Deficit recovery payments would be derived from
a cessation valuation carried out on an ongoing basis and the whole approach
monitored as part of each triennial or actuarial valuation of the Fund.
Throughout this period, the Devon Pension Fund will reserve the right to seek
immediate payment of the funding shortfall.

6. Conclusion

6.1 That the Board notes the process for Admitted Bodies.

Mary Davis

Electoral Divisions: All

Local Government Act 1972

List of Background Papers — Nil

Contact for Enquiries: Dan Harris
Tel No: (01392) 382520 Room G99

Page 243






Agenda Iltem 13

CT/16/89
Devon Pension Board
20" October 2016

PENINSULA PENSIONS PERFORMANCE REPORT

Report of the County Treasurer

Recommendation; The board note the report and actions being undertaken by officers to
ensure compliance and best practice.

1. Introduction

1.1 Our main service standard is to complete 90% of work within 10 working days once all
necessary information has been received. This is monitored every month through our
task management system (TMS) which is an in-house performance tool within our
pension database.

1.2 We also participate in the CIPFA Benchmarking Club which provides a yearly
comparison of performance with other LGPS administration services. Approximately 50
LGPS Funds take part each year.

2. Team Performance

2.1 2014/15 the team issued 88% of work within target, though backlogs of work in some
areas were building up. In 2015/16 the team issued 71% of work within target seeing a
reduction; however, there was a backlog of 11000 Deferred Benefit calculations which
was cleared during this period.

2.2 The performance target for 2016/17 is to improve on last year’s performance and see a
continued reduction in the backlogs. As at 31 August 2015 there were 17706
outstanding cases with 10740 over 10 days old, the 31 August 2016 sees a reduction
on both these figures by 20% and 28% respectively to a total of 14351 outstanding
tasks with 6697 cases over 10 days old.

2.3 As requested by the Board the table in Annexe A shows performance relating to the
Devon Fund only for this financial year.

2.4 Written Complaints received in the last 12 months total 15, majority that go through to
the Internal Dispute Procedure relate to members unhappy with the ill health tier given.
Other complaints have stemmed from delay in information being provided.

2.5 Recorded compliments ranging from individual team members being thanked for
dealing with members both professionally and efficiently, and appreciation of talks
provided by us to members

2.6 The majority of annual benefit statements for active and preserved members issued by
31 August 2016 with letters being sent to those we could not do informing them of
delay.

2.7 End of Year processes completed and data sent to actuary for fund valuation.

Page 245



Agenda Iltem 13

3. CIPFA Benchmarking

3.1

Data is collected annually in various areas including membership analysis, Employer
analysis, quotations and charges, costs and administration performance.

This enables informed comparisons to be made of the net cost per member, payroll
cost per pensioner, number of members per admin FTE and also highlights differences
of approach.

We are currently awaiting the results for 2015/16.

4. Actions Implemented

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Following the completion of the preserved benefit backlog we were granted permission
to extend the temporary staff and they started work on the amalgamation backlog.

An Audit of the amalgamation processes and team set up occurred in September and
we are currently awaiting the final report and will feed back appropriately.

We have discussed working practices regarding amalgamations, transfers and LGPS
interfunds with south west colleagues, looking at ways to streamline whilst meeting the
scheme members requirements.

The End of Year process showed an anomaly of leaver cases that were not on the task
management system, relating to leaving dates pre 1 April 2015. Work is currently
under way to investigate these cases and to ensure this does not reoccur.

Charlotte Thompson, The Head of Peninsula Pensions is currently reviewing resource
levels and will report her findings to Stephen Morton (SCC) and Chris Phillips (DCC) at
the next shared service meeting.

5. Conclusion

5.1

Mary Davis

There are continuing challenges for the Peninsula Pension management team going
forward to ensure a similar situation to 4.4 does not reoccur. However despite concerns
over resourcing levels we have maintained performance whilst managing to reduce the
backlog by 20% and cases older than 10 days by 28%.

Electoral Divisions: All
Local Government Act 1972

List of background papers — Nil

Contact for enquiries — Shirley Cuthbert
Telephone number 01392 383000

Page 246



Agenda Iltem 13

ANNEXE A
Summary April 16 to Aug 16 Devon Pension Fund

COMPLETED
Within Over Total Success
Target Target Rate
Priority Procedures 1964 649 2613 75%
Non-Priority 8992 1903 10895 83%
Procedures
Priority
Within Over Total Success
Target Target Rate
DEATH 295 99 394 75%
EMPLOYER ESTIMATES 130 20 150 87%
GENERAL ENQUIRIES 857 63 920 93%
ACTUAL RETIREMENTS 307 322 629 49%
RETIREMENT FROM 375 145 520 79%
DEF.
1964 649 2613 75%
Non-Priority
Within Over Success
Total
Target Target Rate
AMALGAM 127 143 270 47%
AVC 334 62 396 84%
DEFERRED 1053 590 1643 64%
DIVORCE 104 24 128 81%
FROZEN 718 50 768 93%
NON PRIORITY 0
ENQUIRIES 4015 292 4307 93%
PAYROLL 1215 60 1275 95%
PFRETEST 0 0 0 -
REFUNDS 355 45 400 89%
RETEST 794 412 1206 66%
STARTERS 69 3 72 96%
TRANSFER VALUES IN 129 153 282 46%
TRANSFER VALUES OUT 79 69 148 53%
8992 1903 10895 83%

Page 247



OUTSTANDING TASKS

Agenda Iltem 13

Priority

Total Reply due | Outstanding
Death 92 74 18
Employer Estimates 6 1 5
Priority General 112 40 72
Pb retirements 64 38 26
LGPS Retirements 239 126 113
513 279 234

Non Priority
Total Reply due | Outstanding
AVC 93 66 27
Amalgamations 2801 582 2219
Deferred Inc Recalcs 941 519 422
Divorce 13 8 5
NP General 415 265 150
Payroll 45 27 18
Actual Refunds 25 17 8
Frozen Refunds 221 165 56
Ret estimates 211 94 117
Starters 4 3 1
Transfer Values In 176 95 81
Transfer Values Out 157 86 71
5102 1927 3175

Page 248




Agenda Iltem 14

CT/16/90
Devon Pension Board
20th October 2016

LGPS POOLING OF INVESTMENTS

Report of the County Treasurer

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and determination
by the Board before taking effect.

Recommendation: that the Board notes progress on the full business case for the
Brunel Pension Partnership.

1. Introduction

1.1.  Following the Government’s announcement in the July 2015 budget statement
that they intended to work with Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
administering authorities to ensure that they pool investments to significantly
reduce costs, significant work has been undertaken to set up the Brunel
Pension Partnership comprising of ten LGPS Funds.

1.2.  Asrequired by Government an initial joint submission from the ten Brunel
funds was made in February, and a further more detailed response was made
in July. The July submission was in effect an outline business case, and work
is now continuing on putting together a more detailed business case for each
of the ten funds to consider in November/December.

1.3.  This report updates the Board on current progress.

2. Progress on Detailed Business Case

2.1 A number of workstreams are taking forward the work that needs to be
completed for the outline business case:

e Workstream 1 - Structure process and people — this will define the
resources needed by the Brunel Company to operate, including
directors, staffing structures and external resources. It will specify the
services that Brunel will provide to the participating funds, and outline
recruitment processes and the location for the company. Each of the ten
participating LGPS funds will hold 10% of the shares of the new
company.

o Workstream 2 - Portfolio cost allocation and asset transition - initial
work was done on the portfolios, potential savings and transition plan as
part of the July submission. This will now be broken down into more
detail, with costs and savings calculated for each participating LGPS
fund, so that the business case shows the costs and benefits for each
individual fund, not just in aggregate for the pool.

¢ Workstream 3 - Infrastructure — this involves collaboration with the
other pools to look at how opportunities for investment in infrastructure
can be accessed.

Page 249



Agenda Iltem 14

2.2

2.3

24

o Workstream 4 - Internal Management — this is examining the current
internal provision of passive management of equities within the
Somerset and Dorset funds and whether this can be incorporated into
the Brunel Pension Partnership.

e Workstream 5 - Monitoring and reporting — this workstream is
defining the reporting that will be provided from Brunel to each of the
participating funds.

The intention is that the full business case will be ready by the end of October
for approval by each of the funds during November and December. In
advance of completion of the business case there was an opportunity for the
Committee and the Pension Board to engage with the process at an event
organised jointly with the Cornwall, Dorset and Somerset Funds in Exeter on
7™ October. The other Brunel funds held similar joint events in Keynsham and
Oxford.

The current estimated cost of the work to produce the full business case is
£625,000. This includes the costs of project support, investment, legal and
regulatory consultancy work. The total cost of the project within the 2016/17
financial year, including the work already completed on the July submission
and initial work on setting up the Brunel company from January onwards is
forecast to be in the region of £984,000. This cost will be split equally between
the ten participating funds, and hence the Devon Fund will incur 10% of these
costs.

Following approval of the full business case, it is envisaged that the new
company will be established in early 2017. It will then work on putting in place
the staff and resources required to gain FCA approval, in order to commence
full operation in 2018. The first assets will be transitioned as soon as possible
after April 2018.

3. Investment Regulations

3.1

3.2

3.3

In November 2015, in conjunction with the pooling guidance, the Government
published new draft LGPS investment regulations for consultation. The draft
regulations provided powers for the Secretary of State to intervene in certain
circumstances, with particular emphasis on forcing funds to pool their
investments where they failed to meet the expectations of the Government’s
pooling agenda. The initial expectation was that the new regulations would be
in place by April 2016, with the requirement that funds put in place a new
Investment Strategy Statement by October 2016.

However, there was significant response to the consultation, including an on-
line petition that exceeded the 100,000 responses required for consideration
to be given to a debate on the issue in Parliament. The main focus of the
responses has been around the Secretary of State’s powers to intervene,
particularly where LGPS funds decide to ban certain investments contrary to
UK foreign policy.

While it is right that these issues are fully debated, it was also vital for
progression of the pooling agenda that the new regulations were put in place,
in order to provide the legal framework for the pooling of investments to take
place. The letter attached at Appendix 1, signed by the Chairs of each of the
Brunel funds was submitted to the Department of Communities and Local
Government in August.

Page 250



Agenda Iltem 14

3.4 The LGPS investment regulations were finally laid before Parliament on 23"
September 2016 and will come into force on 1% November 2016.

3.5 In summary, the regulations provide greater flexibility for LGPS funds to
determine their own investment strategies, which will need to be set out in an
Investment Strategy Statement (replacing the current Statement of Investment
Principles). However, concerns remain regarding the ‘power of direction’,
whereby the secretary of state can direct a fund to make changes to its
investment strategy, forcing it to invest in specific assets and transferring the
investment functions of the administering authority to the secretary of state or
a nominated person. A new Investment Strategy Statement is now required by
1% April 2017.

3.6 A copy of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 is attached at Appendix 2.

4, Conclusion

4.1 Work on the detailed full business case for the Brunel Pension Partnership is
progressing well. The business case will be presented to the Devon
Investment and Pension Fund Committee on 2" December for formal
approval, before the project moves on to the implementation of the proposals.

Mary Davis

Electoral Divisions:  All

Local Government Act 1972

List of Background Papers — Nil

Contact for Enquiries: Dan Harris
Tel No: (01392) 382520 Room G99

Page 251



Agenda Iltem 14

Appendix 1

Brunel Pension Partnership
Marcus Jones MP Enquiries to : Helen.Cusm's@enwronme.m—ogency.g.ov.uk

. Our Reference : Brunel Pension Partnership Project Office
Minister for Local Government Dat 16 A 2016
DCLG ate : ugus
4th Floor, Fry Building
Marsham Street Copied to John Glen MP

L W1P 4DF
ondon S Rt Hon Sajid Javid MP

Rt Hon Phillip Hammond MP

Dear Marcus

Local Government Pension Scheme Reform: Draft Local Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 (the new Investment Regulations)

The nine Local Authority Funds: Avon, Buckinghamshire, Cornwall, Devon, Dorset, Gloucestershire,
Oxfordshire, Somerset and Wiltshire and the Environment Agency Pension Fund (collectively the
Funds) are actively participating in the LGPS asset pooling proposal for Brunel Pension Partnership
(BPP). The Funds wish to ensure it can successfully deliver to the new Investment Regulations,
currently in draft form, and provide value to all our scheme members and employers. The BPP
proposal clearly shows the intent (subject to each Fund’s decision on a full business case later in this
financial year) to deliver a permanent FCA regulated structure (the Brunel company), committed to
the highest standards of governance in order to meet the investment strategy needs of each fund in

a cost effective and efficient manner.
However, as Chairs of each Fund’s Pension Committee we have the following specific concerns:

1. The timeframe set out by the government to establish the FCA structure by 1 April 2018 is
particularly challenging given the requirement for administering authorities to approve the full

business case and the establishment of an FCA regulated company.

The delay in having the new Investment Regulations in place is a serious risk which
administering authorities will have to consider at the point when the full business case is ready
for approval, which in itself is a substantial undertaking. Following discussions with Councils’
Monitoring Officers and the Environment Agency’s Director of Legal Services, we have
concluded that each administering authority will find it very difficult to consider and approve

the full business case and proposal to set up the Brunel company if the regulatory framework

Page 1 of 3

Page 252



Agenda Iltem 14

remains uncertain. Given the weighty and financially significant nature for administering
authorities of the pooling proposals, such regulatory uncertainty would seriously undermine
the legal basis for taking the decision to proceed. We are not convinced that a ‘comfort letter’

letter from DCLG will be sufficient as that would still leave a large measure of uncertainty.

The cost of establishing the Brunel company is significant, and in this respect it is difficult to
justify further spending unless absolute assurance can be given over the timetable for
parliamentary approval of the new Investment Regulations. This is now of significantly greater
concern given the key challenges the government faces following the decision to leave the
EU. Can you therefore confirm that the new Regulations will certainly be laid in the Autumn of
2016, no later than November 20167 If this is not to be the case when will the Regulations be

in place?

2. As stated above, significant costs are being incurred in delivering this project, and as we
progress to the full business case the costs are increasing substantially. Assuming approval
of the full business case, further costs will be incurred with the next phase development of the
Brunel company in readiness for transition of assets to start in April 2018. Apart from the
obvious costs arising from internal management time and external professional fees, there will
be other costs such as underwriting the company’s capitalisation and risk requirements. Any
delays brought about by regulatory uncertainty will have the effect of increasing costs as the
project planning will slip, with consequential inefficiencies and strain on our delivery of what is

required.

With these points in mind, can you provide assurance that any additional cost burdens on the
administering authorities, brought on by delay in finalising the new Investment Regulations,
would be funded by government? If this is not the case then there is a material risk that the
entire project will have to be put into exception (i.e. all work would be put on hold pending full

clarity on the regulatory framework being provided, including the Criteria and Guidance).

Clearly these matters are of pressing significance to the administering authorities in enabling them to

make timely and effective decisions.

We look forward to receiving your response as a matter of some urgency.

Yours sincerely,

Chairs of Pension Committees for:

Page 2 of 3

Page 253



Agenda Iltem 14

Avon Councillor David Veale Signature:

Buckinghamshire  Councillor John Chilver  Signature:

Cornwall Councillor Derek Holley  Signature:
Devon Councillor Rufus Gilbert  Signature:
Dorset Councillor John Beesley Signature:
Environment Agency  Mr Clive Elphick Signature:

Gloucestershire Councillor Ray Theodoulou Signature:

Oxfordshire Councillor Stewart Lilly Signature:
Somerset Councillor Graham Noel  Signature:
Wiltshire Councillor Tony Deane Signature:
Page 3 of 3

Page 254



Agenda.ltem 14

STATUTORY INSTRUMENTS

2016 No. 946
PUBLIC SERVICE PENSIONS, ENGLAND AND WALES

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016

Made - - - - 21st September 2016
Laid before Parliament 23rd September 2016
Coming into force - - 1st November 2016

The Secretary of State makes these Regulations in exercise of the powers conferred by sections
1(1) and 3(1) to (4) of, and Schedule 3 to, the Public Service Pensions Act 2013(a).

In accordance with section 21(1) of that Act, the Secretary of State has consulted such persons and
the representatives of such persons as appeared to the Secretary of State to be likely to be affected
by these Regulations.

In accordance with section 3(5) of that Act, these Regulations are made with the consent of the
Treasury.

Citation, commencement and extent

1.—(1) These Regulations may be cited as the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016.

(2) These Regulations come into force on 1st November 2016.

(3) These Regulations extend to England and Wales.

Interpretation

2.—(1) In these Regulations—
“the 2000 Act” means the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000(b);
“the 2013 Regulations” means the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013(c);

“the Transitional Regulations” means the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional
Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014(d);

“authority” means an administering authority listed in Part 1 of Schedule 3 to the 2013
Regulations;

“fund money” means money that is or should be in a pension fund maintained by an authority;

(a) 2013 c. 25; see section 2 of and Schedule 2 to that Act as to how the power is exercisable by the Secretary of State.
(b) 2000 c. 8.

(¢) S.1.2013/2356.

(d) S.1.2014/525.

Page 255



Agenda Iltem 14

“proper advice” means the advice of a person whom the authority reasonably considers to be
qualified by their ability in and practical experience of financial matters;

“the Scheme” means the scheme established by the 2013 Regulations.

(2) Any restrictions imposed by these Regulations apply to authorities which have the power
within section 1 of the Localism Act 2011(a) (local authority’s general power of competence) or
section SA(1) of the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004(b) in the exercise of those powers.

(3) Any authority which does not have the powers mentioned in paragraph (2) has, by virtue of
these Regulations the power to do anything authorised or required by these Regulations.

Investment

3.—(1) In these Regulations “investment” includes—

(@)

(b)
(©

a contract entered into in the course of dealing in financial futures, traded options or
derivatives;

a contribution to a limited partnership in an unquoted securities investment;

a contract of insurance if it is a contract of a relevant class, and is entered into with a
person within paragraph (2) for whom entering into the contract constitutes the carrying
on of a regulated activity within the meaning of section 22 of the 2000 Act(c).

(2) The persons within this paragraph are—

(a)

(b)

(©

a person who has permission under Part 4A of the 2000 Act (permission to catry on
regulated activities)(d) to effect or carry out contracts of insurance of a relevant class;

an EEA firm of the kind mentioned in paragraph 5(d) of Schedule 3 to the 2000 Act (EEA
passport rights), which has permission under paragraph 15 of that Schedule(e) to effect or
carry out contracts of insurance of a relevant class; and

a person who does not fall within sub-paragraph (a) or (b) whose head office is in an EEA
state other than the United Kingdom, and who is permitted by the law of that state to
effect or carry out contracts of insurance of a relevant class.

(3) A contract of insurance is of a relevant class for the purposes of paragraphs (1)(c) and (2) if
it is—

(@)

(b)

a contract of insurance on human life or a contract to pay an annuity on human life where
the benefits are wholly or partly to be determined by reference to the value of, or income
from, property of any description (whether or not specified in the contract) or by
reference to fluctuations in, or an index of, the value of property of any description
(whether or not so specified); or

a contract to manage the investments of pension funds, whether or not combined with a
contract of insurance covering either conservation of capital or payment of minimum
interest.

(4) For the purposes of this regulation—

“limited partnership” has the meaning given in the Limited Partnerships Act 1907(f);

“recognised stock exchange” has the same meaning as in section 1005 of the Income Tax Act
2007(g);

“traded option” means an option quoted on a recognised stock exchange; and

(a)
(b)
(c)
@
(e)
®)
(€3]

2011 c. 20.

2004 c. 21; section SA was inserted by section 9(1) of the Localism Act 2011.

Section 22 was amended by section 7(1) of the Financial Services Act 2012 (c. 21).

Part 4A of the 2000 Act was inserted by section 11(2) of the Financial Services Act 2012.

Paragraph 15 was amended by S.1. 2003/2066, 2007/3253, 2012/1906,2013/1881 and 2015/575.

1907 c. 24.

2007 c. 3; section 1005 was substituted by the Finance Act 2007 (c. 11) and amended by the Taxation (International and
Other Provisions) Act 2010 (c. 8).

Page 256



Agenda Iltem 14

“unquoted securities investment partnership” means a partnership for investing in securities
which are not quoted on a recognised stock exchange when the partnership buys them.

Management of a pension fund
4.—(1) An authority must credit to its pension fund(a), in addition to any sum otherwise
required to be credited by virtue of the 2013 Regulations or the Transitional Regulations—

(a) the amounts payable by it or payable to it under regulations 15(3)(b), 67 and 68 of the
2013 Regulations (employer’s contributions and further payments);

(b) all amounts received under regulation 69(1)(a) of the 2013 Regulations (member
contributions);

(c) all income arising from investment of the fund; and
(d) all capital money deriving from such investment.

(2) In the case of an authority which maintains more than one pension fund, as respects sums
which relate to specific members, the references in this regulation to the authority’s pension fund
is to the fund which is the appropriate fund(b) for the member in question in accordance with the
2013 Regulations.

(3) Interest under regulation 71 of the 2013 Regulations (interest on late payments by Scheme
employers) must be credited to the pension fund to which the overdue payment is due.

(4) An authority must pay any benefits to which any person is entitled by virtue of the 2013
Regulations or the Transitional Regulations from its pension fund.

(5) Any costs, charges and expenses incurred administering a pension fund may be paid from it
except for charges prescribed by regulations made under sections 23, 24 or 41 of the Welfare
Reform and Pensions Act 1999(c) (charges in relation to pension sharing costs).

Restriction on power to borrow
5.—(1) Except as provided in this regulation, an authority must not borrow money where the
borrowing is liable to be repaid out of its pension fund.

(2) Subject to paragraph (3), an authority may borrow by way of temporary loan or overdraft
which is liable to be repaid out of its pension fund, any sums which it may require for the purpose
of—

(a) paying benefits due under the Scheme; or

(b) to meet investment commitments arising from the implementation of a decision by it to
change the balance between different types of investment.

(3) An authority may only borrow money under paragraph (2) if, at the time of the borrowing,
the authority reasonably believes that the sum borrowed and interest charged in respect of that sum
can be repaid out of its pension fund within 90 days of the borrowing.

Separate bank account

6.—(1) An authority must hold in a separate account kept by it with a deposit-taker all fund
money.

(2) “Deposit-taker” for the purposes of paragraph (1) means—

(a) a person who has permission under Part 4A of the 2000 Act (permission to carry on
regulated activities) to carry on the activities specified by article 5 of the Financial

(a) An administering authority is required to maintain a pension fund by regulation 53(1) of, and paragraph 1 of Schedule 3 to
the 2013 Regulations.

(b) See regulation 53(2) of and Part 2 of Schedule 3 to the 2013 Regulations for provisions relating to an administering
authority becoming the “appropriate administering authority” in relation to a person.

(c) 1999 c. 30; see S.I. 2000/1047 and S.1. 2000/1049.

Page 257



Agenda Iltem 14

Services and Markets Act 2000 (Regulated Activities) Order 2001 (accepting
deposits)(a);

(b) an EEA firm of the kind mentioned in paragraph 5(b)(b) of Schedule 3 to the 2000 Act
(EEA passport rights) which has permission under paragraph 15 of that Schedule(c) to
accept deposits;

(c) the Bank of England or the central bank of an EEA state other than the United Kingdom;
or

(d) the National Savings Bank.

(3) An authority must secure that the deposit-taker may not exercise a right of set-off in relation
to the account referred to in paragraph (1) in respect of any other account held by the authority or
any party connected to the authority.

Investment strategy statement

7.—(1) An authority must, after taking proper advice, formulate an investment strategy which
must be in accordance with guidance issued from time to time by the Secretary of State.

(2) The authority’s investment strategy must include—
(a) arequirement to invest fund money in a wide variety of investments;

(b) the authority’s assessment of the suitability of particular investments and types of
investments;

(c) the authority’s approach to risk, including the ways in which risks are to be assessed and
managed;

(d) the authority’s approach to pooling investments, including the use of collective
investment vehicles and shared services;

(e) the authority’s policy on how social, environmental and corporate governance
considerations are taken into account in the selection, non-selection, retention and
realisation of investments; and

(f) the authority’s policy on the exercise of the rights (including voting rights) attaching to
investments.

(3) The authority’s investment strategy must set out the maximum percentage of the total value
of all investments of fund money that it will invest in particular investments or classes of
investment.

(4) The authority’s investment strategy may not permit more than 5% of the total value of all
investments of fund money to be invested in entities which are connected with that authority
within the meaning of section 212 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act
2007(d).

(5) The authority must consult such persons as it considers appropriate as to the proposed
contents of its investment strategy.

(6) The authority must publish a statement of its investment strategy formulated under paragraph
(1) and the first such statement must be published no later than 1st April 2017.

(7) The authority must review and if necessary revise its investment strategy from time to time,
and at least every 3 years, and publish a statement of any revisions.

(8) The authority must invest, in accordance with its investment strategy, any fund money that is
not needed immediately to make payments from the fund.

(a) S.I 2001/544; article 5 was amended by S.I. 2002/682.

(b) Sub-paragraph (b) of paragraph (5) was substituted by S.I. 2006/3211 and then further substituted by S.I. 2013/3115.

(c) Paragraph 15 has been amended by S.I. 2003/2066, S.I. 2007/3253, 2012/1906, 2013/1881 and 2015/575.

(d) 2007 c. 28; section 212 was amended by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (c. 13) and there are
prospective amendments made by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (c. 2).

Page 258



Agenda Iltem 14

Directions by the Secretary of State

8.—(1) This regulation applies in relation to an authority’s investment functions under these
Regulations and the 2013 Regulations if the Secretary of State is satisfied that the authority is
failing to act in accordance with guidance issued under regulation 7(1).

(2) Where this regulation applies in relation to an authority the Secretary of State may make a
direction requiring all or any of the following—

(a) that the authority make such changes to its investment strategy under regulation 7 as the
Secretary of State considers appropriate, within such period of time as is specified in the
direction;

(b) that the authority invest such assets or descriptions of assets as are specified in the
direction in such manner as is specified in the direction;

(c) that the investment functions of the authority under these Regulations and under the 2013
Regulations be exercised by the Secretary of State or a person nominated by the Secretary
of State for a period specified in the direction or for so long as the Secretary of State
considers appropriate;

(d) that the authority comply with any instructions of the Secretary of State or the Secretary
of State’s nominee in relation to the exercise of its investment functions under these
Regulations and the 2013 Regulations and provide such assistance as the Secretary of
State or the Secretary of State’s nominee may require for the purpose of exercising those
functions.

(3) Before making a decision whether to issue a direction under this regulation, and as to the
contents of any direction, the Secretary of State must consult the authority concerned.

(4) In reaching a decision whether to issue a direction under this regulation, and as to the
contents of any direction, the Secretary of State must have regard to such evidence of the manner
in which the authority is discharging or proposes to discharge its investment functions as is
reasonably available including—

(a) any report from an actuary appointed under section 13(4) of the Public Service Pensions
Act 2013 (employer contributions in funded schemes) or by the authority under
regulation 62 of the 2013 Regulations (actuarial valuations of pension funds);

(b) any report from the local pension board appointed by the authority or from the Local
Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board(a);

(c) any representations made by the authority in response to the consultation under paragraph
3);

(d) any other evidence that the Secretary of State regards as relevant to whether the authority
has been complying with these Regulations or acting in accordance with guidance issued
under regulation 7(1).

(5) If the Secretary of State is of the opinion that additional information is required to enable a
decision to be taken whether to issue a direction under this regulation, or as to what any direction
should contain, the Secretary of State may carry out such inquiries as the Secretary of State
considers appropriate to obtain that information.

(6) An authority must comply with any request from the Secretary of State intended to facilitate
the obtaining of information under paragraph (5).

Investment managers

9.—(1) Instead of managing and investing fund money itself, an authority may appoint one or
more investment managers to manage and invest fund money, or any part of such money, on its
behalf.

(a) The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board is established by regulation 110 of the 2013 Regulations (which
was inserted by S.1. 2015/57).

Page 259



Agenda Iltem 14

(2) But the authority may only appoint an investment manager if the authority complies with
paragraphs (3) and (4).

(3) The authority must reasonably believe that the investment manager’s ability in and practical
experience of financial matters make that investment manager suitably qualified to make
investment decisions for it.

(4) The authority must take proper advice in relation to the appointment and the terms on which
the appointment is made.

Investments under section 11(1) of the Trustee Investments Act 1961

10. An authority to which section 11 of the Trustee Investments Act 1961(a) applies may invest,
without any restriction as to quantity, in any investment made in accordance with a scheme under
section 11(1) of that Act (which enables the Treasury to approve schemes for local authorities to
invest in collectively).

Consequential amendments

11.—(1) The 2013 Regulations are amended as follows.
(2) For regulation 57(1)(i) (pension fund annual report) substitute—

“(i) the current version of the investment strategy under regulation 7 (investment
strategy statement) of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management
and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016;”.

(3) For regulation 58(4)(b) (funding strategy statement) substitute—

“(b) the current version of the investment strategy under regulation 7 (investment
strategy statement) of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016.”.

(4) For regulation 69(2)(b) (payment by Scheme employers to administering authorities)
substitute—

“(b) paragraph (1)(c) does not apply where the cost of the administration of the fund is
paid out of the fund under regulation 4(5) (management of a pension fund) of the
Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2016.”.

Revocations and transitional provision

12.—(1) The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2009(b) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of
Funds) (Amendment) Regulations 2013(c) are revoked.

(2) Regulations 11 (investment policy and investment of pension fund money), 12 (statement of
investment principles), 14 (restrictions on investments), 15 (requirements for increased limits) of
and Schedule 1 (table of limits on investments) to the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 continue to have effect in relation to an
authority until the date when that authority first publishes its investment strategy statement under
regulation 7.

(3) For the period starting on 1st November 2016 and ending on whichever is the earlier of the
date the authority publishes its investment strategy statement under regulation 7, or 31st March
2017, regulation 7 applies to an authority only to the extent necessary to enable that authority to
formulate and publish its investment strategy statement.

(a) 1961 c. 62; section 11(1) was amended by the London Government Act 1963 (c. 4) and the Local Government Act 1985 (c.
51).

(b) S.I. 2009/3093.

(¢) S.I.2013/410.

Page 260



Agenda Iltem 14

We consent to the making of these Regulations
David Evennett
Guto Bebb
Two of the Lords Commissioners of Her Majesty’s Treasury

Signed by authority of the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Marcus Jones
Parliamentary Under Secretary of State
21st September 2016 Department for Communities and Local Government

EXPLANATORY NOTE

(This note is not part of the Regulations)

These Regulations make provision in relation to the management and investment of pension funds
held by administering authorities required to maintain such funds by the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.

Regulations 2 and 3 respectively contain definitions and make provision that the restrictions
imposed by the regulations bind authorities which have the “power of general competence” in the
exercise of that power.

Regulations 4, 5 and 6 respectively set out which payments must be made into and out of the
pension fund, restrict powers of borrowing and require fund money to be in a separate account.

Regulations 7 and 8 respectively require authorities to publish an investment strategy in
accordance with guidance issued by the Secretary of State and enable the Secretary of State to
issue a direction to any authority which fails to comply with its statutory obligations as regards its
pension fund or which fails to act in accordance with the guidance.

Regulations 9 and 10 respectively allow for the appointment of investment managers and
investment in Treasury approved schemes.

Regulations 11 and 12 respectively make consequential amendments relating to the investment
strategy published under regulation 7 and transitional provisions.

No impact assessment has been produced because it has no impact on business, charities or
voluntary bodies and minimal impact on the public sector.

© Crown copyright 2016

Printed and published in the UK by The Stationery Office Limited under the authority and superintendence of Carol Tullo,
Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office and Queen’s Printer of Acts of Parliament.

Page 261






Agenda Iltem 15

INVESTMENT AND PENSION FUND COMMITTEE
16/09/16

INVESTMENT AND PENSION FUND COMMITTEE

12

13

14

16 September 2016

Present:-

Devon County Council
Councillors R Gilbert (Chairman), C Channon, R Edgell, R Hill and R Hosking.

Other Employers
P Edwards, D Healy, J O’'Dwyer and L Parker Delaz Ajete

Unison and Retired Members: Non Voting Observers
R Franceschini, C Lomax and J Rimron

Apologies:-

Councillors D Hannon and J O’Dwyer

Minutes

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 24 June 2016 be signed as a correct
record.

Devon Pension Board

The Committee further considered suggestions previously made by the Devon Pension Board
relating in particular to the adoption of a statement similar to that accepted by the Board and
other Councils, to visibly demonstrate its status as an impartial decision maker, recognising
the need to avoid conflicts of interest.

It was MOVED by Councillor Parker Delaz Ajete, SECONDED by Councillor Edgell and
RESOLVED that the proposed statement of impartiality enshrined in Minute 5 of the Devon
Pension Board of 14 April 2016 be acknowledged subject to clarification of the wording at the

next meeting.

Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16

The Committee considered the report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/73) together with the
Annual Report and Accounts, summarising the performance of the Fund’s external managers,
including stewardship activity and the market outlook, followed by the Statement of Accounts.
Mr Shaw from Grant Thornton attended for this item and advised there were no major issues
with the Pension Fund accounts and that the draft financial statements had been prepared to
a high standard.

It was MOVED by Councillor Channon, SECONDED by Ms Healy and

RESOLVED that the Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts for 2015/16 be adopted.

[NB: In accordance with Standing Order 32(4) Councillor Edgell requested that his abstention
from voting on this decision be recorded.]

Page 263



Agenda Iltem 15

*

INVESTMENT AND PENSION FUND COMMITTEE

16/09/16

15

16

17

18

LGPS Pooling of Investments

The Committee received the report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/74) on the significant work
undertaken to set up the Brunel Pension Partnership which comprised ten LGPS Funds. A
joint submission from the ten Brunel funds had been made in February 2016, with a more
detailed response submitted in July 2016 outlining the business case. Work continued on
developing a more detailed final business case for each of the ten funds to consider in
November/December 2016.

It was MOVED by Councillor Hosking, SECONDED by Councillor Parker Delaz Ajete and
RESOLVED that

(a) progress on the Brunel Partnership full business case be noted;

(b) the County Treasurer, in consultation with the Chairman, be delegated to write to the
Department of Communities and Local Government raising concerns around the delay in the

laying of the new Investment Regulations;

(c) in order to consider the full business case of the Brunel Partnership, the next meeting be
postponed from 18 November 2016 until Friday 2 December 2016 at 10.00am.

Actuarial Valuation and Section 13 Report

The Committee received and noted the report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/75) on the
2016 valuation which would set employer contribution levels for the financial years 2017/18,
2018/19 and 2019/20. In addition, a Section 13 valuation would be carried out by the
Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) which reviewed whether funding valuations and
employer contribution rates had been set to meet targets and objectives.

Investment Management Report

The Committee received and noted the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/76) on the
current Pension Fund value and asset allocation against target. Following the EU
Referendum there had been a fall of the value of the pound and therefore an increase in the
value of the Fund’s overseas assets, resulting in an increase of £162,000,000 over the last
quarter. The allocation to each asset class remained within 2.5% of the target allocation.
The Fund had achieved an absolute return of 4.6% for the quarter which was ahead of the
strategic benchmark of 4.5%.

Long Term Investment Performance and Strategic Review

The Committee considered the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/77) examining the
Fund’s longer term performance and, in particular, why performance over the past 10 years
was below the average achieved by LGPS funds in total. The Report also proposed the
commissioning of a strategic asset allocation review, conducted by external consultants who
would assess the appropriate strategic asset allocation, including the split between ‘growth’
assets and ‘fixed interest’ type assets, geographical allocations and currency hedging issues.

It was MOVED by Councillor Edgell SECONDED by Councillor Hosking and

RESOLVED that the commissioning of a strategic asset allocation review, using the South
West investment consultancy framework, be approved.

Page 264



19

20

21

22

Agenda Iltem 15

INVESTMENT AND PENSION FUND COMMITTEE
16/09/16

Pension Fund Risk Register

The Committee received and noted the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/16/78)
highlighting the key risks in relation to the Devon Fund, the current processes in place to
mitigate the risk, and the planned improvements in place to provide further assurance. The
Report incorporated the risk register of both the Investments Team and Peninsula Pensions.

Applications for Admitted Body Status

The Committee noted the action of the County Treasurer in approving an application for
admitted body status, approved under delegated powers, from Barnardo’s in respect of its
new contract with Plymouth City Council for the provision of children centre services.

Committee Training

The County Treasurer reported that a joint briefing event with Cornwall, Dorset and Somerset
Committees would take place on Friday 7 October 2016 at Exeter Racecourse, which would
comprise of a briefing and opportunity for comment on the full business case for the Brunel
Pension Partnership before it was presented to the Committee in December.

Dates of Future Meetings

Friday 2 December 2016 at 10.00am and Friday 24 February 2017 at 10.00am.

*DENOTES DELEGATED MATTER WITH POWER TO ACT

The Meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 11.15 am

Page 265






Agenda Iltem 16

CT/16/91
Devon Pension Board
20" October 2016

FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME

Report of the County Treasurer

Please note that the following recommendation is subject to consideration and determination by
the Board before taking effect.

Recommendation: that the Board review and approve the future work programme and
make suggestions for other areas of consideration going forward.

1. Introduction
1.1. The Devon Pension Board will continue to meet at least twice per year to review and
discuss issues concerning the Devon Pension Fund. In order to ensure that appropriate

areas are covered going forwards it was agreed at the first meeting of the Board to
implement a Future Work Programme.

2. Future Work Programme
2.1. A proposal for the Future Work Programme of the Pension Board is set out below:

Standing ltems

¢ Minutes of the Investment and Pension Fund Committee;
e Devon Pension Fund Risk Register;
e Peninsula Pensions Administration Performance Statistics;

e Future Work Programme.

April 2017

e Statutory Statements - Governance Policy and Compliance Statement;
o Statutory Statements — Investment Strategy Statement;

¢ Results of the Actuarial Review 2016;

e Training Review 2016/17 and Training Plan 2017/18;

¢ Internal Audit Report for 2016/17;

¢ Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18.

October 2017

e Statutory Statements — Communications Policy;
o Statutory Statements — Funding Strategy Statement;
o External Audit Findings Report.

Page 267



Agenda Iltem 16

3. Conclusion

3.1. The Future Work Programme aims to set out a clear agenda for future areas of review and
discussion for the Pension Board. This will help to provide assurance that the Devon
Pension Fund is managed and administered effectively and efficiently, ensuring that it
complies with the code of practice on the governance and administration of public service
pension schemes issued by the Pension Regulator.

3.2. The Board is asked to review and approve the future work programme and make
suggestions for other areas of consideration going forward.

Mary Davis

Electoral Divisions: All

Local Government Act 1972

List of Background Papers - Nil
Contact for Enquiries: Dan Harris
Tel No: (01392) 382520 Room G99

Page 268



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Statutory Statements
	ct1682

	7 External Audit Findings Report
	8 Devon Pension Fund Risk Register
	9 Pension Fund Annual Report & Accounts 2015/16
	10 Devon Pension Board:  Budget Monitoring 2016/17
	11 Actuarial Valuation 2016 and s13 Report
	12 Admitted Bodies Process
	13 Peninsula Pensions Administration Performance Statistics
	14 Brunel Pooling Partnership: Progress Report
	15 Investment and Pension Fund Committee
	16 Future Work Programme

